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Financial Performance

Revenue

£1,68359m

2076:£7,407.4m

+20.2% on a reported basis
+12.5% onanunderlying
basis'

Trading profit?

£165.5m

2076:£133.3m

+24.2% on a reported basis
+16.1% on an underlying
basis'

Return on sales?

9.8%

2016:9.5%

+30 basis points
+30 basis pointsonan
underlying basis’

Profit before tax

£97.1m

2016:£79.4m
22 3%increase

Headline earnings
pershare?

40.7 pence
2076:30.4 pence
33.9% increase

Recommended
final dividend

12.50 pence per share
18.00 pence Group

full year dividend
2016:16.55 pence
Group full year dividend

Year-end net debt?

£274.3m

1.2x net debtto

EBITDA rotio

2016:£320.3m
1.8x

1. Underlying basis is at constant currency and excludes separately reported items and the impact of acquisitions

ond disposals.

2. Fordefinitions of cliernative performance measures, refer to Note 4 of the Group Financial Statements.
3. Headline results refer to continuing operations and exclude separately reported iterns.

Forward-Yooking statements This Annual Report contains certain forward-locking statements with respect
ta the aperations, strategy, perfarmance, financial candition, and growth apportunities of the Vesuvius

Group. By their nature, these statements involve uncertainty ond ore based on assumptions and involve risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause actua] results and developments to differ materially from

those anticipated. The farward-looking statements reflect knowledge and information available at the date
of preparation of this Annual Report and, other thon in accordance with its legal and regulatery obligations,
the Company undertakes no obligation to update these forward-looking staternents. Nething in this Annual
Report should be construed as a profit forecast.



Vesuviusis a global leader in molten metal flow engineering

Vesuvius develops innovative, customised high-quality products,
services and solutions, to be used in extremely demanding,
high-temperature industrial environments. Our goalis to create
value for our customers, using our expertise to improve the
safety and efficiency of their manufacturing processes,
enhance their end product quality and reduce their costs.

In doing this, we aim to deliver sustainable, profitable growth and
provide our shareholders with a superior return on their investment,
whilst providing each of our employees with a safe workplace
where he or she is recognised, developed and properly rewarded.

At aGlance Our Strategy
Whatwe do & where Quraims
OSeepaged ©Seepoge 10

Innovation
QOurR&D Focus
O Seepage 32

Mefvin Bond, Plostic
Cperotor & Union Steward,
Chicago Heights, USA
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Our
Busin

In this section
4 Vesuviusata Glance

8 OurMarkets

10 Our Strategy

12 Business Model

The Strategic Reportsetout onpoges Tte 73
contains a fair review of our businesses, strategy,
and busiress model and the associcted principol
risks and uncertainties. We alse deliver a review of
our 2017 performance and set out an overview of
our markets. Details of aur principles, our people
and community engagement, together with

our facus on safety, are also contained inthe
Strategic Report.

Approved by the Board on 28 February 2018

and signed onits behalf by

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



“l joined Vesuvius in
Brazil as part of
Project Columbus”

Aline Barros, Quality Coordinater and Preduction
Manager Assistant, Vesuvius Fluxes, Germany

Building on my degree in Chemical
Engineering and severalindustry
internships, | joined Vesuvius in Brozil
in 2013, as pert of Project Columbus,
the Group's international graduate
programme, ! always wanted to work
overseas since first starting college,
and was excited to start my nine-
month internatfionat assignmeant.

After initial training athomein Brozil,
| moved to Indic where over the
course of my nine month secondment,
| developed three projects, focusing
onresin production and machine
maintenance at Fosecoin Pune,

and on ViSO production in Vesuvius
Caleutta. This enabled me to apply
my interest and expertise in process
management and optimisation.

It also gave me the opportunityto
immerse myself in a culturally very
different operation.

Having enjoyed the challenge of
working abroad, l then moved to
Germany as a Preduction Manoger
Assistant atthe newly acquired

mould powder plant in Milheim.
Whilst there, | worked cnthe
optimisation of spraying processes,
improved packaging standards and
implemented othersafety standords
~allwhilstlearning o speak Gerrnan.
More recently, | was pleasedto
accept the additicnol respensibility
of working as the Quality Coordinator
af Milheim, which afiows me to

work with Vesuvius' many different
departments and learn how the
company works as awhole.

Thave achieved a lot in my first five
years at Vesuvius, developing technicat
skills, growing in experience and
expanding my language capabilities
and geographical horizons,

© See more obout Vesuvius careers People and community on p 67-73
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Vesuvius
at a Glance

We are a global group with a business model
based on offering customised preducts,
solutions and services from production facilities
in close proximity to our custamers.

© See our Business Model on p12-13

0 See more abeout our Steel and Foundry divisions on p6-7

Ourglobal presence

57

11,010

Countries Employees
Confinents Sales offices

66

Productionsites

17

R&D centres

Michelle Chapman,
HR Associate,
Pittsburgh West, USA



Americas

17

Productionsites

£487.0m

Revenue
(2016: £415.3m)

®77.2% Steel
®22.8% Foundry

5

R&D centres

EMEA

30

Productionsites

£735.2m

Revenue

{2016: £585.6m)

®67.5% Steel
@®32.5% Foundry

10

R&D centres

Asia-Pacific

19

Productionsites

£f461.7m

Revenue

(2016: £400.5m)

®55.9% Steel
#40.1% Foundry

2

R&D centres

3,183

Employees

The map shows our
production, R&D
and commercial
sites worldwide

21

Sales offices

4,472

Employees

34

Sales offices

5,355

Employeaes

35

Sales offices

ssauIsnglngp I

Foundry Operating Review
O Seepdbd

Digital Services Operating
Review ©@Seepdd

Advanced Refractories

Steel Flow Control Qperating
Operating Review @ Seep40

Review @Seep3é
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Steel Division

Overview

Our custorers are steel producers,
manufacturers of steel production
equipment and other high-temperature
industries. Vesuvius is a world leader in the
supply of refractory producis, systems and
solutions. These halp our customers increase
their efficiency and productivity, enhance
quality, improve safety and reduce their
costs and their environmental impact.

Q See Steel Flow Contral, Advanced Refractories and
Digital Services Operating Reviews on p36-45

The Steel
Manufacturing
Process

Steel manufacturingisa
highly demanding process >
for which censistent gquality
ond efficient productionis
essential. Our products,
systems and solutions
enablethisthrough every
part of the process. _

Revenue

£1148.7m | £100.4m

2016:£79.2m

2016: £242.0m

Business Units

M Steel Flow Control

Specialised parts used to protect and

control the flow of molten metal

M Advanced Refractories

Specialised materials for lining
vessels for steel making (furnaces,
ladles and tundishes) and other
high temperature industries

M Digital Services

Digital products focus on the
capture, inferpretation and use
ofkey manufocturing doto fer
pracess management

Trading profit

Returnonsales

8.7%

2016:8.4%

Key Strengths

Scale: One of the world'slargest
manufacturers in our market

Technology: Leading products and
services

Integration: Deep knowledge of
customers’ processes allows us to offer
bespoke systems

Innovation: Capability to develop new
value-adding solutions

Proximity: Effective and efficient supply
to customers

Technical services

Our Technical Services
offering spans
all of our businesses.

For more on Technical
services, @ See pd4-45




Foundry Division

Overview

Qur primary customers are ferrous and
nen-ferrous foundries serving various end
markets, from large bespoke castings to
high-volume automotive pieces. Trading as
Foseco, we are a world leader in products
ond services that serve the global foundry
industry, improving casting quality and
foundry efficiency.

© See Foundry Division Operating Review on p46-49

Digital Services-Cur
business unit dedicated to
datacapture technologies

Flow Confrol, Advanced
Refractories ond Foundry ’
— Providing services and
solutions complementary to

orindependent of the sale
of consumables

Revenue Trading profit Return on sales

£535.2m | £65.1m 12.2%

2016: £459.4m 2016: £54.1m 2016:11.8%

Key Strengths

Product offering: Full range of high
quality products ond services

Innovation: industry-leading
technelogias with o focus on
continuous innovation

Integration: Detailed knowledge of
customers’ processes allows usfo provide
customised solutions

Technical support: Accessto Foseco's
extensive application engineering
resources

Proximity: Glebal presence

The Foundry Process

The foundry process is highly
sequential and consistency
of quality and productivity is
< essential. The conditioning of
molten metal, the nature of
the mould, and the way metal
flows in the mould affects both
the quality of the finished
costing and the effort, energy
and metal usage.

ssauisng Ing I
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Our Markets

Steel

Steel Division
end markets

Customers of the Steel Division
are principally steel producers
and manufacturers of steel
production equipment.

Steel production volumes
arethe critical driver of
demand asthe Steel

Division primarily sells products

thot are consumed during
the steel meoking process.
Thisis particularly truein the
production of higher-quality
steels where our highly
technical products deliver
the most value.

The Advanced Refractories
business also supplies

other high-temperature
industries such as primary
aluminium, copper, cement,
petrochemical ond energy
from waste. Around 7% of
revenyes in the Steel Division
arise from non-steel related
process industries.

Steel quality as a driver for demand

Steelmanufacturersare
increasingly searching for
productsthet cansupport the
production of higher grades of
steel. The flot' steel used in
"later cycle’ consumer goods,
e.g. cars and fridges, requires
significantly higher uniformity
thanthe ‘long'steel used in
‘early cycle’ construction
andinfrastructure. Inthe
developed market of NAFTA,
the productionratiois
currently 65:35% (flatlong).
As developing countries move
frominfrastructure-based
economiesto consumer-basad
economies, the ratio of flert
tolong steel consumption
also transitions. According to
the Chinese Iron ond Steel

Association, thistrend hos
beenseeninChina overthe
paost few years and is expected
tocontinue. The quality
demands are even higher

for production of speciality
ond high-strength steels.

Our highlytechnical, innovative
refroctory productsare
designedtopreservethe
quality of melten steel during
thasteel making process.
Vesuvius' engineered
refractories prevent the build-
up of impurities in the steel,
protectthe molten metalfrom
oxidisation, moderate its flow,
and manageitsfluid dynamics
to harmonise consistency and

reduce the pick-up of inclusions.

To do this our products needto
be highly resistant to erosion,
corrosion and thermal shock
toensurethatthey donot
themselves contaminate

the steel during casting.

The capabilities of Vesuvius'
products —particularly when
used as atotol solution - are
much moreindemand for
higher quality steel grades
where the consistency of the
finished steelis paramount.

Steel production

According to the World Steel
Association {WSAY), the
worldwide steelindustry sow
growth of 5.3%in 2017 with
1,691.2 milliontonnes ('mt')
produced globally.

For many years, China has
beentheworld’s lergest
producer of steel. In 2017,

the WSA reportedthat
Ching's crude stee! production
increased by 5.7%to 832mt
and accounted for 49% of
theworld's steel production.

ProductioninJapanwas
mostly flatat 105mtin 2017,
whilst India’s steel production
increased by 6.2%t0 107mt,
and South Kored'sincreased
by 3.7%to 71mt.

Growth in crude steel production (2017 vs. 2016) vs. 2017 steel production volume

(Top-15 producers and EU28)

Chinese reported steel production growth was 5.7% however,
due tothe closure of induction furnaces previously not reported
instatistics, Vesuvius estimates China's actual steel production
growthin 2017 wasbetween 0% and 2%



Foundry

Foundry Division end markets

The vehicle sector, comprising
light vehicles (passenger cars
and light trucks) and heavy
frucks, is the largest end
market for worldwide castings.
Other and markets for foundry
castings include machinery for
the agricultural, construction

and mining industries,
petrechemicals, power
generation equipment, railroad
and general engineering
sectors. Qur customers include
the world's major gutomotive
OEMs, truck producers and
equipment manufacturers.

Casting quality as a driver for demand

Whilst Fosece products
typically represent less than 5%
of afoundry's production cost,
they contribute significantly
toimproving product

quality and manufacturing
efficiency, whilst reducing

the enviranmental impoct

of the casting process
andimproving the ratio of
finished costingsto the
amount of metal poured -

a key parameter for foundry

efficiency. As castings become
increasingly complicated
(driveninthe case of
automotive casting by the need
for lightness), they demand
cleaner metal, better flowinto
the mould, and more consistent
solidification. This supports

the computer modelling,

flow simulation and casting
metheding capabilities that
are central to the services
provided by Foseco,

Demand drivers for castings

Light vehicle demandis largely
driven by consumer confidence
and, incommercial purchasing,
the age of the overall fleet.
Demend in the majority of

the remaining casting
end-markets is driven by the
cost of capital and the levet

of current profitability inthe
given sector. Certain sectors

are consumption-driven, such
as construction, mining,
agriculture and heavy truck,
where usage drives demand
for replocement parts

{e.g. bulldozer blades, digger
feeth, track pads and bowls,
etc.) based onactual wear.

Technology changes and
environmental drivers

New technologies, such as

3D printing, are expected

to continue to influence

the metal casting industry,
cllowing for faster prototyping
and production of smaller
volume parts. Environmental
regulations, driven by the
desire to reduce volatile
organic compound emissions

andthe use of silica within the
industry, are also expectedto
continueto tighten. This will
drive the trend to find
processes and consumable
products which suppert
production efficiency and
reduce afoundry'simpact
onthe envircnment.

Iron casfing

iron casting is split between
grey ond ductile iron with

grey iron representing the
maijority of metal being cost.
This is o cost-efficient and
robust process to produce
components that do not need
totolerate extreme mechanical
stress. Alliron casting requires
filters and coatings but grey
iron is not as refiont onfeeding

system utilisation dueto

its lower shrinkage en
solidification. Conversely,
ductileiron production requires
more sophisticated productsto
cope with the high shrinkages
of metalwhilst solidifying.

Steel casting

Steelis used in casting for
manufacturing components
with very high mechanicel
performance. Steel casting is
the most demanding casting
process due to higher melting
temperatures and greater
tendency for shrinkage,

thus the greater demand

for products and technical
expertise in this segment.

Aluminium/
Non-ferrous casting

Aluminium casting is the
segment of the foundry
market growing the fastest.
It has captured a significant
share of the light vehicle
market. Being molten below
700%C aluminium can be
cast iniron moulds which
canthen be reused. Foseco
concenfrotes onsupplying
fluxes, filters and machines
that refine the composition
and cleanliness of the metal.

sseuIsngIng I
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Our Strategy

Strategic
Objectives

Vesuvius focuses on the following strategic
objectives, which we measure and monitor

through our Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Deliver growth

Generate sustainable profitability
and create shareholder value

Maintain strong cash generation
and an efficient capital structure

Provide a safe working environment
for our people

Be at the forefront of innovation

Run top-quality, cost-efficient
and sustainable operations

Foster talent, skill and motivation
in our people

O Seeour Key performance indicators on p20-21

Execution
Priorities

Reinforce our
technology leadership

O Seep32-35

Increase penetration of
value-creating solutions

O Seep36-48

Capture growthin
developing markets

Improve cost leadership
and margins

Develop our Technical
Services offering

O Seepdd-45



Vesuvius has articulated five key execution priorities. These will enable
us to achieve our core strategic objectives of delivering long-term

sustainable and profitable growth.

Description

Progress in 20717

Vesuvius was built and grew on technology breakthroughs.
These enabled the steel continuous casting and foundry
industries toimprove their efficiency and quality substantially.
Focusing on technology leadership continues to drive our unique
value propesition and underpins our ability to deliver ongoing
value enhancement to our customers,

The percentage of revenue accounted for by ‘New Products’, that is
products launched within the last five years, grew from 8% in 2014
to nearly 15%in 2017. Our cbjective is for this to reach 20%. The new
R&D centre for Advanced Refractories ot Visckhapatnom, Indig,
was inaugurated in November 2017, Cur spend on R&D increcsed
vear-on-year to £33.2m, being 2.0% of our total revenue, and we
increased the efficiency of our R&D by focusing our effortsona
reduced number of potentially high-impact R&D projects. We also
moved the R&D function closer to our customers, ernbedding R&D
within the business units which will ensure a closer link between R&D
activities and the return we receive on our investment,

Qurtechnology has beenwidely adopted by the most sophisticated
producers inthe mostdeveloped markets. However, marked
differences remain inthe penetration of our solutions withinthe
industry. Consequently, there is o wider audience of customers whom
we believe can benefitfrom them. As steel and faundry marketsin
developing markets becorme more quality focused, we have the
opportunityto significantlyincrease our penetration of these
roarkets through offering value creating solutions.

Qur outperformance in the majority of end markets across both

our Steel and Foundry Divisions is evidence of the penetration
gainswe are achieving due to increased customer interest in our
value-creating solutions. For cur Steel Division, this autperformance
is reflected in our underlying 2017 revenue growth of 14.1% versus
5.3% growth in global steel production volumes, For our Foundry
Division, underlying 2017 revenue growth of 9.3% s further
evidence of this autperformance.

Building on our long-standing presence in all markets, we can
leverage the high growth enjoyed by our custormers’ industries
in emerging markets which are large consumers of steel goods
and foundry castings.

Cur growth in developing markets is especially encouraging

and we delivered outperformance relative to end markets, dueto
greater interest in our highvalue-cdded solutions, Qur 2017
revenue growth rates for cur key developing markets were as
follows: Ching +9.2%.; India +6,2%; South America +17.5%; Mexico
+7.1%; EMEA excl. EUZ28 +37.0%. The acceleration of cur reverue
growthin China is also especially notable and we are benefiting
from several favourable market trends which are driving a shift
towards our higher quality cansumables and services.

In 2015, we initiated a restructuring programme throughout the
Groupto adapt our business and our cost base tothe changing

trading environment. Thisis coreto our effortstoimprove profitability.
Furthermore, we haveembedded the principles of Lean manufocturing
across all our sites, continuously focusing on quality and productivity
to enable us to maintain our margins. Our global presence allows us
to benefit from economies of scale and deliver excellent service from
locolsites.

We continued to make good progress with our previously announced
restructuring programme, mainty focused on the Flow Control
business, delivering savings of £16.2min 2017, which was ahead of
expectations. As aresult, the fotal savings delivered since leunching
the programme in 2015 are now £43.2m. This programme is now
expected to deliver £60m of savings ot atotal cost of £75m. We also
commenced a completely new restructuring programme targeting
the Foundry Division in Europe and NAFTA, the Advanced
Refractories business unitin Evrope, and Group corporate functiens,
from which we expect £15m of recurring savings by 2020,

Cur customers' processes require increasing levels of engineering
servicesto reach the demanding levels of safety, accuracy and
consistency required by their end-customers’ quality specifications.
The key efements of Vesuvius' Technicol Services sirateqy are, firstly,
the Digital Services business unit, which is focused enincubating our
data capture technologies, and secondly, the business units which
play a eritical role inintegrating these products into our broader
ronsumables offering os well as ensuring customer access. Inthis
way, our Technical Services strategy is progressively penetrating all
activities of both our Steel and Foundry Divisions.

We saw good progress of our global Technical Services offering,
which is now embedded inthe operations of all cur business units.
Global Technical Services turnover across all business units

reached £88m in 2017, growing by 14% year-on-year. [n late 2017,

we made a strategic investment in Sapotech Cy, a Finnish technology
company offering optical measurement services for the continuous
casting pracess. The Sapotech business willbe monaged by cur

Flow Control business unif.

1
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Business Model

A profitable, flexible, cash-generative
model focused on growth
We develop and manufaciure high-technology

products and salutions for supply fo the steel and
casting industries, operating a profitable, flexible,

cash-generative and growth-building business model.

Over many years we have built the brand equity of
our Vesuvius and Foseco products through reliability,
technology and service.

The foundation of our business madel is the supply of
specialised and consumable preducts from a global
presance. Our industry experts are embedded at
many customer locations and are therafore ideally
placed to collaborate with customers to identify

their heeds, and potential service and process
improvements, This also enables us to grow aur
solutions and service portfolio.

Our modelis resilient to end-market volatility due
to the flexibility of our diversified manufacturing
footprint and adjustable variable cost base.

Our modelis profitable by allowing value pricing
for bespoke products and services. It generates
growth as we enlarge our market with additional
innovative products and solutions,

Global Presence

Using our global spread of expertise te identify
and create market opporiunities

Vesuvius is present on six continents, supperting the
development of global steel and foundry manufacturing
pracesses with new technologies. We have manufacturing
capability in all the main steel and foundry markets and hire
andtrain local engineers. They are progressively integrated
within the Vesuvius network of experts, and offered
international careers. Gur local manufacturing, local
expertise and global knowledge of our customers’ processes
give us o special relotionship with our customers, helping
them to optimise their process and product performance.
All over the world, new plants use Vesuvius and Foseco
praductsto crecte the best possible conditions for success.

Key Resources

Financial capital We use the cash generated
by our business to invest in innovation, people,
operating assets, technology ond sales to
generate further growth.

Manufacturing copital We have a global festprint,
with 66 production sites based on six continents,
giving us close proximity to our customers.

Intellectucl capital We have 17 R&D centresand
over 300 R&D staff worldwide, generating
innavative products and solutions for our customers.

Human capital We invest in developing cur skilled
and mativated workfarce of approx. 11,000 people
and provide them with a safe environment inwhich
towork.

Social capital We champion our Velues and our
ethical conduct. We maintain strong relationships
with customers and our wider stakeholder group.

Natural capital We utilise high-quality raw
materials, secured through reliable and
well-developed supply chains.

Optimised Manufacturing

Low-cost Lean manufacturing, close te customers,
provides reliable, fust-in-time' products

Qur successfully tested products can be manufactured at
a short distance from our customers’ plants, guaranteeing
cost-competitive and time-efficient delivery. We optimise
our cost competitiveness by investing in the lowest cost
production site in the area and have established
manufacturing facilities in emerging markets from the
beginning of their industrialisation. This, together with the
high volume of pieces we are able to produce, provides
our customers with the best balance between volue,

cost and service for cur high-technology solutions.

@ See more cbout our global presence on p4-5

O See more about sustainability on p64-66



200+

technical experts
across six cantinents

17/

R&D centres

Advanced Technology
Knowledge

Our technolegy centres develop value-adding solutions
involving engineered systems and high-value consumables

Our continuing investment in the Company's R&D centres

is reflected in afl creas of our offering. We have knowledge
of the most advanced ceramic and metallurgical technigues
using state-cf-the-art equipment and the most advanced
technologies of flow simulation and finite element analysis.
We aretherefore able to provide our customers with
sophisticated, innovative, custom-designed solutions, with
the highest level of confidence in their suitability, creating
value and helping them differentiate from their compaetition,
We enhance this expertise with our growing copabilities in
data capture and interpretation to defiver expert process
managernent improvements to our customers.

66

manufacturing sites
in26countries

100+

R&D PhDs
and engineers

Key Outputs

Value to sharehelders Cur afficient use of capital
generates annual profits, giving returns to our

shareholders and underpinning sustainable growth.

High-quality products We deliverbespake,
high-quality refractory and consumable products
and systems to industry-leading customers around
the world.

Customervalue Our investment ininnovation
creates cutting-edge products and solutions,
delivering enhanced value for our customers and
differentiating us from aur competitors.

Expert delivery We embed technical experts with our

customers, giving us ¢ fundomentat understanding
of their needs and delivering them accessto our
globai network of highly skilled individuafs.

Sustainable business Our commitment to ethical
business delivers strong, long-term, sustainable
commercial relationships.

Environmental benefits We develop products
that deliver efficiency and energy savings to aur
custamers. We focus on sustainability in cur own
business through the efficient use of energy and
natural resources.

Service and Consistency

Serving our customers reliably, competitively and consistently
with consumables critical for their manufacturing processes

Alongside developing our global presence, we ensure a

local service to our customers, from inventory management
to high-quality technical support ot their sites and the ability
to swiftly modify production and supply te reflect changes
in customer requiremeants. Our knowledge of end-market
processes, specifications and techniques arcund the world
gives our experts an unparclleled ability to support our
customers. This unique level of service relies on ourtechnicians’
permanent presence at our customers’sites, and their ability
to leverage the worldwide expertise accumulated across the
Vesuvius network.

© Read more aboutinnovation on p32-35

Q Read more about quality and reliability onp36-48
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Chairman'’s Statement

John McDonough CBE Chairman

O See the Chief Execufive’s Strategic
Review onp18-19

© Seemore about our Markets on p8-9

O See our Financial Review on p26-31

©See more cbout our Governance in the
Governance Section onp74-121

“We have outperformed
the market and delivered
astrong set of results”

Overview

2017 was a year of good progress for
the Group as we sow improvemenss

in our trading environment following
the challenging market conditions
experienced in 2015 and 2076. We also
completed asuccessfultransition of
Chief Executive, with the appointment
of Patrick Andréto the role as partof
aplanned succession process. Glebal
steel production growth exceeded our
expectations and pleasingly our overal
sales growth outperformed the global
steel morket. We also experienced
positive momentum in the majority of
foundry end markets. Overall, despite
experiencing headwinds relating to
significant raw material price increases
ond some temporary increased
inter-company sourcing costs, the Group
saw a 24.2%increase in reported frading
profit (16.1% on an underlying bosis),
anda 20.2% increase in reported
revenue (12.5% cn an underlying basis),
with cash generation strengthening
further. The Group confirued to make
good progress with the restructuring
programme and we remained focused
onthe delivery of cur strategy and irs
execution priorities. Finally, in December,
we strengthened our balance sheet,
repaying existing borrowing with the
issuance of debt inthe US Private
Placement market.

New Chief Executive

The appointment of our new Chief
Executive, Potrick André, wos o key event
for Vesuvius this year. It wos the result of
arigorous process, during which both
interncl and external candidates were
considered. We are delighted thatthe
best fit for the role came from within

our own ranks. | would like to take this
opportunity to thank Patrick's predecessor,
Frangois Wanecq, for his many years of
dedicated service ro the business and his
diligence in ensuring asmocth transition.
We look forward to the years ahead
under Patrick’s executive leadership.

Market Dynamics and Strategy

During the year, we saw global steel
production increase by 5.3% with
production in the majerity of major steel
countries up year-on-year. In our Foundry
Division the overall trading environment
and demand for our products was
positive across the majority of cur key
end markets.

Throughout the year we faced notable
inflationary pressures frem significant
price increoses in several key row
materials. These initially impacted our
Advanced Refractories business, but
subsequently price rises were also
experienced in the Steel Flow Control
and Foundry businesses. We responded
proactively to the pressure placed on
eur business maoking geod progress in
recovering cost inflation through higher
seliing prices by year-end.



Against this backdrop, we continued to
focus on the execution of our strategy
and made good progress on our five

key execution priorities (see page 10).

We remain confident that these will
enable us to create value and deliver
sustainable profitability for our
shareholders. We continue forecognise
the fundamentalimportancetothe
Group of the capabilities of our people.
Our highly talented leadership teams and
operational staff ensure that we are able
to drive our strategy forward, with quality
underpinning net only the premium
promise of our products, services and
solutions, but also our overall approach
to business excellence.

Performance and Dividend

In 2017, reported sales were £71,683.9m,
an increase from 2076 of 20.2%.

Cur margins improved to 9.8%, delivering
reported frading profit of £165.5m.
Whilst we experienced some hecdwinds
throughout the second half, over the year
we outperformed our markets interms of
growth. These results serve to emphasise
the strength of our management team
and their ability to operate effectively
against the backdrop of avolatile
market, Vesuvius remains an intrinsically
cash-generative business and we saw
strong cash generation throughout 2017,
ending the year with a stronger balance
sheet than in previous years.

The Group continued to make good
progress in delivering the previously
announced restructuring programme
which focused mainly on our Flow
Control business. We alse commenced
a completely new pregramme focusing
onthe Foundry Division in Europe and
NAFTA, the Advanced Refractories
business unitin Eurcpe, and Group
corporate functions,

Our Headline PBT was £152.9m, 27.6%
higher than last year on a reported basis.
Including amortisation of £19.5m and
restructuring costs of £36.3m, cur PBT
of £871mwas 22.3% higher than 2016.
Statutory EPS 15 14.1p.

Our dividend policy aims to deliver
long-term dividend growth, provided
thisis supported by cash flow and
underlying earnings, and is justified in
the context of our capital expenditure
requirements and the prevaiting market
outlook. With this in mind, the Board
has recommended a final dividend of
12.5 pence per share for the year ended

31 December 2017 {2G16: 11.4 pence},
whichwould resultin a total dividend

for the year of 18.0 pence per share
(2016: 16.55 pence), anincrease of
8.8%. If approved atthe Annua! General
Meeting, this final dividend will be paid
on 25 May 2018 to shareholders onthe
register at 13 April 2018.

Board and Governance

in April 2017, we appointed Helly
Koeppel as a Non-executive Director,
replacing Nelda Conners, who resigned
from the Board in late 2016. Holly has
more than 35 years' industry and
financial experience, and has worked
with businesses in Australia, Ching, the
UK and the US. We are delighted to
have her significant experience around
the Board table.

The Board continues to place great
importance on furthering our
understanding of the Vesuvius business
by visiting key operations and engaging
with as many of our people as possible.
This year, the full Board visited our
Foundry operarions and customers in
Brazil, meeting management from all
business lines and gaining a broader
understanding of the overall South
American business. As Chairman,

| personally visited our operations in
China in May and, during the year,
other Non-executive Directors visited
operations in Skawinain Poland,
Cleveland and Fittsburghin the US,
and Borken in Germany. The Board will
continue to visit sites across the Group,
increasing individual knowledge and
ensuring that we remain connected
with our operaticns, management
teams and people around the world.

The 2017 externally facilitated Board
evaluation confirmed that the Board
confinues to function effectively.

We believe it remains well balanced,
setting the right tone from the top, with
a strong mix of relevant experience
and skills, ensuring that a collaborative
yet challenging culture is embedded
throughout the Group.

Our People

In 2016, | ncted that to secure the
current and future perfermance of

the Group, the Board had widened its
focus on succession planning issues,
additionally reviewing the management
level immedictely below the Board.

This continues to be acritical area
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for Board attention, with the Board
fully recognising the impertance of
developing talent and maintaining

u cadre of diverse and highly capable
people throughout the business.

The need for greater diversity
throughoutthe businessis a goal upon
which the Board remains focused.

As ever, | continue to be impressed by
the way in which our leadership teams
and our people go the ‘extra mile' to
exceed our own, and our customers’
expectations, as evidenced by our 2017
results. On behalf of the Board, thank
themall.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual Gereral Meeting will be
held cn 10 May 2018. The Notice

of Meeting ond explanatory notes
containing details of the resolutions to
be put to the meeting accempany this
Annual Report and Accounts and are
availabie on our website (www.vesuvius.
com). | and all my Board celleagues plan
to attend the Annual General Meeting
and we look forward to the apportunity
to meet with as many shareholders as
possible onthe day.

BIUDWIOHR N I

John McDoenough CBE Chairman
28 February 2018
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review

"Our main objectiveisto

Patrick André Chief Executive

Introduction

itis an henour to have bean selected to
lead Vesuvius and [ am groteful to our
Chairman, Jehn McDenough, and the
Board of Directors for their trust.

fwould alsc like ta thank Frangois
Wanecq for his exceptional cormmitment
in leading Vesuvius over the past 12 years.
Thanks to his achievements and the
efforts of all our teams, the foundations
of the Group are strong and sound.

Our main objective is now to build on
these foundations and to generate

and accelerate the Group's profitable
growth over the coming years.

Thestrong performance of the Group
in 2017 is an important first step in the
implementation of this growth strategy.

Strong Performance

Ina globally favourable econemic
environment, both our Steeland Foundry
Divisions succeeded in outperforming
the general market growth. This was
particularly the case in China.

Thanks to this performance, Vesuvius'
global salesin 2017 reached £1,683.9m,
anincrease of 20.2% over 2016 0ona
reported basis. At constant currency,

ond adjusted for the effect of acquisitions,
underlying revenue was up 12.5% as
compared with 2016.

QOur trading profitin 2017 reached
£165.5m, anincrease of 24.2% over 2016
onareported basis and 16.1%onan
underlying basis. Qur return cnsales
improved from 9.5% to 9.8%. After the
inclusion of amortisation of acquired

accelerate the implementation
of our profitable growth
strategy over the coming years’

intengibles and restructuring costs,
operating profitwas £109.7m, 18.1%
ahead of prior year on o reported basis.

Our financdiol performance would,
however, have been even stronger in
2017 if we had not been impacted by
two temporary headwinds.

Some of the key raw matericls used

by our Steel and Foundry Divisions
experienced significant price increases in
2017, particularly during the second half
ofthe year. The speed of these increases
was such that it was not possible to fully
recover the increased costs throughthe
sales price of our finished products, as we
were bound by contractual obligotions
with some custormers. This situation
improved towards the end of 2017 due
te prices stabilising for several key raw
materials and major progress being
made in recovering cost inflation through
higher selling prices. Whilst the price of
magnesite, the largest contributer to
raw material price inflationin 2017,

has now stabilised, the price of other

raw matericls such as bauxite, silicon
carbide and zirconia are still on an
upward trend. As aresult, the process

of price adjustment will continue into
2018, until realised costincreases have
been fully recovered.

Additionally, the very strong growth

of our Flow Control salesin EMEA
temporarily exceeded the capacity of
our manufacturing plants in the region,
reguiring the import of products from our
facilities in Asia and NAFTA, incurring
additional freight, export duty and
overtime costs. Measures were
immediately taken to increase the

capacity of the Flow Control EMEA
plants and this ramp-up is now
complete, substituting imports from
non-EMEA plarnts.

Improved Financial Position

Despite the streng growth in our turnover
and increased capital investment of
£44.3min 2017 versus £35.2min 2016,
our cash conversion ratio increased to
104%in 2017 due to our focus on efficient
working capital management, Qur frade
working capital to scles ratic decreased
t0 24.9% from 26.6% in 2016.

This strong cash flow generation
reduced our netdebtto £274.3m at

31 December 2017 versus £320.3m

at 31 December 2016. We also partly
refinanced our debtin December 2017
with the issuance of a€100m US Private
Placement, resulting in a significant
decrease of our financing costs

going forward.

Strategic Progress

Our strategy remains centred around
five key execution priorities, designed

to ensure the achievernent of our core
strategic objectives of delivering long-term,
sustainable and profitable growth.

Each of these execution priorities saw
significant progressin 2017

> Reinforce our technology leadership:
With a global R&D spend of £33.2m in
2017 (2016:£28.6m), representing
2.0% of revenue, Vesuvius continues to
lead the industry with a significantly
targer R&D spend to sales ratio than
most of our competitors. in 2017,
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we continued to focus our R&D efforts
on areduced number of potentiaily
high-impact R&D programmes.

The new Advanced Refractory R&D
centre in Visckhapatnam, India, was
inaugurated in November, reinforcing
our presence in this key market for our
future growth, strengthening links with
customers and enabling us to better
tapinto the growing talent pool of
engineers and scientists in the country.
The decision was also made to
recrganise the Flow Control R&D
network arcund three main R&D
centres; in the LS (Pittsburgh), Europe
{Ghlin/Feignies) and Chino (Suzhou),
operating under o common leadership.
This structure will be fully operational
in 2020 and will enakle us to increase
the efficiency of our research further,
by reinforcing our proximity with
customers and accessing a wider

pool of worldwide scientific talents.

Increase penetration of our value-
creating selutions: The growth of sales
in our Steel and Foundry Divisions
outperformed underlying market
growth in mest areas, confirming the
mounting interest of customersin our
advanced solutions, enabling them to
imprave their manufacturing efficiency
whilst at the same time raising the
quality of their finished products.

We were particularly plegsed with

our progress in Ching, where Steel
Division salesincreased by 7% and
Foundry Division sales increased by
13% on an underlying basis.

Capture growthin developing
markets: Steel Division sales grew
fasfer than the market in the key
developing regions of China, India
and the Middle East. However, sales
growth in Latin America, while positive,
was slightly below general steel
market growth. Foundry sales also
outperformed marketsin most
developing countries, with the
exception of India where priority was
giventothe management of working
capitaland customer credit risk.

Improve cost leadership and margins:
Our previously anncunced Lean and
self-help programme to improve the
cost competitiveness and efficiency of
our manufacturing network continued
to develop in 2017, extending from
Flow Control Eurcpe to Flow Control
NAFTA aperations, £16.2m of savings
were deliveredin 2017, bringing the
total savings delivered since launching
the progrommeto £43.2m. This
programme is expected to deliver

£60m of savings at atotal cost of
£75m. A completely new restructuring
programme facused on the Foundry
Division in Europe and NAFTA, the
Advanced Refractories business unitin
Europe and global corporate functions
was launched at the end of 2017, with
expected recurring savings of £15m by
2020. In parallel to these restructuring
programmes, Vesuvius is reinforcing
its focus on operational excellence

and continuvous improvement in its
manufacturing operations.

> Develop our Technical Services
offering: Our Technical Services
offering has continued to develop
in 2017, not only within our Digital
Services business unit but also within
Flow Canirol, Foundry and Advanced
Refractories. Late in 2017, we made a
strategic investment in Sapotech Oy,
a Finnish technology company
developing optical defect detection
services inthe steel continuous casting
process. This investment will reinforce
the Flow Centrol business unit.

Attracting, Developing and
Retaining Talent

The success of our strategy ultimately
relies on the quality and motivation of
our people. In 2017, we continued our
effortsto attract, develop and retain the
best talents worldwide. This will intensify
in 2018.

We believe in diversity of talents and
origins and in the importance of an
entrepreneurial and deceniralised
culture, with empowered, accountable,
innovative and results-oriented
managers, operating close to our
markets and our customers.

Vwill strongly suppert the reinforcement
of this cuiture within the Group going
forward.

Stable Safety Parformance
in 2017

With a lest fime injury frequency rate of
1.63 per million hours in 2077, our safety
performance improved slightly over
2016 (1.72).

Thea Group's injury severity rate improved
more markedly in 2017 with a severity
rate of 62.8 days lost per million hours
worked versus 74.6 days lost per million
hours worked in 2016, highlighting the
success of the Group's efforts to address
the most dangerous situations in our
menufocturing plants.

Our objective is to improve this
performance further year-on-year.

A new safety management organisation,
updoting responsibility and accountability
for the management of safety across

the Group, was established ar the end

of 2017 and will be fully operational in

the first half of 2018.

Sustainability

Vesuvius R&D reinforced its effortsin
2017 to develop products and services
helping our Steel and Foundry custamers
to reduce their energy consumption and
carbon footprint through the improved
service life of our praducts and reduction
of waste in their manufacturing processes.
At the same time, we continued our
efforts to reduce waste and energy
consumption in cur own manufacturing
processes.

Outlook

Our main Steel and Foundry markets
remain positively oriented atthe
beginning of 2018. However, we expect

a lower growth rate of steel production
outside Chinain 2018 comparedto 2017,
as the significant decrease in Chinese
steel exports which cccurred in 2017 may
not repeatin 2018, Our self-help and
manufacturing optimisation programme
will continue to develop and expand in
2018. The temporary raw material and
product supply headwinds thatimpaocted
our 2017 results have now been mostly
mitigated and will substantially unwind
during the year, subject to any further
raw material costincrecses. We remain
confident in our chility fo further improve
working capital management and
generate strong operating cash flow,
Forthese reasons, the Board is confident
that in comparisento 2017, further strong
orogress will be made in 2018,

Patrick André Chief Executive

28 February 20718
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Key Performance
Indicators

The Board and management
regularly monitor both financial
and non-financial performance
indicators to measure
performance against objectives.
TheBoardreviewsthese KPlsas
part of its governance and risk
management processes.

Strategic Alignment

Deliver growth

Generate
sustainable
profitability
and create
shareholder
value

Maintain strong
cash generation
and an efficient

capital structure

KP}

Underlying
revenua growth

Trading profit and
return onsales

Purpose

Provides onimportant indicator of organic
{(like-for-like) growth of Group businesses
between reporting periods. This measure
eliminates the impact of exchange rates,
acquisitions, disposals and significant
business clasures

Used to assessthe trading performance
of Group businesses

Headline profit
before tax

Used ta assess the financial performance
of the Group as awhole

Headline earnings
pershare

Used to assessthe underlying earnings
performance of the Group as awhole

Return on net
assets

Free cash flow

Average working
capitalto sales
ratio

Used to assess the financial performance
and asset management of the Group

Used to assess the underlying cash generation
of the Group. One of the factors driving the
generation of free cash flow s the average
working capitel te sales ratio, which indicates
the level of working capital used in the business

Interest cover
ratio

Rafio of net debt
to EBITDA

Non-financial KPls

Strategic Alignment

Provide a safe
working
environment
for our people

Beatthe
forefront of
innovation

KPI

Lost time injury
frequencyrate

R&D spend

Both ratios are used to assess the financial
position ofthe Group and it ability to fund
future growth

Performance



Performance

Link to remunerction

Delivery of value to shareholdersis linked to
remuneratian through the Vesuvius Share Plan
{"VSP), which measures the vesting of awards
againsttatal shareholder return

OVSP-Read more about thison p111-113

EPS islinked to remuneration as o megsure
used in the Annuel Incentive plan (AIP) and
the V5P

©AIPand VSP —Reod more obout them in the
Directors’ Remuneration Repart on p96-116

In 2017, working capital performance was
linked to remuneratian through the use of
the Group's 'cash canversion rotio’ as one of
the measures used in the AIP

© AlIP - Read more about this on p109-111

*Work-related iliness or injuries which resulred
inan employee being absent for atleast one
day—meaosured per million hours worked

O Read more about Safety on p60-63

** Constant 2017 currency

Strategic Alignment

Run top quality,
cost efficient
and sustainable
operations

Performance

© Read more about Sustainability on p64-66

Note: The performance measure for this KP| has been omended this yeor. The Campany
believes that the new performance meosure using narmalised’ consurmption gives a more
helpfulindication of the Group's performancein this area.

21

BUDWIIOLR PO I



22

Vesuviusplc
Annuc| Reportand Accounts 2017

Risk

The Board continually monitors the internal and

external risks which could significantly impact

the long-term performance of the Group

Risk Management in 2017

The Board isresponsible for seffing the
Group's risk appetite and ensuring that
appropriate risk management systems
arein place. The Group undertakes a
continuous process of risk identification
and review, which includes botha
top-down and bottom-up process,
independently gathering views on risk
from each business unit, and from
operational, functional end senior
exacutive mancgement, and the Board
of Directors. Building on the process
conducted in 2016, where aclean sheet
review of the Group's principal risks was
undertaken, the Group's assessment of
principal risks has been reviewed and
considered against a further group

of emerging risks and uncertainties
identified through our 2017 Board
process.

Changes to Risk in 2017

The Board believes that there hos been
no material change te the Group's
principal risks and uncertainties during
the year. However, the Board reflected
on the implications of certain emerging
‘macro’trends during the year. These
included the increase in automation

in manufacturing as a competitive
disruption and the patential for negative
implications for the business from the
Brexit process, the outcome of which
remains unclear, but which is not
expectedto be materialin the context of
the Group. The Board also discussed the
risks that could arise from a failure by
the Group to foster the correct cufture
for success. In addition to these wider
trends, the Board focused on identified
risks whereissues hed arisen during the
year—the interruption of supply of quelity
raw materials, the related challenges of
instigating price increases asinput costs
go up, the mere protectionist approach
beingimplemented in some major
markets, and the potential for financial
instability and worldwide recession.

Todd Steele,
Technical Specialist,
MB&T ~Ferrous,
Foundry USA

Finally, the Board continued its cversight
of cyber issues as an emerging risk. The
Board's view on each of thesa issues was
integrated into management discussions
on risk and factored into the approach
the Group takes to successful mitigation.

Risk Mitigation

Therisks identified are actively manoged
in order 1o mitigate exposure. Senior
management ‘owners' are identified

for each principal risk to manage the
mitigations of that specificrisk and
contribute tothe anolysis of its likelihcod
and materiality. Thisisreportedto the
Board. The risks are analysed in the
context of our business structure which
gives protection against a number of
principal risks we face with diversified
currencies, a widespread customer base,
local production matching the diversity of



our markets and intensive fraining of
our employees. Additionally, we seek
o mitigate risk through contractual
measures. Where cost-effective, the risk
is transfarred to insurers.

Board Monitoring

The Board defines the Group's risk
appetite, considering the noture and
extent of the principa! risks that the
Group should take, The Board's
oversight of principal risks also involves
a Board review of the processes by
which the Group manages those risks,
establishing a clear understanding af
Board level of the individuals and greups
in the business fermally responsible for
the management of specificrisks.

O Seemorein Governance on pages74-121

Principal Risks

The risks identified on pages 24 and 25
are those the Boord considers o be the
mast relevant to the Group inrelationto
their potential impact onthe achievernent
of its strategic objectives. All of the risks
set outon pages 24 and 25 could materially
affect the Group, its businesses, future
operations and financial condition and
could cause actual resulis to differ
materially from expected or historical
results, These risks are not the only ones
thatthe Group wili face. Some risks are
not yet known and some currently not
deemed to be material could become so.

Viability Process

Viability Statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viahility of the Group over a
three year pericd to 31 December 2020,
taking into acceunt the Group's current
position and the potential impact of the
principal risks and uncertainties.

The Directors have determined that a
three year period is an appropriate
period ovar which to provide the Viability
Statement because this is the period that
the strotegic business plan focuses on
and is sufficiently funded by financing
facilities with average maturity terms of
approximately six years.

In moking this statement, the Direcrors
have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks that may threaten the
business model, future performance,
solvency and liquidity of the Group.
Thisis embodied in the annua! review
of a three year botfom-up business

plon process which includes a review

of sensitivity to "business as usual' risks,
such as profit growth and working capital
variances, severe but plausible evants
and theimpact on the centrol debt and
headrocom profile analysis. The results
take account of the cvailability and likely
effectiveness of the mitigoting octions
that could be taken 1o avoid or reduce
theimpact or occurrence of the
underlying risks.
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Whilst the review has considered all the
principal risks identified by the Group,
the following were selected for enhanced
stress testing: an unplanned dropin
customer demand, debt recovery risk
due to customer default, raw material
price inflation, reduction inearnings
fromincreased interest charges and the
impact of volafility inforeign currency
earnings. The Group's prudent balonce
sheet management, flexible cost base to
react quickly to end market conditions,
access foJong-term capital ot acceptable
financing costs and well diversified
international businesses in different
currency earning profilesleaves it well
placed 1o manage these principal risks.

In performing the stress testing, certain
assumptions were made including that:
customer failures resultin write-offs of
the full value of the receivables with no
lost revenue replacement; and particl
cash flow mitigation is possible from
working capital releases, restricted
capital expenditure and operating cost
reductions. Under the enhanced stress
testing described cbove, a potenticl
breach of a covenant would only occur
inthe event of an unforeseen reduction
in revenue greater than 35%.

Accordingly, the Directors confirm that
they have areasonable expectation
that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liobilities as
theyfcil due over the three year period
1o 31 December 202C.

Identify Assess

Model

Report

Viability time herizon and risk
analysis framework

Principal risks
ond stress scenarios

Viability against risk
scenarios, examining

© Sea Viability Statement
above

probabilities ond impacts

9UDWIOLIB IO I
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Risk continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk and Context

Demand volatility

Vesuvius' expectations of
future trading are based upon
anassessment of end-market
conditions, which are subject
to some uncertainty. Vesuvius'
end-markets are histerically
somewhat cyclical in nature.

Strategic
olignment

Protectionism
and globalisation

Local, national or regional political
requirements conflict with the
quality and efficiency delivered

by scale and standardisation.

Strategic
alignrent

Financial uncertainty

Fluctuations in the value of
currencies, interest rates or rotes
ofinflation moy adversely impocr
the Group's financial position or
results of operations. Availability
of sufficient capital is critical

to allow Vesuvius to deliver its
business plon.

Stratagic
alignmer

Complex and changing
reguiagtory environment

Vesuvius is subject to worldwide
legal and regulatory regimes,
some of which impose extro-
jurisdictional abligations on
companies ond are continually
updated.

Srraregic
alignment

Potential Impact

Unplanned drogin demand and/or
revenue due toreduced production

Marginreduction

Mitigation

Geographic diversification of revenyes

Product innevation and service offerings securing long-term
revenue strearns and maintaining perfarmance differential

Customer failure leading to increased
bad debts

Increase in service ond product lines by the development of the
Technical Services offering

Loss of market share to competition

R&Dincludes ossessment of emerging technolegies

Cost pressures at customers leading
to use of cheaper solutions

Rastricted access tomarket due to
enforced preference of localsuppliers

Manufocruring capecity rationalisation and flexible cost base

Diversifiad customer base: no customer is greater than 10%
of revenue

Robust credit and working capital control to mitigate the risk
of default by counterparties

Highly diversified manufacturing foctprint with menufacturing
sites located in 26 countries

Increcsed barriers to entry for new
businesses orexpansion

Strong local managernent with delegoted authority to runtheir
business and manage customer relationships

Increased costs fromimport duties
or taxation

Loss of market share

Customer and octher counterparty
default

Restricted access to capital hampering

ability o fund growth

Reduction in earnings from increased
interestcharges

Reduced market liquidity and
increased cost of capital

Revenue reduction from reduced end-
muarker occess

Cost flexibility

Tax risk management and control framework fogethear with
a strong control of inter-company frading

Capital ollocation discipline

Capitolstructuring, including fixed rate borrowing ond matching
of debtto cash flow ecrnings currency

Alignment of cost structure with revenue where possible

Effective planning of the debit refinaneing profile to avoid exposure
ta shart-term market disruptions

Globaily disseminated Code of Conduct highlighting ethical
ocpproach o business

Disruption of supply chainand route
to market

Increasedinternal contral processes

Increased frequency of regulatory
investigations

Reputational damage

Worldwide confidential Speck-up procedure

Compliance programmes and training acrossthe Group

Indepentent Internal Audit function

Experienced Internal Legal function



Strategic

N i wih
Alrgnmem Deeliver gros

©Seemore about Qur Strategy an p10-11

Risk ond Context

Business interruption

The Group is subject 1o operational
risks including natural catostrophe,
terrorist action, fire/explosion,
environmental regulation,
industrial oction, supply chein
issues and cyber risk.

Strategic
clignment

Failure to secure Innovation

Not maintaining and/er
developing the necessory
sustainable differentiation in
products, systerns and services
by driving innovative solutions.
Competitive advantage derived
from proprietary intellectual
propertyislostthrough
inadequate protection.

Strategic
alignment

Attracting talent and
performance management

Failure to attract sufficient
newtalent to the Group based
onindustry perception and
competition. Failure to maintain
and develop atalent pipeline
and internal succession

opticns for middle and senior
management positions.

Strategic
alignment

Quality, heaith andsafety

Vesuvius works in highly
challenging manufacturing
environments, providing praducts,
sysfemns and services thaf are
mission critical and for which
reliability is paramount.

Straregic
clignmen?

Generate sustainable  Maintain strong
profitability and
createshareholder
value

cashgeneration
and an efficient
capital structure

Potentiallmpact

Loss of a major plant temporarily
or permanently impairing out ability
to serve our customers

Provide g sofe
working envirenment  of innovation
for cur people

Damage 1o ar restriction in ability
touse assets

Denial of accass to critical systems
or control processes

Disruption of manufacturing
processes

Ingbility te source critical
raw materials

Product substitution by customers

Increased campetitive pressure
through lack of differentiation of
Vesuvius offering

Run top-guality, Fostertalent,
cost-efficiant
and sustaincble

operations

Be ot the forefront

in our people

Mitigotion

Diversified manufocturing foorpring

skill and motivatien

Disaster recovery planning

Business continuity plenning with strategic maintenance of
excess capacity

Physical and IT control systems security, access and training

Cyber risksintegrated into wider risk-monogement structure

Well-established globalinsurance programme

Group-wide safety menogement programrmes

Duotsourcing strategy and development of substitutes

Enduring ond significant investment in R&D, with market-
leading research

A shared strategy forinnovotion throughout the Group,
deployed viaour R&D centres

Commaditisation of product portfolio
through lack of development

Stage gate process from innavation te commerciclisationte
foster innovation and increcse alignment with strategy

Lack of respense to changing
customer needs

Lass of intellectual propearty
pratection

Organisational culture of high
parformance is not achieved

Staffturnover in growing ecanamies
and regions

Programme of Manufacturing and Process Excellence

Quality programme, focused an quality and consistency

Stringent intellectuni property registrotion and defence

internal focus antalent development and troining, with
toilored coreer-stage programemes and clear performonce
menagement strategies

Contacts with universities to identify and develop talent

Stagnation ofideas and development
opportunities

Career path planning and global opportunities for high-
potential staff

Loss of expertise and crifica!
business knowledge

Reduced management pipeline
for succession to senior positions

Injury to staffand contractors

Product or applicationfailures lead
to adverse finuncial impact or loss of
reputation as technolegy leader

Internal programmes for the structured transfer of technical
and other knowledge

Cleorly elucidated values to underpin business culture

Activa safety programmaes, with ongoing wide-ranging monitaring

andsafetytraining

Quality management programmes including stringent quality
centrol standards, morstoring and reparting

Health and safety breach,
monufacturing downtime or
damage toinfrastructure from
incidenr at customer plant

Customer claims frem producy
quality issues

Experienced technical staff knowledgeable in the application of

our products and technalogy

Torgeted global insurance programme

Experienced Internal Legel function controlling third-party
contracting
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Financial Review

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer

£1,683.9m

Revenue
Reported Underlying
+20.2% +12.5%

£165.5m

Trading profif?

Underlying

+161%

Reported

+24.2%

147p

Statutory EPS

Reported

-33.2%

9.8%

Returnon sales?

Underlying'

+30bps

Reported

+30bps

excludes separately reperted items and the
impact of acquisitions and disposals.

2. For definifions of alternative performance
measures, refer to Note 4 of the Group
Finoncial Statements.

1. Underlying basis is at constant currency and

"Significant progress has been made
inimproving the strength of our
balance sheetthrough afocus on
working capital and cash generation
during a period of revenue growth”

Basis of Preparation

All references in this financial review
ara to headling performance unless
stated otherwise. See Note 4 tothe
Group Financial Statements on
page 138.

Introduction

We have made good progress towards
our praviously stated aim to enable the
business to improve shareholder returns
and sustain growth, whilst optimising
operating costs and maintaining on
appropriate level of control and
compliance. The key components of our
strategy to achieve this were successfully
leunchedin 2017, including structural and
people changas to the Financeteam, the
building of a European shared service
centre and improved performance
reporting and measurement. Whilst there
rernains a lot stillto do before all of our
improvement plans are implemented,

the pleasing progress to date is thanks
tothe dedicatien and professionalism of
our finance personnel across the Group.

2017 Performance Overview

In contrast to 2016, end-markets were
stronger during 2017 and our revenue
benefited from the improved demand for
our products in both Steel and Foundry
as aresult, as well as business gainsin
many of our key markets, principally
EMEA and NAFTA. Reported revenue
increased by £282.5m over the prior year
and by £186.4m on an underlying basis.
The restructuring programme continued
to deliver ahead of plan during 2077 with
atotal of £16.2m of incremental benefits
reported. Theincreased revenue and
restructuring benefits drove the higher
reportedtrading profit of £165.5m, which
was 24.2% higher than prior year, Return
onsales for 2017 on a reported basis at
9.8% was higher than the prior year by
30bps despite o number of higher costs
inthe period. The higher costs related

to price increases onseveral key raw
materials, as well as tempaorary costs
associated with importing product into
Europe from other facilities in the Group
to satisfy the higher demond. Ina

year of strong sales growth, our cash
manogement performaonce was strong,
achieving o 104% cash conversion,

due largely to better working capital
management. As a result, we have
decreased our net debt position and
improved our leverage ratio of net
debtto EBITDAto 1.3x from 1.8x at
December 2016.



Underlying revenue growth %

12.5%

Return onsales* %

9.8% 2%

R&Dspend* £m

£332m +16.1%

Dividend

The Board has recommended a finol
dividend of 12.50 pence per shareto be
paid on 25 Moy 2018 to shareholders
onthe register at 13 April 2018. When
odded to the 2017 interim dividend

of 5.50 pence per share paid on

22 September 2017, this represents

a full-year dividend of 18.0 pence
pershare.

It remains the Board's intention to deliver
long-term dividend growth, provided this
is supported by underlying earnings, cash
flows, capital expenditure requirements
and the prevailing market outfook.

Key Performance Indicators

We have identified a number of KPls
against which we have consistently
reported since demerger. Details of the
KPis are provided on pages 20and 21. As
with prior years, we measure our results
on an underlying basis, where we adjust
to ensure oppropriofe comparability
between pericds, irrespective of
currency fluctuations and any

business acquisitions and disposals.

Thisis done by:

> Restatingthe previous period's results
atthe same foreign exchange (FX)
ratesused in the current period

> Removing the results of disposed
businesses in beth the current and
prior years

* At constant 2017 currency

> Removing the results of businesses
acquired in both the current year
ond prior years

Therefore, for 2017, we have:

> Refranslated 2016 results atthe
FX rates used in calculating the
2017 results

> Removed the results of our mould
and tundish flux business in Brezi,
Mastercadi, which was acquired
in2016

Obijective: Deliver growth over
thelong term

KPI: Underlying revenue growth

Reported revenue for 2016 was £7,407.4m,
which ofter FX translation effects and
remaoving the impact of acquired
businesses, equates to £1,492.0m on an
underlying basis. The reported revenue
in 2017 of £1,683.9m, when adjusted for
ccquisitions made, is £1,678.4m onan
underlying basis, which is on increase

of 12.5% year-on-year. The growth has
been as aresult of stronger end-market
demand and business gains during the
period, particularly in EMEA and NAFTA.

KPI: R&D spend

We believe that our merket-leading
producttechneology ond services deliver
fundamental value to our customers and
that the primary mechanismto deliver
that value is to invest significantly in

* At constant 2017 currency

research and development. In 2017,
we spent £33.2m (2016: £28.6m) on
R&D octivities, which represents 2.0%
of our revenue (2016: 2.0%).

Objective: Deliver attractive
profitability

KPI: Trading profit and return on sales
We continue to measure underlying
trading profit of the Group as well as
frading profit as a percentage of sales,
which we refer to as curreturn on sales
or RoS.

Trading profitof £165.5m increased by
16.1% on an underlying basis versus last
year whilst RoS on a constant currency
basis was 9.8%, a 30bps improverment
over 2016, The improved trading profitis
due in parttothe higher revenue, along
with the ongoing delivery of benefits
from the restructuring programme.

The Stegl Division recorded RoS of
8.7%this year, anincrease from 8.4%

in 2016, despite the additional costs
incurred in imparting nen-European
based product intc EMEA as well as the
substantial increases in raw material
costs experienced in Advanced
Refractories. Foundry reported o 12.2%
RoS, another improverment overthe
prioar year (2016: 17.8%) with production
efficiency gains and eperating expense
reductions offsetting raw material cost
increases that started to impact results
inthe second half.

Revenue
2017 Revenue 2076 Revenue % change
Acquisitions/ Acquisitions/
fm Asreported Disposals  Underlying Asreported Currency Disposals  Underlying Reported  Underlying
Steel 1,148.7 (55 1143.2 942.0 60.2 - 10022 21.59% 14.1%
Foundry 535.2 - 535.2 4594 30.4 - 489.8 16.5% 9.3%
Total Group 1,683.9 (5.5) 1,678.4 1,401.4 90.6 - 1,492.0 20.2% 12.5%
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Financial Review continued

Qperating profit £m

£109.7 181%

Headline earnings per share pence

407p +33.9%

Statutory earnings per share pence

14.1p352%

KPl: Headiine PBT and headline EPS
Headline prefit before tax (PBT) and
headline earnings per share (EPS)
are used to measure the underlying
financial performance of the Graup.
The main difference between trading
profit and PBT is net finance cosfs.

Netfinance costsin 2017 of £13.9m
were £0.6m below 2016. The reduction
in finance costs wos largely due to
lower net debt lavels that friggered o
more favouroble interest cost onthe
Company's revalving credit facility,
During the year this facility was
successfully extended for a further

two years to 2022 and $110m of the US
Private Placement programme {'USPP?)
was redeemed and replaced by a
Eure-denominated USPP of the same
value but on more favourable terms.

Our headline PBT was £1529m, 27.6%

higher than last year on a reparted basis.

including omortisation {(£19.5m) and the
restructuring charges (£36.3m), our PBT
of £97.1m was 22.3% higher than 2016,
Headline EPS at 40.7 pis 33.9% higher
than 2016.

Trading profit

Objective: Ensure capital is
deployed efficiently

KPI: Free cash flow and working capital
Fundamentalto ensuring that we

have adeguate capital fo execute our
corporate strategy is converting our
profits into cash, partly through strict
management of our working copital,
Free cash flow from continuing
operations was £93.1mfor the year,
which is all the more pleasing against
abackdrop of revenue growth that
inevitebly requires some cash investment
in working capital. Free cash flow from
continuing opergtions in 20717 was
£31.7mhigher than last yearona
reported basis because of the better
working capital performance partially
offset by higher cash restructuring costs.
Our cash conversion in 2017 improved
10 104% (2016: 94%).

We measure working capital both in
terms of actual cash flow movements,
and as a percentage of sales revenue.
Trade working capital as a percentage of
sales in 2017 was 24.9% {2016: 26.6%),
measured on a 12-month moving
average basis. In obsolute terms on a
constant currency basis, trode warking
capital increased by £12.2m, well

below the increase in sales and with
animproved inventory and creditor
position leading to animprovement
asa percentage of sales.

KPI: Return on net assets (RONA)

RONA is our principal measure of capital
efficiency. We do notexclude the results
of businesses acqguired ond disposed
from this calculation, as capital efficiency
Is an important censiderationin our
portfotio decisions. ltis calculated by
dividing trading profit plus cur share of
profits fram joint ventures by our average
operating assets {property, plant and
equipment, and trade working capital).

As with most of our KPls, we measure
this on a 12-month moving average
basis at constant currency to ensure
that we facus on sustainable underlying
improvements. Our RONA for 2017
was 24.2% (2016: 21.1%).

2077 Troding prefit 2016 Trading profit % change
Acquisitions/ Acguisitions/
£m Asreported Disposals  Underlying Asreported Currency Disposals  Underlying Reported  Underlying
Steel 100.4 (0.2} 100.2 79.2 51 - 84.3 26.8% 18.9%
Foundry 65.1 - 65.1 541 4.0 - 58.1 20.3% 12.0%
Total Group 165.5 (0.2) 165.3 1333 3.1 - 142.4 24.2% 16.1%




RONA moving average* %

24.2%

Netdebt* £m

£274.3m

Unutilised committed debt focilities £m

£153.7m

* For definitions of alternative performonce measures, refer 1o Note 4 of the Group Finonciol Stotements

Operating cash flow and cash conversion

2017 0%

£m im

Cash generated from continuing operations 176.6 130.2
Add: Outflows relating to restructuring charges 273 16.8
Add: Net retirement benefit obligations 4.8 7.7
Less: Capital expenditure (39.0) (31.3)
Add: Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 1.6
Operating cosh flow 171.5 125.0
Trading profit 165.5 133.3
104% 94%

Cash conversion

Obijective: Maintain astrong
financial position

KPl:interest cover and net debt

As at 31 December 2017, the Greup

had committed borrowing facilities of
£563.4m (2016: £576.9m), of which
£153.7m was undrawn (2016: £158.3m).
The revolving credit facility term was
extended to 2022 and $110m of the
LUSPPwas redeemed and replaced with o
Euro-denominated USFP at better rates.

Net debt at 31 December 2017 wos
£274.3m, a £46.0m decrease from 2016,
as a result of our good cash generation.
The main drivers of the decrecse were
the impact of strong cash conversion
partially offset by higher restructuring
costs ond tax payments.

The Group's debt facilities have two
financial covenants: the ratios of net debt
to EBITDA {maximum three times limit)
and EBITDAto interest {minimum four
times limit). These ratios are monitored
regularly to ensure that the Group has
sufficient financing available to run

the business and fund future growth.

Atthe end of 2017, the net debt to
EBITDA ratio was 1.3x, an improvement
overlast year (2016: 1.8x) ond EBITDA
tointerest was 15.8x (2016: 13.4x).

Further infermation on our finance
costs can be found in Note 9 to the Group
Financial Statements on page 143.

Financial Risk Factors

The Group undertakes regular risk
reviews and, as a minimum, a full risk
assessment process twice ayear. Asin
previous years this included input from
tha Board in both the assessment of risk
and the proposed mitigation. As referred
tainthe Principal Risks and Uncertainties
and Viability Statement on pages 23,24
and 25, we consider the main finoncial
risks faced by the Group as being
demand volatility and the impact of
financicl uncertainty, leading to reduced
revenue and profit as well as potential
customer default, and a lack of liquidity,
brought on by marketvolatility.
Important but lesser risk exists in interest
rate movements and cost inflation but

neither is expected tc have a material
impact on the business after considering
the controls we havein place.

Cur key mitigation of demand volatiliry
isto manage the Group's exposure
through baloncing our portfolio of
business geographically and by end-
market and to invest in product
innovation. We do so through targeted
capital investment in new and growing
businesses and @ combineation of capital
and human resource in emerging
markets. The second main financial
risk of a lack of liquidity is mitigated by
financing using both the bank and
private placement markets. The Group
dlso seeks to avoid a concentration of
debt maturities in any one period to
spread its refinancing risk. The Group's
undrawn committed bank focilities ar
31 December 2017 wera £153.7m.
Counterparty risk and customer
default are mitigated by our relatively
widespread customer base-with no
custorner being greater than 10% of
revenue —and credit control procedures.
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Other Relevant Financial
Information

Restructuring

We continued to make good progress in
implementing our previously announced
restructuring programme, mainly in Flow
Control, with £16.2m savings deliveredin
2017, which was ahead of expectations,
Thetotal savings delivered since
launching the programme are now

£43 2m. In 2017, we reperted £36.3m

of restructuring costs (2016: £28.5m)
that were predominantly made up of
redundancy and plant closure costs,
along with related consulting fees. These
costsincluded the final costs related 1o
the praviously announced restructuring
plan as well as £4.8m of costs related to
a compietely new resfrucfuring plan
launched at the end of 2017, targeting
the Foundry Division in Europe and
NAFTA, the Advanced Refractories
Business Unit in Europe, and Group
corporate functions. The cash costs

in 2017 were £27.3m {(2016: £16.8m).

We are carrying a restructuring
provision forward into 2018 of £22 9m,

Taxation

Akey measure of tax performance is

the effective tax rate, which the Group
calculates onthe income tax associated
with headline performance, divided by
the headline profit before tax and before
the Group's share of post-tax profir of
iointventures (2017: £151.6m, 2016:
£118.8m). The Group's effective tax rate,

based on the income tax costs assaciated
with headline performance of £36.4m
(2C7&: £31.4m), was 24.0%in 2017

{2016: 26.4%). This was lower than
expected due largely to better profit
performance in countries where we had
tax losses, the impact of the weakening
of the peso on our Mexican tax position
and the relecse of provisions due te
favourable tox litigation outcomes.

The Group's effective tax rate is sensitive
to changes in the geographic mix of
profits and level of profits, and reflects

a combination of higher rates in certain
jurisdictions such as India, Mexico,
Germany and Belgium, nil effective rates
in the UK and US due to the avoilability
of unutilised tax losses, and rates that lie
somewhere in between.

Other key factors impacting the
sustainability of the Group's effective
tax rate are setoutin Note 10.6 to the
Group Financial Staterments.

The income tox charge on separately
reported items of £18.0m {2076: £5.0m
credit) comprises £6.0m non-cash
deferred tax mavements relating to the
amorfisation of a deferred tax liability
arising from the 2008 acquisition of
Fosecoplc (2016: £3.7m), £4.3mtax
credits relating to restructuring charges
(2G16: £3.8m), and a net reduction in tha
deferred faxasset previously recognised
in respect of US tax losses and certain
other temporary differences of £28.3m
(2016: £2.1m) largely caused by US tax

reform enacted in late December 2017 in
the form of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
(TCJA). A combination of the reduction
inthe US Federaltax rate from 35%to
21%, the repatriction tolling charge

and other provisions of TCJA caused a
£25,7m reduction in our US deferred tax
asset which, together with other normal
movements and foreign exchange
revaluation, reduced from £65 9m at the
end of 201610 £32.6m atthe end of 2017,
However, this write-down did notimpact
cur Headline earnings after tax, asthe
changeinthe ossetwas reflected through
separctely reported items.

Based on our initial interpretation, the
Base Erosion and Anti-Abuse Tax
provisions infroduced by the Act may
increcse the Group's effective tox rote
by cpproximately 0.7%in 2018 and 1.2%
in 2019

We expect the Group's effective tax rate
from 2018 cnwards to be between 27%
and 28%, including the expacted odverse
impact af US tox reform, reflecting the
tax benefit of initiatives being taken.

The net income tax charge recognised
directly inthe Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income of £3.1m

(2016: £0.7m) comprises a £2.4m charge
(2816: £0.7m charge) in respect of
defarred tax on penision obligations and
£0.7m (2076: £nil) UK tax in respect of
foreign exchange differences arising on
hedged positions.



Net defined benefit pension deficit €m

E‘] 6 5 m -43.9%

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure in 2017 of £44,3m
{2016: £35.2m) comprised £34.0min
the Steel Division {(2016: £23.7m) and
£10.3min the Foundry Division

(2014: £11.5m). Capital expenditure

an revenue-genercting cusromer
installotion assets, primarily in Steel, hos
beenincreased to £10.7m (2016: £6.5m).

Pensions

The Group has a limited number of
historical defined benefit plans mainly
inthe UK, US, Germany and Belgium.
The main plans in the UK and US are
largely closed to further benefir accruals
and 56.5% of the liabilities in the UK have
already been insured. The total net deficit
ahiributed to these defined benefir
obligations at the end of December 2017
was £16.5m (2016: £29.4m), representing
animproverment of £12 9m. The key
maovemnents giving rise to thiswere
increases of £1.8m to the deficit orising
outof changes to actuariol assumptions
{attributable to increasing discount
rates; updoted mortality assumptions
and pension membership data) and
additional accrual and administrative
expenditure paid for the year (£6.8m);
offset by reductions to the deficit of
£10.2m from asset returns and cash
contributions of £11.6m,

The majority of the ongeing pension
plans are defined contribution plans,
where our only obligation is to make
contributions, with na further
commitments on the level of post-
retirement benefits. During 2017, cash
contributions of £12.6m (2016 £10.8m)
were made into the defined contribution
plans and charged to trading profit.

Corporate Acfivity

Late in 2017, we made a strategic
investment in Sapotech Qy, a Finnish
technology company with which we will
be jcintly developing predictive analytical
service offerings to Steel customers.
Acquisition opportunities remain part of
our growth strategy and are evaluated
on an ongoing basis,

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
28 February 2018
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Innovation

“We engage the creativity of
our people acrossthe entire

organisafionto drive innovation”

Alan Charneck Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

£355.2m

Spend on R&D
2016: £28B.6m

2.0%

% of Revenue
2016:2.0%

14.5%

% of new productsales’
2016:14.2%

1. Sales of products launched within the last 5 years
as a % of total revenue

Vesuvius' R&D organisation has been

a major factor in maintaining our
technology leadership position. We are
now three years inte our initiative to
engage the creativity of people across
the whole organisation, and to drive
innovation across the entire Group.
Like all aur other major Group initictives
—safety, quality and excellence —
embedding a culture of innovation
requires focus on leadership, siructure,

process, toels, fraining and incentivisation.

The structures are in place with the
necessary process and tools, which
are constantly being strearmlined
and improved.

Digital Transformation

Digital Transfarmationis a key theme
for companies targeting significant
growth, strategic regeneration or
market disruption with breckthrough
technologies. For Vesuvius, this has
baen manifested by our Digital Services
business unit. This also engages each

of the Group's other business units

in adopting a business modal
complementary to and independent of
their existing consumables business.
Vesuvius is extremely well positioned to
harness the digital fransformafion trend
by creating this new market offering built
onthe reputation of over 100 years as
aleader of innovation giving technical

support o the Steel and Foundry
industries. Qur customers clready
recognise our expertise in developing
engineering solutions using our
understanding of our own technaology
platforms and our customers’ processes.
This is borne out of cur long-term daily
presence at customer plants, working
in partnership with them to improve
the performance of our products,

and providing the continuous

process improvement that our
customers demand Te maintain

their own competitiveness.

Ideation

Understanding our customers’ processes
and the application of our products,
knowing what to lock for and then
understanding what we see, are the

first essential ingredients of the creative
process of ideation. Idection links
experience and knowledge with the
situation infront of you, generating

new ways to make improvements.
Occasionally this can lead to
breckthrough ideas giving a step change
in performance or a disruptive new
technology platform. itis this presence
at, and interaciion with, the customer
that is at the heart of the Vesuvius
business model. Itis also illustrated in cur
Technical Services strategy: developing
sensors, software tools and techniques to



Katarzyna Szafraniec, Quality Engineer, Poland

"As a Quality Engineer | continue to draw
on my R&D experience.”

Having studied Chemical
Technology at university,
|joined Vesuviusin 2017,
beginning as a R&D Assistant
atthe Vesuvius site in Skawing,
Poland working on refractory
material. Inthis role,

t collaborated with engineers
ACress NUMErcus projects,
conducting physical and
chemical analysis. Using X-ray
diffraction, Thermecgravimetric
Analysersand Scanning
Electron Microscopy, | was
ableto gainathorough
understanding of Vesuvius’
products and their structure.

Two years later, | was promoted
to the position of R&D Engineer
at Skawina where part of my
role was to conduct on-site
product analysis for customers,
solving production issues for
them. | was also responsible
forthe development of

new producissuch asthe
industrialisation of our
spinel-forming self-flow
castable. During thistime,

| also participated in

Vesuvius' in-house technical
‘HeaTt training.

In 2016, i was selected to join
Skawina's new Casting &
Precast Departmentas a
Quality Engineer, where |
continue to draw onmy R&D
experience to monitor and
further improve production
processes. My career at
Vesuvius has enabled me 1o
develop my technical expertise,
as well as understand
preduction processes,
develop training programmes
and manage a team of
motivated colleagues.
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Innovation continued

constantly monitor customer processes
and our products in use, interpreting the
data obtained, reccting with process
adjustments in real fime and allowing for
new process and product developments.
This model can create new services,

odd value to our existing product
offering and accelerate our traditional
idegation process.

Innovation is the creative process of
converting ideas into value-creating
technologies or creating value by doing
things differently. But to be effective we
need to identify and prioritise the right
ideas, and hove the courage to put the
other ones aside.

Qur new preduct introduction (NPI)
process has been in place for three years,
enabling us foidentify and focus on

the ideas and projects which are most
aligned with aur strategic plans, injecting
greater rigour into decision-making

with a stfage gate approach. Today, we
have no shortage of ideas, but actively
work o amuch smaller number of
prioritised projects than we worked on
four years ago, We operate a continuous
portfolio review process to ensure
thatthe R&D technology roadmaps
emphasise both current needs and the
essential longer-term programmes.

In 2017, we launched an |deation
Platform where new ideas are reviewed
and refined, with viable and valuable
ideas funnelled into the NP| pipeline.
The Ideation Platformis presently
targeted only at new products and
manufacturing processes, but our
intention is fo breaden its scope to
include ideas on all topics for all
functions, each with their own

review process,

R&D Performance

During 2017, cur new product sales
growth rate (for products launched within
the last 5 yeors) slowed slightly after an
initial two years of very healthy growth,
By the end of 2017, we reached c. 15%
from our starting position of 8% in 2014,
We lounched e total of 26 new products
in 2017, with more than 30 new products
planned for 2018 launch.

The R&D resource allocation to
technology projects has steadily
increased in all business units. The
maturity of our NPl process means we
can now monitor additional KPls ta
provide a deeper level of analysis on

our innovation performance so we can
confinue to improve and ensure that

we achieve the targets we set ourselves.
In 2018, we will infroduce new input and
outputindicators for innovationto
monitor our pipeline of breakthrough
projects, how efficiently wa move
projects through the NPI process, and
how effective we are at achieving

our forecosted project targets. We spend
2.0% of revenue on R&D, o significantly
larger proportion of sales than most of
our competition and expect to deliver
significant benefits from thig investment.

New Product Development

Enabling Technologies, our fundamental
research group, continues o pursue a
range of new technology platforms.

The team monitors technology trends
across a broad range of industries,
bothinside and outside cur own
markets. The team looks for previously
unimogined or unconventional ways to
use materials and processes, filtering
these concepts through our front-end
innovation process and incubating themn
until they become new rechnology
platforms. These can then be used by
R&D departments across our business
to foster new product or process
development projects. Cur NPI projects
usually start from an identified customer
need but this front-end innovation
process starts with no specific product
or market in mind, meaning that the

new technology platforms may have
applications acress multiple business
units, and be integrated into many
different products, multiplying the value
of the technology. Technology platforms
that come from these unorthodox
beginnings are more likely to lead 1o
breckthrough and disruptive innovations.
We have several such new technology
platforms that are ready to move into
the NPl process and therefore look
forward fo exciting prospects for these
inthe years ahead.

Anotherimportant group in Vesuvius'
drive for innovation is the Solutions
Group. This group's activities have
become a differentiator for Vesuvius in
our Steel market and an essential driver
for the development of cur Technical
Services strategy. The team translates
what we see in customer processes, either
directly or through data analysis, inte
new sclutions ranging from new designs
for existing products, to new products
and process control functionalities.

More fundamentally, it locks at the entire
customer process and allthe products
inuse rather than just a single element,
enabling the roct cause of a problem

to be identified, rather thantackling
individual symptoms.

The Solutions Group, combining its
process application, modelling and
metallurgical expertise, is in high
demand from both the Vesuvius
regional organisations and our
customers because of the positive
results it has demonstrated in solving
complex problems.

IP portfolio

The protection of our IPis as important as
its generation. In 2017, we tested, and are
now ready to roll out, an enhanced audir
process to measure the security of our IP
across the Group starting with R&D and
manufacturing locations in 2018, Qur IP
portfolic was reviewed in 2015 and 2016,
and we continued with a stable level of
filings in 2017 to maintain our portfolic

at 156 families, 1,569 granted patents
and 518 applications pending.



Training

During 2017, we extended our

training efforts to the broader Vesuvius
community. Te date, our project
management fraining programme has
included over 300 people, giving eoch
an understanding of the full innovation
process — covering not only their role in
the process, but also providing them
withthe skills to function more effectively
inthe cross-functional teams required
to deliver new product introduction.
Thetraining provided interactions with
their future colloborcators, identifying
the good practices and operating

skills necessary to drive our NPl projects
to greater successes.

Training will continue with a new
programme called 'Quality inthe NP
process, specifically focusing on:

> Project definition: to ensure that
projects goinginto the NPl process all
have clear success criteria, converting
the customer need/voice of the
customer intc SMART cbjectives

> Design Failure Mode and Effect
Analysis (FMEA) and design of
experiments; to accelerare the R&D
stage of the NP process, reducing
therisk that the sclutions developed
and tested in the laboratory do not
perform as expected inthe field,
cousing recycled developments and
project delays

v

Process FMEA: to ensure that our
industrialisation process is effective
and the product we ultimately
manufacture consistertly achieves
the desired performance objectives
as detailed in the project definition

Joining Up Innovation

Vesuvius consists of two divisions and
four business units. Whilst this creates an
opportunity to cross-fertilise preducts,
services, processes and technologies,
the divisional structure dees not naturally
facilitate the sharing of knowledge.

In 2017, we launched a Technelogy
Bridge Initiative, taking experts fromthe
R&D department of each division, our
fundamental research group and cur
ceniral process development group.

The 'bridges are structured around
various technology themes related to
materials, processes and the new
technology platforms with the goal of:

> Promoting... new ideas and
applications for technology

> Measuring... the evolution of
technologies that are key 1o our
industries

> Building... Technology Maps that
will include internal and external
information

> Constructing... a knowledge network

We laqunched the initictive with ten areas
of focus and will gradually add new
themes over time. All generated data

is collated and stored in cur R&D
colleboration platform-TechConnect -~
making the sharing of information

as simple as possibie and avoiding
dupiication. The learning ganerated by
these community practice groups will be
converted into tutorial presentations to
allow for dissemination throughout

the technical community of Vesuvius.
The'community of practice groups’
became the goto experts for these

Ideation

Understanding our customers’ processes
ond the application of cur products, knowing
whot to look for end then understanding
what we see ore the first essenticl ingredients
of the creative process of ideation.

Globcal Research & Bevelopment centres

Barlberough UK
Bettsville LISA
Enschede Netherlands
Feignies France

Ghlin Belgium
Pittsburgh LISA
Suzhou China
Visakhopatnam india

specdific topics ensuring that the resources
with the most knowledge and experience
inany field are referenced, making for
more afficient progress of cur projects.

Excellence

Qur innovation activities are supported
by the Group Excellence programme,
which aflows for self-assessment against
designated benchmarks, Within the

R&D community, progress has already
been made on the various Excellence
roadmaps, not only in Innovation, but
also with respect fo other initiatives such
as standardising the career ladder for
R&D stoff, developing standard job
descriptions across all divisions,
enhancing performance assessment,
and supporting the career and personal
development of our staff. Making sready
prograss along alithe roads of the
Excellence read map will ensure that the
Innovartion pillar of the Vesuvius strategy
will continue to strengthen, maintaining a
sofid foundation on which we continue to
build for the future.

Alan Charnock Vice President
and Chief Technology Officer
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Operating Review
Steel Flow Control

“In 2017, Steel Flow Control

Steel Flow Control revenue £m

£6059m

Steel Flow Control supplies the
stoppers and tubes used to channel
and control the flow of molten
steelfrom ladle to tundish and
fromtundish to mould; slide gate
refractories for ladles and tundishes;
slide gate systems; tundish and
mould fluxes; and control devices
to monitor and regulote steel flow
intp the mould. These products
have been designed to resist
extreme thermornechanical stress
and corrosive environments.

The majority of these products

are consumed during the process
of making steel and, consequently,
demand s primarily linked to steel
production volumes. Continuing
innovation allows us ta offer enriched
sclutions that create additional
value in our customers’ procasses,

sales growth continued to
outperform growthinthe
global steel market”

Roelvan der Sluis President, Steel Flow Contro!

Vesuvius' Flow Control business unit,
supplies the giobal steet industry with
consumable ceramic products usedto
contain and control the flow of molten
steelinthe continuous casting process.
This process enables steel manufactured
in a blast furnace er electric arc furnace
1o be castwithout interruption, whilst
protecting it from the atmosphere.
Avoiding atmospheric contact is crucial
asit significantly reduces contamination
and oxidation levels in the steel.

The products Vesuvius suppliesinto the
confinuous casting process have a short
service life {often o matter of afew hours)
duetothe significant wear caused by the
extrerely demanding environment in
which they are used. These products
must withstand extreme temperature
changes, whilst resisting liquid sreel

and slag cerrosion. In addifion, the
ceramic parts in confact with the liquid
steel must not in any way contaminate i,
The quality, reliability and consistency

of the products and process control
equiprent are therefore critical

fe the quality of the finished metal

being produced and the productivity,
profitability and safety of cur custamers'
processes.

Steel Flow Control products supplied by
Vesuvius include:

> Viso™isostatically pressed alumina
graphite ond VAPEX® extruded clay
graphite products These includeladle
shrouds, stopper reds, submerged
entry nozzles and shrouds, which
channel and controlthe flow of molten
steel from ladle to tundish and from
tundishto meuld

v

Slide-gate refractories These include
nezzles, plates and speciality shapes
used in furncce, ladle ond tundish slide
gate systems

Temperature measurement and
RADAR™ These provide optical
femperature meosurement ond slog
detection

'

v

Gaskets These create an airtight seal
batween refractory componentsto
minirmise the risk of airingress and
steel cxidisation

v

Fluxes These are powders, spread
onthe surface of the molten steel
which provide thermaol and chemica!
insulation and remove inclusions



> Purging systems These are used to stir
stee! in the ladle

> Control devices These are used to
menitor and regulate steel flow into
the mould

2017 Performance

Steel Flow Control sales growth has
continued to outperform growth in the
global steel market. In 2017, we reported
revenues of £605.9m, anincrease of
11.8% on an underlying basis compared
with 2016. All regions outperformed
underlying steel volume growth and
EMEA was our fastest growing region.

Steel productionin EMEAincrecsed 4.9%
in 2017, and Vesuvius cutperformed the
market with underlying revenue up
17.5%1c £240.1m, reflecting market
share gains.

During 2017, we experienced very strong
growth of our Flow Control sales in
EMEA, which temporarily exceeded the
capacity of our manufacturing plants

in the region, requiring the import of
products from our facilities in Asia

and NAFTA, incurring additional

freight, export duty and overtime costs,
Measures were immediately taken o
incregse the capacity of the Flow Contral
EMEA plants and this ramp-up is now
complete, substituting imports from
non-EMEA plants.

Inthe Americas, Steel Flow Control’s
underlying revenues increased 8.8%
to £201.7min 2017, against 0 5.9%
increase in steel production volumes.
Cur outperformance relotive to steel
production was due to market share
gains in North America. Inthe US in
particular, our market shareis
continuing to recover from the low
point of the second half of 2015
when we were impacted by customer
closures and velume losses due to
market pricing pressure.

"Our teams worked together
to provide a solution for the
customer utilising the first
worldwide application of new
oatented sealing technology”

Andrew Morrisonand Linna Sumn, headsof NAFTA

and Asia VISO Development teams

TheChallenge

Alarge integrated steel producer in
NAFTA resolved to convert most of
their production to Vesuvius' Flex
Cold Start™ Tundish Shroud, which
channels the flow of steelinta the
finat mould for solidification.

The cold-start technology elimincies
the need for preheat, increasing the
safety of the tube changing process,
and reducing energy consumption.
However, as cold start fubes require
additioncltime to expand ofter
production starts to form an airtight
seal ot thejoint of the tundish and the
tubeto prevent air contamination, a
preheat would still have been required
for some specific automotive steel
grades to improve sealing times.

Cur Solution
Dcle Bower, leading the local NAFTA
sales team, challenged the VISO

Global Developmenttearn to provide
asolution. Andrew Marrison and
Linna Sun, the heads of the NAFTA
and Asia VISO Development teams
respectively, collaborated in the
development of oninnovation barn

in our R&D centre In Suzhou, China:
the combination of an intumescent
coating and an integral groove sealant
which provides a quicker gos tight seal
by expanding many multiples of its
original thickness on commencement,
and farthe durotion, of service.

The Benefits

This combination of the coating and
groove sealant allows the customer

to reliably use the cold start piece for
higher steel grades. The new patented
technalogy creates a tight seal within
cne minute of service commencement,
resulting in immediate reductionin
steel re-oxidation, reduced steel
finishing, and overallimproved

steel quality.
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Operating Review continued

Steel Flow Control

Underlying revenue increased by 7.8%
in Asio-Pacificin 2017 to £164.1m,
comparedto a5.7%increase in steel
production volume in the region.
Revenues increased faster than the
steel market in the key regioncl markets
of Ching, India and South Korea.

The benetits of the restructuring
programme implemented during 2016
and 2017 started to deliver a positive
impact onthe financial performance
of the business unit,

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

Following the success of the
manufacturing ratienalisation
programme in EMEA, asimilar initiafive
was launched for the NAF TA regicn,
where through a combination of
improving efficiency and adapting
production volumes between plants,
improvements in cost base have been
made. We will confinue to pursue this
effortin 2018 in order to deliver
further benefits,

We are now franslating this methodology
to new territories, through which

we expect to drive further cost
improvements, The additional projects
identifiedinclude afocus onindustrial
efficiencies in Brazil and India.

In addition to these wider initiatives, we
targeted process improvements aimed
atincregsing the output in specific
areas, such as in cur mix plantin Ching.
Opfimisation work performed here has
cllowed uste simplify our supply chain,
make it more cost-efficient ond create
capacity to absorb growth.

Over the last few years, Vesuvius has
invested in developing roboftics solutions
which improve the sofety and consistency
of our customers’ operations while
supporting our sales. Our unigue value
propasition is the result of the integration
of specific refractory, system and robotic
design - three core competencies inside
Vesuvius. Several steel makers have been
pioneers in adopting this technology,

An SEM 3085 tube changer,
for the robotic tube
changing process

The glowing VISO sub-entry
nozzle chennels molten
steslinto the mould (-]

delivering process efficiency and
removing personnel from the harsh
environment around the caster. in 2077,
we saw anincrease in demand for
robotics solutions and received orders
to convert steel plantsin South Kerea,
South America and Europe. This
positions Vesuvius welito suppert our
custorners in facing the future challenges
of automation and o greater focus
onquality.

In 2017, we also further developed our
capabilities in data capture and
continuous temperature measurement.
Qurinvestment in, and exclusive
distribution agreement with Sapotech
Qy, aFinnish technolegy company
offering optical defect detection services
and recl-time datec on steel surface
quality, now places us well fo address the
requirerments for data management at
our customers. From the start of 2018,
this business is being managed within
the Steel Flow Control business unit.

Qur R&D efforts also delivered new
productsto support the growth inthe
ladle slide-gate business with the
intreduction of our next generation
slide~-gate mechanism, which is robot-
ready and uses optimised refractory
plotes creating value for our customers
interms of ergonomics, safety and
reliability white reducing their operating
cost. In addition, we launched our new
Flex Cold Start™ Tundish Shroud, which
allows customers to operate thair casters
with more flexibility in terms of sequence
length and daily operation aswell as

reducing their waste and cost. As shown
inthe case study on page 37, we have
also developed complementary
technology to allow for the use of this
product in higher grade steel production.

We continued to develop our service
offering helping our customersto
understand better their mould flow
pattern, Thisis o key element inthe
casting process, asitisthe last step
between liquid and solid steel. This audit
service is carried out by our process
experts using specifically designed toals
ond software to meesure flow pattern
through monitoring temperature, mould
level and meniscus velocity. We can then
compare this with the data generated
from our Computational Fluid Dynamic
simulotion capabilities. Comparing the
dota allows us to recommend improved
solutions ta our customers. More details
on the work of our Solutions Group ara
contained in the Innovation Sectionon
poges 32 to 35.

Looking Ahead

It is our expectation that, despite the
refatively high growth achievedin 2017
and a broadly positive outlook for 2018,
steel production inthe moture economies
of Europe and North America will not
exhibit material growth in the medium/
leng term, given that the noture of
ecenomic growth requires less steel than
in the past. This is a key driver behind the
efforts to adapt our manufacturing
footprint and overhead structureinthe
mature markets.



Chinais the world's largest producer of
steel, occounting for approximately 50%
of global production. The adjustment of
the Chinese steelindustry from producing
‘long’ steel for infrastructure fo producing
flat'steel, typically used for consumer
products and automotives, is highly
beneficial for Vesuvius. Flat steel typically
uses three fimes as much Vesuvius
products by value and as a resuliwe

believe the accessible market for Vesuvius’

Flow Contrel business in China could grow
significantly in the leng term.

Furthermore, Ching’s Governmentis
focused an ¢ comprehensive upgrade
of Chinese manufacturing, making it
innovation-driven, emphasising guality
over quantity and achieving ‘green’
develepment though 'Mede in Ching
2025 This trend towards higher quality
industrial manufacturing is beneficial to
Vesuvius'steel division. Qur current strong
position inthis market will help usto
benefit fromthese trends,

Indiais anather key growth market and
one where we enjoy high penetration
rates. It was one of the fastest growing
steel markets in 2017 and closely tied 1o
the Government’s economic development
plansis the target to increase steel
capacity to 300 million tonnes per annum
by 2030, versus a production level in

2017 of 1017 million tonnes. As a result,
Vesuvius also considers that this market
presents an opportunity for Vesuvius to
grow sales by afactor of approximately
three fimes in the long ferm.

We also remain optimistic about the
outlock for future steel production growth
in countries such as Brazil, Mexico, Turkey,
the Middle Fast, Russia and Vietnam.

Roel van der Sluis
President, Steel Flow Contral

Efficient technology
transfer improves customer
oroduction reliability and

reduces cost

Joe Gu, Production Manager of Slide Gate Refractories and Purge

Plugs, North Asia

The Challenge

The Castrip® processis arecent
technology developed te directly cast
steel in a thin strip. This enables the
production of steel coils with less
energy consumpticn and a reduced
production costcompared with the
conventional process which requires
hot rolling after casting to reduce
slab thickness.

Fer this technology, Vesuvius has
developed specific technology for
core refractory materials and designs,
as well os associated know-how on
operational best practices from our
experience at sites running this
technology in NAFTA. Recently,
Castrip® machines were installed

at o Chinese steel producer, who
required local refractory sourcing.

Qur Solution

A Transfer of Technology teamwaos
formed inside Vesuvius before the
first Castrip® machine commenced
productionin China. Joe Gu was
appointed asthe Chinese team leader
for this project, which drew experts
from the product lines of Advanced
Refractories, VISO and Systems, the

design and manufacturing teams, and

thelocal sales team. He and histeam
identified o solid benchmark based
on Vesuviug experience in NAFTA,

visiting Vesuvius R&D sites ond
manufacturing plants, and also steel
producers using the technology.

Once sufficientinformation had been
gothered, the Chinese teoms were
trained on how to support the new
Chinese customers, covering refractory
design ond manufacturing, and on-site
operational support.

The Benefits

With local preduction and support
capabilities, we secured animportant
contract, offering the first Chinese user
cf the Castrip® process the shortest
delivery fime af the best price, while
maintaining the original preduct
quality developed in NAFTA, The
Chinese and NAFTA teams continue
to share the expertise goined on this
process to allow for a continuous
improvement of the refractory parts.
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Operating Review

Advanced Refractories

Advanced Refractories revenue £m

£4990m

Advanced Refractories produtes
speciclised refractory materials
for lining steelmaking vessels such
as blast furnaces, iadles and
tundishes, which are subject 1o
extrerne femperatures, corrosion
and abrasion. These materials are
in the form of powder mixes, which
are spray-applied or cast onto the
vesse| to be lined (‘monolithics') and
refractory shapes (e.g. bricks, pads
and dams). Vesuvius is one of the
world's largest manufacturers of
monalithic refractery linings.
Advanced Refractories delivers
installation technolegies, products
adapted fo fit customers’specific
processes and plants, and effective
and efficient logistics services.
These factors are combined with
significont R&D, o deep knowledge
of customers’ processes and project
management capability to deliver
market-leading solutions for

our customers.

"Our outperformance of

steel production volume growth
was supported by increased
customer interest in our
value-creating solutions”

Tanmay Ganguly President, Advanced Refroctories

Customers of Advanced Refractories
are principally steel producers and
manufocturers of steel preduction
equipment. Cur products accompany
the steel-making process from the

early steps of the process all the way
downstream to the finishing end in the
rolling mill. This array of heot-intensive
production processes and physical
fransformation of the iron ore into
semi-finished products, accounts

for two thirds of the revenue of the
business unit. In addition, Vesuvius'
Advanced Refractories business services
other high-temperature industries such
as primary aluminium, copper, cement,
petrechemicals and energy from waste.
These refractory lining marerials are
supplied in the form of powder mixes,
which are spray-applied or cast onto the
vessels to be lined (monolithics), orin
pre-cast shopes and bricks.

Anintegral part of our success depends
upon the level of collaboration with our
custamers. Ourexperts’ presence at
our customers' facilities allows us a
fundamental understanding of their
naeds. The level of trust our business
model creates makes it more resilient to
market cycles enabling usto generate
growth by adding new products and
services throughout the business cycle,

The service life of the products Advanced
Refractories supplies into the steel
making process can vary {some a matter
of hours and others for a period of years)
based upon the type of refractory

and the level of wear caused by the
demanding environment inwhich they
are used.

Advanced Refractories’ key products are:

> Blast furnace casthouse applications
These are special refractories used fo
line the blost furnace and a network of
runners to tfransfer molten iron from
torpede ladles to the melt shop for
further processing info steel

> Blast furnace tap hole clay Thisis
a refractory mass used to plug the
tapping hole in a blast furnace.
When molteniron is ready to be
exrracted from the blast furnace,
a drilling machine perforates a hole
through the solidified clay to start
the topping process

v

Steelladle applications These are
refractories (typically bricks) used to
line a steel vassel which contains the
molten metal and transports it from
the furnace fo @ casting machine



“Vesuvius has supported and
rewarded my professional
development”

Andy Toner, Director of Marketing and Technelegy for Iren and Steel, NAFTA

My career at Vesuvius began
in 2008, when ] joined as

a Service Technician,
responsible for the
preparation of tundishes at
Gerdau's steel manufacturing
plant ar Midlothian, Texas, in
the United States. As a result
of my work there, | was offerad
the cpportunity to become the
Application Specialist for
Brick Products, based at our
site at Pittsburgh, United
States, but also working in
steel manufacturing plants
across America. | then moved
on towork as an Application
Specialist for Ladles, with
afocusonledle bottoms,
working with customersin
their steel mills to ensure

that they were deriving the
maximum benefit from

our products.

Two years afterthat, | was
promoted to Product
Manager for the Ladle
Program and in 2014, | moved
to become the Marketing
Manager for our Advanced
Refractory business not only
forladles, butalsofor the
basic oxygen furnaces and
electric arc furnaces operared
by our steel manufacturing
customers. In 2016, | became
Regional Manager for the
East Region USA in Steel
Applications and finally in
2017, | was named Directer of
Marketing and Technology for
lron and Steel, NAFTA. Inthis
role, | am responsible for the
expansion of our product
portfolio and the technical
preduct developmentto
support this growth across
the entire NAFTA region.

At Vesuvius | have been
supported, challenged and
rewarded inthe development
of my professional and
technical expertise. | have
been given the opportunity to
work indifferent areas of the
business thereby broadening
my experience and my career
oppertunities.

41

BOUBLLIDHBGINQ) |



42

Vesuvivsple
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Operating Review conti
Advanced Refractories

Intfegrated m

nued

aterial

supply, robotic
installation equipment

and laser sca

nning for

Flectric Arc Furnace
Mmaintenance

TheChallenge

Vesuvius hes a histerically well-
estoblished business in Eleciric Arc
Furnace maintenance, using entirely
manual application technigues.

An ongoing dialogue with the customer
identified some key improvernent
opportunities, These improvements
were cenfred around three main
drivers: (1) the application of the
muaterial; (2) the occurate nssessment
of the condition of the active lining
inservice; and (3} safety for the
operation and epplication teams.

Qur Solution

Working with established partner
companies and cross-functional
expertise, the Vesuvius team
developed an optimised design for
a Rebotic Application unir for the
custorner’s furnaces. These units

were specifically consiructed to suit
the individual plant configuration.
Using the latest laser scanner devices
from our subsidiary Process Metrix
toidentify the areas of the furnace
lining that required repair, we
achieved accurate, fargeted and
safe material placement.

The Benefits

The ability to safely repair refractory
lining in a het and difficult environment
was akey demand. The rabot arm and
loser scanner significantly improve the
sofe working conditions for the plant
operations. Theintegration of the
rcbot and loser equipment clso
enables mere accurate gunning of
refractory material in the areas where
itis most required. This delivers better
performance ond improved matericl
consumption rates for the custorner.

> Steeltundish monolithics These are
powder-mix refractaries usedta line
the tundish, which receives molten steel
from the ladle then acts as a reservoir
to control the flow of the liquid metal
and feed the continuous casting
machine atthe required rate

> Aluminium applications These
products ore vsed for secondory
aluminium production, and are mostly
usedinfurnace lining

v

Cement applications Monolithic
technology used in the pre-heater
stage before materials are transferred
into the rotary kiln during the
continuous calcination process for
cement making

2017 Performance

Advanced Refractories reportad
revenues of £499.1m in 2017, anincrease
of 25.2% compared 1o 2076. Onan
underlying basis, the year-on-year
increase was 17.4%. This outperformance
relative to steel volume growth was
supported by increased customer interest
in cur value-creating solutions and the
successful launch of new products such
as our Supergard™ Tundish refractory
line, whichis a patented tundish lining
product forimproving steel qualivy.

We also benefited from customers
seeking fo diversify their supplier base
inresponse 1o recent consclidation.

We achieved aftractive underlying
revenue growth in each of our key regions
in 2017, withthe Americas up 8.6%,
EMEA up 28.4% and Asia-Pacific up
9.4%. The particularly high growth level
in EMEA was due to significant progress
ragaining market share in Europe despite
competitive market conditions.

Some of the key raw materials used by
Advanced Refractories experienced
significant price increasesin 2017,
particularly during the second half of
the year. The speed of these increases
was such that there was atime lagin
recovering the increased coststhrough
the sales price of our finished products,



Precast Monolithic Steel Ladle Bottom

as we were bound by contractual
ebligations with some customers.

We have made major prograss in
recovering this costinflation through
higher selling prices. This process of price
adjustment will continue into 2018, until
realised costincreases have been fully
recovered. This confirms our ability to
recover raw matericl cost inflation
through price rises over time.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

The additicn of new customersin Europe
in the melting and refining segment was
a significant contributer to our growth

in 2017. This was also boosted by a
positive volume growth in the steel
industry in Europe.

Anincreased focus on value-added
salutions in niche sagments like steal
finishing also allowed us to achieve

geod momentum during the period.

We continuously review and seek o
improve our manufacturing efficiency,
with targeted capitalinvestment
delivering significant benefitsin process
flow, inventory management and labour
and energy efficiency. In Brozil, we
rationalised our manufacturing footprint
and maximised capacity utilisation by
relocating our Brazilian manufacturing
facilities to Rio de Janeire from Soe Paule
in2077.

We also commenced o cost efficiency
study in Europe to review our
manufacturing footprint as part of our
wider focus on cost efficiency. We are
initiating a similar exercise in 2018 at
our facilities inthe NAFTA regicn.

Marnufacturad in Chicago Heights, USA -]

Our business modelis underpinned by
our focus on value-creating solutions and
maintaining technological leadership
from investment in R&D. We improved
our R&D footprint in 2077 with the
inauguration of cur newest R&D facility
in Visakhopatnam, India. The addition
of this state-of-the- art facility will allow
us to complemant our existing technical
capabilities and tackle specific problems
inthe local market. Our investmentinthis
new facility is proof of our commitment
to staying at the forefront of new
technology. Our existing R&D centres
are well positicned to support our
existing markets whilst this new facility

is the next building block to support our
future growth in developing markets,

Looking Ahead

As 70% of Advanced Refractories’
revenue comes from the steel making
industry, steel production is a key driver
for the business. In mature economies,
it is our expectation thatthese regions
will not exhibit material growth in the
medium/ long term, given that the nature
of economic growth requires less steel
thon in the past. However, as growth
inemerging markets moves forward
and our business in mature markets
continues to evolve, we are constantly
developing our resource base to align
with activity levels.

In the developed markets of Europe and
Nerth America, we are experiencing

a grecter demand for higher quality
refractories. In response to recent
consclidation, we are also seeing
incregsed interestin certain segments,
such as bricks, as customersin these
regions seek to diversify their supplier
base as well as market evolution towards
other technologies like monolithic
refractories. We expect this to continue
going forword.

Improving the profitability of Advanced
Refractories is a key area of focus,
Market share, whilstimportant, is not

the main driver of our strategy as there

is significont frogmentation both ona
global and regional basis in cur arec of
the refractory supply business. Achieving
consolidaticn ot the expense of margins
will not meet our goals for value creation.
Inthe developing markets of India, China
and Brazil, our focus is to capture or
exceed the growth rate of the indusiry.

Our long-standing presence and local
manufacturing capabilities position us
well to take advantage of future growth
opportunities in India, Solidifying cur
presence with the installation of cur
newest R&D facility in India is a strong
step forword. As the country continues
demanding more technology with the
evolution of the market, we are well
positioned to maintain our leadership
posifion in the segments we currantly
operate in, whilst atthe same time,
look at new avenues for growth.

Tanmay Ganguly
President, Advanced Refractories
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Operating Review

Digital Services

Digital Services revenue fm

£43.7/m

Digital Services offers digitalised
solutions to cur customers to make
their underlying processes more
efficiant and reliable. Digital
Services complements existing
preduct lines by providing new
services to our existing customers.
Digital Services focuses onthe
capture and interpretation

of key manufacturing data,
complementing Vesuvius' strong
presence and expertise in melten
metal engineering to create

new technclogies and integrate
them into expert process
management systems.

“We are creating new
offeringsto participate
in the digitalisation of our
customers processes’

Alexander Laugier-Werth President, Digital Services

There are twa key elements of Vesuvius'
Technical Services strateqy: firstly, the
Digital Services business unit, which
focuses onincubating our data capture
technologies, and, secondly, the other
business units which play a critical role in
integrating these preducts info our
broader consumables offering as well as
ensuring customer access. In this way, cur
Technical Services strategy is embedded
in the activities of both our Steel and
Foundry divisions which can work both
with and independently of our Digital
Services business.

Qur digital services products assist our
customersto meet the increasing end
preduct consistency and quality
reguirements - enabling them fo capture
and analyse large quantities of
production data and harness them to
deliver reliable and auditable process
and product improvernents.

Key Products

QOur business focuses on providing
solytions that enhance the control and
monttaring of our customers’ production
procasses. During 2017, the business unit
comprised four key product lines:

> Disposable sensors and probes These
measure avariety of liquid metal
characteristics, which are mostly
usedin the primary and secondary
steel-making stages.Current solutions
include temperature, oxygen,
hydrogen, iron oxide and aluminium
measurements as well as metal
sampling at all production stages
of steelmaking and casting

> Laser technelogy Technology used for
measuring the wear of refractory
materials in furnaces and ladles.
This is animportant area of focus as
the market moves towards the use of
ladle fleets

> Continuous temperature measurement
This provides real-time continuous
temperature darain the tundish.
This allows customers to better
understand temperature correlations
with steel qualiry, reduce energy
costs and optimise caster speed.
Current solutions include Accuoptix ™,
Accucone ™, and the Accumetrix®
continuous temperature
measurement systems

Mauld level sensors and control
systems These are critical to ensure
the stable, controlled flow of metal
during the casting process and have
asignificantimpact on slab quality.
In addition, mould audit services,
using cur unigue XMAT™ device, in
combination with computerised
flow modeiling, provide our Steef
custemers with an ‘expert eye'inside
the mould, allowing them to gainan
intimate understonding of liquid
behaviour as steel is cost

v

By using each of these technologies,
customers can focus on critical
parameters within their processes,
enabling them to refine their production
methods to improve quality, lower
production costs and maximise
efficiency. The information derived from
these measurements can beincluded os
@ censulting service and used as support
for improvements in refractory soluticns.



Shaping of a thermocouple quartz tube ©

2017 Performance

Digital Services generated revenues

of £43.7min 2017, anincrease of

18.4% year-on-year on areported basis,
On an underlying basis, revenues
increased 8.9%. This reflected market
share gains in North America and

India, and the significant success we
experienced in South Americaasa
result of increased penetration of our
sensors and probes businass,

In our Process Metrix lasers business, we
had arecord year of sales with shipments
up over 50% versus 2016. Avemis, our
mould leve!l sensors and continuous
femperature measurement products,
also had a strong year with revenues
upc.30%.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

In Decernber 2017, we finalised a
strategic investment in Sapotech Cy, a
Finnish technology company developing
optical defect detection services inthe
steel continuous casting process. This
investment will be managed by the Flow
Control business unit.

We continued fointegrate the Digital
Services companies, ECIL Met Tec and
Sidermes info the existing Group sales
networks. This enobled the businesses to
access the wider footprint of the Vesuvius
custoemer base. As a result, we made
significant product performance
improvements in key lines such as probes
for measuring hydrogen and oxygen.

We also initiated restructuring actions
to optimise our cost base and
manufacturing footprint, and to
reduce operating costs.

We introduced a number of new features
in laser technolegy in 2017 through
complerely revamped software and the
Two Colour Pyrometer, which combines
dimensional measurements with our
maost accurate surface temperature
measurementsio date.

Our focus enincreasing sales inthe
continuous temperafture measurement
space began fo drive sales volumes and
profits inthis arec and we expect this to
continuein the years ahead.

Looking ahead

The develcpment of a digital offering

for our customers, complementary to

aur consumables offering, remainsa
fundamental priority of our Group
strateqy. To ensure that we continue to
maximise the opportunitiesto leverage
our existing customer refationships to
expand this area of business, the

ongoing support of our Flow Control

and Advanced Refractories business
units is critical. Flow Control's involvement
is focused on developing value-added
services around the tundish and the
mould in the continuous casting part of
the steel process. SERT, Avemis and the
new investment in Sapotech Oy are key to
thase efforts. For Advanced Refractories,
loser technology business Process Metrix
has a key role to play in the development
of its technical services offering.

Going forward we are optimising our
manufacturing footprint for sensors and
probes with the closure of a site in France
and in Germany. To reduce operating
costs further, we have initiated an
investment programme to qutomate

the manufacturing process.

We will continue to review acquisition
opportunities for additional technological
solutiens to complement cur existing
customer offerings, focused on dota
gathering and information analysis to
provide customers with the information

they needto deliver processimprovemnans.

The amount of data generated by
sensors is growing exponentially, so allied
with this approach, we intend to focus en
solutions for converting this data info
valuable decision support information,
maximising the value our various sensor
technolagies bring to customers.

Alexander Laugier-Werth
President, Digital Services
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Operating Review
Foundry

“Our growthin 2017 was achieved
through developing our business
in China, gainsin our established

markets and new product

launches”

Glenn Cowie Prasident, Foundry

Foundry revenue £m

£535.2m

Vesuvius' Foundry Division, trading
as Foseco, is a world leader in the
supply of consumable products,
solutions and associated services
related to tha foundry industry, The
foundry process is highly sequential
and is critically dependent on
consistency of product quality
and productivity optimisation.
The Foundry Division's products,
solutions and use of advanced
computer simulation techniques
allowfoundries to reduce defects
and hence reduce labour infensive
fettling and machining, minimise
metal usage requirements,
influence the metal solidification
process and automafe moulding
and casting, thus reducing cost,
energy usage and mould size.

The conditiening of molten metal,
the nature of the mould used and,
especially, the design of the way
metal flows inta the mould are

key parameters in a foundry,
determining both the quality of
the finished castings and the
labour, energy and metal usage
efficiency of the foundry.
Vesuvius' products and
associated services to foundries
improve these parameters.

The Foundry Division supplies ceramic
consumables, such as filters and feeding
systems, and chermical coatings and
binders to foundrias which use these
products inthe production of metal
castings. Working alongside customers
at their sites, our engineers provide
on-site technical expertise in addition to
simulation software to develop the best
individualised solutions. Each of our
products typically represents a small
element of the overall cost of the foundry
processes but contributes significontly to
product quality and yield.

We support our customer offering with
the ‘Foseca University,, an online library
of expertise in foundry practice which
demonstrotes our expertise and provides
technical support fo our engineers and
customers across the globe.

Key Products
Foseco's key products are:

> Binders These are used 1o prepare the
sand moulds and cores, the quality of
which improves the precision and
surface finish of the final casting

Coatings Thesa are designed to
protect both sand and permanent
moulds from the effects of being filled
with liguid metal. This is especially
important on cores, where liquid metal
may cover up fo three sides of the sand

v

v

A4

v

Filtration Qur filtration products
remove impurities from the fiquid metal
before it enters the mould and reduce
turbulence during pouring

Feeding Systems Qur specifically-
shapedinsulating and exothermic
feeding systems allow for the efficient
supply of molten metal to key areas
of complex or large castings, and
prevent liquid shrinkage defectsinthe
finished casting, improving yields and
productivity by reducing the amount
of molten metal required per casting.
Our exothermic feeding cids also
provide a secondary heat source
which can also control metatcocling,
minimising the adverse effects of
shrinkage during sclidification

Crucibles These are used in o wide
range of meling and holding
applications for nan-ferrous clloys,
particularly aluminium, copper and
zinc. Each of these applications
requires a crucible with specific
properties to maximise productivity
and minimise energy costs

Other products These include
innoculants used for ferrous and
non-ferrous castings; flux degassing
equipment for removing unwanted gas
in liquid aluminium; and refractory
materials used for the transportation
of liquid metal



Netherlands

production costs.

2017 Performance

There was positive momentum in the
majority of Foundry end markets
during 2017, with particular strengthin
heavy trucks and a recovery in mining
equipment gs well as construction and
agricultural equipment after several
years of weakness,

Revenue in the Foundry Division
increased 16.5% 10 £535.2min 2017 on
reported basis, whilst underlying revenve
increased by 9.3%. Trading profit
improved by 12.0% on an underlying
basis, Qur 2017 performance benefited
moterially from our commitment to
technological leadership through
investment in R&D, which resultedin

13 new product launches during the year,
the highest on record. These new product
launches supported double-digit revenue
growth across Foundry's highest margin
product lines—feeding systems, filters
and coatings. Trading profit also
benefited from the engoing crganisational
restructuring in North America, which
commenced in 2016 and is focused on
developing a flatter, leaner structure.

Inthe Americas, underlying revenue
increased 11.2% despite weakness in
the light vehicle and rail sectors in North
America and the closure of a number
of customer plants in the steel foundry
sector. This was offset by growth in
heavy trucks as well as increcses iniron
casting output related to construction
and agricultural eguipment. We were
successfulin gaining rarketshare as a
result of new product introductions and
we experienced significant successin

Ovur R&D facility in Enschede,

Foseco offers o wide range of foundry
proeducts and services to meet the
requirements of iron, steel and nonferrous
foundries to help them to reduce defects,
improve casting quality and optimise

Brazil growing our feeding systems,
fitters and non-ferrous metal treatment
revenues.

Underlying revenue in EMEA Increased
8.8% year-on-year as a result of growth
across the majority of foundry end
markets with particular strength in
heavy frucks as well as high growth in
the non-ferrous market. We were also
successful in gaining market share as

a result of new productintroductions.

In Asia-Pacific, underlying revenue
increased by 8.8%, with sales increasing
in allmajor markets. Qur revenuesin
Chino were up c.13%, due o booming
demand in heavy truck production

as well as our tangible progressin
developing a strong local sales force
and marketing organisation, In India,
our revenues were up c.5%, benefiting
from growthin light vehicle production
as well as strength in construction and
agricultural equipment, and mining
equipment. Our revenue growthin India
could potentially have been higher,

had it not been for high raw material
costsand supply issues as well as an
increased focus by Foseco on customer
payment terms.,

Strategic Highlights from the Year

The organisational restructuring in North
America, which cormmenced in 2016,
continued through the year with a focus
on developing a flatter, leaner structure,
We also focused on improved succession
planning with several key new employees
joining during the year. Ecch of these
initiotives saw a focus onimproving

organisational culture and accountability,
which has allowed us fc move decision-
making closer to the custorner and
improve our speed of doing business.
We continued our efforts to rationalise
our manufacturing footprintand
maoximise capacity utilisation with the
closure of the Cleveland filter plont and
Conneaut shank production. We also
contfinued to focus on the implementation
of Lean principles and improvement

in our suppert ond planning systems

for operations,

in oddition, we have initicted a cost
efficiency study at our facilities in Borken
and Grossalmerode in Germany as part
of aur wider focus on cost efficiency.

The investment in our world-class R&D
facility in Enschede, The Netherlands,
confinues to generate new products. In
2017, New Product sales as a percentage
of Foundry sales reached 10%.

To drive penetration info Japanese
foundries in ASEAN, we appointed

a Japanese business developmant
rmanager in Thailand and also refocused
our efforts on our business in Vietnam.

A new filter production line was faunched
in India and is expectedto be completed
by Q3 2018. The availability of alocal
filter source will improve customer
service levels and support increased
market penetration,

In Ching, the focus remains on further
developing the local sales and marketing
organisation and growing market share
in cur major product segments, mainly
coatings, filters and feeding systems.
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Foundry

Looking Ahead

The potential revenue per customer
and pertonne of castings producedis
strongly influenced by the technical
sophistication of the customer, the
end-market for the casting, and the
processes used inits production. These
factors tend to correlate with the level of
industrial development within a given
market. Therefore, we see significant
growth potentialin markets where
industrial development continues to
gather momentum, pariicularly cerrain
parts of Eastern Europe and Asic.

To position Foseco to benefit from this
trend we are expanding our network of
technical sales staff and application
engineers within developing markets,
ensuring that customers there have
local occess to the same high levels

of expertise and technical supportin
allmarkets.

In Europe, we expect modest growthin
the Foundry market for the next few
years, with animproving cutlock for
growth in the steel foundry segment
mainly dueto growth inthe construction
ond mining industries, Consolidotion of
the Foundry industry continues, reducing
the gap between capacity on offer and
real demand. We anticipate that plant
closures and mergers and acquisitions
will continue inthe industry, as will the
trend te transfer preduction from
western countriesto Eastern Europe
and Turkey. Cheaper labour and energy
costs, together with the availability of
technicc] skills, remain key for the future
development of the industrial footprint
inthese developing markets. Inthe
automotive industry, the trend 1o
develop lighter vehicles is pushing
further growth of aluminium castings,
increasing volumes in the non-ferrous
foundry segment,

The foundry market in Mexico continues
to see rapid growth, with foreign
investment from Asig, Europe, and the
USin new foundry facilities and the
ongaing expansion of existing facilities.
We are positioning ourselves fo

benefit from this growth with g new
manufacturing site in Monterrey. The
market recovery in mining, agriculture
and construction that started in 2017 is
expected toaccelerate in 20718 for both
NAFTA and South America.

Further growth is also anticipated in India
and South East Asia, with increasing
quality requirements expected te drive
increased peretration of Foseco's
feeding systems, filtration, coatings,

and non-ferrous product lines,

Gienn Cowie
President, Foundry

Consistent application of coatings
through automated density control

The Challenge

When manufacturing a casting,
applying the correct thickness of
mould coating is critical in providing a
protective barrier between the liquid
metal and the coreor mould surface.
A challenge for all foundries is fo ensure
that coatingis applied correctly. Ina
recent review we identified cne major
problem - the coating is often diluted
manually ondits density is checked
only periodically during o shift.
Inevitably, this can lead to variations
in performance, as coating thatis too
thick can compromise dimensional
accuracy and gas permeability and
coating thatis toe thin can foilfo
prevent steel penetration into the
mould sand and can resultinsurface
defects on the casting.

Qur Solution

The development team investigated
potentiol solutions, but realised that
availoble technology would either
adversely affect the mixing of the
coating or used delicate pipes and
pumps that were impractical reguiring
extra cleaning and meintenance

(ond therefore potential production
downtimea). Werking with a third-party
engineering unit we developed a new
design thot did notimpact the mixing
process and provides very accurate
continuous density and level
measurement with no moving parts.

The Benefits

The Intelligent Coating Unit {ICU) helps
our customers achieve better and more
consistent casting results, by ensuring
that at all pointsin the production cycle,

coating products are diluted to their
optimum apglication density ana
continuous basis. This significantly
reduces therisk of defectsin the
finished casting, reduces scrapped
casting and lowers cleaning costs.
The ICU clso continuously records the
application density data providing

an qudittrail for usein process
optimisation and quality reviews.



“Vesuvius has invested in my future”

Kerstin Berndt, Product Manager, Germany

I started working inthe Foundry
Division of Vesuvius GmbH in
2006, following an apprenticeship
as o chemical-technical assistant.
| spent my first two and @ half
yearsworkingin the 5G|
Organisation, covering
international projects, including
the development of data for the
Coveral ® MTS 1582, which is now
aleading preductin the field of
Non-Ferrous Metal Treatment.

| was then moved to the R&D
department, during which time
fobtained two degrees: asa
state-certified technician and

as atraining supervisor through
the German Chamber of Industry
and Commerce,

Since 2015, ! have worked asa
Loceal Product Manager for
non-ferrous metal freatment
and am the customer contact for
our Foundry Division’s chemical
production lines in Germany,
Austrig, Switzerland and the
Netherlonds.

My tirme af Vesuvius has enabled
me to gainimportant academic
and professional quafifications,
whilst at the same time receiving
critical on-the-iob technical
experience. Whilst doing this,

I have developed a censiderable
international network, working
on adaily basis with Vesuvius
colleaguesin different countries.

© See more about Vesuvius careers
inPeople and Community on
pages 67-73
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Board of Directors

John McDonough CBE Cheirmon
Appointed: 31 October 2012

Career experience: John was appointed as a Directer and Chairman
of the Compony on 31 October 2012. John was group Chief Executive
Officer of Carillion plc, the support services and construction firm,

for 11 years until he retired In 2011. Prior te jeining Carillion he spent
nine years inthe automctive systems division ot Johnson Conirols

Inc., initially in the UK, bafore moving to become Vice President of the
division's European operations and ultimately moving to Singapore

to develop the business in Asia-Pacific. He returned tothe UK as Vice
President of the integrated facilities management division for EMEA.
He served as Chairman of the Remuneration Committeg of Tomkins
plc from 2007 1o 2010. John has a strong engineering background and
considerable international commercial and listed company experience,
which enable him ably ta lecd the Vesuvius Boord. Johnwas owarded
a CBE in 2017 for services to industry and is a British citizen.

Otherappointments: Johnis Chairman of The Vitec Group ple. He is
alsoe Chairman of Cornerstone Property Assets Limited and Sunbird
Business Services Limited, ond a Trustee of Teom Rubicon UK,

Potrick André Chief Executive
Appointed: 1 September 2017

Career experience: Patrick was appointed as a Director and Chief
Executive of the Company on 1 September 2017 hoving joined the
Group as President of the Steel Flow Control business unitin February
2016. Patrick has had alang global career in the steel industry and, prior
1o joining the Group, served with Lhoist company, the world lecderin
lime praduction, where he held tha positions of Executive Vice President
Strategic Growth, CEQ Europe and CEO for Asig, CIS and Africa. Prior
to this he worked at ERAMET group, a global manufacturer of nickel
and special alloys, where he was CEC of the Nickel division then CEQ

of the Manganese division. Patrick showed significant drive and energy
in strengthening the Flow Control business and he brings ta the Board
this commitment, together with his industry experience, strategic vision,
constant customer focus and proven record of delivery that will enable
him ta lead the Group inthe next stages of its developrment. Patrickis a
French citizen.

o000
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Hock Goh Independent Non-executive Direcior
Appointed: 2 April 2015

Career experience: Hock was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 2 April 2015, Hock has more than 30 years' experience inthe oll and
gasindustry, having spent 25 years with Schlumberger, the leading
global oilfield services provider. His rolesincluded President of Network
and Infrastructure Solutions in Landon, President of Asia Pacific, and
Vice President and General Manager of China. From 2005 to 2012,
Hock was a Partner of Baird Capital Partners Asia, the private equity
arrn of the US investment bank Robert W Baird & Ce. Based in Ching,
he focused on the industrial, business services and heafthcare sectors.
Hock strengthens the Board through his extensive experience of the
global services industry and his understanding of Asian markets.

Hock is a Singoporean citizen.

Other appointments: Hock is Chairmen of MEC Resources Lid
ond Advent Energy Ltd, andis a Non-executive Director of AB SKF,
Santos Ltd, Harbour Energy Ltd and Stora Ense Oy

Changesto the Board during the year

Jane Hinkley Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 3 December 2012

Career experience: Jane wos appointed as a Director of the Company
on 3 Decemnber 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committes
inJune 2013. Jane spent a lorge part of her executive career working at
Goteas-Larsen Shipping Corperation, the liguefied notural gas shipping
specialist which was listed on both the London Stock Exchange and
NASDAQ. She served as Chief Financial Officer from 198810 1892,

and as Managing Director until 1997.1n 198, Jane was appointed
Managing Director of Navien Shipping AS, a company majority owned
by Statoil, the Norwegian multinational eil and gas company, a pesition
she held until Z00T. She previously was a Non-executive Director

of Revus Energy ASA, a Norwegion oil exploration and preduction
company. Jare is @ Chartered Accountant and has strong exparience
gained in the shipping industry of working with highly infernaticnal
tearns. faneis a British citizen.

Other appointments: Jane is Chairman of Teekay GP LLC and a
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of Premier Qil plc.

As disclosed above, Helly Koeppel and Patrick André were oppeinted tothe Board on 3 April 2017 and 1 September 2017, respectively.

Frangois Wanecq retired from the Board on 31 August 2017,
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Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: 1 November 2015

Career experience: Guy was appointed as a Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 1 Nevember 2015. Prior te joining
the Group, from Januvary 2011 fo Qctober 2015, he served os Chief
Financial Officer of Tarmac andlatterly Lafarge Tarmac, the British
building materials company. Guy held a number of senicr financial

and business development positions of Anglo American plc from 1997
to 2010, including the pasition of CFO of Scaw Metals Group, the South
African steel products menufacturer. Guyis qualified with the South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants and brings to the Board o
wedlth of financiol and operational insight gained through his extensive
international experience inthe mining and industricl sectors, Guyisa
Brifish and Seuth African citizen.

Christer Gardell Non-executive Director
Appeinted: 31 October 2012

Career experience: Christer was oppointed as a Director of the
Company on 31 October 2012, having previously joined the board of
Cockson Group picin June 2012, Christer co-founded Cevion Copitalin
2002, and serves as Managing Partner. Cevian Capital is a shareholder
of the Company and, at 28 February 2018, held 21.11% of Vesuvius'
issued ordinary share capital. From 1996 10 2001, Christer was the

Chigf Executive Officer of AB Custos, the Swedish investrment cornpany.
Priorto joining AB Custos he had been a partner of Nordic Copital and
McKinsey & Company, He served as a Non-executive Director of AB
Lindex until December 2007 and of Tieto Corporation until March 2012,
Christer brings a wealth of commercial acumen to the Board through his
extensive business management experience and the abilify to focus ond
drive change. Christer is a Swedish citizen.

Otherappointments: Christer is Managing Partner of Cevian Capital,
and Vice Chairman of the global Finnish technology and services
company Metsc Corporufion.

000

000

Douglas Hurt Senior Independent Director
Appointed: 2 April 2015

Career experience: Douglas was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 2 Aprit 2075, and as Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee at the close of the 2015 Annual
General Meeting. Douglas has significant financial experience,

having served os Finance Director of IMI ple, the global engineering
group, from 2006 t¢ 2015. Prier to this, he held @ number of senior
finance and general management positions ot GlaxoSmithKline ple,
which he joined in 1983, previously having worked at Price Waterhouse.
His career has included several years working inthe US and significant
experience in Eurcpean businesses as Chief Financial Officer and as
Oparational Managing Director. Douglasis a Chartered Accountant
and a highly knowledgeable corporate and operational finance
professional bringing significant US and European experience as

well as general management and financial leadership experience.
Dauglasis @ British citizen.

Other appointments: Dougles is Senior Independent Director and
Chairmen of the Audit Committee of Tate & Lyle ple, Senior Independent
Director and Chairman of the Audit Commitiee of Countryside Properties
PLC, and a Non-executive Director of the British Standards Institution.

Holly Koeppel independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 3 April 2017

Career experience: Holly was oppointed as a Director of the Company
on 3 April 2017. Holly has more than 35 years global indusiry and
financiol experience, having spentthe early part of her career ot
Columbic Gas Distribution Company and Consalidoted Natural Gos
Corporation ina variety of management reles which included four years
based in Australia. She joined the Americon Electric Power Company,
Inc.in 2000 and in 2606 was appeinted Chief Financial Officer. In 2010,
Holly joined Citi Infrastructure Investors as Co-Head, a $3.4bn fund

set up to capitalise on the growing need for infrastructure around the
warld. In 2015, the fund was renamed Gateway and transitionedto
Corsair Infrastructure Management, LF (CIM), part of Corsair Capital.
Holly retired as Head of CIMin January 2017 and continued cs a
Senior Advisor ond @ Non-executive Director on CIM's four portfolic
companies unti! June 2017, From 2012 t0 2015, Hally was a Director of
Integrys Energy Group, Inc., end a Director of Reynolds American Inc.
from 2008 t0 2017. Holly brings extensive glebal industry, financial and
management experience to the Board, Holly is an American citizen.

Other appointments: Holly currenily serves as o Non-executive Director
of The AES Corporotion and British American Tobocco p.l.c.
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Group
Executive
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Henry Knowles General Counsel
& Company Secretary
Appainted September 2013

4 years with Group
Based in London, UK andis a British citizen

Glenn Cowie President, Foundry

Appointed Novemnber 2014

36 years with Group

Besed in Clevelond, US andisa Scuth
African and British citizen

Tanmay Ganguly President,
Advanced Refractories

Appointed November 2014

10 yearswith Group

Based in Barlberough, UK andis an
Indian citizen

4 Guy Young Chief Financial Cfficer

w

Appointed November 2015

2 yearswith Group

Based in London, UK ond is a Scuth African
cnd British citizen

Roel van der Shiis President, Flow Control
Appainted Octeber 2017

27 years with Group

Bosed in Ghlin, Belgivrmandisa

Dutch citizen



[
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Patrick Bikard President, Operations
Appointed February 2014

9 years with Group

Based in Ghlin, Belgiurmand isa
French citizen

Alexander Laugier-Werth President,
Digital Services

Appainted July 2016

9 yearswith Group

Based in Ghlin, Belgium and is @ French
and US citizen

Alan Charnock Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer
Appeinted April 2075

33 yearswith Group
Based in Ghlin, Belgium and is a British citizen

9 Patrick André Chief Executive

Appointed September 2017
2 years with Group
Based inLondon, UK and is o French citizen

wRyan van der Aa Chief Hurnan
Resources Officer
Appointed May 2013
18 years with Group
Bosed in Londen, UK and is a Dutch citizen

The dafe appointed is the date the
individuoi was appointed to their
current role.
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Our Principles

Working together as a community with
shared values makes Vesuvius stronger.

Vesuvius is a geographically and

I . OurValues
culturally diverse group, employing
more than 11,000 people in 37 countries. Creativity Integrity
This geographical diversity places us Our commitmenrtotechnology ond qualiy is the Atthe heartof cur promise lies the trustwerthiness
close to our customers across the g[obe, basis for our comper-irive udyunmge.CreoTrw‘ly of all Vesuvius employeesin their acts and words.
butclso high\igh‘rs the importance of 0”0“{5 us fo deveiop innovative productsand _\megr‘wy, honesty and fransparency are essential
A .- i sclutions and the continvous improvements inalfour exchangss.
maintaining and applying strong and that generate value threugh performance
consistent ethical values in our worldwide enhancement. Employees are actively Embracing Diversity

encouraged to be innovative and to register their

ideas in our newly developed ideation dutabase, Vesuviusis c global company buit upon

o true respect for loca! custams and experience.
Woe recognise and embrace the potential that

approach to business. Our employees'
engogement with our values and culture

'5 V‘_TGITO oursuccess ?ﬁd the sustainable Cooperation comes fromthe coexistence of sa many different
dEhVErY of the Group's strategy. Encouraging internal and external cooperation cuttures ond of diversity in i's broadest sense.
enaobles us to crecte unique solutions with cur
. partners. Through cooperation, each Vesuvius nce
Vesuvius' Values employee is committedtothe success of their E*CEIIe . .
This new value, introduced in 2017, represents
. . commundy of colleagues and customers and h deli rised ‘
The behaviours we champion in our that of the wider Group. ouraimto E;’erokpfr‘\m“ze pelr_fofméncem our
emp]dees are represem‘ed by The Six CUSTDF"I.ETS andsia e O er‘5;, eliminating waste
i . Reliabil: and striving for continuous improvement.
Vesuvius Volues. They are an expression eliability Excellence is our attitude as we engage with our
of the common culture of the Group, Oursolutions invelve us in critical aspects of colleagues, cur customers and our communities.
5 i + + | our customers’ monufacturing processes.
prometing our image to e’_‘ e‘jnc Qur commitment to deliver consistent products
stakeholders, and underpinning the and services gives them the level of confidence
commercial promise we provide to our they require.
customers. The Values are displayedin
allour fcc:lmgs and in Vesuvius offices Vesuvius' Framework for Business Integrity
at customer sites.
During 2017 inved Vesuvius has established a framework for explaining ard delivering the culture
unng £V1/, we confinuedto engage ond principles we consider to be fundamentaltc our sustained success:
our employees onthe importance of the
Vesuvius Values through the addifion of a 1 3 3 5
new value of ‘Excellence’. Our approach . N . .
d busi . Vesuvius'Values } Code of Pclicies and Monitoring
to our customers and business operations Conduct Procedures and Evaluation

has always been to strive for Excellence,
and the addition of this sixth Value
reinforces our objective to integrate
continuous improvement into our
business approach.

Cur Values are celebrated annually
through the Groug's Living the Values
Awards (LTVAY. [n 20717, we came
together to celebrate the outstanding
individua! contributions to the
implementation of Vesuvius' Values
by 74 emplayees from 11 countries
who were nominated by thelr peers.
© Seemore cbout the Living the Values

Awardsin cur People and Community
section on p67-73



Evaristo Beltran Saenz
Process Engineer, Slide Gate, Monterrey &

Code of Conduct principles

Health, sofety and the environment

Trading, customers, products
and services

Anti-bribery and corruption

Employees and human rights

Disclosure and investors

Government, society and local
communities

Conflicts of interest

Competitors

The Code of Conduct is available in
29langucges ot www.vesuvivs.com

Code of Conduct

Cur Code of Conduct sets cut the
stondards of conduct expected, withous
exception, of everyone who works

for Vesuvius in any of its worldwide
operations. The Code emphasises our
commitment to ethics and compliance
withthe law, and covers every aspect

of cur approach to business, from the
way that we engage with customers,
employees, the markets, and each of

our other stakeholders, to the safety

of our employees and workplaces.
Everyone within Vesuvius is individually
accountable for upholding its
requirements. We recognise that lasting
business success is measured notonly in
our financial performance, butin the
way in which we deal with our customers,
business associates, employees, investors
and local communities. The Code of
Conduct is published in our 29 major
functional languages.

Policies and Procedures

We continue to enhance the policies thar
underpinthe principles set outinthe Code
of Conduct. These assistemployeesto
comply with cur ethical standards and the
legal requirements of the jurisdictionsin
whichwe conduct cur business. They also
give practical guidance on how thiscan be
achieved. Amongst these policies are:

Speak Up

The foundation of our compliance
programme is the ability to speak up
without fear of retaliation, either to
Vesuvius management or independent
of them. A third party-cperated
canfidential Employee Concern Helpline
(Speak Up) is available for employees
wishing to raise concerns angnymously
or in situations where they feel uncble
toreportinternally. Thisindependent
helpline provides the ability to make
reports onfine through aweb portal, by
phone or by voicemail. Ensuring global
accessibifity, employees can now speak
with operataors in any of cur 29 functional
languages. Noindividual is ever
penalised or disadvantaged for reporting
alegitimate concern in good faith.

Reports received via Speak Up are
managed by the General Counsel,
assisted by senicr managers from the
Legal Department and HR. All reports
are investigated following a protocol for
review, action, closure and feedback.
For complex issues, formal investigation
plans are drawn up, and support from
external experts is engaged where
necessary, Feedback is recagnised as
animportant element of the Speak Up
process and we aim ta provide an update
onall reports within 28 doys of receipt.
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Our Principles continued

Anti-Bribery and Corruption and

Working With Third Parties

Vesuvius engages with various third-
party representatives and intermediaries
which can presenf an increased anti-
bribery and corruption risk. Our
procedure onworking with third parties
clearly cutlines our zero-tolerance
approach to bribery and provides
practical guidance for our employees in
identifying concerns and how to repert
them. Vesuvius engages with third-party
soles agents, many of whom operate

in countries where we do nothave a
physical presence. Our employees’
interaction with sales agentsis supported
by an ongeing training programme for
those who have specific responsibility

for these relationships.

Data Protection

Qur data pratection policy requires a
uniform epproach in the handling of
personal data to manage the privacy
obligations of the Group. Everyone has
rights in respect of how their persone!
datais handled. Our policy recognises
that the lawful and correct treatment of
personal data is vital to our continued
successin anincreasingly regulated
global marketplace. During the course of
our activities we may collect, store and
process personal data ckout our staff,
customars, suppliers and cther third
parties. We are committedto treating
this data in an appropriate manner.

Human Rights

The Group hurman rights policy reflacts
the principles contained within the
United Nations Universal Decleration
of Human Rights, the International
Labour Organisation’s Fundamental
Conventions on Labour Standards and
the United Nations Global Compact.
The policy applies to all Group
employees Itsets out the principles for
our actions and behaviour in conducting
our business and provides guidance
tothose working for us on how we
opproach human rights issues. The
Group commits not to discriminate in
any of cur employment practices and
1o offer equal opportunities to cll.

The Group respects the principles of
freedom of association and the effective
recognition of the right tc collective
bargaining and opposes the use of,
and will nct use, forced, compulsory

or child labour. These principles have
been integrated inte the work of cur
procurement teamMs as we assess our
suppliers and their business practices.

Training

During the year we continued o cperate
our fraining programme on the principles
contained in the Vesuvius Code of
Conduct and associcted anti-bribery,
corruption and other compliance policies
and procedures. Training gives our
employees a clearer understanding of
the scope of risks that exist as we conduct
our business, and gives context to how
the Group expeciseach one of usto
respond tothose risks. In 2017, our
training processes have developed
toinclude anintegrated learning
managerment system which allows us

to deliver Vesuvius-specific e-lecrning
modules to employees on topics
relevantto their role through an

orline interactive platform.

Training provided during 2017 included:

> E-learning modules for modern
slavery, data protection and trade
sanctions

> Webex and video conference
workshops on data protection

> Face-to-face training by the Legal
and Compliance feam to staff at
several sites covering anti-bribery
and corruption, gifts, hospirality and
entertainment and trade sanciions

Cur e-learning platform supplements
the face-to-face training provided fo
employees by the Legal and Compliance
team, enabling us to reach more
employees, more quickly and in @ more
targeted way. In 2018, we will continue
to develop aurtraining processes and
modules available inthe e-learning
platformto help our staff understand the
Vesuvius policies and procedures relating
to our Code of Conduct and regulatory
compliance requirements.

Monitering and Evaluation

Alongside cur training programme, we
assist employees with the implementation
and interpretation of the Group's policies,
and their application through a process
of monitoring and evaluation, Part of this
process invalves performing ongoing and
targeted due diligence to understand

the background to policy design and
application. This forms part of our
compliance framework to ensure that our
ethicel and legol approoch remains fit for
purpose and is understood throughout
the business.



Operations meeting Skowing, Poland

Speak Up

The Group contfinues to monitor the
valume, geographic distribytion and
range of reports made to its Speak Up
facility to ascertain not only whether
there are significant ragional compliance
concerns, but also whether there are
countries where access to this facility

is less well understood or publicised.

The Audir Committee continues 1o
monitor and oversee the Group's
procedures for reporting allegations of
improper behaviour, and throughout
2017 the Audit Committee received
updates on the velume of reports
received from the confidential Speak

Up Helpling, key themes emerging from
these reports and the results of any
investigations underraken. In 2017,

we received 76 reports through the
Speak Up facility, a number of which
related to the same set of facts. Each one
of these was investigated. A substantial
majority of reports received in 2017 were
human resource issues which indicatad
no compliance concerns, nor serious
breaches of the Code of Conduct. In
relation to the repetitive reports, even
though these did not identify compliance
concerns, steps were taken to ensure
that changes were implemented locally,
including in certain cases entity-wide
management fraining, recommunication
of policies and reinforcement of our
business culture, supported by senior
management oversight. Of the small
number of reports received that
contained allegations in breach of

our Code of Conduct, thorough
investigations were performed and,
where appropriate, disciplinary action
taken, including one fermination.

Prevention of Slavery and Hvman
Trafficking

During 2017 we published our second
transparency statement outlining the
Group's approach ta the prevention of
slavery and human trafficking in our
business and supply chain. You can

find o copy of ourlatest statement on
our horme page at www.vesuvius.com.
Since the publication of cur first
statement we have conducted a
Group-wide risk assessment as well as
developing our internal policies and
enhancing our supplier assessment
programme. To ensure effective
communication of our Human Rights
Policy we have provided training to our
key purchasing staff and introduced an
online e-learning module to upgrade the
training given to all supplier-facing steff,
which provides key guidonce onthe red
flags ossociated with modern slavery to
assist them in identifying these during
supplier visits and accreditation.

Working with Third Parties

During 2017 the Group continued the
review of our third-party representatives
andintermediaries. This included
detailed review of our due diligence
activities for active sales agents across
the Group. This process covers
reputation, public information searches,
regulatory searches and ultimate
beneficial ownership, and has been
applied to each one of our active sales
agents. The review of our due diligence
processes will continue to be exrended
on arisk-based approach during 2018
and beyond.

Data Protection

In 2017, we spent considerable time
reviewing our approach to data
protection, in anticipaticn of the
implementation of the EU General
Data Protection Regulation in May.
We formally identified a Data
Protection Officer (DPOY) in July 2017
whose role includes setting Group policy,
implementing procedures, monitoring
compliance with data protection
provisions and championing Vesuvius'
approach tothe protection of persenal
data. Qur review invelved Group-wide
due diligence to clarify the data we
control and process, the methods by
which we do this, the security of the
systemns thot hold cur data and the
assignment of responsibifities for
responding to this.

The DPOis also responsible for raising
awareness of data protection issues
across the Group and training staff
whao undertake roles that involve the
processing of dafa.

Other Due Diligence

The Group continues fo undertake
focused, country- and function-specific
risk assessments, reviewing financial
records and the quality of implemenitation
of our policies and procedures, often
engaging the assistance of external
advisers. The outputs of these
assessments are used ta identify activities
that require further improvement, ensure
thaot our Group policies and procedures
for the management of anti-bribery and
corruption risk confinue to be appropriate
for the business, and ensure that within
our business there is the necessary
awareness ond understanding to be
ableto managerisks appropriately.
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Health and Safety

Vesuvius remains fundamentally committed to
protecting the health and safety of employees,
contractors, visitors, customers and any other

persons affected by our activities.

Our approach to health and safety is based on the following beliefs

Good health and safety
is good business

Health and safety is one of Vasuvius' core
principles, and our commitmentto health
and safety is embedded throughout the
organisation. The Vesuvius ethosista
identify, eliminate, reduce or control al!
workplace risks and an ongoing system
of training, assessment and improvement
isin place to focus on achieving this.

Safety Leadership

Safety performance remains the first
item on the agenda at ali cur Group
Executive Cormnmittee and management
meetings, and safety performanceis
reported fo the Board by the Chief
Executive as @ matter of priority ateach
Board meeting. Any site experiencing

o serious dongerous occurrence or
medically freated injury is required to
carry cut afull 8D investigation and
incorparate the findings into their site
improvement plan. The Group Executive
Committee reviews the more serious
incidents and the responses from the
sites. The Group remains fully committed
to continuing safety improvement with a
Group heclth and sefety policy stating
aclear gocl of:

Nolost timeinjuries
No repeat injuries

No harmto our people or contractors

Safetyis everybody's
responsibility

employment

This goalis pursued through arange of
policies, standards and procedures,
which are reviewed and updated onan
ongoing basis. In 2017, the accident and
incident reporting, personal protective
equipment, road vehicle and machine
safety standards were all reviewed and
updated to maintain their relevance ro
the current Vesuvius risk profile.

Health and Safety

Heclthand safety is regarded as a core
management responsibility, with
executives and line managers directly
responsible for health and sofety matters
in the operations under their contral.

This tone from the top is demonstrated
by the requirement for all senior
managers to perform executive safety
tours, report en their findings to local
operations management and follow

up onimprovement requirernents.
Management is accountable for heaith
and safety performance against
objectives and all employees understand
that they have c responsibility to take
care of themselves and others whilst at
work. We expect everyone to participote
positivaly inthe task of preserving
workplace health and safety.

Working safely
is a condition of

All work-related
injuries and work-
related ill-health
are preventable

Every business facility has an appointed
health and safety manager, who works
with management and all employees
to review site health and safety, assess
training needs and develop and
implement site safety improvement
plans. These local health and safety
managers are assisted by a central
tearn of experts who not only identify
adverse trends and respond to them,
but also enable the sharing of best
practice across Vesuvius.

In 2017, a thorough review was
vndertaken of the operation of the health
and safety function in Vesuvius. Following
this review, the function was restruciured
with the creation of a new position of
Group Vice President Quality, Health and
Safety and the restructuring of central
functions, The Vice President QHSE will
be responsible for setting the Group's
policies for quality and safety and
controlling their application, with the
business units taking full responsibility for
their implementation and accountability
for performance againstthern. A new
safety auditing team will be established,
to develop and maintain policies and
standards, improving them in the light

of external andinternal changes on



consistent Group-wide basis. In addition,
this team will systematically audit Group
locations worldwide, including customer
locations, against these policies and
standards, providing recornmendations
onimprovements and assisting the
locations with their implementation.

Health and Safety Policy

Allemployees are expected to adhere
to the Group's health and safety policy.
A copy of the policy signed by cll
members of the Group Executive
Committee is translated into local
languages and displayed prominently
inalllocations.

Sofety Breokthrough

Safety Breakthrough is Vesuvius' global
initiative to reduce the number of
accidents, fires and lost time injurles, and
to increase safety awareness through
greater employee engagement. Qur aim
is to raise health and safety performance
to best-in-class levels throughout the
Vesuvius business. Safety Breakthrough
sets a goal of attaining the lowest lavel

of accidents within our industry sector
with the ultimote goal of recching zero
accidents throughout Vasuvius, as
identified in our safety goals. The specific
focus on employees based at customer
locations continues to yield results not
only for the safety of cur employees but
also qur custorners’ empleyees —helping
to supportthe strong relationships built
between custemers and Vesuvius,

Turbo S

The current phase of the Safety Breakthrough
inihative - Turbo S - builds on the foundation of
Safety Breokthrough ondincludes o strong
focus on the standardisation of cll cur repetitive
activities. Turbo S alsointegrates good
management practices in the workplace, witha
strong emphasis on the need taimplement an
organisction which enables everybody to work to
the same high standards in safery perfermance.
As part of the continuing Turbo S initiative:

> Senior executives regulorly lead sofety tours
otalllecations

> Severe accidents are formally reviewed by the
Group Executive Committee

Training Employees to Work Safely

Turbo $ training pulls together all
Vesuvius' good sofety management
practices that are cimed at enabling ol]
Vesuviys employees to work in a safe
environment. Using a train-the-trainer
approach, Turbe S training sessions are
tailored to the audience and their activities.
For example, there is a special training
course developed for customer lecations
that focuses specifically an the risks faced
by our employees at our customers'
premises and how best to manage them.
Vesuvius conducts Permit to Work
fraining in all Group facilities, including
customer locations and extends
recognised best practices throughout the
Group. This ensures that all non-standard
work conducted in our facilities, whether
by Vesuvius employees or contractors,

is the subject of a pre-commencement
risk assessment and aformal permission
to commence activity, setting out the
safety requirements.

Aaron Gonzalez,
Quality Engineer,
Flow Control,
Monterrey, Mexico

¥

Employees are routinely engaged in sofety
audits

v

We invest significantly in safety training for
allemplayees, irrespective of their roles and
functions within our business

v

Allemployaes are expected to routinely
raise and implement safety improvement
opportunities; wefocus on the number of
implemented idecs

v

Safety standards ore continually updated,
translated and deployed througheut Vesuvius

v

Allinjuries and dangerous occurrences are
analysed locally, with a formal presentation of
_findings, root couses and improvement actions

cascaded through management.

Vesuvius has developed mochinery
safety training with an outside industry
leader, PilzGmbH & Co, a company
specialising in safe automation
technology. We are now extending
recognised best practices throughout
the Group through a series of machinery
assessments and training programmes.

Working Safely

The executive safety tours carried out by
senior managers provide visible safety
leadership on the shop floor in Vesuvius'
sites and in customer locations. These,
along with our daily safety audits are

a pillar of our Safety Breakthrough
initiative. In 2017, 111 Executive Safety
Tours, of which 12 were in customer
locations, were carried out by the
members of the Executive Committee
and their direct reports across all
territories where Vasuvius operates.
inour plants, more than 76% of cur
waorking population performed routine
safety audits, generating an average
of nine improvement opportunities per
person, resuliing in an improvement in
worker safety. The audit programme
involves employees at all levels —from
the Group Executive Committee and
safety specialists through to local site

rmanagement, employees and contractors.
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Health and Safety continued

Health and Safety highlights
Aspart of the customer's Steel Zone Safety
Month {December 2017} atour JSW customer
locationin India, three of our employees received
awardsfrom the Customer:
MrChandrakantfor Best Essay en Steel
Plarg Safery

> MrVeny loya Prakash for Best Drawing
competition on Steel Plant Safety

Mr Srinath and Vishnu Arat for Hazard
Identificationin the working oreg

v

¥

Vesuvius Chesterfield in the UK gained national
recognition for its efforts to improve the working
environment by reducing the amount of cirborne
dust. The Pilotdust reduction and awareness
training course was awarded o certificate

of achievement by the Health and Safety
Executive-endorsed owarding body atthe
annucl Ceramic Industry H&S Pledge Awards.
Furthermore, the training initiative has since
been developed intothe Group Global Dust
and Vibration initiative which was deployed
throughout 2017.

In ArcelorMittal Galati, Vesuvius ook on

six fitters fromtheir previous company ond
trained therm in all Vesuvius policies witha 55
implemented workshop as part of the renewed
contract covering additional activities inthe
customer’s plant.

In2017, Vesuvius [bérica Refractarios was
owarded with an'honourable mention’in
the National and International Prevention
Awards as o recognition of the work done in
the prevention of accidents.

Training activities undertaken in 2017 include:

InPoland o Road Safety Champion was
estoblished and o Road Safety training plan
developed. In addition, work was undertaken on
machinery safety. Four presses were assessed by
Pilz. Thay identified sofety improvement actions
ond e planwas put in place to complete these.
One piece of equipment which could not be made
compliant, afriction press, was dismantled.

fnthe Netherlands, Turbo 5fraining was
completed for 24 porticipents and 10 employees
were frained in machinery safety by Pilz.

InGermany, dust control, Turbe S, permit
towork and 55 Lean training were all completed.

Inthe USA, 11 praduction employees and
19 NAFTA HSE professionals were trained
on machinery safety, by Pilz. In addition a Rood

Qur Take 2 initiative ensures that
employees think again before
performing any unusual or non-standard
activity. Simply stated, the employees
take 2 minutes to discuss the task, any
hazards and how tc prevent accidents
before any workis started.

For new centracts in customer locations,
Vesuvius uses a formal risk assessment
which aims to identify significant risks

to our employees and centractors.

This enables appropriate controf
measures o be agreed and implemented
with the support of our customersin
advance of work commencing.

Safety Chompion and o Road Safety Committee
were appointed. The team developed a

road safety action plan, safe driving pelicy,
training for specific categories of driversand
vpdated car pool process. These programmes/
policies were shared and edopted by Canada
and Mexice.

The safe driving policy was sent 1o all drivers, whe
signed and returned it fotheir manager Monthly
general awareness topics were created and sent
cut, and the basic level of training was completed
for ol categories of drivers. Skid controltraining
was completed for high-risk drivers in Canada
ond Mexico. Ineddition, Turbo S, permit to work,
dust and vibration and furfurcl training were
undertaken.

Safety Performancein 2017

We continue te work hard to reduce
incident severity and develop robust
policies, standards and practices aimed
at improving the sofety and health of
our peoplein allthatthey do and to
develop actionable insight from the
performance indicators. The lost time
injuries frequency chart shows how
injuries have been reduced and how
that reduction has been maintained
through a combination of o behaviour-
based approach to safety and the
impfementation of physical safeguards.



In 2018, the business units will confinue
to build on the embedded behaviour-
bosed sofety approach token to date
to drive continual improvement in
safety performance.

Working in Tidy Plants

The continuing use of 55, the workplace
organisation method, throughout

the Group has driven significont
improvements in our workploce
environment. Employees are encouraged
to develop ownership of their working
areas, and tcke pride in their cleanliness
and organisation. The added support of
Vesuvius | ean specialists has been key
to improving plant safety by rermoving
hozards for employees and offering

a clear, bright and safe working
environment. Daily 55 audits led by team
leaders ensure continuousimprovement
of working conditions and promote o
safer workplace.

Accident and Incident Reporting
and Analysis

Asignificantinvestmentintime and
resources has been made over recent
years to develop robust, comprehensive
and timely reporting of incidents
(induding all fires, explosions and any
major spill or other chemical releases).
Initsinternal standards, Vesuvius
continues to use more sfringent
definitions for lost time injuries (LTls)

and 'severe accidents’ than the definitions
used by local regulatory bodies.

This extends investigation to all medically
freated injuries and serious dangerous
occurrences. Vesuvius has implemented
afullinvestigation based on the 8D
Practical Problem Solving (8D tool to
identify the true root causes fo prevent
repeat incidents with a formal
presentation of findings, 8D-bosed

root causes and improvement actions

cascaded through management As part
of management reporting, the Board
receives a monthly update on cll lost
fimeinjuries.

involving Accountable Management for
Safety Performance

Site safety improverent plans are now
in ploce for all production sites with
deployment being the direct responsibility
of local managers. Any site experiencing
a dangerous occurrence or severe injury
is required toinvestigate using 8D and to
share theirincident investigation and
action plans across the Group. In 2017,
there were no severe injuries, but407
dangerous occurrences. Vesuvius
encourages the reporting of all
dangerous occurrences and injuries

as only through a sound reot cause
analysis and preventative actior plan
implementation can future occurrences
be prevented.
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Sustainability

Our solutions improve the quality
of our customers’ products

and reduce the environmental
footprint of their processes.

Sustainability Highlights

Vesuvivs France installed a woter network
separation and rain water collection system
linked to an on-site firefighting water lagoon.

In Korea, 4,891 square matres of asbestos
cantaining reofing was safely reploced with
steel cladding to improve the health, safety
dnd environmental risk profile of the site.

Process Metrix shipped @ record number
of loser systemnsin 2017 with the new
Hyperion™ sgftware.

Process Metrixalso released their new
Two-Color Pyrometer for surface temperature
measurement in conjunction with lining thickness
measurement, The systems typically increase
ladle refroctory ifefime by 10-30% witha
concomitant reduction in woste with less brick
consumead over the lifetima of the ladle.

Vesuvius and its Processes

The Board recognises that good
environmental managementis aligned
with our focus on cost optimisation and
operationa! excellence. Whilst Vesuvius'
products do vary significantly in the
energy intensity of their manufacture, the
maijority of our manufacturing processes
are not energy intensive, nor do they
produce lorge quantities of weste and
emissions. Vesuvius' total energy costs
are less than 3% of revenue, with only
1.8% of the total energy requirements
across the Group consumed inthe UK.

Total Energy Consumption

Overall gas use increased by 6.4%

in 2017 and electricity use by 11.9%,
primarily as o result of the increased
production of energy-intensive bricks
and of our South African production of
Slagdol, an energy-infensive product
used in converters. In this way, changes
in product mix can have o pesitive

or negative effect on our energy
performance, suchthot they can
outweigh any underlying changes.

The underlying data for 2017 does
indicate improvements in energy
consumption in some areas. This detailed
analysis of normalised data is used by

Vesuvius'senior engineers o drive
improvements across the business.

Enviranmental Monitoring

Allour factory emissions are proactively
managed in accordance with local
reguiations. Regular analysis enables us
totake action to reduce our emissions
where possible and to operate more
efficierily. The Group monitors its energy
consumption, worldwide CO,e emissions
and usage of water. Vesuvius proactively
seeks to reduce waste in production

and to reuse and to recycle materials
where practical.

In 2017, Vesuvius recorded nine minor
environmental incidents, Thesa included
items such as encroachment of waste
water from a neighbouring property,
complaints abeut afactory odour and
contained spilloges. All of the incidents
were contained via Vesuvius'site
erwvironmental response plans and
reported through the Vesuvius incident
reporting system. Two of these incidents
in China were repertedto the local
environmentel! regulotors. No action
was taken by the authorities after
Vesuvius made process changes.

Inall cases we complied with our

local reporting requirements.



Greenhouse Gas Reporting

In line with our total energy consumption,
both total emissions and normalised
emissions increased in 2317, driven
predominantly by the issue mentioned
above -the increased production of
Slagdol which generated high process
€O, emissions, ondincrease in
production of our brick plants, although
we also undertook a switch from coal to
acleaner gas fuel during the yearin our
Chinese brick plont. In 2017, Vesuvius also
included the emission from our newly
acquired flux plant in Brazil. f these
products ore excluded, then thereis on
underlying downward year-on-year
trend in normalised emissions of CO,e

of 7.7% and of normalised energy
consumption of 7.3%.

In reporting greenhouse gas (GHGY)
emissions, we have used the GHG
Protacol Corporate Accounting ond
Reporting Standard (revised edition)
methodology toidentify our GHG
inventory of Scope 1 (direct) and Scope 2
(indirect) CO,e. We reportinkg of CO,
equivalent (CC,e?),

The Group also meets all of its obligations
in relation to the Carbon Reduction
Commitment (CRC') Energy Efficiency
Scherne, the Producer Responsibility
Packaging Waste regulations and the
Energy Saving Oppertunity Scheme

by which the UK hasimplemented the
EU Energy Efficiency Directive.

Energy Conservation Plan

The Vesuvius Energy Conservaticn Plan
was launchedin 2011 with the objective
of reducing cur normalised energy
consumption by 10% over the following
threeyears. In June 2015, we reset our
focus and set the objective of o 10%
improvement {using 2074 as our base
year) by 2018. Against that 2014 base,
a4.2% improvement has been realised
towards this target (making a 7.1%
improverment since 2010). Managing
our energy intensity notonly has an
environmental benefit but is also part
of our leng-term strategy to enhance
our cost compefitiveness.

Global GHG emissions (kg of CO,e)

2017 2016

Emissionssource
Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities 396m 340m
Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 120m 98m
Total GHG emissions 516m 438m

+17.9%
Vesuviug' chosen intensity measurement
Emissions reported above, normalisedto pertonne 526.4 511.0
of product cutput +3.0%

Methodology We have reported to the extent reasonably procticable en all the emission sources required
under Part 7 of the Accounting Regulations which fail within our consolidated financial statements.

Scope 1 covers emissions from fuels used in cur factories and offices.

Scope 2 relates to the indirect emissions resulting from the generation of electricity, heat, steam ond
hot water we purchase to supply our offices ond foctories. We hove used dota gathered to fulfil our

requirements under the CRC Energy Efficiency scheme and emission factars from UK Government’s
and the IEA GHG Cenversion Factors for Company Reperting 2016 in the calculation of our GHG.

New [nsural®furnace lining
system increases productivity
and casting quality

TheChallenge

The need to improve productivity,
commercial competitiveness and
environmentalimpactisincreasingly
driving the adoption of energy efficient
furnaces in atuminium foundries.
However, the efficiency of these furnaces
is often yndermined by the choice of the
refractory lining.

Cur Solution

Foseco has developed a new, multi-part
and highly insulating lining made of Insural
material. The lining is delivered ready to
instalf, and combines energy saving
potential with long service life ond
resistance to oxide build-up.

The Benefits

As most of the lining system is made of
pre-cast Insural shapes, the installation
can be completed inunder three days
vnlike traditional linings which require
several weeks to fully stabilise. In addition,
nosintering is necessary. The furnace just
needs to be pre-heated and maintained at
working temperature for 48 hoursand is
then ready for service.

The insural furnace lining systemis
completely water free. Consequently,
hydrogen pick-up from the new lining
system is negligible and the aluminium
relt density index specification can

be achieved immediately following
installation. Furnace downtime is
dramatically reduced and the risk of
increased rejects associcted with ra-lining
work is avoided.

With conventional linings, the external
furnace body temperature often runsin
esxcess of 100° C, while with Insural
furnacelining systems installed an
external furnace body temperature of only
64°C can be achieved. This significantly
improves the foundry working
environment and reduces energy loss.

QOur tests show that Insurcllining runs on
33% less energy than a tradional lining.

The Insural furnace lining system offers
the foundry a reduction in cost, increased
productivity and security in casting quality.
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Woater Conservation

Whilst water is not a scarce resource in
the places where Vesuvius operates,
Vesuvius works to reduce the consumption
of water in its manufacturing processes
by recycling and improving processes

to reduce consumption. Normalised
consumption of water does vary with
product mix; however, there is an overall
downward trend for both absolute water
consumption, and normalised water
consumption —that is water use per tonne
of product manufactured.

QOur Customers and Their
Processes

Under the Vesuvius and Fosecs brands,
we deliver o wide range of soluticns
that help our customers improve the
proeductivity of their operations.

These sclutions alsc improve the
quality of our customers’ products

and reduce the environmental footprint
of their processes.

Thermaloptimisation and reject
reduction are key factors in the processes
for which we supply solutions. We
contribute to the reduction of our
customers’ energy usage and subsequent
CO, emissions through insulating
materials, metal flow management,
facilitating extended manufacturing
sequences (meaning less reheating)

and reduced downtime.

Theiron and steelindustry accounts for
approximately 6.7% of total world CO,
emissions and 18% of industrial CO,
emissions, with, on average, 1.8 tonnes
of CO, being emitted for every tonne of
steel produced. Witharound 10 kg of
refractory material required per tonne
of steel produced, careful selection

of energy-saving refractories can
beneficiallyimpact onthe net emission
of CO,.

Inthe foundry process, the amount of
metal mefted versus the amount sold

is critical o a feundry's profitability.
Foseco continuously works with its
customers to increase the ratio of metal
sold to metal meltad. Sometimes thisis
as low as 40% and we work with them
toincreaseitto 70%.

How Does Vesuvius Contribute?

Since 2011 we have used a CO, impact
stamp to highlight the most enargy-
efficient solutions in cur portfolio of
products and services and to support
the deployment of energy-efficient and
sustainable solutions engineered by
ourtechnology departments.

Vesuvius products and services facilitate
environmental benefits by:

> Enabling lighter, thinner ond stronger
components, leading to lighter vehicles
and less energy consumption

v

Improving customer processes through
the supply of innovative consumables
to reduce energy intensity and the
CO,eintensity ratio

> Reducing customers' refractory
usage per tonnea of steel produced
through higher-quality, longer
service-life products

> Increasing the level of sound castings
produced per tonne of metal melted
through improved meould design and
the application of molten metal
filtration and feeding systems



People and Community

Our people are unigue and important to us.
We are unequivocally committed to helping
them to be the best they can at what they do.

Qur gim at Vesuvius isto foster o working
environment that is inclusive ond diverse,
where people can be themsefves

without fear of harassment, bullying or
discrimination. We recegnise that the
dedication and prefessionalism of our
people, their capacity for owning their
roles and their drive for results, are the
most significant contributors to Vesuvius'
success. In order to getthe best from

our people, we emphasise that one of
the mostimportant tasks of being a
manager in Vasuvius is the development
of their direct reports, We recognise that
we attain our goals through our people.

Line and functional managers are guided
in managing and developing their people
by a central HR function, head-quartered
in London delivering supportthrough

its expertise in Reward, Talent
Management, and Glebal Mobility, and
backed up by modern HR informetion
systems. Managementinthe business
units and regional and local HR staff
draw upon this expertise and cascade

it to their respective business units and
local organisations. Much care is taken

to ensure that Corporate HR initiatives
are properly communicated and
implemented atlocal level, with the
cooperation of identified employee
representatives.

The main area of attention for the central
HR function is identifying and fostering
talent across the organisation and
making sure that those individuals
identified as having high potential are
seen as a company-wida resource, with
appropriate development plans putin
place. Inrecruiting talent, whether it

be recent graduates or seasoned
professionals, we are looking for
individuals who embody an entrepreneurial
mindset and an international outlock.
Special attentionis paid in addressing
matters such asgender balanca and the
employment of a diverse workforce.

For 2018, a strengthening of both the
Talent Management and Reward
functions is planned, 1o equip them better
forthe ever-increasing battle for ralent in
the marketplace.

Talent Management

Strengthening the leadership pipeline
and faciliteting people development
throughout the orgonisation remain

key areas of focus for Vesuvius. We work
hard to ensure that across all operational
and functicnal areas of the business, at a

Our Training Programmes
ADVANCE

This is & first generarion monogement
development progromme aimed at develeping
individual contributors who are likely to occupy a
line management role in the shortto medium term
and managers who have no direct reports but
need to be familiar with @ broad range of people
management skills to use in one-off projects,

Inits firstyaar, the pregremmeis designed to

toke place aver 12 months, and includes a blended
learning approach of online learning, face-to-face
workshops ondindividual projects. Participants
aresupparted by line management and

HR business partners throughout the duration of
the progromme and thereafter where additional
supportis needed. The proegramme includes a
360° nssessment of each porticipant to enable
them to compile a personal development plon

for the next stage of their career.

WINGS

This is the Viesuvius middle management
development progromme aimed at those

who manage other managers. Wings, now
inits eighth year, is held in Spring each year
atVlerick University in Belgium. In 2017,

26 employees successfully completed the course.
The programme entails anintroduction to
general management theory ond practice and,
like the ADVANCE programme, includes a 3607
assessment of each participant.

ASCENT

Thisis the Vesuvius high potential and senior
leadership development programme, which
Vesuvius offers in portnershipwith Insead. It is
aimed of cccelerating the development of top
talert within the erganisation. The programme
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senior managerial level, there is the
appropriate level of alignment in
strategic outlook and performance
goals. Thisincreases occountability and
drives results. We encourage and reward
high performance, foster talent and aim
to create gn envirenment where alf can
redlise their individual potential. To meet
the demands of the business and add
rigour to cur employee value proposition,
we have launched a number of
programmes to assist cur employeesin
growing their careers through utilising
world-class lecrning opportunities,

is highly structured and tokes place overa
nine-manth period, invelving initial online
modules, face-to-foce workshops ond individual
and group projects, in which participants are
assessed individually and clso against each other.
Participants are supported by senior executives
and senfor HR management for the duration of
the programme and thereafter. Participants on
this programme are those identified as being
potential future senior menagement of the Group.
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These courses form part of the Vesuvius Technical
University aimed atthe continuous technical
development of Vesuvius personnel. Courses
rangefrom entry to expert levels, and are
continuously updated to keep pace with
developing technology, thereby guarantesing
that Vesuvius stoff ore ar the forefront of
technical innovation.

HR4HR

During 2016/17, under the Vesuvius HR4HR
project, 30 HR prefessionals underwent
accredited professional training in psychometric
assessment and evaluotion, and simulation of key
talent monagement pracesses, each achieving
‘Expert’status. These HR4HR groductes will act
now as cotolysts for implementing innovotive
recruitment and talent identification techniquas
across the business. The project will be progressed
in2018.
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SuccessFactors

Vesuvius has invested heavily in a new
people platform and key digital
products, The SuccessFactors HRIS
project was launched glebally in January
2077, it provides greater transparency
across the business, facilitating better
performance management and focused
talentidentification and development,
and has been implemented across alf our
businesses and geographies.

Reward

Vesuvius' reward systems are designed
to create a market competitive and fair
pay enviranment for all of our employees

andto reinforce the visicn, strategy and
expectations set by the Board.

We have adopted the Willis Towers
Watson job grading model, which
enables usto compare roles and deploy
o structured assessment methodology
across countries and specialisms fo
ensure that roles are rewarded

consistently throughout the organisation.

Employees can also visualise their
patential career paths within Vesuvius on
the grade map. Vesuvius is committed

to creating reward systemns which are
transparent and objective, where
employaes receive equal pay for work

of equal value, regardless of their age,

race, disability, sexual orientation,
gender, marital, civil parinership or
parentalstatus, refigion or beliefs,

The Corporate Annual Incentive Planfor
managers ensures that our people are
motivated to achieve their objectives,
with awards linked 1o business
performance. The Mid-Term Incentive
Plan for managers and senior managers
acts as a retention tocl for key talent,
reducing employee turnover and
diversifying our pay methods. The
Vesuvius Share Plan for Executive
Directors and Group Executive
Committee members encourages
decisions based on long-term goals
rather than short-term gains and works
to align the imterests of participants

and sharehclders.

“My firstinternational posting
was to Suzhou, Chinad”

Bill Cousineau, Vice President Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

Follewing an early careerin
construction and refractory
manufacturing, | joined Vesuvius
Canada as a Sales Account
Managerin 2000. | wos gradually
promoted to the roles of District
Manager and Steel Sales
Manager, before becoming
General Manager of the Canadian
business in 2005. My first
international posting was to
Suzhou, China where | became
Vice President Advanced
Refractories, Asia Pacific. There

| overscw cll of our Advanced
Refractories operations forthe
Aslo Pacific region, covering
Koreg, Japan, Taiwan and Ching,
including our Chinese joint venture
with Angang Steel. My next move
wasto Australio, where | became
the General Manager, overseeing
the opening of the new Port
Kembla manufacturing site and
thesale of some of our nan-core
businesses.

In 2013, | meved back to
Canadato toke aver the General
Muanager role once againand,
inNovember 2015, becamethe
Operaticns Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, responsible
for managing our preduction sites
inthe US, Canada and Mexico.
Finally, in May 2017, | moved to
Pittsburghto take on the position
of Vice President of Advanced
Refracteries NAFTA, leading the
business in this region. Vesuvius
has given me the chance to work
overseas gaining international and
intercubtural experience enabling
me to take on senior menagement
rcles around the world.



Global Mobility

Although Vesuviusis active worldwide,
we keep the number of international
assignments as low as possible as we

Global mobility ot Vesuvius

> Praviding Vesuvius companies with skills that are
notlocally evailable and that are required ot
short notice. This typically occurs in countries
where we are establishing a new presence.
The number of expatriates working on this basis
diminishes overtime as the erganisgtion
matures and we recruit and train lecal talent
totake over

Vesuvius expatriates do not come from
one or two countries alone, we have a
truly international mix of nationalities in
our expatriate population. Individuals
move not only within a region, but

also between regions, with existing
assignmentsincluding Malaysiato
Ching, China te Germany, Peland to the
USA and Brazilto China. Cur mebility

Employee Diversity

believe thatlocal Vesuvius companies
should be managed and staffed by local
personnel. International assignments are

> Coreer development. We believe that
the personat development plan of ony employea
being developed for asenior managemaent, or
senior expert position should include a posting
outsidetheir home country. This encourages
themto develop the skills necessary to function
successfully in an international environment.
These postings are failored to the needs of the
organisation and the needs of the individual

programme shows that cur expatriate
population is as diverse as our Group.

Vesuvius operates a number of
international assignment policies to
provide for the different circumstances
of these assignments —whether they

be shortterm, longer ferm, or raquire
extended commuting. These policies are
supplemented with clearly identified

therefore limitedin time, usually to three
years. Currently 29 employeesare on
long-term assignments.

= Enhancing diversity. Management teams
benefit from having a mix of gender and
cultures. In spacific cases we use international
assignments to achieve this goal

benefits, delivering support appropriate
tothe nature of the assignment.

By accessing this broad range of policies,
we can mancge our international
assignments with greater flexibility, thus
catering for changing expectations and
demands from employees, whilst ot the
same time meeting the demands of

the business.

Vesuvius believes that the diversity of its employees is one of the core strengths of the Group. Having a balance of cultures,
ethnicities and genders helps to promote the innovation and creativity that is key to our success. We recognise that, in line with other
engineering companies of our size and nature, we have an unbalanced gender representation. We are seeking to address this as

part of our wider commitment to diversity.

Female Male Total Female Male
Group Executive Committee member 0 10 10 0% 100%
Seniormanagement’ 9 94 103 9% NM%
Middle management 41 305 346 12% 88%
Directors of subsidiariesincluded in consolidation? 35 447 482 7% 93%
Allother employees 1,368 2183 10,551 13% 87%
Grand total 1,418 9,592 11,010 13% 87%

1. Of these 103 senior managers, 42 directly report to reembers of the Group Executive Committee, and of these, three ore women.

2. 482 individuals in the Group are Directors of Group subsidiaries. Of these 7% are women. This disclosure is made to comply with regulatory requirements.
ltincludes Directors of dormant companies and those with multiple directorships.
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Employee Consultation and
Industrial Relations

tn most of the countries in which we
operate we discuss matters concerning
the Vesuvius business with local works
councils and trade unicns. These
processes and procedures are regulated
by local low and we find thot the
constructive dialogue that takes place
between employee representatives and
management provides benefitto cur
business. In addition to local employee
representation we opercte a European
Works Council (EWC") that contains
representatives from each of the EU
countries where Vesuvius has employees.
European management and the EWC
meet formally once a year. At this
meeting management provides an
update onthe performance of the
business, with a particular focus on
developments likely to impact European
employees. Additionc! ‘Special Event
Meetings' are held when the Groupis
required 1o consult with the EWC about
particular matters, including proposed
restructurings in the European
organisation. One such meeting was
held in 2017. The EWC Select Committee
also meetstwice ayear o receive
additional updates, and the Chief
Human Resources Officer of Vesuvius
joins part of these meetings. All EWC
representctives receive four dedicated
training doys per year, to ensure they
are appropriately equipped to fulfil
their duties.

In addition to formal discussion and
consultation mechanisms, in many
countries our operations hold town hall’
meetings on a regular basis. These
provide an opportunity for locol
management to meet with staff and
provide an update on corporate
developments and matters matericl to
the business.

Valuing our Employees

Vesuvius operates a number of awards
and initiatives aimed at recognising the
contribution of particular individucls and
disseminating best practice throughout
the Group. Examples of these include the
Living the Values Awards and the EMEA
8D PPS Awards.

Cur Living the Values Awords
programme is central fo maintaining
our Group's collective focus on Vesuvius'
Values. On 14 December 2017,

we gathered for our fifth awards
cererngny to celebrate and acknowledge
the efforts of 74 employees, Awards
were presented 1o 14 individuals and

13 teams from 11 different countries,

all of whom, nominated by their peers,
were credited with embodying Vesuviug'
Values. They were rewarded with a
specially designed trophy, with Vesuvius
making a financial contribution te each
wirner's chosen charity.

The EMEA 8D PPS Awards 2017 took
place in Pavig, italy, in October. These
awards showcase the benefits of the

8 Disciplines approachto practical
problem-sclving. They were launched to
reinforce the messages of our intensive
training courses, to promote the use of
practical problem-solving in the business

and to recognise excellence in quality.
During o two-day programme, Vesuvius
employees were invited to present case
studies evidencing the application of the
8D methodology fo offerto customers
sustainable business solutions. A panel,
chaired by Vesuvius’ Chief Executive,
judged the presentations, selecting the
winning team from Qlifantsfontein,
South Africe. This team demonstrared
outstanding capabilities in pushing the
boundaries in high temperature
solutions. Their case study demoenstrated
the use of 8D in ajoint effort berween
the customer and our field service
engineers, o develop a unique solution
for the customer'steam foincrease
operational efficiency, and to develop
new business for Vesuvius.

Vesuvius in the Local Community

Our socicl responsibility activities
complement our values in driving our
culture. Our operating sites engage with
their local communities through various
social action projects.

In Germany, Vesuvius GmbH cpened

its doors to junior researchers from
Borken kindergartens. About 30 children
interested i research, aecompaniad by
their nursery school teachers, turned

the Vesuvius canteen intc an exciting
research island. Atten research stations
the boys and girls experimented with
colours, sowed herbs, and built noise
protectors and boats.



8D Awards 2017

The Awards champion unigue solutions
designed to address customers'
requirements o

Inthe Netherlands, Foseco Nederland
BV operates an employee charity
donation competition. Employees write
an essay explaining why the charity
organisation with which they have a
connection, should win the donation.

In June 2017, Marloes Goorhuis won

the awardfor her contribution to an
organisation named MeeReizen.
MeeReizen organises holidays for
mentally disabled pecple, providing the
parficipants with an exciting adventure
and their carers with some respite at
home. Marloes has been a volunteer on
these holidays for years. The trip is paid
for by the participants themselves, so
thereis a very limited budget. Additional
donations are used to provide additional
experiences such as a visit to the zoo,
atheme park or a museum.

'n France, colleagues from Vesuvius
France SA troined a futsal (o special form
of foathall team), to participatein an
inter-company competition organised

by the local association. This annual
competition is organised fo support

the charity L'Enfant Bleu which fights
against the maltreatment of children.

Our employees

Employees by employment type

A. Salaried 3,983
8. Hourly 5,897
C. Temps 1,130

In addition, Vesuvius France SAagain
worked with Feignies'local fire brigades,
this time conducting four major exercises
to learn more about managing chemical
risk at high temperatures. We helped
them explore how best fo assess
situations without prior knowledge,

how to evaluate circumstantiatand
environmental factors under pressure,
aswell as how to communicate effectively
withteams when facing specific chemical
flow hazards.

In China, Vesuvius Suzhou sponsors
primary school pupils frem lower income
families so that they can join in with
extracurricular activities. Now inits
seventh year, our Vesuvius Youth Team
project atthe China-Singapare Suzhou
Industrial Park Youth and Children Centre
originaily began with three feams:
unicycle, aerobics and chorus. Since then,
the project has grown to include jump
rope and music teams, with 30-40
children in each team.

Employees by region

E. North Asia 337
F. South Americo 1,009
G. South Asia 295

A.China 1,884
B.Evrope4,472
C.IndiaB38
D.NAFTA 2,174

Vesuvius International
Scholarship Programmae

The Vesuvius international Scholarship
Programme is set upto assist qualified
dependent children of Vesuvius
employees in helping to finance under-
graduate and graduate education ot
cccredited institutions. Awards are
granted globailly without regard to
race, colour, creed, religion, sexuai
arientation, age, gender, disability or
national origin. Vesuvius has been
involved in this programme for 22 years,
during which pericd Vesuvius has
assisted 902 students to achieve their
higher education goals ar a cost of
$1.08m. Individual scholarships have
been awarded to employees’ children
living in: Belgium, Brazil, Ching, the
{zech Republic, France, Indic, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Netherlands, Poland,
Romania, South Africa, Spain, UAE
and the UK.

Employees by business unit

A Flow Control 4,302
B.Foundry 2,836
C.Advanced Ref 2,474

D. Digitai Services 526
E. Heod Office 49
F.Others 823
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Developing talent in our facilities in Brazil
and China is critical to the success of our
strategic priority fo capture growth in
developing markets

"My work is exciting, we are building the future fogether”

Site: Piedade, Brazil Mcnuel Delfino, Sales & Marketing Director, Digital Services,

South America

“Vesuvius gave methe opportunity fo manage
worldwide projects and work with global teams”

Site: Piedade, Brazil Rafael Lorenzo Jacob, Global Product Manager Hydrogen Systems,

Joining Vesuvius ayear after

graduating, Manuel learned quickly

and was open to new challenges.
Heiniticlly joined tha VISO team
asaproduct specialist, putting
his technical skills to good use
developing innovative solutions
forcustomers. Showingstrong
leadership capabilities, Manuel
moved info o manageriol role,
and now heads South America’s
growing Digital Services team
fromthe Sao Pauls office.

Hardware ond Instruments, Digital Services

2002:

Joined Vesuvius as VISO
Specialist, Andean region

2008:

Sales mancger, Steet

2012:

General and Country
Manager, Steel, Andean
Region

2077

South America Director
Sales & Marketing, Digital
Services

Following his graduation from
university, Rafoel has enjoyed a
successful five year engineering
career gt Vesuviys. In this time
he hasbeen able to develop

his technical and commercial
knowledge across a number of
roles, and he is currently using
his experience as aworldwide
product manager.

2013:

Joined ECIL Met Tec as
Technical Salesman

2014

Avemis preduct specialist

2016:

Werldwide product
manager, Hydrogen
Systems & Probes

2017:

Global Product Manager,
Hydrogen Systems,
Hardware & Instruments

“Vesuvius has really welcomed me and my company info the
international group”

Site:Resende, Brozil Caroling Campelle Bezerra Campos, Monaging Director, Vesuvius Fluxes

Cardlina’s career began af
Carboox 25 years ngo, where she
delivered R&D success with new
casting flux products and
initiatives to assist customers. As
Vice President, she played a key
rolein establishing the company
asa leader across Brazil and
Mexico.

Following its acquisition by 1992: Joined Carboox Resende
Vesuvius, Caroline became Quimica, Brazil
Managing Director, and hqs 2016: Carboox ecquired by
been instrumental in enabling Vesuvius

asmoaothtransition, working
hard to integrate the Vesuvics
culture and achieve strong

2017: Promoted fo Managing
Director, Vesuvius Fluxes,
Brozil

financial results.




Site: Suzhou, China Jerry Huang, IT Director-Asia Pacific

"My family and | had a great experience working in Germany”

Jerryjoined Vesuviusonan After growing his remnit across 2002:
internship, learning about the valye  European aperations, leading @

Graduated andjoined
Vesuvius asintern

Site: Kobe, Japan Shigeru
Foundry

of ITto everypart ofthe compaony. numberof_proiects in Euere,errry 2004: [T Spedialist
Alwaysseekingto Ur]dersﬂ:md the becumt_e Director of IT Asia Pacific, 2006: 1T Manager
needs of other functions, he soon managing ¢ loyal tegim thar he
built a strong culfure around him. ensures have access to many 2013: ITManager, Borken,
overseas opportunities, Germany
2015:  IT Director-Asic Pacific

"lam proudto be ableto share
my technical expertise with my
colleagues around the world”

Takii, Marketing Manager,

Filter

1996:

Shigeru built up o strong track
record ofter beginning his coreer
as part of Japan'ssalesteam.
He was promoted to Manager of

Productsfollowing nine years

at the company, where he was
successful despite inheritinga
challenging market. Lost year he
became Marketing Manager of
Steeland Non-Ferrous Products,
where he has grown aglobal
network across the company and
continues to deliver sfrang resulfs.

Salesteam, Foseco, Japan

2004:

Agppiication Engineer, Kobe,
Jopan

2007:

Manager, Filter Products

2010:

Manager, Metal Treatment
Products

2017:

Marketing Manager, Steel
and Non Ferrous Products

"l can use the knowledge | acquired in the Steel division to benefitthe

> N
Foundry business
Site: ChangShuy, China Benny Yang, BU Manager, Foundry China
Four years after university, fostered a successful 1999:
Benny joined Vesuviusasa partnership, improved product

Joined Vesuvius as Sales
Engineer

Sales Engineer, applying his quality and grew market share.  3pp1
technical expertise ta enhance  Mostrecently, as Monager of

: Slide Gate Refractories

('SGR'YPurging Plugs (PP"}
Product Specialist

SGR/PP Technical Director

General Manager, WG

product excellence for the Foundry team, he oversaw

customers acress Chine, A ageod set of financiol results 2606:
series of promotions encbled last year. .
Bennyto grow hiscommercial 2012:
responsibility, where he 2016:

Foundry Manager, China

713

Aupgisuodsaying l



74 Vesuvius ple

Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Governance

In this section

76

Chairman's Governance Letter

78

Governance Report

85

Audit Committee

93

Nomination Committee

26

Directors' Remuneration Report

96 Remuneration Overview

98 Remuneration Policy

106 Annual Reporton Directors’
Remuneration

117

Directors’ Reporft

121

Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities



“Imoved from Mexico to Brussels to
jointhe Corporate HR feam”

Carlos Bersoza, Human Resources Director, Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

lioined Vesuvius in 2006, taking
the role of HR Coordinator af
Monterrey, Mexice whilst Vesuvius
was expanding the production
lines atits Mexica facility.
Faollowing theinauguration of the
new Pre-Caost production line, |
was offered the oppertunity te join
the Corporate HR team, andin
2008 | moved te Brusselsto werk
asthe HR Project Coardinator for
the head office team. Whilst there,
| helped to organise the Group's
expatriation processes, develop
internal training modules and
waorked onthe HRSAP
implementation project.

Following the completion of this
5-year assignmentin Brussels, |
returned to Mexico in 2013 as
Operations HR Businass Partner,
supportingthe deployment

and training of standardised
working teams across the facility.
| continued o travel internationally
ta deliver workshops and train
company leadersin Ching, Brazll,
Poland ond the US enthe basis of
my experience in Mexico.

Two yearslater, | wos promoted te
HR Directer for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, moving to
Pittsburgh. Inthis rcle, aswell as

my responsibilities for HR across
the US, Canade and Mexico, | also
supportthe Digital Services
business unit, astheir HR contact.

Moving around the world hos
given me aninternational mindset,
enabling me tosupport and guide

Vesuvius colleagues inHR matters.

@ See more about Vesuvius careers People and community on p&7-73
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Chairman’s Governance
Letter

Deaor shareholder,

On behalf of the Board | am delighted to present the 2017
Corporate Governance Report. As a Board, we remain
committed to applying the highest standards of corporate
governance, recognising that robust governance and culture
underpin busiress success. This year the Company is reporting
against the 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’).
This version of the Code includes minor changes following the
implementation of the Eurepean Union's Audit Regulation and
Directive. | am pleased to report that the Company is fully
compliant with the Code.

There was much debate in 2017 about the future direction

of corparate governance, with the publication in April of

the Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) Select
Committee's report on corporate governance, and the
Government's publication of its response to the Green Paper
on Corporate Governance Reform in August. During the

year, institutions and voting agendes also issued guidance

on governance and voting issues, and the FRC produced
commentearies on key governance issues and responded to the
Government's announcements, This culminated in December
with the FRC's publication of its consultation on g new draft of
the UK Corporate Governance Code. The Board monitored
each of these developments, and remains focused on ensuring
that the Company continues to comiply with all its governance
cbligations, including full compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

Board Compaosition

2017 hasbeen ayear of significont development for the Board,
with two new Board appointments.

In April, the Board was strengthened by the oppointment of
Holly Koeppel as an independent Non-executive Director,
replacing Nelda Conners, who resigned from the Board in
2016. Having spent 35 years working in global utility, power
and infrastructure businesses, Holly brings with her extensive
international experience.

In September, we welcomed Patrick Andréto the Board as
Chief Executive, replacing Frangois Wanecq who retired from
the Board on 31 August 2017. Patrick was appointed as part of
a planned succession process, whichinvolved a comprehensive
review of external and internal candidates. Patrick joined the
Groupin early 2016, and has disployed significant drive ond
energy since then, strengthening the Flow Control business,
and exhibiting strong lecdership skills and a constant customer
focus. The Board believes that Pairick is the ideal candidate to
lead the Group in the next stages of its development.

Following a period of transition, Frangois Wanecq retired from
the Group on 31 December 2017. Fraongois led the business
through a period of significant challenges and change. He
worked tirelessly to strengthen Vesuvius' business and to

champion safety and quality throughout the Group. We thank
him for his dedication, leadership and stewardship of the Group.

Pricr to undertaking these new cppointments, the Nomination
Committee spent time reflecting on the balance of skills and
experience of the existing Board members, and considering
these against the future needs of the business. Balancing
independence with the skills, knowledge and experience
required on the Board, and on the Committaes which support
it, is crucial to the Group's success. With the appointments of
Holly and Patrick we are confident that the Board has the
appropriate composition to ensure the continued long-term
success of $he business. Consequently, | encourage all
shareholders to support the election and re-election of our
incumbent Directors at the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Further details about the recruitment processes for Pairick
and Holly can be found in the Nomination Committes Report.

Culture and Diversity

Corporate culture confinues 1o be animportant focus for

our organisation. Following the recruitment of a new Chief
Executive, the Board looks fo him to centinue the work of his
predecessor in ensuring that appropriate values and arobust
ethical stance are reflected cansistently In our behaviour as we
conduct our business. One of the key strengths of Vesuvius has
always beenin the diversity of our employees. With o wide
geographic spread and local hiring of the clear majority of
staff, the Group encompasses individuals from a multitude

of different nationalities and ethnicities. At a Board level

we recognise the significant benefits of diversityin our
business, and understand its impertance in supporting

candid and constructive boardreom debate. During 2017,

the Board reflected further on this theme, manitoring the
recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander, Parker and
McGregor-Smith Reviews on gender and ethnic diversity, and
approving o Boord diversity policy. This policy sets out our
commitment to diversity and explains the actions we will toke
to affirm this going forward. Whilst recognising that the
Hampton-Alexander Review has set o target of 33% female
representation on FTSE 350 Beards by 2020, the Beard
considersits diversity, size and composition to be appropriate
for the requirements of the business, and does not believe that
at this fime it needs to accelerate the usual rotation of Directors
to meet this target. However, the Board will continue to consider
the acknowledged benefits of greater diversity in all future
Director recruitmeni decisions. With respect to the Group as
awhcle, we recognise that our commitment to diversity is not
currently reflected in the gender diversity of cur employees.
Like many other industrial engineering companies, we know
that cur erganisation must work harder fo atfract, develop
and retain talented women.

A copy of the Board Diversity Policy can be found in the
Governance Report.



Board Evaluation and Training

This year the Board's formal evaluation process wos again
externally facilitated by the corporate advisory firm, Lintstock.
Itutilised a fresh approach, with the key element consfituting
one-on-one interviews with each Directer conducted by
Lintstock, aimed at gaining o deeper insight inte Directors’
responses. Overall, the evaluation concluded that the Board
remained of a high calibre and was functioning well, with

open and challenging debate and transparent information
flow. The Nomination Committee was felt t¢ have dealt
successfully with Board succession during the year, identifying
an accomplished condidate to replace Frangois Wanecq

as Chief Executive and securing an excellent new Non-executive
Directer. Similarly, the Audit Comnmittee continued o deliver
robust challenge to management on financial matters and had
overseen a smooth transition of external auditor. Finally, the
Remuneration Committee had prepared and recommended
an updated Remuneration Policy for 2017,

The evaluaticn highlighted a number of Beard prieritias for
2018 including the need to integrate the new Chief Executive,
an ongoing emphasis on strategy and its delivery, and the

need for the Board 1o continue o set the right tone from the

top and monitor the culture of the Group. The development of
senior management level talent, and succession plans for them,
was agein noted as being a key area for focus in 2018, with

new training programmes implemented, and continuing
initictives in place to ensure greater Board access 1o these
high-potential individuals.

As Chairman, | recognise that | am responsible for ensuring
that the Board continues to operate effectively, and that part
of this role is to ensure that all Directors attain an appropriate
understanding of the business, and continue o refresh their
skills and knowledge. During the year, both new Directors
undertock atailored induction programme to ensure that they
quickly gained a good understanding of the Group and their
responsibilities and cbligations. As well as receiving briefings
and updates on key financial, legal and governance issues
impacting the organisation, the Directors furthered their
knowledge by undartaking visits to various operations during
the vear. The Board visited Group operations and a customer's
facilities in Brozi), | visited our operations in Ching and other
Non-executive Directors visited cperations in Poland, the US
and Germany. During 2018, the Non-executive Directors will
continue to broaden their understanding of the Group through
individual site visits as well as scheduled Board visits.
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Financial Reporting and Risk

In 2016, the Audit Committee conducted a competitive

tender for the external audit which led to the appointment

of PricewaterhcuseCoopers LLP (PwC?) as the Company's
new guditor in 2017, PwC formulated a detailed transition
plan, working with people across the business to build on their
understanding of the Group and refine the planned approach
to the audit. During the year Pw( provided regular updates
to the Audit Committee on the status and progress of the
auditor transition plan, along with valuable insightsinto the
Group's audit envirenment. Further details cbout the tronsition
process are contained in the Audit Committee Report.

The Board continually assesses the Group's key risks, and the
methods by which we manage our risks. The impacts of the
risks are also reviewed ond tested as part of our ongoing risk
management approach. This process continued in 2017.
Anumber of emerging risks were raised and discussed,
reflecting developing ‘macro’ trends and identified risks
where issues had arisen during the year. Whilst none of these
was considered significant enough to change the overall
characterisation of the Group's risks and uncertainties, the
Board's view on each of these issues was integrated into
management discussions on risk ond factored info the
approach the Group takes to mitigation. The Board continues
to monitor all perceived risks and the methods by which these
are mancged.

Yours sincerely
John McDonough CBE Chairman
28 February 2018

Also see:
ORiskon p22
OPrinciplesonp56

In this section:

©Board effectivenesson pB0

©Board accountability onp83

© AuditCommittee Report
on p83

O Nomination Committee Report
onp93

© Directors’ Remuneration
Reportonp?6
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Governance Report

The Board of Vesuvius pic {the ‘Company’) is respansible for the
Group's system of corporate governance and is committed to
maintaining high standards of governance and to developing
them to reflect progression in best practice. This report
describes the Company's corporate governance structure

and explains how, during the year ended 31 December 2017,
Vesuvius applied the Main Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2076 issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (the Code"). Throughout the year and up untitthe

date of this report, Vesuvius was in full compliance with

the requirements of the Cade. The Board has noted the
consultation that has commenced regarding a new revised UK
Corporate Governance Code, and has begun to consider the
changes that the Company would need to make toits existing
practices and procedures fo ensure continuing full compliance
inthe fuiure. Anumber of the propased new requirements are
already reflected inthe Company's approach to governance.

A copy of the current Code can be found on the FRC website at:
https://frc.org.uk/directors/corporate-governance-and-
stewardship/uk-corparate-governance-code

Roles and Responsibilifies of the Board

Ultimate responsibility for the management of the Group rests
with the Boord of Directors.

The Board focuses primarily upon strategic and policy issues
and is responsible for the Group's long-term success. It sersthe
Group's strategy, oversees the allocation of resources and

monitars the performance of the Group. It is responsible for
effective risk assessment and monagement.

The Board

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it and
delegates cerrain matters to its Committees. Itis anticipated
that the Boord will convene on seven occasions during 2018,
holding ed hoc meetings to consider non-scheduled business
if required.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive is set out in writing. This was reviewed during
the year on the appointment of cur new Chief Executive,

as well as being part of the Company's annual corporate
governance review, No amendments were considered
necessary. The interactions inthe governance precess are
shown inthe schematic below.

Board Committees

The principal governance Committees of the Board are the Audit,
Remuneraticn and Nomination Committees. Each Committee
has written terms of reference, which were reviewed during the
year. No amendments were considered to be required. These are
available to view on the Company's website www.vesuvius.com.

For biographical detcils see Board of Directors on pages 50
and 51.

Board

Governance Commitiees

Administrative Committees

Audit Committee Chairman:
Tomenitor theintegrity of financial Coughas Hurt
reporting ondto assist the Boardin

its review of the effectiveness of the Membership:

Group'sinternal controls andrisk Allindependent

managament systems Non-executive Direcfars
Remunergtion Committee Chairman:
Todeterminathe appropriate Jane Hinkley
remunerotion packagesforthe Group's

Chairman, Executive Directors Membership:

Allindependent
Non-executive Directors

and Company Secretary, and to
recommend and monitor the leveland
structure of remuneration for other
senior management

Nomination Committee Chairman:
Toadvisethe Board on appointments, John McDonaugh,
retirements and resignations from Chairman

Inaddition, the Board delegates certain responsibtfities on an ad hoc basis
toa Finance Committee and Share Scheme Cammittee, whichoperate in
accordance with the delegated authority ogreed by the Board

Finance Committee Chairman:
Toappreve specificfunding and John McDonough,
Treasury-related mattersin Chairman

accordancewith the Group’s

delegated aufhorities oras Membership:

delegared by the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer and
Group Head of Corporate
Finance

Share Scheme Committee Chairman:

Tofacilitate the administration of Any Board member

the Company's share schemes

the Board andits Committees and
toreview succession planning and
talent developmentfor the Board

andsenicr management

Group Executive Committee

{axceptwhen considering
his own succession, inwhich
casethe Committeeis
chaired by an appropriate
Non-executive Directar)

Membership:
Chairmanand anythree
Non-executive Directors

Membership:
Anytwe Directorsor
a Directorandthe
Company Secretary

The Group olsc operates a Group Executive Committee {GEC), whichisconvened and chaired by the Chief Executive and assists him in discharging his
respansibilities. The GEC comprises the Chief Executive, Chief Financicl Officer, the four Business Unit Presidents, the Chief Human Resources Officer,

the Chief Technology Officer, the President Operotions, and the General Counsel ond Company Secretory. The GEC metsixtimes during 2017 ond is scheduled
ta reet seven times during 2018. Its mestings are generally held ot major aperational sites or in the London head office. Having reviewed the role of the GEC,

the new Chief Executive hos chesento maintainits operationin its current form.
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Governance Structure
The Board
Rasponsible for Group strategy, risk management,
succession and policy issues. Sets thetone, volues and
culture for the Group. Manitors the Group's pragress ogoinst
the targetsset
Chairman Chief Executive
Provides leadership and guidance for the Board, Develops strategy for review and approvalof the
promating a highstandard of corporate Board. Directs, monitors and maintains the
goverrance. Setsthe Board agendaond manages operational performance of the Company.
meetings. Independent onappointment, heis Responsible for the application of Group policies,
thelink between the Executive and implementationof Group strategy and the rescurces
Non-executive Directors fortheir delivery. Accountable tothe Board for
Group perfermance
Senior Independent Director MNon-executive Directors Company Secretary
Acts as asoundingboard{or the Chairman, Exercise g strong, indepeandent vaoice, challenging Adwvisas the Chairman on governance,
an alternative contact for shareholders and and supporting Executive Directors. Scrutinise together with updates on regulatory ond
anintermediary for other Non-executive performance againsf objactives and manitor complionce matters. Supportsthe Board
Directors. Leadsthe annual evaluation of fingncial reporting. Moniterand aversee risks agendawith dearinformation flow Actsasa
the Chairman and recruitment procass for and controls, determine Executive Director link betwean the Board and its Committees
his/her replocement, when required remuneration end manage Beord succession and between Non-executive Directors and
throughtheir Committea responsibilities senior management

Board and Committee Attendance

The attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and at meetings of the principal Committees of which they are members held
during 2017 is shown in the table below. The maximum number of meetings in the period during which the individual was o Board
or Committee member is shown in brackets.

Audit  Remuneration Nemination

Board Committee Committee Committea
Chairman
John McDonough CBE 8(9) - - 616)
Executive Directors
Patrick André {appointed 1 September 2017) 3(3) - - -
Guy Young 9 (%) - - —
Francois Wanecg (retired 31 August 2017) 6 (6) - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Christer Gardel! g - - 5(6)
Hock Geh 8(9) 4(5) 3(5) 5(6)
Jane Hinkley g (5) 5{5) 5(5) 6(6)
Douglas Hurt 8(%) 5(5) 4(5) 6 (6)
Holly Koeppel (appointed 3 April 2017) 7(7) 2(3) 4(4) 4{4)

John McDenough was absent from a Board meeting due to a family emergericy. The meeting was chaired in his absence by the
Senior Independent Director (SID%, Douglas Hurt. Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt were unable to maoke additional Board and
Remuneration Committee meetings, scheduled at short notice, due to prior engagements.

To the extent that Cirectors are unable fo attend scheduled meetings, or additional meetings called on short notice, they receive the
papers in advance and relay their comments ta the Chairman for communication of the meeting. The Chairman follows up affer
the meeting in relation to the decisions taken. In 2017, the Chairman sought Hock Geh and Douglas Hurt's views on the matters ta
be discussed at the Board meeting they were due to miss, in each case prior to the meeting, and provided feedback fa them on

the outcome of discussions. The Cermnmittee Chairmen likewise contacted those Directors who were unable to attend Committee
meetingsin advance of those meetings, 1o canvass thelr views and understand any issues they wished to raise in respect of the
subject matters being discussed. The SID maintained contact with the Chairman regarding his priorities for the meeting he was
unable tc attend, tegether with the discussicns undertaken and the action points thar stemmed from that meeting.
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Governance Report continued

Board Effectiveness

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight Directors—the Non-executive
Chairman, John McDonough CBE; the Chief Executive,
Patrick André; the Chief Financial Officer, Guy Young; and
five Non-executive Directors. Poirick André joined the Board
as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, replacing Frangois
Wanecq whe retired from the Board on 31 August 2017 as
part of a planned succession process. Holly Koeppel joined
the Board as an independent Non-executive Directar on

3 April 2017, Douglas Hurtis the Senior Independent Director.
Henry Knowles is the Compony Secretary.

The Board focuses on ensuring that both it, and its Committees,
have the appropriate range of diversity, skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the Company, and the
markets in which it operates, to enable it to discharge its duties
and responsibilities effectively. The Board continues to look
atdiversity in its broadest sense—reflected in the range of
backgrounds and experience of cur Beard members who are
drawn from different nationalities and have managed a variety
of complex global businesses. During the year, the Board
reflected on the recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander,
Parker and MecGregor-Smith reviews on gender and ethnic
diversity and formalised its approach to diversity with the
approval of a Board Diversity Policy. The palicy sets outthe
Board's cbjectives with regard fo diversity to ensure that the
Company maintains the optimum Board and Committee
composition, underpinning the fundamental requirement

to rmaintain the right balance of independence, skills and
knowledge inthe boardroom. Details of the Nomination
Committee’s activities in complionce with the policy during

the year are included in the Nomination Commiftee Report.

Board Diversity Policy

Purpose

This policy sets out the approach to diversity in respect of the Boardof
Directors of Vesuvius ple. The policyis intended to ossistthe Board, through
the work of the Nomination Committee, in cregting ond maintaining
optimum Baard and Committee compesition.

The broad principles of diversity contained in this policy apply to all
employees of the Vesuvius Group. The Vesuvius Code of Conduct reflects
Vesuvius' commitment fo diversity and respect for its employees.

Policy Statement

Vesuvius plc recognises the value of a diverse and skilled workforce and is
committed to creating and maintaininganinclusive and collabarative
workplaceculiure that will provide sustainability for the organisationinta
thefuture.

Policy Objectives

The Nomingtion Committee will focus on ensuring that it, the Board and the
Board's other Committees hove the appropriote range of diversity, skills,
experience, independence and knowledge of the Company roencble them
+o discharge their duties ond responsibilities effectively.

The Nomination Committee will ensure that oll appointments to the Board
cre based onmerit with each candidate assessed agoinst cbjective crireria
focused onthe skills, experience and knowledge required of the position,
and with due regard tothe benefits of diversity onthe Board.

The Nomination Committee will engoge with executive search firmsing
manner whichensuresthat opportunities are raken for a diverse range of
condidatas to be considered for appointment, This willinclude ensuring thot
the Committee only uses search firms thatare signed up fo the Veluntary
Code of Conductfor Executive Search Firms.

The Nomination Committee supports senior manogement effortstoincrease
diversity in thesenior manogement pipeline to facilirate successionplonning
towards executive Board positions.

With respecttothe representation of women on the Board, highlighted by
the Dovies and Hampton-Alexander Reviews, the Boardis supportive of the
initiative to increase the proportion of wornen onthe boards of FTSE 350
companies. Vesuvius, which ot the date of this policy has o Board comprising
25% female membership, will continueto ensure that the Boord of Vesuvius
plc reflectsthisleval, or greater levels of gender diversity, as are appropriate
for its size and dynarnics, to enable it to continue to deliver on the
requirements of the Vesuvius business.

Monitoring and Reporting
This policy and progress agoinst its objectives will be reviewed annually.

The Nemination Committee is responsible for the implementation of this
palicy and for monitoring progress towards the achievement of its objecrives.

The Board's overall skills and experience, as well as Non-
executive Directorindependence, were reviewed during the
year as pert of the process of recruiting the two new Directors.
The Board's compaesition also formed part of the Board
evaluation process. Two of the eight Directors (25%) are women
and four (50%) are non-UK citizens. The Board alsc contains
individuals from a range of ethnic backgrounds. The Board
consequently considers its diversity, size and composition to

be appropriate for the requirements of the business, and in

line with its adopted policy. The Board racognises that the
Haompton-Alexander Review has set a target of 33% female
representation an FTSE 350 Boards by 2020. Whilst the Board
does not believe that it is appropriate to accelerate its planned
rotation of Directors purely to meet this rarget, it will continue to
consider the benefits of greater diversity in all future Director
recruitment decisions.



Committee composition is set out in the relevant Commitree
reports. No ane, other than the Committee Chairman and
members of the Committee, is entitled o partidipate in meetings
of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.
However, as detailed in the Committee reports, where the
cgenda permits, other Directors and senior mancgement
regularly attend by invitation, supporting the operation of
edach of the Committeesin an open and consensual manner.

The Board considers that, for the purposes of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, four Non-executive Directors {excluding the
Nan-executive Chairman), namely Hock Goh, Jone Hinkley,
Douglos Hurt and Helly Koeppel, are independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship
which could offect the exercise of their independent fudgement.
Christer Gardelfis Managing Partner of Cevian Capital which
holds 21.11% of Vesuvius'issued ordinary share capital and s not
considered to be independent. He brings a weclth of commercial
acumentothe Board. The Chairman satisfied the independence
criteria on his appointment to the Beard. Biographical details of
the Directors ara set outon pages 50 and 51.

Appointment to the Board

Recommendations for appointmentsto the Board are made
by the Nomination Committee. Further information is set out
inthe Nomination Committee report on pages 93 to 95.

Time Commitment of the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors each have aletter
of appeintment which sets outthe terms and conditions of their
directorship. Anindication of the anticipated time commitment
is provided in any recruitment role specification, and each
Non-executive Director's letter of appointment provides details
of the meetings that they are expected to attend, along with the
need to accommodate travelling time. Non-executive Directors
are required fo set aside sufficienttime to prepare for meetings,
and regularlyto refresh and updare their skills ond knowledge.
All Non-executive Directors have agreed fo commit sufficient
time for the proper perfermance of their responsibilities,
acknowledging that this will vary from year to year depending
onthe Group's activities, and will involve visiting manufacturing
and customer sites around the Group. The Chairmanin
particulor dedicates a significant amount of time to Vesuvius

in discharging his duties. The Board notes that the Chairman
holds chairmanships other than Vesuvius, but that only one of
these is for a listed company. The other two chairmanships

are for much smaller private companies where thatime
commitrnent is limited.

All Directors are expected ta attend all scheduled Board and
Committee meetings and any additional meetings as required.
Each Director’s other significant commitments are disclosed to
tha Board during the process for their appointment and they are
required to notify the Board of any subsequent changes. The
Company has reviewed the availability of the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors and considers that each of them can,
and in practice does, devote the necessary amount of time to
the Company’s business.

At the time of her appointment, Holly Koeppel served ona
number of Boards and wasin the pracess of adjusting her
portfolio and refiring from her executive positions. During 2017,
she stepped down from all but one of her board appointments,
and now only serves as a Non-executive Director on two other
boards, having taken on a new Non-executive position at
British American Tobacco plcin July 2017

The Beard notes that Hock Goh holds a number of other
directorships, but that these other commitments typically only
require a total of 25 days' work peryear. MEC Resources Ltd

is the listed parent company of Advent Energy Ltd, an
investment company that is not currently operaticnal. As o
result, Hok Goh's commitments as Chairman of these
companies are currently minimal and he is only required to
attend two Board meetings a year. His other directorships
require attendance at a small number of Board meetings each
year. Having reviewed this, the Boord believes thot Hock's
additional commitments do not prevent him from properly
fulfilling his duties as a Non-executive Director of Vesuvius ple.

Information and Support

The Board ensures that it receives, in a timely manner,
information of an appropriate quality to enable it adequately
todischarge its responsibilities, Papers are providedto the
Directors in advance of the relevant Boord or Committee
meeting to enable them to make further enquiries about any
matters prior to the meeting should they so wish. This also
allows Directors who are unable to attend to submit views in
advance of the meeting.

In addition to the formal Board processes, the Chief Executive
provides written updates on important Company business
issues between meetings, and the Board is provided with

a comprehensive monthly report of key financial and
management infermation, Regular updates on shareholder
issues are provided to the Directors, who also receive copies of
analysts' notes issued on the Company. For the distribution of
allinformation, Directors have accessto a secure online portal,
which contains areference section containing background
information on the Company.

Al} Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. There is also an agreed procedure in place
for Non-executive Directors, in the furtherance of their duties,
ta take independent legal advice at the Company's expense.

Induction and Training

A comprehensive induction programme is available to new
Directors. The core of the induction proegramme is designed in
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, and is
tailored to meet the requirements of the individual appointee
and the dynamics of the Group., This process was undertaken
twice during the year, on the appointment of Holly Koeppel as
o Nonexecutive Director ond the appointment of Patrick André
as Chief Executive,

The Chairman, through the Company Secretary, continues to
ensure that there is an ongoing process to review training and
development needs. Directors ore provided with defails of
seminars and training courses relevant to their role, and are
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Governance Report continued

encouraged and supported by the Company in attending them.
In 2077, requlatory updates were provided as a standing item

at each Board meeting in a Secretary's Report. External input
on legal and regulatory developments impacting the business
was also given, with specialist advisers invited to the Board

and its Committees to provide briefings on overal! market

and economic developments including Brexit, forthcoming
accounting changes, legal developmentsin dota protection and
tax matters, and other general corporate governance issues.

In addition, in 2017 the full Board visited cur operations and
customers in Brazil, gaining a broader understanding of the
South American business, The Chairman visited our operations
in Ching in May, and other Non-executive Directors visited
operationsin Poland, the US and Germany during the year.

[n 2018, the Non-executive Directors will continue fo brooden
their understanding of the Group through further site visits,

Governance in Action - Chief Executive Induction

1. Following his appointment as Chief Executive, the Board requested that
the Company Secretary arrange a comprehensive induction programme
for Patrick André. This recognised his prior employment withthe Group
as President, Flow Control and was therefore tailored to focus onthe
corporate aspects of his new role and the work of the other businessunits.

2. Reference materiols were provided, including information oboutthe
Board, its Committees, procedures for dealing in the Company's shares
and otherregulatory and gavernance matters. All aspects of risk and
its managementthrough insurence, compliance and relevant corporate
policies and procedures were covered. Patrickwas advised of hislegal
and other duties, and obligations as a Director of alisted company.
These matters werediscussed in detail in a series of meetings conducted
by internal management cnd external advisers.

[

. Patrick held one-ro-one meetingswith all other Boord members, and
conducted meetings with key executives throughout the Group, including
regular meetings and jeintsite and customer visits with the outgeing
Chief Executive. He alsoheld a week of off-site meetings withthe Group
Executive Committee to strengthen the relationship with his newteam and
focus anthe erganisational structure of the key functions of the Group.

£

. Since hisappointment Patrick has been undertaking a comprehensive
programme of site visits, with aview o visiting all the Group's key R&D
ond manufecturing focilities.

w

. Patrick has met with the Group's principal advisers, the Company's brokers
andinvestor community, using this as an opportunity 1o understond their
roles and the corporate governance environment in greater detail.

o~

. The Board monitored the induction process, and asked the Company
Secretaryto provide updates onits progress.

Performance Evaluation

The Board carries out an evaluation of its performance and that
of its Committees every year. In 2077, this evaluation took place
inthe fourth quarter and was again externclly facilitated by

the corporate advisory firm, Lintstock. The Group subscribes

to access Lintstock’s Insider databose, but has no other
connection with the organisation. This year's evaluation utilised
afresh approach. Rather than conducting the evaluation via
aseries of questionnaires, this year Lintstock issued a short
questionnaire and then conducted a series of in-depth interviews
with each Director and the Company Secretary aimed at
analysing and gaining further insight into their responses.
Aswith previous years, the evaluation not only covered the
performance of the Board but also that of its Committess,
along with individual reviews of each DRirector and analysis of
the perfermance of the Chairman. A narrative repart, broken
downinte thematic areas, was then presentedfo the Beard.

The 2076 evaluation had highlighted several prictities for 2017,
includingstrategy and Beard succession, and had also
identified areas for ongoing improvement, including greater
effortsto support the development of staff members below
senior management level, As part of the 2017 evaluation, the
Boord assessed that the Nomination Committee had dealt
successfully with Board succession during the year, securing
an excellent new Non-executive Director, and identifying an
accoemplished candidate to replace Frangois Wanecq as Chief
Executive. Overall, the Board felt that the transition of Chief
Executive had been effecrively managed. The development
of stoff members below senior mancgement level continued
during 2017 and remains a focus for 2018, with new training
programmes implemented, and continuing initiatives in place
to ensure greater Board access ro these individuals,

Regarding priorities far 2018, the evaluation highlighted the
need to continue to suppart the integration of the new Chief
Executive, toensure he establishes effective working relatienships
with members of the Board and senior management, and is
supported in formulating and implementing his objectives
forthe Group. The Board noted there would be an ongoing
emphasis on strategy, and recognising the increasing corporate
governance focus on stakehelder communication, the Board
would needto continue to develop plans to interact with
stakeholders and oversee the culture of the Group. The evaluation
also identified a consistent theme regarding personal
development plans. It was agreed that the Board would focus
onthis during ifs oversight of senior management. In respect of
its own activities, individual Non-executive Directars would be
encouraged to continue undertaking site visits to operations
throughout the Group.

On more practical matters, there was a continuing need to
improve Board processes, with the refinement of Board packs,
and the promotion of consistency in Board presentations.
Asin previous years, a set of action points was compiled from
the ocutput of the evaluation fo ensure that its findings are
implemented into the Board's activities, Thisis supervised by
the Chairman and reviewed throughout the year.

The Chairman noted that, overall, the evaluation had concluded
that the Board remained of @ high calibre and was functioning
well, with open debate and good information flow. The individual
assessment of Directors concluded that all continued to contribute
effectively, devoting adequate time to their duties and being
engaged and prooctive in debate ot all meetings. Each of the
Committees was considered to have operated effectively during
the year, with recognition that the Remuneration Committee
had everseen the successful implementation of the new
Remuneration Pelicy, the Audit Committee had overseen the
smooth transition in external auditor, and the Normination
Committee had undertaken two praductive rounds of recruitment.

Appointment and Replacement of Directors

Board membership should not be fewer than five nor more
than 15 Directors, save that the Company may, by ordinary
resolution, from fime fo time, vary this minimum and/or
maximum number of Directors. Directers may be cppointed
by ordincry resolution or by the Board. A Director appointed by
the Board must retire from office at the first Annual Genera!



Meeting (AGM') ofter his/her appointment. A Director who
retires inthis way is then eligible for reappointment. The Beard
may appoint one or more Directors to any executive office,

on such terms and for such period as it thinks fit, and it can also
terminate or vary such an appointment at any time. The Articles
specifythat, atevery AGM, any Director who has been appotnted
by the Vesuvius Board since the lust AGM and any Director who
held office at the time of the two preceding AGMs and who did
not retire at either of them, shall retire from office. However, in
accordance with the requirements of the Code, allthe Directors
will offer themselves for election or re-election af this year's
AGM. The biographical details of the Directors offering
themselves for election and re-election, including details of
their other directorships and relevant skills and experience,

will be set out in the 2018 Nofice of AGM. The bicgraphical
details of the Directors are alsc set out on pages 50 and 57.

The Board believes that each of the current Directors is
effective and dernonstrates commitment to his or her respective
role, Accordingly, the Board recommends that shareholders
approve the resclutions to be proposed at the 2018 AGM
relating o the re-election of all the Directors then standing.

Directors’ Conflicts of Interest

The Board has established a formal system 1o authorise
situations where a Director has an interest that conflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company (situationai
conflicts). Directors declare situational conflicts so that they can
be considered for authorisation by the non-conflicted Directors.
in considering asituational conflict, these Directors actin the
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woy they consider would be most likely to promote the success
of the Company, and may impose limits or conditicns when
giving authorisation or subsequently if they think thisis
appropriate. The Company Secretary records the consideration
of any conflict and records any authaerisations grented.

The Board believes that the approach it has in place for
reporting situational conflicts continues to operate effectively.
No situctional conflicts wera brought to the Beard for
authorisation during the year under review.

Board Accountability

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and
maintaining a system of risk management and internal control,
and for reviewing its effectiveness. This systemis designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks facing the Group and
safeguard its assets. No systern of internal control can provide
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group's system is designed to provide the Directors with
reasonable assurance that problems are identified on a timely
basis and are dealt with appropriately.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control,
including financial, cperotional and compliance controls, and
risk management systems. The key features of the Group's
system of internal centrol are set outin the table below.

Risk Management and Internal Control-Key Features

Strategy and >

financial reparting > Annual budget approved by the Board

Comprehensive strategic planning and forecasting process

> Manthly aperatingfinancial information reported againstbudget

> Keytrends ond variances analysed and actionteken as appropriate

Vesuvius GAAP >

Accounting policies ond procedures formulated and disseminoted to all Group operations

> Caversthe application of accounting standards, the maintenance of accounting records and key financicl control procedures

Qperationalcontrols >
business enviranment

Operating companies end corporate offices maintain internal controls and procedures appropriateto their structure and

> Compliance with Group policieson iterns such as authorisation of capital expenditure, treasury transactions, the management of
intellectucl property andlagal/regulotory issues

> Use of commonaccounting palicies and procedures and financicl reporting software used in financial reporting and consolidation

> Significant financing ond investment decisions reserved to the Board

> Monitoring of policy end control mechanisms for managing treasury risk by the Board

Continuous process for identifying, evaluatingand managing any significont risks
Risk management process designed toidentify the key risks facing eachbusiness

Risk assessment >
and management \

> Reports madetothe Board on howthese risks are manoged

> Eachmajor Group business unit produces arisk moptoidentify key risks, ossess the likelihood of risks oceurring, theirimpactond

mitigating actions

> Top-down riskidentification undertcken atGroup Executive Committee and Board meetings

> Board review of insurance and other measures used in managing risks across the Group

» TheBeoerdisnotified of mojor issues and rmakes an annuat assessment of how risks have changed

» Ongoing ossurance processes by the Legalfunctionand Internal Auditincluding the annual certification process

> Externallysupported“Speak Up® whistleblowing line
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Reviewing the Effectiveness of Risk Management
and Internal Control

Theinterncl contral system covers the Group as a whole, and
is monitored and supported by the Group's Internal Audit
function, which conducts reviews of Vesuvius' businesses and
reports chjectively both on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the systemn of internal control and on those businesses'
compliance with Group policies and procedures. The Audit
Committee receives reports from the Group Head of Internal
Auditand reports to the Board on the results of its review.

As part of the Board's process for reviewing the effectivenass
of the system of internal control, it delegates certain matters
to the Audit Committee.

Following the Audit Committee's review of internal financial
controls and of the processes covering other contrels, the Board
annually evaluates the resulis of the internal control and risk
management procedures conducted by senior management.
Thisincludes a self-certification exercise by which senior
financial, operational and functional management certify

the compliance throughout the year of the areas under their
responsibility with the Group's policies and procedures and

highlight any material issues that have occurred during the year.

Sincethe date of this review, there have been no significant
changesininternal controls or other mattersidentified which
could sigrificantly affect them.

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, the Directors
confirm thatthey hove carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks focing the Company, including those that
threaten its business model, future performance, sclvency
or liquidity, They have also reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's system of internal contrel and confirm that the
necessary actions have been taken to remedy any control
weaknesses identified during the year.

The Group's principal risks and how they are being managed
or mitigated are detailed on pages 24 and 25, and the Viability
Statement which considers the Group's future prospectsis
detailed on page 23. Risk management and internsl contral

is discussed in greater detail in the Audit Committee report.

The Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are set out on page 85.
The Audit Committea report which describes the Audit
Committee’s work in discharging its responsibilities, is set
outonpages 85to 92

Executive Compensation and Risk

Al of the independent Non-executive Directors serve on

both the Audit and Remuneration Committees. They therefore
bring their experience and knowledge of the activities of

each Committee 1o bear when considering criticol areas of
judgement. This means that, for example, the Directors ore
ableto consider carefully the impact of incentive arrangements
onthe Group's risk profile and to ensure that the Group's
Remuneration Policy and programme are structured fo align
with the long-term objectives and risk appetite of the Company.

Share Capital and Voting

Disclosure of the information regarding share capital, the
authorisation received by Directars atthe AGM regarding the
issue of shares and the authority to purchase own shares, is
contained on page 118 within the Directors' Report. There are
no restrictions en veting contained inthe Company’s Articles of
Association. Further details are set out in the Directors' Report
onpage 119.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board is commifted to communicating with shareholders
and other stakeholders in a clear and open manner, and seeks
to ensure effective engagement through the Company's
regular communications, the AGM and other investor relations
activities. The Company undertakes an ongoing programme
of meetings with investors, which is managed by the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer. The majarity of
meetings with investors are led by them. Following the
announcement of his appointment as Chief Executive, Patrick
André accompanied Guy Young and Frangois Wanecqg on the
investor roadshows conducted to communicate the half-year
results. Since farmally taking up his Chief Executive position,
Patrick has been continuing to meet with investors, attending
investor conferences and meeting with market analysts.

In advance of the 2017 AGM, we wrate to our largest
shareholders inviting discussion on any questions they might
like to raise and making the Chairmen of the Boord, the Audit
Committea and the Remuneration Committee availakle to
meet shareholders should they so wish, In 2017, other than
oneinstitutional shareholder, no requests for discussions were
received from shareholders follawing this communication.
The Chairman, Senior Independent Director and Committee
Chairmen remain available for discussion with shareholders
throughout the year on matters undear their arecs of
responsibility, either through contacting the Company
Secretary or directly atthe AGM,

The Compuny reports its financial results to shareholders twice
ayear, with the publication of its annual and half-year financial
reports. In addition, to maintain transparency in performance,
it alsoissued two scheduled troding updates during 2017,

One was published immediately priorto the 2017 AGM on

10 May 2017, and the second was published on 14 November
2017, In conjunction with these announcements, presentations
orteleconference calls were held by the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer with institutional investors and analysts.

All Directors are expected to attend the Company's AGM,
providing shoreholders with the cpportunity 1o question them
about issues relating to the Group, either during the meeting or
informally afterwards.



Audit Committee

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to present the
Audit Committee Report for 2017. The Committee works largely
to arecurring and structured pregramme of activities which
are defined in an annual raliing Audit Committee timetable.
Additional items are then added and the Committee agendais
modified asthe year progresses, to accommodate new topics
and prierities. Significant non-stondard items that required
Committee focus during the year were the appointment of

the new external guditor and updating of the Internal Audir
reporting process. The Committee also continued its review of
'deap dive' topics during the year, covering defined benefit
pension schemes and cyber security.

Following the completion of the forma! audit tender in 2016,
and the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {Pw(C?)
in May 2017, the Committee oversow the seamnless transition of
the externcl audit from KPMG LLP to PwC during the year. PwC
followed a detailed trensition plan, focused on gaining a good
understanding of the Group and establishing contact with key
management and local personnel. The Committee received
reqular updates on progress ageinst this plan and benefited
from Pw{('s insights info the Group's risk contro! framework as
they conducted their initial meetings and reviews,

Curing the year, the approach to internal audit was updated 1o
allow for clearer focus ot the Audit Committee on key control
issues, albeit thatthe cverall scope and coverage of the annual
Internal Audit plan remained as broad as in previous years.
Internal audits are nowidentified by separate designotions—
Compliance & Control (C&C), or Effectiveness & Efficiency
(‘E&E"). C&C audit activities focus entirely oninternal financial
centrol and key Board compliance issues, with the E&E audits
examining a broader constituency of business performance
issues. The Audit Committee receives detailed feedback on
any issues identified in C&C audit activity, and more general
oversight of the results of E&E audir activity. The larrer highlight
broader performance issues identified by the Internal Audit
team for management response and remediation.

The Audit Committee Report describes the work of the
Committee during the year including its role in monitoring

the infegrity of the Company’s financial statements and the
effecriveness of theinternal ond external audit processes.

It provides an overview of the significant issues the Committee
has considered during the year ond its motericl judgements.

It also describes how the Committee fulfilled its responsibilities
fo assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control, including financial, operational ond
compliance controls, and risk management systems.

Yours sincerely

Douglas Hurt Chairman, Audit Committee

Committee Members

Douglas Hurt {Committee Chairman)
Hock Goh

Jane Hinkley

Holly Koeppel {appointed on 3 April 2017)

The Audit Committee

The Audit Commiitee comprises all the independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, who bring o wide range
of financial and commercial expertisa to the Committee's
decision-making and evaluation processes. Douglas Hurt is
the Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, having been appointed to these roles by the Board
following the 2015 AGM. He was the Finance Director of IM1 plc
for nine years prior to that and has warked invarious financial
roles throughout his career. Douglas is also Chairman of the
Audit Committees of Countryside Properties PLC and Tate &
Lyle plc, and o Chartered Accountant. This background
provides him with the recent and relevant financial experience’
required under the Code, The Company Secretaryis Secretary
to the Committee.

The Code and Finencia! Conduct Authority Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules also contain requirements
for the Audit Committee as a whole to have competence
relevant to the sector in which the Company operates.
Vesuvius' Non-executive Directors have significant breadth
of experience and depth of knowledge on mattersrelated to
Vesuvius' operations, both from their previous roles and from
their induction and other activities since joining the Board of
Vesuvius. The Directors’ biographies on pages 50 and 51 outline
their range of multinational businass-to-business experience
and expertise in fields including engineering, manufacturing,
services and logistics as well as financial and commercial
acumnen. The Board therefora considers that the Audit
Committee as o whole has competence relevant 1o Vesuvius'
business sector.

Meetings

The Committee met five times during 2017. The Committee has
also met twice since the end of the financial year and prior to
the signing of this Annual Report. The Board Chairman, the
non-independent Non-executive Director, the Chief Executive,
the Chief Financial Cfficer, the Group Financial Controller, the
Head of Infernal Audit and the external auditor were all invited
to each meeting. Other management stoff were also invited to
attend as appropriate. In preparation for their tenure as the
new external auditor, PwC attended Audit Committee meetings
prior ta their formal appointment by shareholders ot the

2017 AGM.

In February 2017, the Audit Committee held o preliminary
meeting on year-end issues in advance of the finalisation of
the financial statements in early March, This approach was
judged to be effective and hos been integroted info the Audit
Committee schedule going forward.
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Audit Committee meetings are conducted to promote an open
debate, to challenge constructively significant accounting
judgements, fo provide guidance and oversight to mancgement
to ensure that the business maintains an appropriately robust
control environment and to provide informed advice to the
Board an financial matters. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee encourages open dialogue between the external
auditors, the management team and the Head of Internal Audit
between Audit Committee meetings to ensure that emerging
issues are addressed in atimely manner.

During the year, as is the Audit Committee’s established
practice, the Committee members met and discussed business
and control matters with senior monagement during sife visits,
informal meetings and Board presentations. The Committee
also met privately with the Head of Internal Audit, and the
external auditor without any executives prasent.

The outcomes of Audit Committee meetings were reportedto
the Board and all members of the Board received the agenda,
papers and minutes of the Committee.

Role and Responsibilities

The main role and responsibilities of the Committee continue to
heto:

> Manitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group, and any formal announcements
relatingtothe Group's financial performance, informing the
Board of the outcome of the audit

> Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Group's internal
financial controls and the Group's internal control and risk
management sysiems

v

Establish cnd review procedures for detecting fraud, systems
and controls for the prevention of bribery and cversee the
Company's arrangements for employees to roise concerns
about possible wrongdoing in financial reperting or other
matters

Moniter and review the effectiveness of the Company's
Internal Audit functicn

v

v

Make recommendations to the Board on the appeintment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditar

Monitor and review the external auditor’s independence,
objectivity and effectiveness, taking into consideration any
non-audit services provided, and the relevant UK
professional and regulatory requirements

v

> Toke account of the findings and conclusions of any FRC
audit inspection undertaken, when monitoring the
performance of the audit

The Cormmittee cperates under formal terms of reference
approved by the Board, which were reviewad during the year.
They are available inthe Investors/Corporate Governance
section of the Compony's website, www.vesuvius.com.

Within these terms, the Committes and its individual members
are empowered fo obiain outside legal or other independent
professional advice af the cost of the Company, These powers
were not utilised during the year. The Committee may also
secure the attendance at its meetings of any employee or other
parties with relevant experience and expertise should it be
considered necessary.

Activitiesin 2017

1. TheCommittee's agendo cavered the usual standing items~thereview
of financialresults, the effectiveness of the Groupsinternol financiof
controls, ond the review of the internal control and risk monagement
systems—~aswell osnon-stondard items, including oversight of the
transition of the externalavditfrom KPMG to PwC.

. The Audit Committee continued to devote time to ensure that initiatives
to mitigate potential risks and financial exposure remained robust and
appropriate, The Committea challenged the adequocy of inventory and
receivables provisions, the assumed growth rates and discount rates used
for assetimpairment assessments, as well as the accounting for and
presentation of the Group-wide restructuring progromme undertaken
inresponsetothe chollenging conditions within our end-morkets.

o

3. The Committee considered the Company’s going concernstatement and
challengedthe nature, quantum and ossessment of the significont risks
tothe business model, future perfermance, sclvercy and liquidity of the
Group that were modelled as part of the scencries and stress testing
undertoken to supportthe Viability Stotement made by the Componyin
the 2016 Accounts. The 2017 Viability Staternant, which was also critically
reviewed, is contained within the Strategic Reportand can be found on
page 23.

4. The Committee monitored the resourcing and delivery of the 2017 Internal
Audit plan ond approved the 2018 Internal Audit plan. The Committee
monitored both the responses from and follow-up by management to
Internal Audit recommendations arising during the year and, where
necessary, the Committee tasked monagement to verify their successful
closure within defined timascales.

5. The Committee examined specificaudit issues such ostaxmatters,
including the judgemenssinherent inthe partial recognition of deferrad
tax assets for US foxlosses and undertock ‘deep dive'reviews of cyber
security and the Group's defined benefit pension arrongernents.

6. The Committee considered the impact of new accounting standards
including IFRS 2 Financialinstrurments and [FRS 75 Revenue from
confrocts with customers—and reviewead the implermentaticon plan for
theseinthe 2018 financial yeor. Based on an assessment of these
stondards, the Group daes not believe there willbe a significantimpact
onits Graup Financial Statements.

The Committee members believe that they received sufficient,
relevant and reliable information throughout the year from
management and the external auditor to enable the Committee
to fully discharge its responsibilities. The work of the Audit
Committee is further elaberated inthe paragraphs below.

Statement of compliance with the Competition and
Markets Authority ({CMA"} Order

The Committee considers that the Company has complied with
The Statutory Audit Sarvices for Large Companies Marker
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2074 (Article 7.1),
published by the CMA on 26 September 2014, including with
respectto the Audit Committee’s responsibilities for agreaing
the audit scope and fees and authorising non-audit services.



Financial Reporting

The Committee fulfilled its primary responsibility to review

the integrity of the 2017 half-year and 2017 annual financial
statements and recommended their approval to the Board.
The Committee also reviewed the two trading updates released
during the year.

Informing its views, the Committee assessed:

> The quolity, occeptobility ond consistency of the occounting
policies and practices

v

The clarity and consistency of the disclosures, including
compliance with relevant financial reporting standards and
other reporting requirements

> Significant issues where managementjudgements and/or
estimates had been made that were material o the reporting
or where discussions had token place with the external
quditorin arriving of the judgement or estimate

v

In relation to the overall Annual Report, whether the Annual
Report and Accounts taken as o whole was fair, balanced and
understandable, taking into consideration allthe information
available to the Committes

> The application of the FRC's guidance on clear and concise
reporting

> The disclosure and presentation of alternative performance
rmeasures, in view of the new guidance from the European
Securities and Markets Association

The Committee actively deliberated and challenged reports
fram the Chief Financial Officer and Group Financial Controller.
These were well prepared and, for areas of judgement and/or
estimation, set out the rationale for the accounting treatment
and disclosures, and the pertinent assumptions and the
sensitivities of the estimates to changes in the assumptions.

PwC also delivered memoranda for the half-year and year-end,
stating their views on the treatment of significant issues. PwC
praovided o summary for each issue, including its assessment

of the prudence of management’s judgements or estimates.
The Committee considered the overall level of prudence applied
this year, compared this with the prior year and concluded that it
remained unchanged.

Significant Issues and Material Judgements

The Committee considered the following significant issuesin
the cantext of the 2017 financial statements. It considered
these areas to be significant foking into account the level

of materiality and the degree of judgement exercised by
management. The Committee resolved that the judgements
and estimates made on each of the sigrificant issues detailed
belowwere appropriate and acceptable.

Income Tax

Income tax remains ¢ complex area where significant
judgements are required to estimate both uncertain tax
liabilities and the value of deferred tax assets.

The Committee challenged the assumptions used to arrive at
the £34.3m (20164: 34.9m) provided forincome tax payable
whichincludes £23.2m (2016: £24.5m) for uncertain tax
provisions as set out in Note 10.5. After discussions with internal
tax experts und censidering the results of recent tax audits and
the views of the external auditors, the Committee concurred
with management's judgement.

Atthe end of 2017, the Group recognised a US deferred tax
assetof £32.6m (2016: £65.9m). The Group has significant
additional tax losses and other temporary differences in the

US and elsewhere which have not been recognised, which are
kept under review. The recognition of deferred tax assets for
tax losses and other tempoerary differencesis a highly technical
areaand the Committee has drawn oninternal experts to
understand the tfreatment, The future prospects for US
praofitability were carefully modelled by management and
challenged by the Committes, s was the impact of the
significant tax reform announced in fate December 2017 inthe
LS Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA). The Committee particularly
noted that this reform had a material impact on the Group's
deferred tax position, and of itself caused a write-down in
Vesuvius' LS deferred tax asset of £25.7m which, in addition to
other normal movements in the year and exchange revaluation,
resulted in the significant decrease in the value of this asset in
2017, The Committee also noted that, as thereis uncertainty in
how some of the provisions of TCJA will operate, subsequent
guidance issued by US Treasury may impact Vesuvius' reported
tax position. The Committee reviewed the Group'’s prejections
for trading in the US which had improved in 2017, and
concurred with management that the US forecast profits are
considered sufficient ta sustain the deferred tax asset in the

US ctthe end of 2017,

Other Provisions

The Committee has been made aware of @ number of potential
exposures and claims arising from ongaeing litigation, product
quality issues, employee disputes, restructuring, environmenial
mafters, onerous leases, indirect tax disputes and indemnities
or warranties outstanding for disposed businesses. Due to

the long gestation period before settlement can be reached,
provisioning for these items requires careful judgement in

order to estcblish a reosonable estimate of future liobilities.
The Committee also assessed the strength of any insurance
coverage for certain of these liabilities and challenged the
accounting freatment for any amounts deemed to be
recoverable from insurers, Subsequent to this challenge, certain
insured liabilities have been represented inthe balance sheet
on a gross basis. After due consideration and challenge, with
expert advice sought in certain areas, the Committee is satisfied
that there are appropriate levels of provisions set aside to settle
third-party claims ond disputes (Note 32) and that adequate
disclosure has been made under International Accounting
Standards (JAS) 1 (parogroph 129) in respect of estimation
unceriainties that might impact the accounts in the following
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financial year. Where the outcome of an existing issue is
uncertain, or where no reliable estimate of the potential ability
can be made, no provision has been made and appropriate
disclosure is included under contingent ligbilities (Nete 34).

Restructuring Charges

The Group restructuring programme continued in 2077 in
response to the structural changes in the end-markets that we
serve. The Committee critically reviewed the treatment of the
restructuring costs disclosed as separately reporteditemsin
2077 ond concluded thot these hove been treated consistently
with the accounting policy. This ensures that only significant
restructuring progrommes that have a defined scope and are
materialin nature are reported separately, which encbles the
reader more clearly to understand the underlying resulis of
the Group.

Impairment of Intangible Assets

The year-end carrying valve of goodwill of £643.2m was tested
agoinstthe current and planned performance of the Staef
and Foundry cash-generating units {CGUs). The Committee
challenged both the determination of the relevant CGUs, the
planned and terminal growth assumptions as well as the
discount rates used in the assessments and the relfevant
sensifivities that were evaluated. The detailed assumptions,
provided in Note 17, reflect both a reduction in global risk-free
rates offset by the impact of the increasing contribution from
the Group's operations in emerging markets,

The Committee considered the Board-approved medium-rerm
business plans, the range of industry longer-term projections
and expert views on discount rates. Given that the models
indicated thar there remains significant headroom between the
value in use and the carrying value, the Committee concurred
that no goodwill impairment charges wera required.

Working Capital Provisions

The Committee challenged the level of provisions held cgainst
both receivables and irventeries (Netes 18 and 19) and,

after reviewing ageing analyses, regional analyses and
specific customer accounts, concluded that the provisions
held were appropriate.

Pensions

Determining the current volue of the Group's future pension
obligations requires a number of assumptions. The
appropriateness of assumptions used {described in Note 28)
was questioned by the Committee, as small changes inthe
assumptions could have material effects and bond yields in
particular have been volatile. The assumptions made by
management for each of the majer schemes were compared
by PwC with other similar schemes. The Committee agreed
the reasonableness of the assumptions.

Fair, Balanced and Understandable Reporting

The Committee considered all the information available to

it in reviewing the overall content of the Annucl Report and
Accounts and the process by which it was compiled and
reviewed, to enable it o provide advice to the Board that the
Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable. Indeing
so, the Committee ensured that time was again dedicated to
the drafting and review process so that internal linkages were
identified and consistency was tested. The Committee
welcomed the attention that had been paid inthe 20717 Annual
Report to explain further the strategy, markets, execution
priorities ond business model of the Group. Drafts of the Annual
Report and Accounts were also reviewed by a senior executive
nat directly involved in the year-end process who reported to the
Committee on his impressions of clarity, comprehensiveness,
balance and disclosure in the document. On completion of the
process, the Committee was satisfied that it could recommend
to the Board that the Annual Report and Accounts is fair,
balanced and undersfandable.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

As highlighted in the reviews of strategy and principal risks in the
Strategic Report, risk management is inherent in management's
thinking and is embedded in the business planning processes of
the Group. The Board has overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining a system of risk management and internal
control, andfor reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group's system of internal control, incduding finandial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
systemns. This framewaork is consistent with the Code.

As part of its review of the Group’s principal risks and
uncertainties, the Committee supported the Board inits review
of risksin 2017. As in previcus years, c bottom-up mapping of
the risks was constructed and reviewed in each major business
unit, delivering a risk register thar was then reviewed by the
Head of Internal Audit, to deliver a coordinated picture of the
key operaticnal risks identified by the business, In conjunction
with this, ¢l the mernbers of the Committee and the Board
contributed their individuol views of top-down strategic risks
facingthe Groug into this process —drawing on the bread
commercial and financial experience gained both inside and
outside the Group. This information was colloted by the Heod
of Internal Audit into a paper for discussion in the context of
the Group's identified principal risks. This was reviewed and
discussed at the Board, and, taking note of the Board's
comments, subseguently by the Group Executive Committee.
In monitoring the overall process, Committee members also
fully parficipated in the Board review of existing risks and
ongoing mitigating actions. The Committee defermined that
this approach once ogain enhanced the Group's process for
identifying and understanding the Group's principal risks

and uncertainties, which are set out on pages 24 and 25.

The Committee continues to consider that this process is robust
and eppropriate.



The Committee considerad the Company's going concern
statement and challenged the nature, quantum and
combination of the unlikely but significant risks to the business
model, future performance, sclvency and liguidity of the Group
that were modelled as part of the scenarios and stress testing
undartcken to support the Viability Statement. As part of this
review, the Committee considered the Group's forecast funding
position over the next three years and analysed the impact of
various scenarios based upon pertinent key risks foced by the
Group and with reference to the Group's debit cavenants,

The scenarios considered the impact of multiplerisks occurring
simultanecusly and additional mitigating actions that the
Group could take. The Committee noted that the Group's debt
profile had improved interms of maturity with the completion of
anew placement of €100m USPP Notes, and that the resultant
debt headroom was sufficient ta accommodate the medelled
stress scenarios. As aresult of their review, the Committee was
satisfied that the going concern and Viability Statements had
been prepared on an appropriate basis. The 2017 going
concern staternent is contained in the Directors Report on
page 117 and the 2017 Viability Statement is contained within
the Strategic Report and can be found on page 23.

The Committee also maintains @ programme of in-depth
reviews into specific financial, cperational and regulatory areas
for the business. These reviews ollow the Committee to meet
with the business colleagues responsible for these areas and
goin greater in-depth understanding about key areas for the
Group. In 2017, the Committee undertcok 'deep dive' reviews

of pensions and cyber security. The former provided the
Committee with a detailed overview of the Group's principal
liabilities under defined benefit schemes and the steps that were
being taken fo manage these, noting that de-risking roadmaps
are in place for each of the funds. The cyber review covered the
assessment of the Group's cyber security risks, the operation of
the Group's Cyber Security Steering Committee and the actions
thatr were being taken throughout the organisation to improve
cyber security. It was noted that improvements had been seen
inoverall cyber awareness following two successful training
carpaigns and that plans were in place to allocate additional
resources fo cyber security during 2018.

In addition, the Committee reviewed the draft UK Tax Strategy
disclosure, noting that this had been prepared for publication
on the Group's website in line with statutory requirements,

and recommended that it be approved by the Board.

The key features of the Group'sinternal control system,

which provides assurance on the accuracy and reliability of

the Group's financial reporting are detailed in the Governance
Report on page 83. During 2017, the Committee considered

the process by which mancgement evaluates internal controls
across the Group. The Head of Internal Audit provided the
Committee with @ summary overview of the ossurance provided
by the Group's centrol framework and the testing of these
centrols. PwC also reviewed controls in the businesses within the
scope of its audit. This review indicated on appropriate control
environment, with identifiad improvement actions under careful
management by the Group.
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The Group is made up of severailarge operating units, but
also many small units in geographically diverse locations.
Cansequently, segregation of duties, averlapping access
controls on systems and remote management oversight can
give rise to control vulnerabilities and fraud opportunities.
The Group has not adopted a cormmon Enterprise Resource
Planning system as a Group-wide standard. Over time,
management infends to move to more sharing of services,
enabled by process and systems standardisation between
businesses. This is likely to improve the overallinternal controls
in the smaller cperating units.

The Group undertakes a range of activities to mitigate the risk
of fraud. This framework is reqularly reviewed to determine
areas for improvement. In assessing the effectiveness of the
Group's internal contrels, the Cormmittee considered the following
initiatives which had been implemented over the past two years:

> The publication of a revised Group authority matrix to
emphasise a clear assignment of responsibilities
and authorities

> A confinued focus by regional finance directors and the
central finance team on balance sheet recenciliations;

> The ongoing review by Internal Audit of the separation of
duties and access rights at operating entities, to ensure that no
one perscnis in sole contro! of all aspects of any transaction,
o mitigate the risk of fraud

> An updated employee vetting process for prospective senior
employees in higher-risk countries

> Ongoing internal communications en the heightened risk
of social-engineering fraud, coupled with increased cyber
security training fe raise awareness of the use of malware

> The formation of a cyber security working group, to focus
on enhancing the Group's resilience to cyber risks

Eliminating the risk of fraud remains one of the key areas of
focus for Internal Audit, forming a fundamental part of ‘full
scope’ and financial audits. These assess the quality of the
balance sheet reconciliation, review key judgement mafters,
consider ERP access rights, review tenders and guotations,
review the entity's controls over master data changes, and
controls over payments and associated applications.

During 2017 the Group confinued its review of third-party
representatives and intermedicries. This included detailed due
diligence for active sales agents ond, where required, updates
to the contractual basis on which these agents are engaged.
The review will be extended to other third-party representatives
and intermedicries during 2018. The Committee confinued its
assessment of the Group's potential exposureto bribery and
corruption risks, noting the ongoing work conducted by the
Group in this context, such as face-to-face visits fo operations,
providing focused, country-specific training and reviewing
financial records, sometimes with the assistance of external
advisers. The output of these processas and previous risk
assessments continue to be used fo deveiop Group policies and
pracedures for the menagement of anti-bribery and corruption
risk, reflecting an appropriate level of cantrol far the business.
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Audit Committee continued

The Committee continues to monitor and oversee procedures
regarding allegations of improper behaviour and employae
complaints. Further details of the operation of the Group's
Speak-Up policy and helpline can be found in the 'Our
Principles’ section. Throughout the year the Audit Committee
received updates on the volume of reports, key themes emerging
from these reports and the results of investigations undertaken.

Each year the senior financial, operational and functional
management of the businesses self-certify compliance with
Group policies and procedures for the areas of the business
under their responsibility and confirm the existence of adequate
internal control systems throughout the year, The Committee
reviews any exceptions noted in this bottom-up exercise,

After considering these various inputs, the Committee was
able to provide assurance to the Board on the effectiveness
of internal financial contral within the Group, and onthe
adeguacy of the Group's brooder internal control systems.

Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit function operates on a global basis
through professionally qualified and experienced individual
members located around the world, including an auditor with
specialist IT knowledge, They report to the Head of Internc]
Audit, based in London, whoin turn reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

During theyear the approach to interncl audit was updated,
with audit activities subdivided into two different categories:
Compliance & Control {C&C), and Effectiveness & Efficiency
(E&E). C&C audit activities focus entirely on internal financial
control and key Board complicnce issues, whereas the E&E
audit activities examine a breader constituency of business
performance issues. Characterising the audit process in this way
enables the Audit Commitfee fo concantrate more specifically
on key control issues for resolution, with reporting focused on
C&C audit activity, and mere general commentary provided
onthe outcome of E&E audit activities. The detailed cutcomes
of E&E audits are then used to engage management onthe
broader performance issues identified by the Internal Audit
team. During the year, the frequency of meetings between the
Head of Internal Audit and the Business Unit Presidents was
also increased, to ensure that engagement on the resclution
of issues is clearly understood at all levels of the business and
responsibility for remediation taken accordingly.

The Committee received, considered and approved the 2017
Internal Audit plan which was constructed using a risk-based
approach to cover the Group's controf environment. The plan
was based on the premise thot ofl operating units are internally
audited atleast once n every three-year period, whilst
maintaining a focus onsmaller operating units. A third of
operating units are now subject to internal audit twice in every
three-year period, and Internal Audit annually cudits each

of the large operating entities located in Germany, the US,
China, Mexice and Brazil. During the year the Committee also

considered and approved changes to the Infernal Audit plan as
required, These changes meant that the Internal Audit coverage
was greater than in previous years and audits were carried cut
with more in-deprh analysis across legal entities and operating
units. In addition, in 2017 many project-based reviews were

also undertaken.

In 2017, a total of 56 cudit assignments, including three
unplanned audits, were undertaken by Internal Audit, covering
65% of the Group's revenue and 60% of the Group's profit
before tax. The Committee received a 'dashboard’ from the
Head of Internal Audit at each of its meetings, detailing
progress against the agreed plan and identifying key trends
and findings frem Internal Audit reports, along with progress on
the resolution of actions agreed. Common themes emerging
from Internal Audit reports were discussed and these
discussions have infermed the compilation of the 2018 Internal
Audit plan. When necessary Internal Audit uses external
outsourced auditors to supplement internal Audit on an ad-hoc
basis. The cutsourcing process provides valuable learning
opportunities and we expect to continue to use outsourcing
inspecialist areas and geographies in the future. Where control
issues or other problems are flagged by the fieldwork, they are
recorded in a live web-based database into which management
and operational entities are required ta report progress
ogainst audit exceptions. Inthis way, Internal Audit monitors
the progress and adequacy of the remediation steps taken.
Additionally, regular meetings are held with ecch business unit
President to discuss the progress against high-priority issues.
Consequently, the Committee has oversight of appropriate and
timely acticns faken by the responsible management. The Audit
Committee also involved senior management as necessary to
provide an update against high-priority actions and Internal
Audit provided follow-up reviews as required, to ensure that
there was clarity on the responsibility for delivery of solutions to
the audit findings. In situations where audit findings required
longer-term solutions, the Committee oversaw the process for
ensuring that adequate mitigation actions were taken while
permanent solutions are pursued.

During the year, o review was undertaken of the effectiveness
of the Internal Audit function. The review, which canvassed the
views of Non-executive Directors and senior management,
confirmed that the Internal Auditfunction continued fo operate
to a high stondard, with a goed understanding of the business
and an apprepriate scope. Respondents noted the high degree
of energy, professionalism and independence exhibited by the
function, and welcomed the steps that had been taken to
improve the interfaca with the management of each of the
business units.

Having considered the work of the Internal Audit function
during 2017, including progress against the 2017 Internal
Audit plan, the quality of reports provided to the Committee,
and the results of the review of the function's effectiveness,
the Committee concluded that the Internal Audit function
operated effectively during 2017



External Audit

Auditor Appointment

In 2016, the Committee undertook a tender process to

oppoint a new statutory auditar for the financial year ending

31 December 2017. The tender culminated in the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'Pw(’) as external auditor
and the appointment of Mazars LLP to qudit the non-material
enfities within the Group. As aresult, KPMG concluded its tenure
as the Group's external auditor during the year and, further to
the approval of the Company's shareholders ot the 2017 AGM,
PwC was appointed as the Group's external cuditor for the year
ending 31 December 2017. PwC nominated Julian Jenkins as
the audit partner responsible for the Group audit. In line with the
regulations on auditor rotation, the external audit contract will
be put out to tender at least every ten years. In oddition, PwC
will be required to retate the audit partner every five years.

Auditor Transition and 2017 Audit Plan

PwC’s transition plan focused on exiting the non-audit services
that PwC previded to the Group, and working with people from
across the business to build on their understanding of the Group
and refine the planned approach to the audit. Key elements of
the transition plan included: meeting with senior mancgement,
local managernent, key functional heads and wider business
stakehaolders to gain insight into the business; meeting with
KPM®G and performing o detailed review of their working papers;
attending Committee meetings priorto the formal appointment;
undertaking a risk cssessment to identify significant and
elevated aqudit risks; and farmuleting and communicating a
detailed audit plan. During the year PwC provided regular
updates to the Commitfee on the status and progress of the
auditar transition plon, and valuable insights info the Group's
audit environment from the results of their review.

InFebruary 2018, the Audir Committee held a preliminary
meeting onyear-end issues in advance of the finalisation of

the financial statements in early March. During the year, private
sessians were held with PwC without management being
present, covering reporting and control issues inthe context of
the resourcing of the Group Finance tecm. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee met on a number of cccasions with PwC to
monitor the progress of the cudit ond discuss questions as they
arose, The strength of the finance teams across the Group was
also considered. Inthese sessions PwC confirmed that its work
had not been constrained in any way and that it was able to
exercise appropriate professional scepticism and challenge
througheut the oudit process.

The Independent Auditors' Report provided by PwC on pages
124 16129 includes PwC's ossessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the accounts. These risk areas are discussed
inthe significant issues and material judgements comments
above. The report alsa summarises the scope, coverage and
materiality levels applied by PwC inits audit. As part of the audit
planning process and based on o detailed risk assessment, the
Committee agreed a materiality figure of £7.6m for Group
financial reporting purposes which is higher than last year
(£4.0m) and, in line with similar groups, is set at 5% of headline

profit before taxof £152.9m. Importantly, much lower levels of
materiolity ore used in the oudit fieldwork on the individuo!
businesses across the Group and these lower figures drive the
scope and depth of audit work. Any misstatement at or above
£0.4m was reported to the Committee.

There were no significant changesthis year to the coverage of
the audit which stood at 68% of the Group's revenue and 76% of
headlire profit before tax. This coveroge was considered o be
sufficient by the Committee. The audit coverage is reflective

of the long tail of smaller businesses within the Group that
individually are not ‘material to the Group result.

The PwC audit fee approved by the Audit Committes was
£1.3m. This was constructed bottom-up on a local currency
basis ond was assessed in light of the audit work required by the
agreed materiality level and scope. It was agreed as part of the
audit tender process and updated for changesin scope that
were required during the year. The fee approved by Mazars for
the audit of the non-matertal entities was £0.4m, resulting in a
combined fee with Pw(C of £1.7m, compared to £2.0m paid to
KPMG LLPin 2016. The reduction in fee follows from the tender
and the utilisotion of two audit firms. The Committee noted the
ruling by the Securities Exchange Board of India regarding the
prohibition placed on PwC network companies performing
oudits of listed entities for two years from 1 January 2018. The
Committee is watching developments on this motter carefully in
the conrext of the Group's two listed Indian subsidiaries Foseco
India Limited and Vesuvius India Limited.

Independence and Objectivity

The Committee is responsible for safequarding the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors in
orderto ensure the integrity of the external audit process. In
discharging this respensikility during 2017, the Committee:

> Sought regular confirmation from the incumbent external
auditor that it considered itself to be independent of the
Company in its own professional judgement, and within
the context of applicable professional standards

v

Evaluoted allthe relationships between the external quditor
and the Group, including compliance with the Group's policy
cnthe employment of former employees of the external
audior, to determine whether these impaired, or appear to
impair, the auditor's independence

> Reviewed compliance against the policy on the provision of
non-audit services by the external auditor

> Reviewed details of the non-audit services provided by the
external auditor and associated fees

The Committee noted that, in Sweden, a non-permitted service
had been performed by PwC during the transition process,
being supporting compliance in respect of payroll faxes. Given
the de minimis nature of the fee incurred and balances invoived,
the Committee concluded that the conduct of this work had not
affected PwC'sindependence.

As aresult of its review the Committee concluded that PwC
remained appropriately independent.

9
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Audit Committee continued

Nen-audit Services

Vesuvius operates a policy for the approval of non-audit
services. This was revised in 2016, with the new policy applying
to the audit of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 ond
for financial years thereafter. A copy is available to view on the
"Investors/Corporate Governance'section of the Company's
website, www.vesuvius.com. Group companies are not
permitted to use the external auditor for any “prohibited
non-audit services” as specified by the UK Financial Reporting
Council's (FRC's) Revised Ethical Standard 2016, unless subject
to a permitted derogotion. The restrictions broadly prohibit
external auditors’ involvernent in tax services, any services
thatinvolve playing a part in management decision-making,
preparing accounting records, designing or implementing
internal control/risk management services or financial systems,
certain HR services and ather legal, investment and share-
dealing services. The external auditer can be invited to provide
non-audit services which, in its position as external auditor, it
mustor is best placed to undertake and which da notimpact
auditor abjectivity or independence. All audit-related and
permissible non-qudit services proposed to be carried out for
any Group company worldwide by the external auditor must be
pre-appraved by the Chief Financial Officer, who thereafter
will refer matters to be further approved by the Chairman of
the Audit Committee or the full Audit Committee before an
engagement is agreed. Any assignment proposad to be carried
out by the external auditor must also have cleared the external
auditor's own infernal pre-approval process fo confirmthe
firm’s ethical ability to do the work.

In practice, the Group did not seek to engage PwC for non-audit
services during 2017 unless there were compelling advantages
todoing so.1n 2017, the fees for non-audit services payable to
PwC amounted to £0.1m, similar to the non-audit fees of £0.1m
payable to KPMG LLP last year. The 2017 feesrepresent payment
for assurance services related to the review of the Company's
half-year financial statements and quarterly reviews and tax
accounts in Indig (required by regulation), Tax compliance ond
other non-audit services were for the previcusly mentioned
Swedish service, and the transition of expatriate tax services to
the new outsourced provider.

Effectiveness and Reappointment of PwC for 2018

The Committee and the Board are committed to maintaining
the high quality ofthe external audir process. Throughout the
year the Committee assessed the performance of the external
auditor, faking into consideration:

> The quality of reports provided fo the Commitfee, and the
quality of issues and challenges raised with the Commitree
and with management across the Group

> Thelevel of insight exhibited in the feedback they provided
as part of the transition process

> Management's assessment of the transition process
> Their definition and completion of the 2017 audit plan

> Their performance during their review of the 2017 half
year results

> The effectiveness of their relationship with the Committee,
with monagement and with Internal Audit

> Feedback from the Chief Financial Officer and Group
Financial Controller on the quality of local audirteams

The Committee also considered the FRC's Audit Qualiry
Inspection of PwC publishedin June 2017

A process to formally assess PwC's performance in respect
of the 2017 financial year will be completed following the
completion of their year-end work, toking account of the
guidance for audit committees prepared by the FRC. As part
of this review, PwC will be osked to identify any issues they
consider could pose a risk to audit quality.

In an initial cssessment of Pw('s performance during their first
year of audit, the Committee concluded that PwC had provided
an effective audit for 2017. They had exhibited a good
understanding of the Group's businesses and internal control
environment (based on a significant process of engogement
with the business as part of audit transition) and had provided
sound feedback to the Committee on the product of their
transition work. They had established effective working
relationships with the Committee and with management, and
had exhibited an cppropricte level of professional scepticism
and robust challenge of management's judgements as
appropriate. The Committee has therefore recommended to
the Board that PwC be reappointed for 2018, It confirms that its
recommendaticn is free from the influence of any third party
and thot there are no contractual restrictions on the choice of
auvditor. A resolution proposing the reappeintment of PwCis
included in the notice of AGM for 2018.

Audit Committee Evaluation

The Audit Committee’s performance was evalucted as part

of the overall externally fociitated Board and Committes
performance evaluation, which is described in depth on page
82. The performance of the Committee was rated highly, with
its oversight seen to be of a very high standard. A number of
areas of focus had been identified by the 2016 evaluation and it
was felt that these had all been managed effectively in 2017.
The transition of the external auditor had pregrassed smocthly
and the institution by the Audit Committee Chairman of more
regular meetings with management outside formal Committee
meetings had enhanced the flow of information with the
Committee. The 'deep dive’ initiative had once again proved
useful in providing the Committee with detailed information

on key topics and would be continued in 2018, and the
implementation of an additional Audit Committee meeting
early inthe year end cycle had been positively received, and
weuld be continued.

On behalf of the Audit Committee
Douglas Hurt Chairman, Audit Committee
28 February 2018



Nomination Committee

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Nomination Committee, | am pleased to
present the Nomination Committee Report for 2077.

The primary responsibility of the Nomination Committeeis to
focus on Beard succession planning to ensure that the Board is
made up of individuals with the appropriate drive, abilities and
experience to lead the Company in the delivery of its strategy.
In 2017 the Committee presided over the appointment of a new
Chief Executive os part of a planned succession process for
Frangois Wanecq, who retired from his role as Chief Executive at
the end of August 2017. We also appointed a new independent
Non-executive Director, Holly Koeppel, in April 2017, who
sirengthens the Board in terms of its knewledge, skills and
experience, replacing Nelda Connors who stepped down

from the Boardinlate 2016.

The Committee reviews the current and future needs of the
Beard and its Committees on an angeing basis. In line with this,
during 2017, the Committee reviewed the tenure of allofthe
Directors and discussed future Board rotation.

Inadditon, as part of the annual corporate governance

review conducted ecch year, the Committee examines the
independence of the Board and the balance of skills, and
development needs, of Board members. The output from this
process was used to define the recruitment requirements for the
new Directors, with each then having a job specification drawn
up fotarget the attributes required.

The Committee’s succession planning activities do not
exclusively relate fo the Board, but also encompass the

senior management levelsimmediately below the Board.

The Committee is working to support and encourage the
grewth of a consistent pool of tulent able to step up to the top
roles in future years. The oversight of senior management
succession planning ond talent development will be a key area
for emphasis in 2018.

During 2017 the Board formalised its approach to diversity,
and cpproved o Board Diversity Policy. Inline with this, the
Committee continues to cansider the mix of skills, experience
and knowledge required on the Board, and to promote diversity
not only on the Board but also throughout the wider business.

Yours sincerely

John McDonough CBE Chairman

Committee Members

JohnMcDonough CBE (Committee Chairman)
Christer Gardell

Hock Goh

Jane Hinkley

Douglas Hurt

Holly Koeppel (appointed 3 April 2017)

The Nomination Committee

The Noemination Committee is made up of myself as Chairman
of the Company and any three of the Non-executive Directors.
During the year | continued as Chairman of the Committee,
though | would not act as Chairman if the Committee was
considering the appointment of my successor, in that case, the
Chairmen would be an appropriate Non-executive Director.
The Company Secretary is Secretary to the Commitiee.
Members’' biographies are set out on pages 30 and 51.

Key Activities during the Year

> Completion of Chief Executive recruitment: The Committee
completed the Chief Executive succession process which
culminated in the selection and recommended appointment
of Patrick André as Chief Executive, succeeding Frangois
Wanecq on his retirement from the Company

> Non-executive appeointment: The Committee led the search
for a new Non-executive Director resulting in the selection
ond recommended appcintment of Holly Koeppel

> Board composition: The Committee reviewed the skills,
knowledge and experience required for the Board to
continue to function effectively, and evaluated the current
Board composition against an assessrment of these future
business needs

> Board succession: The Comriftee reviewed the ongoing
requirements for Board rotation to maintain the correct skiils,
experience and diversity ot Board leve!

v

Directors  elections: The Committee considered the Directors'
annual re-election at the 2017 AGM

Committee evaluation: The Committee reviewed its
performance and effectiveness during 2017

v

Role and Respensibilities

The Nomination Committee’s foremaost priarities are to ensure
that the Compuany has the best possible leadership, maintains

a clear plan for orderly Executive and Non-executive Director
succession, and cultivates the appropriate skills, experience and
diversity in the Board's overall composition. Its primary focus is
therefore on the strength of the Board, for which appointments
are made on merit, against objective criteria, selecting the best
candidate for the post. The Nomination Committee advises the
Board on oppoiniments, retirements and resignations from the
Board and its Committees.
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Nomination Committee continued

The Committee operates under formalterms of reference
which were reviewed and confirmed during the year.

The terms of reference are available on the Group's website
WWW.VESUYIUS.cCOm.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain
outsidelegal or other independent professional advice at the
cost of the Company in relation 1o its deliberations. These rights
were not exercised during the year. The Committee may also
secure the affendance at its meetings of any employee or ather
parties it considers necessary.

Process for Board Appointments

The Committee follows formal, rigerous and fransparent
procedures for the appointment of new Directors, When
considering a Board appointment, the Nomination Committes
draws up a specification for the role, taking info consideration
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of its existing
members, the diversity of the Board, the independence of
continuing Board members, and the ongoing requirements and
onficipated strategic developments of the Group. The search
process is then able to focus on appeinting a candidate with
the necessary attributes to enhance the Board's performance.
The Committee uses the services of search firms fo identify
appropriate candidates, ensuring that any selected firmis not
inany way conflicted inthe delivery of its role. In addition, the
Committee wil only use these firms that have adopred the
Voluntary Code of Conduct addressing gender diversity and
best practice in search assignments.

During 2017, the Committee oversaw a selection process to
identify a new Chief Executive to succeed Frangois Wanecq
on his retirement from the Compuony, ond the ongoing search
for a new Non-executive Director, following Nelda Connors'
retirement from the Board in 2016. The Committee reviewed
the skills and artributes required for each role, and agreed
individual job specifications. The Committee utilised the
services of specialist recruitment agencies to search for suitable
condidates — Korn Ferry fo identify prospective candidates
for the Chief Executive rale, and Spencer Stuart to search for
anew Non-executive Director. Both agencies have adopted
the Voluntary Code of Conduct, ond neither have any

other connecticn with the Group other than in respect of
managemenit recruitment work undertaken during normal
trading activities. Each agency was selected for their
assignment following a review of potential agencies based
on their skills, expertise and price.

Chief Executive

As part of the Groug's ongeing senior management succession
planning processes, a detailed independent review of internal
candidates was undertaken, to consider candidates for
succession to the role of Chief Executive, with these individuals
identified as potentiol candidates fully integrated by Korn Ferry
into the search process. The Nomination Committee alsc

engaged external assistance to benchmark the skills and
experience required for the Chief Executive rale, defining the
issues fundamental to the Vesuvius role, given the Group's
business, scale, geographical diversity, performance and
the stage of its development. The search was conducted
glebally and along-list of potential appointees was produced,
including external, interncl, international and female
candidates. The Committee reviewed the long-tistand a
shortlist of candidates for interview was drawn up for the
role, based upon the objective criteriaidentified ot inception.
The Chairman, and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee interviewed an initial short-list of candidates,
with ashorter list of candidates then interviewed by the
Senior Independent Director and again by the Chairman.
Thetwo final preferred candidates then met with all the
other Board members. Finally, detailed external references
were taken up and following this the Committee made formal
recommendationstothe Beard for the appointment of
Patrick André as the new Chief Executive. Patrick André was
supported in undertaking due diligence on the Company

in areas not connected to his previous role as President

Flow Control.

Non-executive Direcfor

The search was conducted globally and a long-list of potential
appeintees was produced by Spencer Stuart. The Committee
reviewed the long-fist and @ short-list of candidates forinterview
was drawn up, based upon the objective criteria identified at
inception. The Chairman and the Chief Executive interviewed
the short listed candidates, and the preferred candidate then
met with all other Board members, Detailed external references
were taken up and, following this, the Committee made a
formal recommendation to the Board for the appointment of
Holly Koeppel as a new Non-executive Director. Holly Keeppel
was supported in undertaking her own due diligence on the
Company and meeting with its advisers. She was also required
to demonstrate that she had sufficient time available fo devote
to the rale and fo identify any potential conflicts of interest. Na
conflicts were identified.

Following their appeintment, the Committee has continued to
monitor the development and integration onto the Board of the
two new Direcfors. Holly Koeppel and Patrick André both
undertook a full induction programme and have continued to
gain insight inte the business and meet executives throughout
the organisation.

Board Composition

On an ongeing basis, the Committee reviews the current and
future needs of the Board and its Committees—reflecting on
the balance of skills and experience of current Directors,

and comparing this against the Board's list of key skiiis.

The Committee also considers existing lengths of tenure and
the prospective rotation and retirement of Board members, so
that it can plan accordingly. As part of the annual corporate



governance review conducted during the year, the Committee
examined the independence of the Board and the balance of
skills, and development needs of Board members, Based on
this analysis in 2016, the Committee concluded that the Board
would benefit from the appeintment of a new Non-executive
Director with expert knowledge of the industrial secter, together
with a high degree of commercial acumen and globel markets
knowledge. The Non-executive Director search identified
above was commenced on this basis. In addition, the
Nomination Committee considered the future neads of the
business, its corporate strategy, cutture and direction in
assessing its requirements of a new Chief Executive and used
this analysis to inform the recruitment process. The Committee
recognised that the business needed an individual who had

a praven track record of enhanced strategic thinking and
managing complexity, who also excelled ot managing and
developing relationships with a cross-section of pecple.

Diversity

All Directors hava served ot a very senior level in global |
organisations, have international experience across a variety of
industries, and most have spent a considerable amount of time
resident outside the UK, The Nomination Committee believes
that diversity underpins the successful operation of the Board.

It recognises that this is a key ingredient in creating a balanced
culture for discussions and minimising ‘group-think’, and
confinues with its policy to review the requirements for different
skills, experience, backgreund ond gender in respect of the
Board's composition. During the year, the Board formalised its
approach to diversity, and approved a Board Diversity Policy,
details of which are set out on page 80. The Committee will
continue to consider the mix of skills, experience and knowledge
required on the Board, and promote diversity notonly on the
Board but also throughout the wider business.

Senior Management Succession

During the year, the Committee's succassion planning activities
did nat exclusively relate to the Board, but continued to
encompass the senior management levels immediately below
the Board, aiming to support and encourage the growth of a
consistent pool of talent able to step up to the top roles in future
years. Consequently, the Committee continued to menitor the
execution of development plans for the Group Executive
Committee and supported the Board in understanding the
process for the development of high petentials throughout

the business. The Board met key executives throughout the
Group to gain a greater understanding of the breadth and
depth of management ralent. This process included a series of
presentations to the Beard by business unit, functional and
geographical heads providing the basis for a more informed
approach to executive succession planning and talent
development across the Group. Asidentified by the Board
evaluation process, the oversight of senior management
succession planning will be o key area for emphasis in 2018.
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Committee Evaluation

The Committee's activities were part of the externally facilirared
evaluation of Board effectiveness during the year. The Committee
was considered to have performed effectively over the past
year and the oversight of the Chief Executive successicn process
was commented onfavourably. Priorities for the Committee
going forward include Beard rotation over thelonger term,

as well as succession planning and talent development for
senicr management.

On behalf of the Nomination Committes
John McDonough CBE Chairman, Nomination Committee
28 February 2018
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Directors' Remuneration Report

Remuneration Overview

Dearshareholder, In 2017, our retranslated .heudline EPS of 39.1p was above the
On behalf of the Remunaration Committee. | am oleased fo maximum Annual Incentive target of 35.6p. The Group's 2017

acent the Directors’ R ation R :rf 2817 hich cash conversion of 104% was between the threshold of 0% and
prT i Efr 'Ilre?’rhe emuner dotr: De'porf or. ZO:I;V ch h the target of 105%. This results in awards of 75% and 11.38% of
f:e?r:;l;ndi;;;?aﬁy ou?g::;:;ecﬁoz P;r[:; i?wr;gl 5 Thiir:ep;: baose salary respectively, being 86.38% intotal for the current
will be subjectto an advisory shareholder vote at the 2018 Execu‘ra_wi/g)lrecfor; Patrick A?d}:e c;_nd G L.Jy]You?g, and for
AGM. In 2017, Shareholders approved a new Remuneration Frangois Wanecq, in respect of the financial performance
Polic lforfh é}rou ¥ h np o de orior fo the 2020 metrics. In addition, we assessed each Executive Director's
Acé‘ My then Tehe CorrF?n-porrlm)O/\ifillljngx’rsnzr:dn:gfor?nrgl; ’?cb!z o cempletion of the personal objectives they were set for 2017,

s . Pl o, 0,

Remuneration Policy at that meeting. All payments received (:e\:g;ci;?\?e:\:;?;::f:;;iﬁ:::::%;:rf;:;;dz;E/jir/]"d
by Directorsin 2017 were in line with our Remuneration Policy. Mr Warnecd 15.00%. As a result, the overall Annual Incentive

I have set ouf d(_afcils below of the kgy decisions mode l:_;y the payable o Mr André for 2017 is 106.03% of base salary
Committee during 2017. More details about these are included (pro- di Fhi : wve Di
i~ the Anfual Report on Direciars Remuneration, pro-rated inrespect of his service as an Executive Director),
" P Mr Young 102.13% of base salary, and MrWanecq 101.38%

. of base salary against maximum bonus opportunities of 125%.
Performance in 2017 In addition, Mr André received an Annual Incentive payout
As described inthe Strategic Report, 2017 was a year of of 65.04% of his pro-rated bose salary for 2017, out of o
goad progress for the Group with revenue growth of 20.2% maximum bonus opportunity of 80%, in respect of his fenure
outperforming end markets and the global steel market. os President, Flow Control prior to his appointment as Chief
Despite experiencing headwinds reiated to rising raw matericl Executive. MrWanecq received an Annual Incentive payout
prices and inter-company imports required by Flow Confrolin of 106.38% of his pro-rated base salary for the period of
Eurcpe, the Group saw a 24.2% increase in reported trading service from 1 September 2017 10 31 December 2017, when
profif, with cash generation remaining strong. Throughoutthe  hehad ceased to be a Director but remained as an employee
year, the Group remained focused on its strategic priorities of the Group.
cncj mgde_good progress W!Th the rEZ'STrUCTurmg pregramme The performance period for the awards made under the
dellverm.g increased annualised savings, sirong progressin Vesuvius Share Plan in 2015 matured at the end of December
developing markets and further investment in R&D. 2017. Performance was measured equally by reference to Total
In 2017, Annual Incentive awards for the Executive Directors Shareholder Return (TSR) relative to the FTSE 250 {excluding
were based 60% on Group headline earnings pershare (EPS), investment trusts) and headline EPS growth above compound
20% on the Group's cash conversion {defined asoperating cash  annual GDP growth over the three-year period. Relative TSR
flow divided by trading profit) and 20% on specified personal performance was between median and upper quintile; asa
objectives. in arder to further align the interests of our Directors  result 27.1% of Performance Share awards will vest under the
with those of our shareholders, we introduced g reguirement TSR element (out of @ maximum 50%). The annual compound
inthe 2017 Remuneration Policy for deferral of a propertion headline EPS growth cbove GDP for the period was 4.3%.
(normally 33%) of the Annual Incentive into awards over shares  As aresult, 16.6% of Performance Share awards will vest under
for three years. Giventhe appointment partway through the EPS performance element {out of a maximum of 50%).

the year of a new Chief Executive, both Mr Wanecg's and
Mr André’s awards, as Chief Executives, were accordingly
pro-rated,

femereraton | O O O O O @ O

Allgnmenf Delivar growsh inoble ) instrongcash  Provideosofe Begtthe forefrontof  Runiop-quality, Foster tolant,
profitabilityand generatienond an working environment  innovatian cost-efficient skill and motivation
create shareholder efficient capital forour people and sustaingble inourpeople
vilue structure operations

Annual Incentive Plon. & ] ] < o

Vesuvius Shore Plan ] (/]



In confirming the vesting of the Performance Shares, the
Committee reviewed the underlying performance of the
Company to satisfy itself that the outcome was justified.
Awards will vestin April 2018.

Other Key Decisions made by the Committee
for 2017

Key decisions made by the Committeain 2017 included:

> Review, consideration and approval of an oppropriate
remuneration package for Patrick André, our new Chief
Executive. The principal features of his remuneration
package were anncunced ar the time of his appointment
andthey areincludedinthe applicable sections of this year's
Rernuneration Report.

> In conjunction with the transition of Chief Executive, the
Committee alsc considered the retirement arrangements for
Frangois Wanecqg. A summary of these arrangements was
included in the Secticn 430(2B) statement published on the
Company's website, ond details are elso included in this year's
Remuneration Report.

> The Remuneration Policy approved in 2017 states that, whilst
an individual's performance is reviewed annually, changes to
base salary are normally appraised over a two or three-year
period. In line with this policy, the Committee reviewed Guy
Young's salary in 2017. It was agreed that his selary should be
increased by 7.7% to £350,000 with effect from 1 January
2018. This is the first increase in Guy's salary since he joined
Vesuvius in 2015 and reflects the considerable diligence and
dedication he hasbrought to tha rele and his developmentin
it since the time of his appointment.

v

The Committee considered the structure of performance
rmeasures for incentives in 2018. Having reviewed the existing
arrangements, the Committee intends to use the same
framework for performance measures in 2018 that was used
in 2017 for Executive Directors' incentive awards, updating
one of the metrics fo reflect more effectively the strategic
demands of the business. Thus, these measures reward:

-~ Growth: through the EPS mecasure usedin the Annual
Incentive and the Vesuvius Share Plan—as in 2017

~ Effectiveworking capital management: through an
updated target of working capital to sales ratio (based
onthe 12-month moving average) to be used in the
Annual Incentive

— Delivery of shareholder value: through the TSR measure
used in the Veesuvius Share Plan—-asin 2017

> [naddition, the Committee also took decisions about the
grant and vesting of Share Plan awardsin 2017 and the
Annual Incentive Plan payments mada in 2017 in respect
of 2016.

Shareholders' Views

The Committee encouroges dialogue with its maojor
sharehclders. it is satisfied that the current Remuneration Policy
is designed to promote the long-term success of the Company,
and that the performance-related elements of remuneration,
which are kept under review, are transparent, stretching and
rigorously applied. The Committee was encouraged by the
significant support shown for the new Remuneration Policy
when it was tabled at the 2017 AGM (99% of votesin favour).

| remain keen to hear shareholders’ views on remunergtion
motters and Jook forward 1o an ongoing diclogue with
sharehelders and their continued support for our Directors’
Remuneration Report resclution at the AGM.

Yours sincerely
Jane Hinkley Chairman, Remuneration Committee

28 February 2018
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

The Company’s existing Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM held on 10 May 2017. The previous policy appliedin its
entirety up until this date and efter this date those elements of the previous policy thorrelated to remuneration that remained
extant on this date (such asoutstanding share awards} continued to apply until these commitments cease.

The full policy report, as approved by shareholders, can be found in the 2076 Annual Report {a copy of which is available under the
Reports tab in the ‘[nvestors' section of the Group website www.vesuvius.com). For the benefit of shareholders, we have reprinted
the Policy below. To ensure that the Policy is relevant to the 2018 financial year, we have mode minor textual changes to refer tothe
applicable financial year in the following sections: llustration of the Application of the Remuneration Palicy for 2018 (which also
contains, os described, 2017 data); and Consideration of Shareholder Views. We have amended the ‘Service contracts’section to
refer to the terms of the current Executive Directors and the “Terms of service’sectionto refer to the dates of appointment of the
current non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office {including
exercising any discretions available to it in connaction with such payments), notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy
set out here, where the terms of the payment were agreed; (i) before the dote the Company's first Rermnuneration Policy approved
by shareholders in accordance with section 439A of the Companies Act comeinto effect; (ii) before the policy set out here came
into effect, provided that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-approved Remuneration Policy inforce
at the time they were agreed; or (i) at a time when the relevant individval was not a Director of the Company and, in the opinion
of the Remuneration Committee, the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company.
For these purposes, payments’ includes the Remuneration Committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration and, in relation
to anaward over shares, the terms of the payment are ‘ogreed’ at the time the award is granted.

Remuneration Policy Table for Executive Directors

Base salary

Alignment/purpose Opportunity

Helps ta recruit and retain key employees. Salaryincreases will normally bein line with Inline with thetwo to three-year period for

Reflects the individuol's experience, role the averoge increase awcrded to other base salary appraisal, individual increases

and contribution within the Company. employeesinthe Group overasimilarperiod.  when paid arelikely to be in excess of those
. in considering any increase in base salary, fer thewider population of employees for

Cperation the Committee will alse consider: thatyear.

Theindividual's performanceis reviewed - )

annually, with chpongesto base salary () thercleand value of the individual; Eoecc,Sts'OIUITDE‘ mg)g:‘nbum hcslbe_e: Sce'rfor ,

normally appraised overa two fo three- . i [T X ve Lire 2ase salaries. Lurren
yoppP (i) chengesinjobscope orresponsibility; Executive Directors’salaries are sef cut inthe

ear period, ; -
yeare Annual Reporton Directors' Remuneration

(i) progressionin therole {e.g. fora new

Any change will normally be effective appointee); section of this Remuneration Report.
from 1 January inthe yecr of the increase. PP !
Bose salary is positioned fo be market {iv) a significantincreasein the scole of role Performance
COmpEfiTiVZ; W’I:en considered against other and/or size, value or complexity of the Anyincreasewill icke into acceunt the
global industrici companies, and relevant Group; and individual's performance, contribution
infernc_fionol ond FTSE 250 companies {v) the needtomaintainmarket and increasing experience.
(excfudlng Investment Trusts). compefitivenass.
Paid in cash, subject ta local tax endsocial
security regulations.
Other benefits
Alignment/purpose dependent children), life insurance, disability Opportunity
Provides normal market practice benefits. and heclthinsurance, together with There isnoformal maximum as benefit costs
relocation dllowance and expatriatebenefits,  canfluctuate depending onchangesin
Operation insome instonces grossed up for jox, in provider, costand individual circumstances.
Arange of standerd benefitsincluding, accordance with the Group's policies, and
but notlimited to: car allowance, private participationin any employee share scheme Performance
' operated by the Group. None

medical care {including spouse and



Pension

Alignment/purpose
Helpstorecruitand retain key employees.
Ensures income in retirement.

Annual Incentive

Alignment/purpose

Incentivises Executive Directorsto achieve
key short-term financial and strategic
targets of the Group.

Additional elignmentwith shareholders'
interests through the operation of
bonus deferral.

Operation

Normally 33% of any Annual Incentive
earned by Executive Directorswillbe
deferredinto awards over shares under

the Vesuvius Deferred Share Bonus Plan
which normolly vest after atteast three
years, other than in specified circumstances
outlined elsewhere in this Policy. These may
be cosh orshare settled.

Vesuvius Share Plan

Alignment/purpose
Flexible umbrella' plan.

Aligns Executive Directors’interests with
those of sharehelders through the delivery
of shares. Rewards Executive Directors
for achieving the strategic objectives of
growth inshareholder value and ecrnings.

Assists retention of Executive Directors
over athree-yeor performance period.
Operation

Awards may be granted as:

> Performance share awards

> Deferred share bonus owards

> Restricted shore owerds

> Market-price options

These may be cash or share settled.

Individugls are entitled to an cggregate
annualmaximum amount of awards.

if more than onetypeof award is granted,
theindividual |imiTE3rcll awardsis reduced
to remain within the maximurn.

Operation

An allowanceis given as a percentage of
base salary. This may be used to participate
in Vesuvius' pension arrangerments, invested
inown pensionarrangementsortakenasa
cash supplement (or any combination of the
above options).

The Commitfee has the discretion to
determine that actuc! incentive payments
should belower than levels calculated by
referenceto achievement againsttargets
ifitconsiders thisto be appropriate,

The Comrmittee has the discretionto
award participants the equivalentvalue
of dividends accrued during the vesfing
period on any shares that vest.

Subjectta malus ond clowback.

Opportunity
Below threshold: 0%.

On-target: 62.5% of base salary.
Maximum: 125% of base salary.

Payments made between thresheld
and on-targetand between on-target
and maximum are pro-rated.

Awards vest three years after their awaord
date, other than in specified circumstances
outlined elsewhere in this policy, subject to
the achievement of specitied conditions.

The Committee may decide that the shares in
respect of which an award vests ore delivered
to participants at that point or that awards
will then be subject to an additicnal holding
period befare participants are entitled tc
receive theirshares.

The Committes has the discretion to award
participantsthe eguivalent value of dividends
accrued during the vesting period onany
shares that vest.

Subjectto malus and clawback.

Opportunity

Executive Directors are eligible toreceive
an ennual aword with o face value of up
10 200% of base salary in Performance
share awards.

Vesting atthreshold performance is 25%
rising to vesting of the full award ot maximurm.

Opportunity
Maximum of 30% of base salary.

Performance
Nene

Performance

Annual Incentive is measured ontargets set ot
thebeginning of each year. The Commitree
establishes threshold and maximum
performonce targets foreach financial year.
The maicrity of the Annual Incentive will be
determinad by measure{s} of Greup financicl
performonce. The remainder of the Annual
Incentive will be based on finencicl, strategic
or operaticnal measures appropriate tothe
individual Director. Performonce is measured
over acne-year period. Actual performance
targets will be disclosed after the
performance period hasended. They are

not disclosed in odvance duete their
commercicl sensitivity.

Performance

Vesting of Performance Share awards is
vsuclly dependent on measures of Group
EPS and relative TSR with the precise
measures and weighting of the measures
determined by the Committee chead of each
award. These details are disclosed in the
Annual Report on Directors' Remuneration
section of this Remuneration Report.

The Company reserves therightonly to
disclose EPS performonce targets after the
performance period has ended, due tatheir
cormmercial sensitivity.

Pricr to any vesting, the Remuneration
Committee also reviews the underlying
financial perfarmance of the Company over
the performance period to ensure the vesting
is justified,
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Remuneration Policy continued

Molus/Clawback Arrangements

The Executive Directors' variable remuneration is subject fo
malus and clawback provisions. These provide the Committee
with the flexibility, if required, to withhold or recover payments
madete Executive Directors under the Annual Incentive Plan
(including deferred awards) and/or to withhold or recover share
awards granted to Executive Directors under the Vesuvius
Share Plan, including any dividends granted on such awards.
The circumstances in which the Committee could potentially
electto apply malus and clowback provisions include: a
material misstatement in the Company's financial statements;
an error inthe calculation of the extent of payment or vesting of
an incentive; gross misconduct by anindividual; or significant
financialloss or serious reputational damage to Vesuvius ple
resulting from an individual's conduct, a material failure of

risk management or a serious breach of health and safety.
These malus and clawback provisions apply for a period of

up tothree years after the end of a performance period

(or end of the deferral period in respect of deferred awards).

Performance Measures

In selecting performance measures for the Annual Incentive,
the Cornmittee seeks to reflect key strategic aims and the
need for a rigorous focus an financial performance. Eoch year
the Cornmittee agrees challenging targets tc ensure that
underperfarmance is not rewarded. The Company will not be
disclosing the specific financial or persanal objectives set untit
after the relevant performance period has ended because of
commercial sensitivities. The perscnal objectives are all
nen-financial or job-specific in nature and track performance
against key strategic, organisational and operational geals.

In selecting performance measures for the Vesuvius Share
Plan, the Committee seeks to focus Executive Directors on
the execution of long-term strategy and also align their
rewards with value created for shareholders. On this basis,
the performance conditions for the Vasuvius Performance
Share awards will usually be dependent on measures based
on TSR and EPS performance.

Within the pelicy period, the Committee will continually review
the performance measures used, including TSR and the
applicable comparator group, and EPS and other financiol
measures, to ensure that awards are made on the basis of
challenging targets that clearly support the achievement of
the Group's strategic aims.

The Committee may vary or waive any performance
condition(s) if circumstances cecur which cause it to determine
that the original condition(s) have ceased to be appropriate,
provided that any such variction orwaiver is fair, reasonable
and nat materiaily less difficult to satisfy than the original
condition (in its opinion). In the event that the Committee were
to make an adjustment of this sort, a full explanation would be
provided inthe next Remuneration Report.

The Committee may: (0) in the event of o variation of the
Cornpany's share copital, demerger, special dividend or any
other corporate event which it reasonably determines justifies
such an adjustment, adjust; and (b) amend the terms of
awards granted under the share schemes referred to above
in accordance with the rules of the relevant plans.

Share awards may be settled by the issue of new shares or

by the transfer of existing shares. In line with prevailing best
practice at the time this Policy Report was approved, any
issuance of new shares is limited to 5% of share capital over a
rolling ten-year period In relation to discreficnary employee
share schemes and 10% of share capital over arolling ten-year
period in relation 1o all employee share schemes.



lllustration of the Application of the Remuneration
Policy for 2018

The charts below show the total remuneration for Executive
Directors for 2018 for minimum, on-target and maximum
performance. The fixed elements of remuneration comprise
base salary, pension and other benefits, using 2018 salary data.
The assumptions onwhich they are calculated ore as follows:

Minimum: Fixed remuneration only.

On-target: Fixed remuneraiion plus on-target Annucl Incentive
(made at 62.5% of base salary for Patrick André and

Guy Young) and threshold vesting {i.e. medion performance
for TSR and threshold for EPS) for Performance Share awards
(made ot 200% of base salary for Patrick André and 150% of
base salary for Guy Young) under the Vesuvius Share Plan.

Maximum: Fixed remuneration plus maximum Annual incentive
(being full achievement of financial and personal targets, made
of 125% of bose sclory for Patrick André and Guy Young) and
100% vesting for Performance Share awards (made ot 200%
of base salary for Patrick André and 150% of base salary for
Guy Young) under the Vesuvius Share Plan.

Note: In addition the Committee retains the discretion to award dividends
{either shares or their cash equivalent) on any shares that vest.
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Service Contracts of Executive Directors

The Committee will periedically review the contractual terms
for new Executive Directors ta ensure these reflect best practice.
Service contracts currently operate on a rolling basis and are
limited to a 12-month notice period.

Patrick Andréis employed as Chief Executive of Vesuvius plc
pursuant to the terms of a service agreement made with
Vesuvius plc dated 17 July 2017, Guy Young is employed as
Chief Financial Officer pursuant to the terms of a service
ogreement with Vesuvius plc dated 16 September 2015,

Each Executive Director’s appointment is terminable by
Vesuvius on not less than 12 months' written notice, and by each
Executive Director on not less than six months' written notice.

External Appointments of Executive Directors

The Executive Directors do not currently serve as Non-executive
Directors of any other quoted company. Subject always to
consent being granted by the Company for them fo take up such
an appointrment, were they to so serve, the Company would
allow thermn to retain any fees they received for the performance
of their duties.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Remuneration Policy for Non-executive Directors

The Company secks to appoint Non-executive Directors who have relevant professional knowledge, and have gained experience
in arelevant industry and geographical sector, fo support diversity of expertise ar the Board and match the wide geographical
spread of the Company’s activities.

Non-executive Directors gttend Board, Committee and other meetings, held mainly in the UK, together with an annual strategy
review to debate the Company's strategic direction. All Non-executive Directors are expected 1o familiarise themselves with the
scale and scope of the Company's business and to maintain thelr specific technical skills and knowledge.

The Board sets the lavel of fees paid to the Non-executive Directors after considering the role and responsibilities of each Director
and the practice of other companies of asimilar size and international complexity. The Non-executive Directors do not participate
in Board discussions on their own remuneration, No variable remuneration is available to Non-executive Directors. Non-executive
Directors receive reimbursement of reasonakble expenses incurred in attending the Board, Committee and other ad hoc meetings,
including gross up payments to cover any personal tax owed on such expenses.

Fees
Alignment/purpose The Chairmanis paid a single fee and Basefeespeid ie Non-executive
Tocttract and retain Non-executive Directors  recgives odministrative support from Directorswillin aggregate remain within
ofthe necessory skilt ondexperience by the Compony. the aggregate limit stoted in our Arficles,
offering market-competitive fees. currently being £500,000.
Opportunity
Operation Non-executive Directersand the Chairman Performance
Fees are usually reviewed every other willbe paid market-appropricte fees, with None
year bythe Board. anyincrease reflecting chongesinthe market
or adjustmentsto a specific Non-executive
Non-executive Directors are paid abase Director'srole.
feeforthe performance of theirrole,
payableincash, plus additional fees for No eligibility for bonuses, retirement benefits
Commitiee chairmanship or acting as or to participate in the Group’s employee
the Senior Independent Director. share pians.

Benefits and expenses

Alignment/purpose Cperation Opportunity
Tofacilitate execution of responsibilities All Nan-executive Directors are reimbursed Non-executive Directors' expenses are
and duties required by the role. for reascnable expensesincurred in carrying paidin accordance with Vesuvius'
out their duties (including any personaltcx expense procedures.
owing on such expenses).
Performance
None

Terms of Service of the Chairman and other Non-executive Directors

The terms of service of the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors are contained in letters of appointment. Each Non-executive
Directer is appointed subject to their election at the Company's first Annual General Meeting following their appointment and
re-glection at subsequent Annual General Meetings. During the first year of his/her appointment, the Chairmanis entitled to

12 months' notice from the Company; thereafter, he/she is entitled to six months’ notice from the Company. None of the other
Non-executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office ot any time. All Non-executive Directors are subject
faretiremnent, and election orre-election, in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. The current policy is for
Non-executive Directors to serve on the Board for a maximum of nine years, with review at the end of three and six years,

subject always to mutual agreement and annual performance evaluation. The Board retains discretion to extend the tenure of
Non-axecutive Directors beyond this time, subject to the requirements of Board balance and independence being satisfied.
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The table below shows the date of appointment for each of the Non-executive Direciors:

Non-Executive Director

Cate of Appointment

John M¢ Donough CBE 31 October 2012
Christer Gardell 31 October 2012
Hock Gah 2 April 2015
Jane Hinkley 3 December 2012
Douglas Hurt 2 April 2015
Holly Koeppel 3 April 2017

Recruitment Policy

COn appointment or promotion of a new Executive Director,
the Committee will typically use the Remuneration Policy in
force at the time of the Committee’s decision to determine
ongoing remuneration.

Base salary levels will generally be set in accordance with the
Remuneration Policy current at the time of the Committee's
decision, taking into account the experience and calibre of the
appointee. If itis oppropriate to appoint anindividual on abase
salary initially below what is adjudged to be market positioning,
contingenton individual performance, the Committee retains
the discretion to realign bose salary over the one to three years
following appcintment, which may resultin a higher rate of
annualised increase than might otherwise be awarded under
the policy. If the Committee intends o rely on this discretion,

it will be noted in the first Remuneration Report fallowing
anindividual's appeintment. Other than in exceptional
circumstances, other elements of annual remuneraticn will,
typically, be setin fine with the Remuneration Policy including a
limit on awards under the Annual Incentive and Vesuvius Share
Plan of 325% of salory in aggregate. The Commitfee retains
the discretion to make the following further exceptions:

= Inthe event that on internal appoirtment is made, or where
a Director is appoeinted as a result of transfer into the Group
onan acquisition of another Company, the Commiftee
may confinue with existing remuneration provisions for this
individua!, including pensicn entitlernents, where apprepriate

v

If necessary and appropriate to secure the appeintment
of a candidate who has to move locations as aresult of the
appointment, whether internal ar external, the Committee
may make additicnal payments linked to relocation,
above those cutlined inthe policy table, and would
authorise the payment of a relocation allowance and
repatriation, as well as other associated international
mobility terms. Such benefits would be set at a level which
the Committee considers appropriate for the role and the
individual's circumstances

> If appropriate the Committee may apply different
performance measures cnd/or targets to a Director’s
firstincentive awards in his/her year of appointment

Service confracts will be entered into on terms similar to those
for the existing Executive Directors, summarised inthe ‘Service
contracts of Executive Directors' section above.

In addition to the annual remuneration elements noted above,
the Committee may consider buying cut terms, incentives and
any other compensation arrangements forfeited on leaving

a previous employer that an individual forfeits in accepting

an appointmant with Vesuvius. The Cornmittee will have the
authority to rely on Listing Rule 9.4.2R{2) or to apply the
existing limits within the Vesuvius Share Plan to make Restricted
Share awards on recruitment. In making any such awards,

the Committee will review the terms of any forfeited awards,
including, but notlimited to, vesting periods, the expected value
of such awards on vesting ond the likelihood of the performance
targets applicable to such awards being met, while retaining
the discretion to make ony buy-out award the Committee
determines is necessary and appropriate. The Committee may
also require the appeintee to purchase shares in Vesuvius to a
pre-agreed level prior to vesting of any such awards. The value
of any buy-out award will be capped, to ensure its maximum
valueis no higher than the value of the awards that the
individual forfeited en joining Vesuvius. Any such awards will

be subjectto malus and clowback.

With respect to the appointment of a new Chairman or
Non-executive Director, appointment terms will be consistent
with those applicable at the time the appointment is agreed.
Variable pay will not be considered. With respect fo
Non-executive Directors, fees will be consistent with the

policy at the time the appointment is agreed. If, in exceptional
circumstances, a Non-executive Director was asked to assume
an interim executive role, the Company retains the discretion
to pay them oppropriate executive compensation, in line

with the policy.

Exit Payment Policy

Vesuvius has the option to make o payment in lisu of part or all
of the required notice period for Executive Directors. Any such
payment in lieu will consist of the base salary, pension contributions
and value of benefits o which the Director would have been
entitled for the duration of the remaining notice period, net of
statutory deductions in each case. Half of any paymentsin lieu
of notice would be made in a lump surmn, the remainder in equal
monthlyinstalments commencing inthe month in which the
midpoint of their foregone notice period folls {ond are reduced
or extinguished by salary from any role undertaken by the
departing Executive in this time). Executive Directors are subject
to cerfain non-compete covenants for a peried of nine months,
and non-solicitation covencnts for a period of 12 manths,
following the termination of their employment. Their service
agreements are governed by English law,

2IUDLIDAOD) I
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Remuneration Policy continued

Executive Directors’ contracts do not contain any change of
control provisions; they do contain o duty to mitigate should
the Director find an alternative paid occupation in any period
during which the Company must otherwise pay compensation
on early termination.

Thetable below summarises how the awards under the
annual benus and Vesuvius Share Plan are typically treated

in different leaver scenarios and on a change of contrel.
Whilst the Committee retains overall discretion on determining
‘goad leaver' status, it typically defines a ‘good leaver’ in
circumstances such as refirement with agreement of the
Compeny, ill health, disability, death, redundancy, or part of
the business in which the individual is employed or engaged
ceasing to be partof the Group. Finaltreatment is subject to
the Committee's discretion.

Event Timing Calculation of vesting/payment

Annual Incentive Plan

Goodleaver Paid atthe sametime as to continuing Annual bonus is paid only to the extent

employees. that any performance conditions have bean

satisfied and is pro rated for the proportion
of the financial year worked before cessation
of employment.

Badleaver Net applicable. Individuals lose the right to their annual bonus.

Change of controf Paid onthe effective date of change Annual bonus is paid only to the extentthat

of control.

any perfarmance conditions have been
satisfied and is pro rated for the proportion
of the financial year worked.

Vesuvius Share Plan

Goodleaver

On normalvesting date (or earfier at
the Committee’s discretion).

Unvested awards vest to the extent that any
performance conditions have been satisfied
and a prorotareduction applies to the value
of the awards to take info aceountthe
proportion of vesting period not served, unless
the Committee decides thatthereductionin
the number of vested sharesisinappropricie.

Badleaver Unvested owardslopse.

Urwvested awerds lapse on cessation
of employment.

Change of control’ Onthedote of the event.

Unvested awards vestto the extent thatany
performance conditions have been satisfied
and a pro rata reduction applies for the
proportion of the vesting period not served.

Note:

1. In certain circumstances, the Committee may deterrnine that unvested awards under the Vesuvius Share Plan will not vest on a change of control but will insteed be replaced
by an equivalent grant of a new award, as determined by the Committes, in the new company.

Inthe case of the Vesuvius Deferred Share Bonus Plan if the
individual leaves for any reason (other than dismissal for cause}
orinthe event of a change in control, the deferred award will
vest in full, unless the Committee determines otherwise.

Benefits normally cease to be provided on the date emplayment
ends. However, the Committee has the discretion to allow some
minor benefits (such as health insurance, tax odvice and
repatriation expenses) to continue to be provided for a period
following cessation where thisis considered fair and reasenable
or appropriate on the basis of local market practice. In addition,
the Committee retains discretion to fund other expenses for the
Executive Director, for example, payments to meet legal fees
incurradin conmection with termination of employment, or to
meet the costs of providing outplacement support, and de
minimis termination costs up to £5,000 fo cover transfer of
mobile phone or other administrative expenses.

The Committee reserves the right to make any other
paymentsin connection with a Director's cessation of office or
employment where the payments are madein good faith in
discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages
for breach of such an obligation) or by way of @ compromise or
seftlermnent of any claim arising in connection with the cessation
of a Director's office or employment,

In certain circumstances, the Committee may approve new
contractual arrangements with departing Executive Directors
including (but notlimited to) settlement, confidentiality,
restrictive covenants and/or consultancy arrangements.
These would be used only where the Committee believed it
was in the best interests of the Company to dosa.



Comparison of Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors with that for other Employees

The Remuneration Pelicy Tor Executive Directors is designed

in line with the remuneration philosephy set outin this report
—which also underpins remuneration for the wider Group.
Remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors drowon
the sarne elements as those for other employees - base salary,
fixed benefits and retirement benefits—with performance-
related pay extending down into the management cadres and
beyond. However, given that remuneration structures for other
employees need to reflect both seniority and local market
practice, they differ from the policy for Executive Directors.

In particular, Executive Directors receive a higher proportion
of their remuneration in performance-related pay and
share-based payments. Individual percentages of fixed

versus variable remuneration and participation in share-based
structures decline as seniority decreases.

The process for delivering salary increases on atwo to
three-yecr cycle for Executive Directors is also applied to
other members of the Group Executive Committee and their
direct managerial reports. Whilst all employees receive an
annual performance appraisal, other employees continue to
receive salary reviews on an annual basis.

As with Executive Directors, middle and senior managers
participate in the Annual Incentive Plan. For members of the
Group Executive Committee and functional employees,

the award is predominantly based on Group performance,
with the remainder awarded against achievernent of personal
objectives. For operaticnal employees, any potential award

is bosed upon achieving three mecsures reloting 1o Group
performance, business unit performance, and individual
achievernent of personal objectives.

All members of the Group Executive Committee participate in
the Vesuvius Share Plan and receive awards of Performance
Shares, which vestin accordance with measures and targets set
against EPS and TSR. The level of awards granted to members
of the Group Executive Commitfee who don't serve onthe
Board are lower than those payable to the Executive Directors.

For certain senior and middle managers, awards are made
under the Vesuvius Medium Term Plan (MTP7), These managers
participate in the MTP at varying percentage levels, and
owards are bosed on the scme measures and targets as the
Annual Incentive Plan. Senier managers have their MTP awards
made over Vesuvius shares, whilst middle managers receive
their awards in cash. In each cose, awards are granted following
the end of the relevant financial year, The MTP share ewards
vest on the second anniversary of the date of grant, subject to
continuing employment.
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Consideration of Conditions elsewhere in the Group
in Developing Policy

The Cernpany does not consult directly with employees on
Executive Directors’ remuneration arrangements. However,
the Remuneration Committee wilitake inte account the pay
and employment conditions of other Group employees when
determining Executive Directors' remuneration, particularly
when determining base salary increases, whenthe Committee
will consider the salary increases for other Group employeesin
thesame jurisdiction.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

Vesuviusis committed to open and transparent dialogue with
its shareholders on remuneration as well s other governance
matters. As Chairman of the Committee, Jane Hinkley
welcomes shareholder engagement and is available for any
discussions investors wish to have on remuneration matters.
During 2017, remuneration matters were discussed atanumber
of meetings with investors. The feedback from such meetingsis
always shared with the Committee and taken into consideration
when decisions are made cbout future remuneration strategy
and arrangements,

Sharehelding Guidelines

The Remuneration Committee encourages Executive Directors
to build and hold @ shareholding in the Company. The required
holding of the Chief Executive is to be equivalentin value to at
least 2x salary ond that required of other Executive Directors
isto be equivalentin velueto at least Tx salary.

Complionce with the shareholding policy is tested at the end of
each year for applicationin the following year using the average
of the clesing prices of a Vesuvius ordinary share for the trading
doysin that December.

General

The Committee moy moke mincr amendments to the policy
set outin this Policy Report (for regulatory, exchange control,
tax or administrative purposes or fo take account of a change
in legislation) without obtaining shareholder approval for
thot amendment.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration Committee Structure

The current members of the Remuneration Committee are all
the independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee Chairman is Jane Hinkley. Jane Hinkley,

Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt have all served on the Committee
throughout 2017. Holly Kaeppel has served on the Committee
since her appointment to the Board on 3 April 2017. All continue
in office as at the date of this report. The Committee complies
with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
for the composition of remuneration committees. Each of the
members brings a broad experience of international businesses
and an understanding of their challenges to the work of the
Committee. The Company Secretary is Secretary to the
Committee. Members’ biographies are on pages 50 and 51.

Meetings

The Committee met five times during the year. The Group's
Chairman, Chief Executive and Chief Human Resources Officar
were invited to each meeting, together with Christer Gardell, cur
non-independent Non-executive Director, though none of them
participated in discussions regarding their own remuneration.

In addition, a representative from Deloitte, the Remuneration
Committee adviser, attended the majority of meetings and the
Chief Financiol Officer attended where the agenda of tha
meeting required it. The attendees supported the work of the
Committee, giving critical insight into the cperational demands
of the business and their application te the overali remuneration
strategy within the Group. In receiving views on remuneration
matters from the Executive Directors and senior management,
the Committee recognised the potential for conflicts of interest
to arise and considered the advice accordingly. The Chairman
of the Committee reported the outcomes of all meetings to

the Board.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference
which were reviewed during the year. The terms of reference
are available on the Group website www.vesuvius.com.

The Committea members are permitted to obtain outside

legal advice at the Company's expense in relation to their
deliberations. These powers were not exercised during the year.
The Committee may alsc secure the attendance at its meetings
of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Role and Responsibilities
The Committee is responsible for:

> Determining the overall remuneration policy for the Executive
Directors including the terms of their service agreements,
pension rights and compensation payments

> Setting the oppropriate remuneration for the Chairman,
the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary

> Recommending and monitoring the level and structure of
remuneration for senior management, being the first layer
of management below Board level and their direct reports

> QOverseeing the operation of the executive share incentive plans

Advice Provided to the Remuneration Committee

Deloitte is appointed directly by the Remuneration Committee
to provide advice on executive remuneration matters, including
remuneration structure and policy, updates on market practice
and trends, and guidance onthe implementation and operation
of share incentive plans. The Committee appointed Deloitte,
asignatory tothe Remuneration Consultants Group Code of
Conduct inrelation to Executive Remuneration Consulting in
the UK, following o formal tender process in 2014. Deloitte also
provides the Remuneration Committee with ongeing calculations
of total shareholder return (TSR) to enable the Commitiee to
monitor the performance of long-term share incentive plans.

In addition in 2017, withinthe wider Group, Deloitte was procured
in various [urisdictions to provide accounting and tax advisory
work. During 2017, Deloitte’s fees for advice to the Remuneration
Cornmittee, charged on a time spent basis, amounted ta £71,975.
The Committee conducted a review of the performance of
Deloitte as remuneration adviser during the year and concluded
that Deloitte continued to provide effective, objective and
independent advice to the Committee. No conflict of inferest arises
as a result of ather services provided by Deloitte to the Group.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee

The key matters the Remuneration Committee considered
during its five meetings in 2017 included:

> Considering, formulating and approving the remuneration
arrangements for the new Chief Executive

v

Agreeing the retirement arrangements for the outgoing
Chief Executive

> Considering and approving the 2018 salary review proposals
for the Chief Financial Officer and reviewing proposals for
senior management, as approgriate

> Reviewing and opproving achievement against performance
targets for the 2016 annual incentive arrangements

v

Setting performance targets and approving the structure of
the 2017 annualincenfive arrcngements

> Reviewing and ossessing the Company's attoinment of
performance conditions applicable to the Vesuvius
Perfarmance Share awards made in 2014

v

Sefting the performance measures and fargets, and
authorising the grant of new awards in 2017 under the
Vesuvius Share Plan and Medium Term Incentive Plan

> Considering the Compuany's ongoing share sourcing
requirements ta meet obligations under the Company's share
plans, and funding of the ESOP

v

Inthe light of advice received from the external advisers and
trends in remuneration practice and governance, discussing
the Company’s overall approach to executive remuneration
and reviewing whether any changes should be made

> Reviewing the Remuneration Committea’s terms of reference

> Approving the 2016 Directors' Remuneration Report and
reviewing the 2017 Directors’ Remuneration Report



Asin previous years, the Committee was the subject of an
externally mederated performance evaluation. The performance
of the Remuneration Committee was rated positively overall.
Several items had been identified in the 2016 eveluation, and it
was noted that these had been effectively managedin 2077,
with, In particulay, the Committee gaining greater insight info
the remuneration arrangements for employees below the senior
management tier and global remuneration policies. Going
forward, communication was identified as an area of focus,
with the Committee expressing the view that the appointment
of the new Chief Executive should be taken as an opportunity to
review the level of dialogue between the Committee Chairman,
managerment and the external advisers. In addition, as with the
Boardin general, it was felt that the Remuneration Committee
would benefit fromthe more concise presentafion of data in
Commijttee papers.

Regulatory Compliance

The Remuneration Policy, which isset out on pages 381 105
was prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

and the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013.

It alse meets the requirements of the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules. This Remuneration Report sets out how the
provisions of the UK Corperate Governance Code are applied
by the Company in relation to matters of remuneration. We
have complied for the year under review with these provisions.

Share Usage

Under the rules of the Vesuvius Share Plan, the Company has
the discretion to satisfy awards either by the rransfer of Treasury
shares or other existing shares, or by the allotment of newly
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issued shares. Awards made underthe Deferred Share Bonus
Plan, to satisfy shares awarded to Directors under the Annual
Incentive, and awards made to senior managers by the
Company over shares pursuent to the Medium Term Incentive
Plan, must be satisfied out of Vesuvius shares held for this
purpose by the Company’s employee share ownership plan
trust (ESOP}. The decision on how fo satisfy awards is taken by
the Remuneration Committee which considers the moss prudent
and appropriate sourcing arrangement for the Company.

At 31 December 2017, the Company held 7,271,174 crdinary
shares in Treasury and 877,744 ordinary sharesin the ESOP.
The ESOP can be gifted Treasury shares by the Compuany, can
purchase shares inthe open market or can subscribe for newly
issued shares, as required, to meet cbligations to satisfy options
and awards that vest.

The Vesuvius Share Plan complies with the current Investment
Association guidelines on headroom which provide that overall
dilution under all plans over a rolling ten-year period should

not exceed 10% of the Company's issued share capital, with

a further limitation over arolling fen-year period of 5% for
discretionary share schemes. More than $.9% of the 10% limit
and mere than 4.9% of the 5% limit is avcilable as headroom for
theissue of new shares or the transfer of Treasury shares for the
Company. No Treasury shares have been fransferred or newly
issued shares allotted under the Vesuvius Share Plan during the
year under review.

Policy Implementation

The following section provides details of how the Company’s
Remuneration Policy was implemented during the financial year
2017 and how it will be implemented in the financial year 2018.

The table below sefs out the total remuneration received by Executive Directors in the financial year under review:

Patrick Andréd’ Frangois Wanecq? Guy Young
2017 2016 20M7 2076 2017 2016
(£000) (£000) {£000) (£000) (£000}) (E£000)
Total salary? 175 - 393 590 325 325
Taxable benefits* 56 - 156 35 18 19
Pension® 44 - 118 177 81 81
Total fixed pay® 275 — 667 802 424 425
Annual Incentive’ 186 - 399 371 332 166
Long-termincentives® - - 609 » - -
Total variable pay? 186 — 1,008 371 332 166
Total 461 — 1,675 1,173 756 597
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Thetckle below sets out the fees and taxable benefits received by Non-executive Directors in the financiol year under review and
the total remuneration received by both Executive and Non-executive Directors during the year under review:

2017 2016
Toxoble Taxable

Total fees’ benefits Total Total fees? benefits Total

(£000) (E0CD) (£00M) {£000) (£00G) (£000)

Jehn MeDonough CBE 185 21 206 185 21 206

Christer Gardell 45 7 52 45 14 59

Hock Goh 45 8 53 45 8 53

Jane Hinkley 60 3 63 60 4 64

Douglas Hurt 65 2 67 65 2 67

Holly Koeppel™ 34 7 41 - - -
Total 2017 Non-executive Director remuneration 482
Total 2017 Executive Director remuneration 2,892
Total 2017 Director remuneration 3,374

Note:

1. Paotrick André joined the Board on 1 September 2017. Figures in the table relote to salary, benefits and Annual Incentive earned in respect of the period 1 September

-31 December 2017,

2. Frangois Wanecq stepped down from the Board on 37 August 2017, and retired from the Company on 31 December 2017, Figures in the table relate to salory,
benefits ond Annual Incentive earned in respect of his employment as Chief Executive pro-rated for the period from the beginning of the financiol year to 31 August
2017 Alsoincluded in the table is the full value of his Vesuvius Share Plan award dueto vest in 2018 based on performance over the performance period 2015-2017

(see footnote 8 for more details).

w

Bose sclary (or fees, as appropriate) earned in relation to services as a Director during the finencial year.

4. The UK regulations require the inclusion of benefits for Directars where these would be taxable in the UK on the assumption that the Director is tax resident inthe
LIK. The figures in the table therefore include expense reimbursement and associated tax relating to travel, accommodation and subsistence in connaction with
attendance at Board meetings and other Board business during the year, which are considered by HMRC 1o be taxable in the LK. Benefirs for Executive Directors
include cor allowance, private medical care, relocotion expenses, tax advice, commuting costs, school fees and de minimis amounts for Directors’ spouses travel and
administrative expenses, and benefits incurred in connection with Frangois Wanecq's retirement.

5. Patrick André and Guy Young receive a pension allowance of 25% of bose solary. Frangois Wanecq received a pension allowance of 30% of baose salory. The figures
in the toble represent the value of ail cash allowances and contributions received in respect of pension benefits,

6. The sum of total salary, taxokle benefits and pension.

7. Thisfigureincludes any Annual Incentive poyments made to the Executive Directors in relation to services as a Director in the year under review. See pages 109 to

111 for more details.

B. This represents the Performance Share award granted to Frangois Wanecq in 2015 under the Vesuvius Share Plan, that is due to vest in 2078. See Note 6 of the
Vesuvius Performance Share Awards Allocotions table on poge 113. At an average Vesuvius mid-market closing share price (from 1 October 2017-37 December
2017) of 580 pence, the total value of the awards thet ore due to vest, along with the cash payment for the dividend that has occrued on these vested shares wos

£609,364,

9. The sum of the value of the Annual Incentive and the long-term incentives where the performance period ended during the financial year.
10. The sum of base salary, benefits, pension, Annual Incentive and long-term incentives where the performance period ended during the finencicl year,

11. Holly Koeppel joined the Board on 3 April 2617.

Additional note:

12. Total 2016 Director remuneration for the Directors who served during 2016 was £2.255m, This included fees of £34k and taxcble benefits of £8k paid to Nelda

Connors in 2016. Nelda retired from the Beard on 30 September 2016.

Remuneration for the Former Chief Executive~
Audited

Frangois Wanecq stepped down as an Executive Director and
Chief Executive on 31 August 2017 and, to assist the transition of
office to the new Chief Executive, he continued in employment
receiving his salary, benefits and pension allowance, totalling
£471k, until he retired from the Company on 31 December 2017.

Frangois Wanecq remained entitled to be considered for an
Annual Incentive in respect of services rendered in the calendar
year 2017. lrwas agreed thatthe amount payable, ifany,

would be calculated and paid in 2018 at the same time as other
Executives, and at a maximum would equal 125% of his base
salary in 2017, Calculation and payment of the 2017 Annual
Incentive was subject to the Company's achievement of the
financial targets, and his achievernent of his personal objectives
for this period (see Annual Incentive section below). The Annual
Incentive earned in relation to the period 1 September -

31 December 2017 totalled £209k, being 106% of his base
salary for this period.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee exercised its
discretion to treat Frangois Wanecq as a good leaver for the
purposes of the Vesuvius Share Plan, retaining his right to the
awards granted in 2015 in full (s he was empleyed by Vesuvius
for the full performance period) and those granted in 2076 and
2017 on a pro-rated basis. The vesting of all these awards is
subject to the ochievement of the applicable performance
criteric over the full performance period, the rules of the
Vesuvius Share Plan, and the approval of the Remuneration
Committee. The extent of vesting of the 2016 and 2017 awards
will be determined by the Remuneration Committes in 2019
and 2020. Detcils of the vesting of Frangois Wanecq's 2015
award, the extent of which has already been determined by
the Remuneration Commitiee, are included in the Directors’
Remuneration table and also detailed in the Longer-term Pay
section below.

Under the applicable company relocation policy, Frangois
Wanecq has received one month's salary as a relocation
allewance. In addition, the Company confirmed in the Section



430(B) Statement that It would pay his removal costs, the
reasonable costs of any international tax edvice requiredin
connection with his retirement from employment and any tax
support to meet his ongeing obligations to correctly report
income received from the Company for a three-year period
following his retirement. In addition, the Statement confirmed
thatthe Company will also pay de minimis administrative
expenses and benefits incurred in connection with his
retirement.

No further termination payment will be made to Mr Wanecq.

There were no payments made tc any Director for loss of office
during the year ended 31 December 2017, and no payments
were made to any other past Directors of the Company during
the yeor ended 31 December 2017.

Base Salary and Fees

Inthe year under review, the Chief Financial Officer received
abase salary of £325,000 per annum. Frangois Wanecg
received a base salary of £590,000 per annum, and following
his promotion to Chief Executive, Patrick André received a base
salary of £525,000 per annum. The Non-executive Directors’
fees were set ot £45,000 per annum. Supplemenitary fees of
£15,000 per annum were poid to the Chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees. A supplementary annual fee
of £5,000 was also peid to the Senier Independent Director.
The Chairman was paid an annual fee of £185,000. Neither the
Chairman nor the other Non-executive Directors are members
of the Group's pension plans, nor do they participate inthe
Group's incentive schemes.

Inline with the Group's longer-term approach of reviewing the
salaries of Executive Directors and senior Executives every
two ta three years, Guy Young's base salary was reviewed for
application in 2018. This was the first ime his base salary
had been reviewed since he joined the Company in 2015 and,
following this review, it was resolved that his salary should be
increased by 7.7%, with effect from 1 January 2018, upto
£350,000 per annum, in recognition of his leadership of the
Group's Finance function over the pastthree years and his
developmentinthe role. In considering this increase, the
Committee also noted that over the previous two yeors the
average salary increase for UK salaried employees had been
3.36%. Following his recent promotion, thereis no change fo
Patrick André's salary in 2018, but, as announced ot the fime
of his appointment, the Remuneration Committee has
committed to review his salary annually for the first three
years of his appointment (January 2019, 2020 and 2021).

Pension Arrangements ~ Audited

In accordance with their service agreements, Patrick André
and Guy Young are entitled to pension allowances of 25%
of base salary. (Frangois Wonecq was entitled to a pension
allowance of 30% of base salary up until the date of his
retirement,) This allowance can be used to participate in
Vesuvius' pension arrangements, be invested in their own
pension arrangements or be taken as a cash supplement
{or any combination of these alternatives).

Annual Incentive

The Executive Directors are eligible to receive an Annual
Incentive calculated as a percentage of base saiary, based
on achievement against specified financial targets and
personal objectives. Each year the Remuneration Committee
establishes the perfoermance criteria for the forthcoming year.
The financial targets cre set by reference to the Company's
financial budget. The target range is set to ensure that Annual
Incentives are only paid out ¢t maximum for significantly
exceeding performance expectations. The Remuneration
Committea considers that the setting and attainment of
these targets is important in the context of achievemnent of
the Company's longer-term strategic goals.

The Annual Incentive has athreshold level of performance
below which no award is paid, a target level and a maximum
performance level at which @ maximum award s earned.

2017 AnnualIncentive

Fer 2017 the maximum Annual Incentive potential for the
Executive Directors was 125% of base salary and their target
Annual Incentive potential was 62.5% of base salary. Following
his appointment as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, it
was agreed that Patrick André would participate in the Annual
Incentive at these incentive levels with effect from thot date.
With respect to his service with the Group prier to that date

he remained entitled to receive any poyouts due under the
Flow Control business unit Annual Incentive Plan.

Following his retirement as a Directer, Frangois Wanecg
remained entitled to be considered for an Annual Incentivein
respect of services rendered in the calendor year 2017, It was
agreed that the amount payable, if any, would be calculated
and paid in 2018 ot the same time as other Executives.

For the financial year 2017 the Executive Directors” Annual
Incentives were based 60% on Group headline earnings
per share, 20% on the Group's cash conversion {defined as
operating cash flow divided by trading profit} and 20% on
specified personal objectives.

Financial Targets

The 2017 Vesuvius Group headline earnings per share
performance targets set out below were set at the December
2016 full-year average foreign exchange rates, being the rates
used for the 2017 budget process:

109

Maximum:
35.6pence

Threshold:
30.4 pence

On-target:
33.0pence

The 2017 Group's cash conversion fargets were set as follows:

Maximum:
120%

Threshold:
20%

On-target:
105%

In assessing the Group's performance against these fargets, the
Committee uses a constant currency approach. Thus, the 2017
full-year EPS performance was retranslated ot December
2016 full-year average foreign exchange rates to establish
performance. This is consistent with practice in previous years.

22UDLIBAOS) l
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In 2017, Vesuvius' retransiated EPS performance was 391 pence,
and cash conversion was 104%, Consequently EPS performance
was above maximum and the cash conversion performance was
between threshold and target. Payments of 75% and 11.38% of
base salary respectively, 86.38% in total were therefore due to
the Executive Directors and Frangois Wanecqg under the Annual

Personal Objectives

In 2017, a proportion (20%) of the Annual Incentive for
Executive Directors (representing 25% of the maximum 125%
bonus entitlement) was based on the achievement of persenal
objectives. A summary of the objectives set and performance
achievedis set out below.

Incentive in respect of the financial performance metrics.

Patrick André

Summary of objective

Summaryoutcome

Drive Group performance

> Lounched new incremental restructuring programme with different scope
> Introduced and drove upgraded budget process for 2018

Transition to Chief Executive
and engagethe senior
mancgement feam

> Completed tailored induction and handover of key contocts

> Developed relationship with investor community

> Developed relationships with senior feams in the Foundry, Advanced Refractories and
Digital Services business units

Manage the successionin Flow
Control business unit leadership

> Selected successor, and continued to manage the Flow Control business unit until
handover
> Assisted in induction of new Flow Centrol President

Review Group organisation and
implement changesidentified

> Reviewed and confirmed business unit leadership and updated crganisational
responsibility of business units
> Redefined corporate functional roles, organisation and leadership with clear communication

In summary, after considering performance as cutlined above, the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payout of 19.65% of
base salary, out of the 25%, in respect of the personal objectives of Patrick André for the peried of his fenure as Chief Executive.
For the period of his tenure as President Flow Control, Mr André was awarded 9.76% of base salary, cut of 16%, in respect of his

personal objectives.

Guy Young

Summary of objective

Summary outcome

Develop people and team

» Developed updated functional strategy and plans, including full team evaluction
> Developed updated succession plans for key finance functions
> Drove performance across the team

Improveworking capital
management process

> Implermented new supplier finance scheme
> Infroduced clearer working capital management and reporting processes, with
demonstrable impuact on working capital performaonce

Manage the Implementation of
Shared Service Strategy

> Delivered strategy. Cversaw launch of project and commenced transition with
appropriate performance metrics putin place

Develop Group IR strategy

> mplemented updated strategy and broker performance reviews
> Managed clear investor engagement and enhanced share register

Enhance processes for monitoring
corporate activity

> Increased robustness of internal processes
> Enhanced the capabilities for assessment of financicl performance for corporate activity

In summary, after considering performance as outlined above, the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payout of 15,75% of
base salary out of the 25%, in respect of the persenal objectives of Guy Young.

Frangois Wanecq

Summary of objective

Summaryoutcome

Drive Group performance for 2017

> Maintained clear control of capital expenditure
> Reduced working capital percentage, improvement in cash conversion

Supportthe process for CEQ
succession

> Strong support of succession process with appropriate assistance provided
> Effective transfer of key relationships both within cnd outside the Group

Completeimplementation of agreed
restructuring plan

> Delivered expected savings fromexisting plan
> Existing plan perimeter extended to increase savings and return

Implementthe Boord approved
strategy

> Increased performance focus on key growing markets of China and India
> Continued the development of the Technical Service offering

Target corporate activity
and business growth

> Continued focus on opportunities for corporate development
> Supportedincremental growth in key creas of strategic focus




Insummary, after considering parformance as cutlined above,
the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payoutof 15% of
pro-rated base salary, out of the 25%, in respect of the personal
objectives of Francois Wanecq for the period of his tenure as
Chief Executive during the year.

Thetotal Annual Incentive awards payable to Patrick André and
Guy Young in respect of their services as a Director during 2017
are therefore 106% of pro-rated salary ond 102% of salary
respectively. The total Annual Incentive award poyeble to
Frangois Wanecq in respect of 2017 is 101% of salary. Frangois
Wanecq will receive his Annual Incentive payment in cash in

line with the Remuneration Policy. 33% of Patrick André and
Guy Young's Annual Incentive payments will be deferred into
awards over shares, to be held for a pericd of three years,

2018 Annual ncentive

The Remuneration Committee has determined that for 2018
the structure of the Annual Incentive will remain broadly the
same as for 2017: 60% of the Executive Directors’ Arinual
Incentives will therefore be based on Group hecdline earnings
per share, 20% on working capital using an updated objective
of the Group's working capital fo sales ratio (based onthe
12-month moving overage) and 20% on the achievement of
personal chiectives. The Company will not be disclosing the
targets set until after the relevant performance period has
ended because of commercial sensitivities. The personal
objectives for 2018 are il non-financial or job-specific in nature
and track performance against key strategic, organisational
and operational goals. The maximum Annual Incentive
potential for 2018 will be 125% of base salory. 33% of any
Annual Incentive earned will be deferred info awards over
shares, 10 be held for a pericd of three years.

Malus/Clawback Arrangements in 2018

Vesuvius hos melus end clawback arrangements in respect of
Executive Directors'variable remuneration. The structure of
those arrengements is outlined in our Remuneration Policy.

Longer-term Pay ("LTIPs”) - Audited

Performance Share awards are allocated to the Executive
Directors under the Vesuvius Share Plan (VSP). In accordance
with the Remuneration Policy and the rules of the VSP, they are
eligible to receive, on an annual basis, a Performance Share
award with a face value of up 1o 200% of salary. Vesting of 50%
of shares awarded s based upon the Company's three-yecr
TSR performance relative fo that of the constituent companies

L

of the FTSE 250 (excluding investment frusts), and 50% on
headline EPS growth. The level of compound headline EPS
growth specifiedin the targets is set by the Remuneration
Committee each year, toking info account the Group's
prospects and the broader global economic environment.

The schedule of EPS targets is designed at the maximum levelto
be highly challenging, whilst remaining an effective incentive for
the management team. The EPS and TSR measures operate
independently. The use of these performance measuresis
intended to align executive remuneraticn with shareholders’
interests. UK Executives receive awards in the form of nil-cost
options with a flexible exercise dote and non-UK Executives
receive awards which are exercised on the darte of vesting.

On 16 March 2017, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received
allocations of Performance Shares worth 200% and 150% of
their base salaries, respectively. Following his appointment

as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, it was agreed that
Patrick Andréwould receive a pro-rated 'top ug’ of his 2017
Performance Share award. As aresulf on T September 2017,
he was granted an additional Performance Share award of
42,257 shares. This award, in additionto the Performance
Share award of 60,413 shares awarded to himon 16 March
2017, brought histotal award of Performance Sharesin 2017 to
200% of his salary on a pro-rated basis. It reflected the increase
in his Performance Share percentage entitlement and the
increase in his salary for the final four months of the year.

The Remuneration Committee has determined that Patrick
André will receive a Performance Shore award in 2018
equivalentin value to 200% of his base salary and Guy Young
an award equivalent in value to 150% of his base salary.

The performance peried applicable to the awards made in
2015 ended on 31 December 2017 The TSR performance
during this three-year performance period was assessed
against the comparator group and it was determined that the
Company's performance was between median and upper
quintite. As ¢ result, 27.1% of Performance Share awards

will vest under the TSR performance element. The Committee
reviewed statistics from various sources which gave a large
range of cutcomes of global GDP growth. The Committee
concluded that 2%:% p.a. was a reasonable base against which
to measure the Company’s EPS growth of 6.8% p.a. for the
2015-2017 performance period. As a result the Group's annual
compound headline EPS growth abeve this GDP measure

for the period was 4.3%. Therefore, 16.6% of Performance
Share awards will vest under the EPS performance element.
These awards will vest in April 2018.

PIUDULIBACE) I

Target for the 2015 Performance Share Awards— Audited

TSRranking relativeto FTSE 250

excluding investmenttrusts Vesting percentage

Annval compound headline

EPS growth ahove global GDP Vesting percentoge

Below median 0% Below 3% 0%

Median 12.50% 3% 12.50%
Betweenmedianand Prorata between 12.50% Between 3% and 15% Proratabetween 12.50%
upper quintile and 50% and 50%

Upper guintile 50% Atorabove 15% 50%
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Targets for the 2016, 2017 and 2018 Performance Share Awards — Audited

TSR rankingrelative to FTSE 250

excluding investment trysts

Vesting percentage

Annualcompound headline
EPS growth

Vesting percentage

Below median 0% Below 3% 0%
Median 12.50% 3% 12.50%
Between mediar and upper Proratabetween12.50%and  Between 3% and 6% Prorata between 12.50% and
quintile 50% 25%
Upper quintile 50% 6% 25%
Between 6% and 15% Pro rata between 25% and 50%
At cbove 15% 50%

Vesuvius Performance Share Award Allocations - Audited
The following fable sets out those Perfermance Share awards that were allocated in 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 under the Vesuvius

Share Plan:
Totalshare Additions! Totalshare Market price of
ollocations shores Allocotions ollocations theshareson
asar aliocated lopsed  Sharesvested asat  theday before Performance Earliest

Grantandtype of award 31Dec2016  duringtheyear  duringtheyear  duringtheyear 31Dec 2017 award (p) period vestingdate
Patrick André
8 April 2016 TJonle-

37 Dec18
Performance Shares 92,746 - - - 92,746 291.7 8 Apr2019
16 March 201733 1Jan17-

37 Dec19
Performance Shares - 60,413 - - 60,413 524.5 16 Mar 2020
1 September 20174 1Jan17-

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 42,257 - - 42,257 578 1Sep 2020
Total 32,746 102,670 — - 195,416
Frangois Wanecq
17 March 20145 1 Jan 14—~

31 Dec16
Performance Shares 253,748 - 253,748 - - 429.3 -
1 April 20158 Tldan15-

31 Dec17
Performance Shares 221,533 - - - 221,533 491.1 1 Apr2018
8 April 2016 1Jan16-

31 Dec8
Performance Shares 373,938 - 158,113 - 215,825 2917 8 Apr2019
16 March 20172 1Jan17-

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 225,567 166,177 - 59,790 524.5 16 Mar 2020
Total 849,219 225967 578,038 — 497,148
Guy Young
8 April 2016 1Jan16—

31 Dec18
Performance Shares 128,739 — — — 128,739 291.7 8 Apr2019
16 March 20172 1Jan17-

37 Dec19
Performance Shares - 93,355 — — 93,355 524.5 16 Mar 2020
Total 128,739 93,355 - - 222,094
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Note:

. In 20186, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received allocotions of Performance Shares worth 200% and 125% of their bose salaries, being 373,938 shares and
128,729 shares respectively. In addition, prior to his eppointment as Chief Executive, Patrick André received on coward of 92,746 shares in respect of his rele as
Prasident, Flow Control. On the date of his retirement fram the Company on 31 December 2017, Frangeis Wanecq's entitlement 1o the shares he wos gronted in 2016
was reduced pro-rot 1o reflect his departure part way through the vesting period. As a result, 158,113 shares lopsed on this date.

2. 0On 16 March 2077, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received allotations of Performance Shares worth 200% and 150% of their base solaries, being 225,967 shares
ond 93,355 shares respectively. In addition, prior to his appointment as Chief Executive, Patrick André received an award of 60,413 shares in respect of bis role as
President, Flow Control. These allocations were caiculated based upon the average closing mid-marker price of Vesuvius' shares on the five decling days before the
oward was made, being £5.222. The tofal value of these owards based on this share price an the date of grant was £1,180,000, £487,500 and £315,477 respectively.
On the date of his retirement from the Company on 37 December 2017, Frangois Wanecg’s entitlement to the shares he was granted in 2017 was reduced pro-rata fo
reflect his departure port woy through the vesting period. As a result, 166,177 shares lopsed on this date.

. Patrick André’s March 2017 Performance Share oward is subject to Flow Control performonca conditions. Under these, 7,552 of the 60,413 shares awarded are
deemed to hove met the performance condition applicable in the first year. The achievement of the parformance condition will be reassessed of the end of 2018,
and 2019,

4. Following his promotion to Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, Putrick André received on additional award of 42,257 Performance Shares in the form of o
conditional award, This award brought his total award of Performance Shares in 2017 te 200% of his salery on a pro-rated basis, which is the maximum annual
award for the Chief Executive as determined by the Vesuvius Remuneration Policy. The allocation was caleulated based upon the average closing mid-market price
of Vesuvius' shares on the five dealing days befare the award was made, being £5.794 per share. The total value of the oward bosed on this share price on the date
of grantwas £244,837.

5. The Performance Shores that were allocated in 2014 had performance conditions o be tested over the financiol yeors 2014, 2015 and 201 6. As the requisite
performance was not achieved, Frangois Wonecq's award fopsed an the third onniversary of grant in March 2017,

6. The Perfermance Shares thot were cllocoted in 2015 had performance conditions to be tested over the financial years 2015,2016 ond 20717, The perfarmance
period for the LTiF. In accordance with the Company's achievement of the specified perfermance cenditions, 43.7% of Francols Wanecq's Performance
Shares, 96,809 shares, are due to vest on 1 Aprii 2018. In addition the Remuneration Committes has determined that Mr Wanecq will receive a cosh payment of
£47,872 which is equivalent to the value of the dividends that would have been paid on the number of shares that are due to vast in respect of dividend record dotes
occurring during the period between the award date and the date of vesting.

o

w

Additional notes:
7. All of Frangois Wanetq and Guy Young's awards have been made in the form of nil cost options with no exercise price. Patrick André’s award were made in the form of

conditional awards.
8. If the performance conditions for these awards ore not met then these awaords will lapse. [f the rhreshold level of either of the two performance conditions applicoble

to these awards is met, then 12.50% of the aword will vest.
9. The Remuneration Committee also has the discretion to award cash or shares equivalent in value to the dividend that would have accrued during the vesting period

on the number of shares that vest.
10. The mid-market closing price of Vesuvius' shares during 2017 ranged between 400 pence and 606 pence per share and on 29 December 2017, the last decling day

of the year, was S84 pence per share.

Restricted Share Award

On Guy Young's appointment as Chief Financial Officer in 2015, the Committee resolved that it would portially compensate him for
long-term incentives that he forfeited as a result of joining Vesuvius by granting o one-off Restricted Share award over 17,115 shares
underthe Vesuvius Share Plan. The value of this award was included in the Directors’ Remuneration table in the 2015 Remuneration

Report.
Half of this award vested in 2016, and the remainder vested on 1 November 2017, the second anniversary of the date of his
commencement of employment. Details of the partion of the Restricted Share award that vested during 2017 are given inthe
table below:
Outstanding Qutstanding

share allocation Sharesvested shareallocation
Date of award 1Jon 2017 during the year! 31Dec2017
13 May 2016 8,557 8,557 -

Note:

1. B,557 shares vested to Guy Young on 1 Novemnber 2017, The mid-market closing price of the Compeny's shares on the date of vesting was £5.885 per shore. The total
value of shares that he received an the dote of vesting was therefore £50,358, In addition, Guy Young received a cash payment of £2,838.78 1o reflect the dividends
that would have occrued on the shares batween his date of joining and the vesting date.

2IUDUIAACD) I
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Statement of Directors’ Shareholding — Audited

The interests of Directors and their closely associated persons in ordinary shares as at 37 December 2017, including any interests in

share options ond shares provisionally awarded under the Vesuvius Share Plan are set out below:

Outstanding
Beneficial incentive
holding awards'

Executive Directors
Patrick André - 195,416

Frangois Wanecq 1,363,930 497148
Guy Young 14,551 222,094
Non-executive Directors

JohnMc Doncugh CBE {Chairman) 100,000 -
Christer Gardell? - -
Hock Goh 5,000 -
Jane Hinkley 12,000 -
Dovglas Hurt 18,000 -
Holly Koeppel 7,500 -
Note:

1. Patrick André holds conditional owards of 195,416 shores, and Frangeis Wanecq and Guy Young hold 497,148 and 222,094 nil cost options respectively, granted os
Performence Shares under the Vesuvius Shore Plan. These are all subject to performance conditions.
2. Christer Gardell is Managing Portner of, and has o financial interest in, Cevian Capital which held 21.11% of Vesuvius' issued share capital as ot 31 December 2017

ond at the date of this report.
Additional nates:
3. Nane of the other Directors, nor their spouses, nar their minor children, held nen-beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company during the yeor.
4. There were no changes in the interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company in the pericd from 1 Januory 2018 to the date of this Report.
5. All awards under the Vesuvius Share Plan are subject to performance conditions and continued employment until the relevant vesting date as set out on poges 112

and 113,
6. Full detoils of Directors’ shareholdings and incentive owards are given in the Compony's Register of Directors’ Interests, which is open to inspection at the Company's

registered office during nermal business hours.

Shareholding Guidelines

The Remuneration Committee encourages Executive Directors 1o build and hold a shareholding in the Company. The required
holding of the Chief Executive is to be equivalentinvalue to at least 2x salary and that required of other Executive Directorsis to

be equivalent in value to at least 1x salary. To this end, Executive Directors are required to retain at least 50% (measured as the
value after tax) of any shares received through the operation of share schemes; in addition, permission to sell shares held - whether
acquired through the operation of share schemes or otherwise—will not be given, other than in exceptional circumstances, 1f,
following the disposal, the shareholding requirements have nat been achieved.

Compliance with the shareholding policy is tested at the end of each year for application in the following year using the average
of the closing prices of a Vesuvius ordinary share for the trading days in that December,

Executive Directors’ Shareholdings - Audited
As ot 31 December 2017, the Executive Directors’ shareholdings against the current sharehelding guidelines (using the Company's
share price averaged cver the trading days of the period 1 December to 31 December 2017, of 565.97 pence per share) were

as follows:
Actualshare ownership

asapercentage of salary Policy share ownership
Director at310ec2017 asapercentageofsalary Policy met?
Patrick André 0% 200% In the build-up period

Guy Young 25% 100% Inthe build-up period




Annual Changes in Chief Executive Pay vs Employee Pay

The table below shows the percentage changein the remuneration of the Chief Executive - comprising salary, toxable benefits
and Annual Incentive —and comparcble data for UK salaried ermployees. The UK salaried employee workforce was chosen as
afair representation of a suitable comparator group as baih the former Chief Executive Frangois Wanecq and the incumbent
Chief Executive Patrick André are based inthe UK {albeit with a global role and responsibilities) and levels of pay vary widely
across the Greup depending on gecgraphy and local market conditions.

UK salaried
employee
workforce

{average
Chief Executive percapita)

2017 2016
(£000) (£000) % chonge % change
Salary 568 590 {3.73) 101
Taxable benefits: 212 35 505 0.89
Annual bonus 585 377 57.68 55.30

Note:
1. Solory, toxoble benefits ond Annual Incentive omounts in respect of the Chief Executive for 2017 reflecs the sum of ameounts payoble to Frangels Wonecq in respect

of service from 1 Jonuary 2017 to 31 August 2017, end omounts payable to Patrick André in respect of service from 1 September 2017 ta 31 Dacember 2017.

2. Theincrease in benefits principally resubts fram the chonge in Chief Executive during the year. Further information on the benefits paid to Patrick André and Frongois
Wanecgq during 2017 can be found in Note 4 to the Directors’ Remuneration table on page 108.
Annual Spend on Employee Pay vs Shareholders’ Distributions

The charts below show the annuo! spend on all employees {including Executive Directors} compared with distributions made and
proposed o be made to shareholders for 2016 and 2017:

115

(Em) (Em)
2017 2016 Change
Group remuneration of continuing operatiens {see Note 8) 441.5 384.8 14.73%

Dividends (based on final proposed dividend) 48.6 44.7 B.72%
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TSR Performance and Chief Executive Pay

The TSR performance graph compares Vesuvius TSR performance with that of the same investment in the FTSE 250 Index
{excluding investment trusts}. This index has been chosen os the comparatoer index o reflect the size, international scope and
diversity of the Company. TSR is the measure of the returns that a company has provided for its shareholders, reflecting share
price movements and assuming reinvestment of dividends. A spot rate has been used for this graph. The demerger of Vesuvius plc
was effective on 19 December 2012 and therefore the graph shows the period from 19 December 20712 to 31 December 2017.

Vesuvius'total shareholder return
compared against total shareholder
return of the FFSE 250 index

-~ Vesuvius plc —e— FTSE 250 Index (excluding Investment Trusts)

(excluding investment trusts) 220
since demerger
r

200

150 . e

100

19/12/12
50 j
Frangois Wanecq' { Patrick André?

Chief Executive pay —financial year ending 31/12/12 31/12/13 31/12/14 31/12/15 21/12/16 31/12/17 31/12/17
Totalremuneration {single figure (FO00)) £1,2271 £2,447 £1,519 £752 £1173 1,675 461
Annualvariable pay (% of moximum) 0% 100% 64% 6% 63% 101% 106%
Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) 67% ! 28% 27% 0% | 0% 437% | n/a

Nete:
1. Amounts shown in respect of Frangols Wanecq for 2017 reflect payments in respect of his service os Chief Executive from 1 Jenuary 2017 te 31 August 2017 and the

full value of his Vesuvius Share Plen award in relotion to the parformance period 2015-2017.
2. Amounts shown in respect of Pairick André for 2017 reflect payments in respect of his service as Chief Execytive fram 1 September 2017 to 31 December 20717,

Statement on Shareholder Voting

At the last AGM (which was held on 10 May 2017) the resolution concerning the advisory vote on the Remuneration Report
for 2017 received 239,094,321 votes (98.99%) in favour and 2,434,510 votes against (1.07%); 1,432,104 votes were withheld.
Thea Remuneration Policy received 238,743,173 ($8.86%) in favour and 2,762,888 votes (1.14%) against; 1,454,874 votes were
withheld. Atthe AGM to be held on 10 May 2018, shareholders will again be invited to participate in an advisory vote onthe

Remuneration Report.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board and is signed on its behalf by
Jane Hinkley Chairman, Remuneration Committee

28 February 2018



Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their Annual Report fogether with the
audited accounts of the Group and of the Company, Vesuvius
ple, registeredin England and Wales No. 8217766, for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to provide

a Directors’ Report for Vesuvius plc for the yearended

31 December 2017, The information that fulfils this requirement
and which is incorporated by reference into, and forms part

of, this report is included in the following sections of the

Annual Report:

> The Our Responsibility section
> The Governcnce section

> Financial Instruments: the information on financial risk
management objectives and policies contained in Notes
20and 27 to the Group Financial Statements

This Directors' Report and the Strategic Report contained in
pages 1to 73 together represent the management report for
the purpose of complicnce with DTR 4.1.8R of the UK Listing
Authority's Disclosure and Transparency Rules. Tha Company
does not have any overseas branches within the meaning of the
Companies Act 2006,

Going Concern

Informaticn on the business enviranment in which the Group
operates, including the factors that are likely to impact the
future prospects of the Group, is included in the Strategic
Repart. The principal risks and uncertainties thot the Group
faces throughout ifs global operations are shown on pages

24 and 25. The financial position af the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and debt facilities are also described in the
Strategic Report. In addition, the Group's Viability Statement
is set out within the Strategic Report on page 23. Notes 20 and
27 tothe Group Financial Statements set out the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital;
financial risks; financial instruments and hedging activities; and
its exposures to credit, market {both currency and interest rate
related) and liquidity risk. Further details of the Group’s cash
balances and borrowings are included in Notes 13, 14 and 27
to the Group Financial Statements.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the Group
for a period in excess of 12 months from the date of approval

of the 2017 financial statements. These forecasts reflect an
assessment of current and future end-market conditions and
theirimpact on the Group's futuretrading performance.

The forecasts show that the Group will be cble to operate within
the cyrrent committed debt facilities and show confinued
compliance with the Company's financial covenants. On the
basis of the exercise described above and the Group's available
committed debt facilities, the Directors consider that the

Group and Company have adequete resources to continue in
operational existence for a peried of atleast 12 months from
the date of signing of these acceunts. Accordingly, they continue
to adopt a going concern basisin preparing the financial
statements of the Group and the Company.

Research and Development

The Group's investment in research and development

{R&D) during the year under review amounted to £33.2m
(representing approximately 2.0% of Group revenue

(2016: 2.0%). Further details of the Group's R&D activities can
be found in the Innovation section of the Strategic Report.

Dividends

An inferim dividend of 5.50 pence {2016: 5.15 pence) per
Vesuvius ordinary share was paid on 22 September 2017 to
Vesuvius shareholders. The Board is recommending ¢ final
dividend in respect of 2017 of 12.50 pence {2016: 11,40 pence)
per ordinary share which, if approved, willbe paid on 25 May
2018 1o shareholders on the register at 13 April 2018,

Accountability and Audit

A responsibility statement of the Directors and a statement by
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities can be found on
pages 127 and 124 to 129 respectively. The Directors fulfil the
responsibilities set out in their statement withinthe context of an
overall control envirenment of central strategic direction and
delegated operating responsibility. As at the date of this report,
so far as each Director of the Company is aware, there s no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware and each Directer hereby confirms that they have
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director

in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Caompany's auditoris
aware of that information.

Auditor Appointments

A competitive tender process for the appointment of a
statutory auditor was conducted during 2016, Following

the completion cf this the Company recommended that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw() be appointed cs external
auditor for Vesuvius plc for the year ended 31 December 2017,
replacing KPMG LLP. Sharehclder approval to confirm the
appointment of PwC was given at the 2017 AGM. PwC has
expressed its willingness to continue in office os auditor of the
Company, and consequently, resolutions for the reappointment
of PwC as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Directors fo determine its remuneration are to be proposed
atthe AGM.

Directors

The Directors of the Company are Patrick André, Christer
Gardell, Hock Geh, Jane Hinkley, Douglas Hurt, Holly Koeppel,
John McDonough CBE and Guy Young. Fatrick André joined
the Board as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, replacing
Frangois Wanecq who retired from the Board on 31 August
2017 Holly Koeppel joined the Boord as on additionol
independent Non-executive Director on 3 April 2017, All the
Directors will retire at the AGM and offer themselves for
election or re-election at the AGM. Biographical information
forthe current Directers is given on pages 50 and 51. Further
information on the remuneration of, and contractual
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arrangements for, the current Executive and Non-executive
Directorsis given on pages 6 tc 116 inthe Directors’
Remuneration Report, The Non-axecutive Directors do not
have service agreements.

Directors’ Indemnities

The Directors have been granted qualifying third party
indemnity provisions by the Company ond the Directors of the
Group's UK Pension Plan Trustee Board (none of whomis
Director of Vesuvius plc) have been granted qualifying pension
scheme indemnity provisions by Vesuvius Pension Plans Trustees
Ltd. The indemnities for Directors of Vesuvius plc have beenin
force since the dote of their appointment. The Pension Trustee
indemnities were in force throughout the last financicl year and
rernain in force.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Compaony will be held at
The Lincoln Centre, 18 Lincoin’s Inn Fields, London WC2A3ED
on Thursday 10 May 2018 at 11.00 am.

Amendments of Articles of Association

The Company may make amendments to the Articles by way
of special resolution in accordance with the Companies Act,

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Information on our reporting of greerhouse gas erissicns, and
the methodology used torecord these, is set out on poge 65 of
the Strategic Report.

Donations

In accordance with Compeny policy, no political donations
were made in 2017 2016: nil).

Change of Control Provisions

The terms of the Group's committed bank facility and US
Private Placement Loan Notes contain provisions entitling the
counterparties to exercise termination or other rights in the
event of a change of control on takeover of the Company.
Anumber of the arrangements to which the Company and its
subsidiaries are party, such as other debt arrangements and
share incentive plans, may also alter or terminate on a change
of control in the event of atakeover. In the context of the Group
as awhole, these other arrangements are not considered fo

be significant.

Share Capital

As atthe date of this report, the Company had anissued share
copitol of 278,485,077 ordinory shares of 10 pence each;
7,271,174 of these ordinary shares are held in Treasury.
Therefore, the total number of Vesuvius ple shares with voting
rightsis 271,213,897.

Further infermation relating to the Company's issued share
capital can be found in Note 8 tothe Company Financial
Statements.

The Company's Arficles specify that, subject fo the authorisation
of an appropriate resolution passed at o General Meeting of
the Company, Directors can allot relevant securities under
Section 551 of the Companies Act up to the aggregate nominal
amount specified by the relevant resolution, In cddition,

the Articles state that the Directors can seek the authority of
shareholders in a General Meeting to allot equity securities for
cash, without first being required to of fer such shares to existing
ordinary shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings
under Section 561 of the Companies Act, in connectionwitha
rights issue and in other circumstances up to the aggregate
nominal amount specified by the relevant resolution.

Atthe Annual General Meeting on 10 May 2017, the Directors
were authorised to issue relevant securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £9,040,463, and, in connection with a rights
issue, to issue relevant securities up to @ further nominal value
of £5,040,463. [n addition, the Directors were empowered fo
allot equity securities, or sell Treasury Shares, forcashona
non pre-emptive basis up to an cggregate nominal amount of
£1,356,069, and for the purposes of financing {er refinancing,
if the authority is to be used within six manths after the original
transaction) a transcction which the Board of the Company
determines to be an acguisition or other capital investment,

to allot equity securities, or selt Treasury Shares, for cash on a
non pre-emptive basis up to an additional nominal amount of
£1,356,069. Each of the authorities given in these resolutions
expires at the earlier of the date of the 2018 Annuai General
Meeting or 30 June 2018. The resolutions were all tabled in
accordance with the terms of the Pre-Emption Group's
Statement of Principles. The Directors propose to renew these
authorities at the 2018 Annucl General Meeting for a further
year. In the year ahead, other than in respect of Vesuvius'
ability to satisty rights granted to employees under its various
share-based incentive arrangements, the Directors have no
present intention of issuing any share capital of Vesuvius pic.

Authority for Purchase of Own Shares

Subject to the provisions of company law and any other
applicable regulations, the Company may purchase its own
shares. At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 10 May 2017, Vesuvius shareholders gave authority fo the
Cempany to make market purchases of upto 27,121,289
Vesuvius ordinary shares, representing 10% of the Company's
issued ordinary share capital as at the latest practicable day
prior to the publication of the Notice of AGM. This authority
expires on 30 June 2018 or the date of the AGM to be hald in
2018, whichever is the earlier. The Directors will seek renewal
of this authority at the forthcoming AGM.

In 2013 the Company acquired 7,271,174 ordinary shares,
representing a nominal value of £727,117 and 2.6% of the entire
called-up share copital of the Company prior to the purchasea.



These shares were purchased pursuant to the Board's
commitment fo return the maijority of the net proceeds of

the disposal of the Precious Metals Pracessing division to
shareholders. These shares are currently held as Treasury
shares. The Company has not subsequently disposed of any of
the repurchased shares. During the year, the Company did not
make any further acquisitions of shares, any acguisitions by
nominee, nor did it dispose of any shares previously acquired.
The Company does not have a lien over any cf its shares.

Share Plans

Vesuyius operates a number of share-based incentive plans.
Underthese plans the Group can satisfy entitlements by the
acquisition of existing shares, the transfer of Treasury shares
or by the issue of new shares. Existing shares are held in an
employee share ownership plan frust (ESOP'). The Trustee of
the ESOP purchases shareas in the open market as required to
enable the Group to meet liabilities for the issue of shares to
satisfy cwards that vest. The Trustee does not register votes
inrespect of these shares and has waived the right to receive
any dividends.

Restrictions on Transfer of Shares and Voting

The Commpany's Articles of Association (Articles’) do not

contain any specific restrictions on the size of @ holding or on

the transfer of shares. The Directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights.

No person has any special rights with regard to the control of
the Company’s share capital and allissued shares are fully
paid. Thisis a summary only and the relevant provisions of the
Articles should be consulted if further information is required.

Interestsin the Company's Shares

The Company has been notified in accordance with DTR 5 of
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the following interests
of 3%, or more, of itsissued erdinary shares:

Asot Asar

21Dec2017  28Feb2018

Cevian Capital 2117 21.11
Standard Life Aberdeen 5.92 592
Artisan Partners 497 497
Aberforth Partners 493 493
Pelham Capital Management CfD 4.58 4.58
Phoenix Asset Management 310 3.10

The interests of Directors and their connected perscnsin the
ordinary shares of the Company as disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules of the Financiai Conduct Authority are as
set out on pages 113 and 114 of the Directors’ Remuneration
Reporr and details of the Directers' long-term incentive awards
are setouton poge 114.

Equal Opportunities Employment

Vesuvius picis an equel epportunities employer, ond decisions
on recruitment, development, training and promotion, and
other employment-related issues are made solely on the
grounds of individual ability, achievement, expertise and
conduct. These principles are operated on a non-discriminatory
basis, without regord to race, colour, nationdiity, culture,

ethnic origin, religion, belief, gender, sexual orientation, age,
disability or any other reason noft related to job performance

or prehibited by applicoble law. In cases where employees are
injured or disabled during employment with the Group, support,
including appropriate training, is provided to those employees
and workplace adjustments are made as appropriate in respect
of their duties and working environment, supperting recovery
and continued employment.

Employee Communications

Vesuvius adopts an open and honest approach to empleyee
communications, supported by regular updates from senior
management across all businesses and operations within the
Group. Reguler communications include direct email updates
on the financial performance of the Company, the industry
environment in which Vesuvius operates, and other significant
operctional developments. The Company operates an
employee intranet which distributes Company news and events,
as well as local initiatives for employee engagement ona
site-by-site basis. The HR department is the primary point

of contact for employaes on employment and workplace
matters, operating with an open-door policy and advising
employees of any local legal, tax, pension or other employment
changes. There are numerous employee-sponsored and

led representative bodies within Vesuvius which differ with
respect to jurisdiction and geography. Senior management,
supported and focilitated by the HR department, encourages
open dialogue and seeks opportunities to consult with these
employee representative bodies as appropriate.

Pensions

in each country in which the Group operates, the pension
arrangements in place are considered to be consistent with
good employment practice inthat particular area. Independent
advisers are used to ensure that the plans are operated in
accordance with local legislation and the rules of each plan.
Group policy prohibits direct investment of pension fund assets
inthe Company's shares. Quiside the UK, the US, Garmany and
Belgium, the majority of pension plansinthe Group areof a
defined contribution nature.

In 2016 the main German defined benefit plan was closed for
new entrants and existing members were offered a buy-cut of
their benefits under this plan. Those who accepted this buy-out
then joined the new defined contribution plan,

The Group's UK defined benefits plan (the ‘UK Plan’) and the
main US defined benefits plans are closed to new entrants and
have ceased providing future benefits accrual, with alf eligible
employees instead being provided with benefits through
defined contribution arrangements.
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For the Group's closed UK Plan, a Trustee Board exists
comprising emplayees, former employees and anindependent
trustee. The Board currently comprises six trustee Directors,

of whom two are member-nominated. The admiristration

of the UK Planis outsourced. The Company fs mindful of its
obligations underthe Pensions Act 2004 and of the need to
comply with the guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator.
Regular dialogue is maintained between the Compeny and the
Trustee Board of the UK Plan to ensure that both the Company
and Trustee Board are apprised of the same financial and other
information about the Group and the UK Plan. Thisis pertinent
to each being ableto contribute to the effective functioning of
the UK Plan.

Vesuvius continues to seek woys to de-risk its existing pensicn
plans through a combination of asset matching, buy-in
opportunities and, where prudent, veluntary cash contributions.

The Group's werldwide net pension deficit at 31 December
2017 was £16.5m (31 December 2016: £29.4m). The principal
reasons forthe £12.9m reduction were increases of £1.8m+to
the deficit arising out of changes to actuarial assumptions
{attributable to increasing discount rates; updated martality
assumptions and pension membership data) and additional
accrual and administrative expenditure paid for the year
(£6.8m); offest by reductions to the deficit of £10.2m from
asset returns and cash contributions of £171.6m,

The following disclosures are made in compliance with the Financial Conduct Authority's Listing Rule 9.8.4CR:

Disclosure requirementunder LR 9.8.6R

Reference/Location

(1) Interest capitalised by the Group during the year

See Note 9.1 onpage 143

{2) Publication of unaudited financial information

Notapplicable

(3) the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of Page 117
accounting and the Direcfors assessment of the prospects of the

Company

(4) Details of any long-termincentive schemes Pages 99 and 10C

(5) Director waiver of ermoluments

Not applicable

{6) Director waiver of future emoluments

Notapplicable

{7} Allerment for cash of equity securities made during the year

Not applicable

(8) Allotment for cash of equity securities made by a major
unlisted subsidiary during the year

Not applicable

(9) Details of participation of parent undertaking in any placing
made during the year

Not applicable

(10) Details of relevant contractsin which a Director or
convrolling shareholder wosinterested during the year

Not applicable

(1% Contractsfor the provision of services by a contralling
shareholder during the year

Notapplicable

(12) Details of any arrangement under which a shareholder
has walved or agreed to waive any dividends

Vesuvius plc holds 7,271,174 of its £0.10 ordinary shares as
Treasury shares. No dividends are payable enthese shares.
Cookson Investments (Jersey) Limited, the Trustee of the
Company’'s ESOP, hos cgreed to waive, on an ongoing basis,
any dividends payable on shares it holds on trust for use under
the Company's Employee Share Plans, details of which can be
foundonpages 167, 118and 119

(13} Details of where o shareholder has agreed to waive
future dividends

Seeabove

(14) Statements relating to contralling shareholders and
ensuring company independence

Not applicable

The Directors' Report has been approved by the Board and is signed on its behalf by

Henry Knowles Company Secretary

28 February 2018



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
andthe financial statements in cccordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that low the Directors
have prepared the Group financial staterments in accordance
with International Finoncial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Company financial
statementsin accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law). Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and foir view of the state
of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit of the
Group for that period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors are required fo:

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

> statewhether appficable [FRSs as adopted by the European
Union have been followed for the Group financial staterments
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101, have been followed for the Company financicl
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed
and exploined in the financicl statements;

v

make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and

> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless itisinappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
recordsthat are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
atany time the financial position of the Group and Company
and enable themto ensure that the financial statements and the
Directors' Remuneration Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, asregards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for raking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, bolanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group and Company's performance, business madel

and strategy.

Responsibilities Statement of the Directorsin
respect of the Annual Financial Report

Each of the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

> the Company financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law), give atrue ond foir
view of the assets, liahilities, finoncial position and loss
of the Company;

> the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the Group; and

v

the Direciors’ Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Company, together with a
description of the principai risks and uncertainties that
itfaces.

The names and functions of the Directors of Vesuvius plc are
asfollows:

John McDonough CBE Chairman

Patrick André Chief Executive

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer

Christer Gardell Non-executive Director

Hock Goh Non-executive Director

Jane Hinkley Non-executive Director
and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

Douglas Hurr Non-executive Director, Senior
Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Holly Koeppel Non-executive Director

On behalf of the Board

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer

28 February 2078
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‘| relocated to the UAE

to help set up our Ras
Al Khaimah facility”

Adam Liszka, Operations Director
Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

My career with Vesuvius began in Following this project, | took on my

Poland in 2001, when | joined the
Skawina Brick Plant as Production
Coordinator. After a series of
promaotions, | beceme Production

next challenge, by becoming the
Operations Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, respensible
for the manufacturing eperations

Manager for the whole Skawina of sites across the US, Canoda and
Brick Plantin 2009. Mexico. My career arVesuvius

. » has brought me professional
lwas lc?efgwenthe exciting advancement, the opportunity
apportunity to work cverseas, towork ocross cuftures andto
relocatingfirst tathe UAEin 2012 becomea reclcitizen of the world.
to help start operations at our
brand-new manufacturing facility
in Ras Al Khaimah, and larer
moved tothe United States as
Operations Manager ot our plant
in Chicago Heights, lllinois. Whilst
there, | worked with our Chicage
Heights team to set the foundations
for the Yellowstone project,
targeting increased manufacturing
efficiency ot our site.

© Seemore about Vesuvius careers People and Community on p67-73
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Vesuvius plc

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

Opinion
In cur opinion:

> Vesuvius plc's Group financial statements and Company
financial statements (the financial statements”) give atrue
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's
affairs as at 37 Dacember 2017 ond of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended

v

The Group fingncial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

The Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework', and applicable law)

v

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the

IAS Regulation

v

We have cudited the financial staternents, included within
the Annual| Report and Accounts (the 'Annual Report?),
which comprise: the Group and Company Balance Sheets
asat 31 December 2017; the Group Income Staterment and
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Stotement
of Cash Flows, and the Group and Company Stetements of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with cur reporting to the
Audit Committee.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable law,
Qur respensibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the
auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe thatthe audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevantto our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, ond we
have fulfitled our cther ethical responsikilities in accordance
with these requirements.

During the period, we identified that we had provided a
prohibited tax compliance service in respect of payrolltaxes
to the Groupin breach of paragraph 5.167R(a)(ii) of the FRC's
Ethical Srandard. Total fees billed in the period in respect of
the service amounted to £1,800. Upon identifying the breach,
we immediately ceased providing this prohibited service.,

The prohibited service was provided to a component that did
not form part of our audit evidence in respect of the cudit of
the Group. We confirm that, based on our assessment of this
breach, andthe subsequent actions taken, we have not, in our
view, compromised our independence.

Other than the matter referred to above, and to the best of cur
knowledge and belief, we declare that no non-audit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were provided to the
Group orthe Company.

Other than those disclosed in the Audit Committee's Report,
we have provided no other non-audit services to the Group
or the Company inthe peried from 1 January 2017 to

31 December 2017,

Our Audit Approach - QOverview

Materiality

> Cverall Group materiality:
£7.6m, based on 5% of profit
before tax and separately
reporteditems (Headline
profit before tax’)

> Overall Company materiality:
£7.6m, based on 1% of total
assets, cappedto the level of
Group materiality

Audit scope Key audit matters

> Qurauditincluded full-scope > Provisions for exposures
qudits of 20 components
ond specified procedures
on certain balances and
transactions for nine -

additional compenents

> Provisions forincometax
uncertainties

Recognition of deferred tax
assets fortax losses

v

Takentogether, the
components atwhich either
full scope audit work or
specified audit procedures
were performed enabled us
to get coverage on 68% of
revenue and 76% of Headline
profit before tax



The Scope of our Audit

As part of designing our cudit, we determined materiality and
assessed the risks of material misstatementin the financial
statements, In particular, we looked at where the Directors
made subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future eventsthat are

inherently uncertain.

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it
operates, and considered the risk of acts by the Group which
were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including
fraud. We designed audit procedures at the Group and
significant component level to respond to the risk, recognising
that the risk of not detecting @ material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of not defecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery orintenticnal misrepresentations, or through
collusion. We facused on laws and regulations thar could give
rise to a material misstatement in the Group and Company
financial statements, including, but not fimited to, the UK
Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules, and global tax
compliance matters. Ourtestsincluded, buf were not fimited
to, review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying
supparting documentation, review of correspondence with
legal advisers, enquiries of management, review of significant
component auditors’ work and review of Internal Auditreports

There are inherent limitationsin the audit procedures described
ahove and the further removed non-compliance with laws

and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected

in the finencial statements, the less likely we would become
awareof it.

We did not identify any key audit mafters relating to
irregularities, including fraud. Asinall of our cudits we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including testing journals and evaluating whether
there was evidence of bias by the directers that represented
arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’
professioncl judgament, were of most significance inthe audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; end
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters,
and any comments we make on the rasults of our procedures
thereon, were addressed inthe context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, andinforming our opinicn
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. This is nat @ complete list of all risks identified by

our audit.

insofor as they related to the financial statements.

Key audit matter

How ouraudit addressed the key audit matter

125

Provisions for exposures

The Group halds a number of provisions
for exposures including those resulting
from indirect tax, regulatory, legal

and environmental matters as well

as restructuring commitments.

Refer to Restructuring Charges (Note 7),
Provisions {Note 32), Accounting Policies
and Critical Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Note 3} and Significant Issues
and Material judgemenfsinthe Audit
Committee Report (page 87).

Determining the quantum of provisions
requires the Directors to usejudgement
and estimation, and for certain provisions,
obtain specialist knowledge.

We focused onthis area duetothe
judgement and estimates involved.

We obtained an undersranding for the basis of each significant estimote and the key
assumptions used for provisions and, in certain cases, the reloted insurance assets.

Restructuring costs related to the Group's retionalisation of its operational and
support functions. The costs predeminantly included redundancies and severance
payments, professional adviser fees and otherimpairment charges for obsolete
inventories and property, plant and equipment.

> We have tested a sample of restructuring costs to determine thot these are
directly artributable to the Group's restructuring activities

> For costs which are provided for at the year-end, we have verified for a sample
of transactions that a legal or canstructive obligation exists

> From our procedures we concluded that restructuring costs were appropriately
recognised and classified within the financial statements

Far provisicns for disposal and closure costs, incduding litigation matters;

> We obtained supporting computations for the estimated costs and tested the
mathematical accuracy of these

> We discussed obligations arising with in-house and external legal counsel and
inspected supporting evidence of the history of claims arising where these were
used as inputs into client models used to estimate the provisions

> We also inspected evidence of available insurance cover and that this was
appropriately presented gross of the associated provisions (within " Other
receivables’) and considered the financial condition of insurance praviders

> We found no exceptions in respect of this work
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To the Members of Vesuvius plc continued

Key audit mattar

How our oudit addressed the key auditmatter

For all provisions we considered whether there is a range of possible ocutcomes in
respect of ecch estimate. Where appropriate, we verified that disclosure is included
within the Annual Report of this.

We also considered the impact of the provisions for exposures on the reporting and
disclosure of separately reported items and Alternate Performance Measures inthe
financial statements and verified that appropricte disclosures are made inthe
Annual Report.

Provisions for income tax uncerfainties
The Greup holds a number of previsions
for income tax exposures arising from tax
structuring, transfer pricing and local
authority reviews.

Referto Income Tax (Note 10), Accounting
Policies and Critical Accounting
Judgements and Estimares {Note 3) and
Significant Issues ond Material Judgements
inthe Audit Committee Report (page 87).

Determining the quantum of these
provisions requires the Directorsto
make judgements and estimates, and
for certain provisions, obtain specialist
knowledge.

We utilised our tax specidlists to provide a view of material judgements made. Our
audit proceduresincluded:

> Obtaining relevant computations and correspondence in respect of each material
element of the provision for income tox uncertainty

> Understanding the key assumptions made by management in recognising the
provision and forming an independent view on the reasonableness of the
assumpticns

> Assessingthe consistency of approach used to determine provisions compared
with prior periods, and considering whether such consistency remains appropriate

> Considering the range of possible outcomes in respect of the estimates and that
the Annual Report discloses the nature of the estimation uncertainty

From our procedures we concluded that the estimates are reasonable and that
approprigte disclosures have been included within the Annual Report.

Recognition of deferred tax assets for tax
lasses

In certain territories such as the US, the
Group has @ material quantum of
historical tax losses.

The determination of whether these will
be utilised inthe futureis judgemental,
particularly aste how much of these could
be reasonably expected to be utilised.

In additian, the impact of US tax changes
enacted in December 2017 requires
reassessment of the calculation of total
tax losses andthe lives aftached to these,
Thereis arisk of error and judgement
given these changes are complex and
subject to interpretation.

Refer to Income Tax (Note 10}, Accounting
Policies and Critical Accounting
Judgements and Estimates (Note 3) and
Significant Issues and Material Judgements
inthe Audit Committee Report (page 87).

We utilised cur tax specialists 1o support with the audit testing of the quontum of
taxlossesin the LiS and that thisis accurately determined, taking intc account the
year-end US tax reforms. We concluded the tax losses are accurately determined.

In addition to testing the quantum of 1ax losses:

> We tested management’s forecasts supporting the amounts recognised as a
deferred tox asset, and considered the likelihoed of forecasts being achieved

> We also considered a range of possible outcomes in the forecast and that an
appropriate midpointwas taken in selecting the amountto recognise

> We considered alternative views and whether a full versus partial recognition
approach was appropriate. We concluded that the current approach, which
recognises tax losses as deferred tax assets to the extent there is profit forecast
agoinst them which will be utilised, remains the most appropriate. We verified
that appropriate disclosure of the amount of deferred tax asset not recognised
is included within the financial statements

From our procedures we concluded that the estimate is reasonable and that
appropriate disclosures have been included within the Annual Report.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Cempany to communicatein our repart.



How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinien on the financial
statements as o whole, taking infe account the structure of

the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.

Vesuvius has operationsin 37 countries and has 66 production
sites. The Group consolidates financialinformation through
reporting from its companents which include divisicns and
functions at these sites.

Our audit scope was determined by censidering the
significance of the entity's contributionto revenue and
contribution to individua! financial statement line itemns,
with specific consideration to abtaining sufficient coverage
over areas of high risk and locations and entities where we
identified significant orinherent rigks.

We identified one significant component being the Group's
German operations which comprise 14% of the Group's revenue.
As the Group's remaining revenue is spread acrass 74 financial
reporting components there were no other individually
financially significant components. The audit scope, including
Germany, comprised 20 components for which we determined
that full-scope audits would need to be performed and nine
components for which specific audit procedures on certain
balances andtransactions were performed. This collectively
gave us coverage of 68% of the Group's revenue and 76% of
the Group's Headline profit before tax. This, together with the

Group financial stutements
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additional procedures performed at the Group level, including
testing the consalidation process, gave us the evidence we
neaded for our opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we
deftermined the type of work that needed to be performed
atthe entities by us, asthe Group engagement team, or by
component auditors of other PwC network firms. Where the
work was performed by component auditors, we defermined
the level of involvermnent and oversight we needed to have in

the audit work at those reporting unitsto be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate cudit evidence had been
obtained as a basis for our opinion on the financial statements
as awhole. This was achleved through regular update meetings
with the component auditors and visits to 17 of the 20 full-scope
components by senior members of the Group cuditteam.

Materiality

Tha scope of cur audit was influenced by our application

of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to deterrmine the scope of our audit and the nature,
tirming and extent of our audit procedures on the individual
financial staternent line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effact of misstatements, both individually and in agagregate
onthe finoncial statements as awhele.

Based on cur professionaljudgement, we determined
materiality for the financial statements as awhole as follows:

Company financial statements.

Cverall materiality £7.6 million

£7.6 million

How we determined it

5% of profit before tax and separotely
reported items (Headline profit before tax’}

1% of total assets, cappedtothe level of Group
overall materiality

Rationale for benchmark
applied

We believe that profit before tox and

separately reported items (‘Headline profit before
tax’) provides us with an appropriate basis for
determining our overall Group materiality given
itis a key measure used by users of the financial
statements. Headline profit before taxis an
Alternative Perfermance Measure presented

We believethot total assetsis anappropriate
basis for determining materiality for the Parent
Company, given this entity is an investrment
holding company and thisis an accepted auditing
benchmark. The matericlity was cappedtothe
level of Group overall materiality. The Companyis
notanin-scope component in our Group audit.

and defined in the Arnual Report and Accounts.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we
allocated a materiglity that is fess than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across
components was between £0.1 million and £7.3 million.

Certain components were audited to alocal stotutory audit
materiality thot wos olso less than our overall Group maoteriality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to them misstatements identified during our audit cbove
£0.4 million (Group and Company audit) as well as
misstaterments below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Vesuvius plc continued

Goingconcern
In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation

QOutcome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or draw attention
tainrespect of the Directors’ Statement in the financial statements cbout
whether the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directors'
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's and the Company's
ability ta continue as a going concern over a period of atleast 12 months

from the date of approval of the financial statements.

We have nothing material to add er to draw
attention to. However, because not all future
events or conditions can be predicted, this
statermnent is not g guarantee asto the
Group's and Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern.

We are required to report if the Directors' statement relating to going concern

We have nothingto report.

in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our

knowledge obtained in the qudit.

Reporting on Other Information

The otherinformation comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
Auditors' Report thereon. The Directors ore responsible for the
other information. Our apinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, cccordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or cur knowledge cbtained in
the qudit, or ctherwise oppears to be materially misstoted.

If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures fo
conclude whether there is a maoterial missiatement of the
financicl statements or a material misstatement of the other
infarmation. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude thatthere is a material misstatement of this cther
infarmation, we are required to reportthat fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibifities.

With respect to the Strategic Report ond Directors' Report, we
also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work
undertaken in the course of the audit, the Campanies Act 2006,
{CAD8), 1ISAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opinicns and
matters as described below (required by ISAs (UK) unless
otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of
the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
consistent with the financicl statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements (CAGE).

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the
Strategic Report and Directors' Report (CADS).

The Directars’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of
the Group

We have nething material to add ar draw aftention to
regarding:

> The Directors’ confirmation on page 23 of the Annual Report
that they have carried out @ robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would
threcten its business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity

The disclosures in the Annual Report that dascribe thase risks
and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

v

v

The Directors’ explanation on page 23 of the Annual Report
as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they haove done sa and why they consider
that period to be appropriate, and their statement as 1o
whether they have a reascnable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in speration and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the period of their assessmenr, including
any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

We have nathing o report having performed a review of tha
Directors' Statement that they have carried out o robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and
staternent in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group.
Our review was substantially less in scope than an audit and
only consisted of making enquiries and considering the
Directors' process supperting their statements; checking that
the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code’); and
considering whetherthe statements are consistent with the
knowledge ond understonding of the Group and Company
and their environment cbtained inthe course of the audit
(Listing Rules).



Othar Code Provisions
We have nothing toreportin respect of our responsibility fo
report when:

> The statement given by the Directors, on page 121, that
they consider the Annucl Report token as ¢ whole to be fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the infermation
necessary for the Members to assess the Group's and
Company's pasition and performance, business model and
strateqy is materially inconsistent with cur knowledge of the
Group and Company obtained in the course of perfarming
our audit

v

The section of the Annual Report on pages 85 to 92
describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by usto
the Augit Committee

> The Directors’statement relating to the Company's
compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a
departure from arelevant provision of the Code specified,
under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors

Diractors' Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’' Remuneration Repart to
be qudited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 (CA08).

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directars for the Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors'
Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements set out on page 121, the Directors are responsible
forthe preparation of the financial staternents in accordance
with the opplicable framework ond for being safisfied that they
give atrue and {air view. The Directors are alsc responsible for
such internal control os they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
matericl misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's
ability to continue 0s a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or the Company orto cease
operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

QOur chjectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as @ whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to froud or errar, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not  guarontee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs {UIK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually arin the aggregate, they could reasanably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
onthe basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the finoncial statemnents is located onthe FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/ouditarsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our Auditors’ Report.

Use of this Report

Thisreport, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Company's Members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and fer no
other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or fo any other
person to whom this report is shown orinto whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
inwriting.

Other Required Reporting
Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to
you if, In our opinion:

> Woe have notreceived all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

> Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us

> Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made

> The Company financicl staternents and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report fo be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and refurms

We have no exceptions fo report arising from this responsibiliry.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we
were appointed by the Members on 10 May 2077 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
subsequentfinancial perieds. Thisis therefore our first year of
uninferrupted engagement.

Julian Jenkins (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 February 2018
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Group Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 Q76
MSeparately WSeparately
WHendline reported BHeqdline reported
performance items Total  performance items Total

. Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4,5 1,683.9 — 1,683.9 1,401.4 — 1,401.4
Manufacturing costs (1,219.8) —  (1,219.8) (1,0718.6) — (1,018.6)
Administration, selling and distribution costs (298.6) — (298.6) (249.5) — (249.5)
Trading profit 5 165.5 — 165.5 133.3 — 1333
Amortisation of ccquired intangible assets 16 — (19.5) (19.5) — (17.1) (7
Restructuring charges 7 — (36.3) (36.3) — {28.5) (28.5)
Gain on employee benefit plan 28 — — — — 5.2 5.2
Operating profit/{loss) 165.5 (55.8) 109.7 133.3 (40.4) 929
Finance expense (17.5) — (17.5) (17.4) — (17.4)
Financeincome 36 — 3.6 29 — 29
Netfinance costs 9 (13.9) — (13.9) (14.5) — {14.5)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 35 1.3 — 1.3 1.0 — 1.0
Profit/(loss) before tax 1529 (55.8) 971 119.8 (4G.4) 79.4
Income tax {(charge)/credits 10 (36.4) (18.0) (54.4) (31.4) 5.0 (26.4)
Profit/{loss) from:
Continuing operations 116.5 {73.8) 42.7 88.4 (35.4) 53.0
Discontinued operations 22 — 1.7 1.7 — 10.2 10.2
Profit/{loss) 116.5 {72.1) 444 88.4 (25.2) 63.2
Profit/{loss) atiributable to:
Owners of the parent 110.1 (72.1) 38.0 821 (25.2) 569
Non-controliing interests 6.4 — 6.4 6.3 — 6.3
Profit/{loss) 116.5 {72.1) 44.4 88.4 (25.2) 63.2
Earnings pershare —pence M
Continuing operations  — basic 13.4 17.3

— diluted 13.4 17.3
Total operations —basic 14,1 211

—diluted 14.0 21.0

" Headline performance is defined in Nate 4.1 and separately reported iterms are defined in Nate 2.5.



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

FFor the year ended 31 December 2017
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2017 2016
Notes £m fm
Profit 44.4 63.2
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to income statement
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets 28.6 8.4 95
Income tax relating to items not reclossified 10.4 (2.4) o7
ltems that may subsequently be reclassified to income statement
Exchange differences on franslation of the net assets of foreign operations (38.3) 2077
Exchange differences ontranslation of net investment hedges 25 9.8 41.6)
Incorme tax relating to items that may be reclassified 0.7) —
Other comprehensive (loss} /income, net ofincome tax (23.2) 1749
Total comprehensive income 21.2 2381
Total comprehensive income attributable ta:
Owners of the parent 15.3 2262
Non-conirollinginterests 5.9 11.9
Total comprehensive income 21.2 2387
Totalcomprehensive income atiributable to owners of the parent arises from:
Coenfinuing operations 13.6 216.0
Discontinued operations 1.7 10.2
15.3 226.2

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent
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Group Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generoted from operations 12 175.8 130.2
interest paid {15.6) {14.5}
Interest received 35 2.4
Netinterest paid 021 (127
Income taxes paid (38.2) (34.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 125.5 839
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure {35.Q) (31.3)
Proceeds from thesale of property, plantand equipmenr 1.8 1.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries ond joint ventures, net of cash acquired 21 — {7.7)
Dividends received fromjoint ventures 1.7 2.0
Net cash outflow from investing activities (35.5) (35.4)
Net cash inflow before financing activities 90.0 48.5
Cash flows fromfinancing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 4 103.5 26.3
Repayment of borrowings 14 (92.2) {25.5)
Borrowing facility arrangement costs 14 (1.0 —
Settlement of forward foreign exchange contracts (10.4) 20.6
Dividends paid fo equity shareholders 26 (45.6) (43.9)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (2.3) (2.5)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (48.2) (25.0)
Netincreasein cash and cash equivalents 4 41.8 235
Cash and cashequivalents at 1 January 101.0 67.0
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 14 (2.8) 10.5
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 13 140.0 101.0
Alternative performance measure {non-statutory):
Continuing Discontinued 2017 Confinuing  Discontinued 2016
operations  operations total operations  operations total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Free cash flow (Note 4.10)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 126.3 (0.8} 125.5 83.9 — 839
Net retirement benefit obligations 4.8 — 4.8 7.7 — 77
Capital expenditure (39.0) — (39.0) (31.3) — (31.3)
Proceeds fromthe sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 — 1.8 1.6 — 1.6
Dividends received fromjoint ventures 1.7 — 1.7 20 — 2.0
Dividends paidte non-contralling shareholders (2.5) — {2.5) (2.5} —_ (2.5)
Free cash flow {Note 4.10) 931 (0.8) 92.3 6.4 — &1.4




Group Balance Sheet

Asat 31 December 2017
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2017 2016*

Notes £m £
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 311.3 3236
Intangible assets 16 743.0 7819
Employee benefits—netsurpluses 28 92.4 78.8
Interestsin jointventures and associates 35 17.5 18.0
Investments 1.4 2.6
Income tax recoverable 10 0.4 1.0
Deferredtax assets 10 61.0 927
Other receivables 32 30.9 304
Derivative financial instruments 20 0.2 -—
Total nen-current assets 1,2581 1,328.4
Cashandshort-term deposits 13 161.9 144.4
Inventories 19 222.8 207.7
Trade and other receivables 18 422.2 3941
Income taxrecoverable 10 5.2 39
Derivative finandialinstruments 20 0.1 —
Total current assets 812.2 7501
Total assets 2,070.3 2,078.5
Equity
Issued share capital 23 278 27.8
Retained earnings 24 2,370.3 2,370.0
Other reserves 25 (1,369.4) (1,341.4)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 1,028.7 1,056.4
Non-controllinginterests 45.4 421
Total equity 1,074.1 1,098.5
Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 272 410.5 330.8
Employee benefits—net liabilities 28 108.9 108.2
Other payables 20 17.3 16.5
Provisions 32 34.4 399
Deferred tox liabilities 10 427 48.6
Total non-current liabilities 613.8 5440
Interast-becring borrowings 27.2 25.7 133.9
Trade ond other payables 30 292.6 2397
Incometax payable 10 343 349
Provisions 32 29.8 266
Derivative financial instruments 20 — 0.9
Total current liabilities 3824 436.0
Total liabilities 996.2 980.0
Totalequity and liabilities 2,070.3 2,078.5

* Restated as a result of ¢ change in accounting policy (Note 10.1) and the recording of @ provision for which a related asset exists (Note 32).

Thefinancial statements were approved and autherised for issue by the Directors on 28 February 2018 and signed ontheir

behalf by:

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Issuedshare Cther Retained Ownersof confr«ﬁl?:é Total
capital reserves earpings the porent interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Asat1 January 2016 278 (1,501.9) 2,3465 8724 327 9051
Profit — — 569 569 6.3 63.2
Remeasurement of definad benefit iabilities/assets — — 9.5 9.5 — 9.5
Incorme tax relating fo items not reclassified — — (0.7) 0.7 — 0.7)
Exchange differences on translation of the net assets
of foreign operations — 2021 — 2021 5.6 2077
Exchange differences ontranslation of netinvestment hedges — (41.6} — 41.6) — {41.6)
Other comprehensive income, net of incame tax — 160.5 8.8 169.3 5.6 1749
Total comprehensiveincome — 160.5 657 226.2 1.9 2381
Recognition of share-bosed poyments - — 1.7 1.7 — 1.7
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — 439 (43.9) (2.5} (46.4)
Totaltransactions with owners — —_ (42.2) (42.2) (2.5) (44.7)
Asat 1 January 2017 278 (1,341.4) 2,370.0 1,056.4 421 1,098.5
Prafit —_ — 38.0 28.9 6.4 44.4
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 8.4 8.4 — 84
Income tax relating to items not reclassified — — 2.4 (2.4) — (2.4)
Exchangedifferences ontranslation of the net assets
of foreign operations — {(37.8) — (37.8) (0.5) (38.3)
Exchange differences ontranslation of netinvestrnent hedges — 9.8 —_ 9.8 — 9.8
Income tax relating to items that may be reclossified — — 0.7 0.7) — ©.7
Other comprehensive income / {loss) net of income tax — (28.0) 5.3 22.7) (0.5) (23.2)
Total comprehensive income / {loss) — (28.0) 43.3 15.3 59 21.2
Recogniticn of share-based payments — — 2.6 2.6 — 2.6
Dividends paid {Note 26) — —_ (45.6) (45.6) (2.6) (48.2)
Totaltransactions with owners —_— — (43.0) (43.0) (2.6) (45.6)

Asat 31 December 2017 278 (1,369.4 2,3703 1,028.7 45.4 1,074.1
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2.3

2.4

2.5

General Information

Vesuvius plc ('Vesuvius' or ‘the Company’) is a public company limited by shares. It is incorporated and domiciled in England
and Wales and listed on the Londen Stock Exchange. The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiary and joint venture companies (‘the Group') is set out in the Strategic Report on pages 11o 73 and its registered
address is shown on page 189.

Basis of Preparation

Basis of accounting

The Group Financiol Statemenits have been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adoptad by the European Union and with the Companies Act 2006 applicoble to companies reporting under {FRS. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of defined benefit pension
plons, certain provisions, available-for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments.

Basis of consolidation

The Group Financial Statements incorporcte the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its 'subsidiaries’). Confrol exists when the Company has the power to direct the relevant activities of an entity that
significantly affect the entity’s return so as to have rights to the variable return from its activities. In assessing whether contrel
exists, potential voting rights that are currently exerciseble are taken into account. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included inthe Group Income Statement from the effective date of acquisition er up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Group Financial Statments are set outinthe Notes,
These policies have been consistently applied to all of the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the finoncial stafements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies info line with these detailed
herein to ensure that the Group financial statements are prepored on @ consistent basis. Allintra-Group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s interest
therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the emount of those interests at the date of the original business combination
tegether with the non-controlling interasts’ share of profit or loss, each component of other comprehensiva income, and
dividends paidsince the date of the combination. Tofal comprehensiva income is attributed to the non-controlling inferests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Going concern

The Directeors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the Group for a period in excess of 12 months from the date of approval
afthe 2017 financial staterments. These forecasts reflect an assessment of current and fisture end-market conditions and
theirimpacronthe Group's future trading performance. The forecasts show that the Group will be able 1o operate within the
current committed debt facilities and show continued compliance with the Company's financial covenanis. On the basis of
the exercise described above and the Group's available committed debt facilities, the Directors consider thet the Group and
Compony hove odequete rescurces to continue in operotional existence for a period of of lenst 12 months from the dote of
signing of these accounts. Accordingly, they continue to adopt a geing concern basis in preparing the financial statements of
the Group and the Company.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial staterments are presented in millions of pound sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company,
and reunded to cne decimal place. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in Note 27.1.

Disclosure of ‘separately reported items’

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements encourages the disclosure of additiondl line items and the reordering of items
presenfed on the face of the income statement when appropriate for a proper understanding of the entity’s financial
performance. The Company has adopted a columnar presentation for its Group Income Statement, to separately identify
headline perfermance resulis, as the Directors consider that this gives a better view of the underlying results of the ongoeing
business. As part of this presentation format, the Company has adopted a policy of disclosing separately on the face of its
Group Income Statement, within the column antitted 'Separately reported itemns, the effect of any componants of finandiol
performance for which the Directors consider separate disclosure would assist both in a better understanding of the financial
performance achieved and in making projections of future results.

Both materiality and the nature and function of the components of income and expense are considered in deciding upan
such presentation. Such items may include, inter alio, the finonciol effect of exceptionol items which eccur infrequently, such
as major restructuring activity, initial recognition and subsequent increase, decrease, utilisation and impact of tax reform on
US deferred tox assets, togather with items always reported separately, such as amortisation charges relating to acquired
intangible assets, profits or losses arising on the disposal of continuing or discontinued operations and the taxation impact
of the afarementioned exceptional items and items reported separately.

S1UBLIRIRIS |BIDUDULY l



136

Vesuvius plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

2.5

2.6

Basis of Preparation {continued)

Disclosure of ‘separately reported items' {continued)

Theamortisation charge in respect of infangible assets recognised on business combniations is excluded from the trading results
ofthe Group since they are non-cash charges and are nof cansidered reflective of the core trading performonce of the Group.
Restructuring charges are excluded from the trading results of the Group due to the matericl nature of these non-recurring
transformationaf initiatives. In its adoption of this pelicy, the Company opplies on even-handed approach to both gains and
losses and aims ta be both consistent and clear in its accounting and disclosure of such items.

New and revised IFRS

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2017
reporting periods and have not been early adepted by the Group. The Group's assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below. Other new or amended standards or interpretations are not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements,

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {effective from 1 January 2018, for the year ending 2018) addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial instrurents, introduces new rules for hedge accounting end a new impairment
rnodel for financial assets. It replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments guidance and comprehensive updates have been made
to IFRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure and |AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The Group will apply IFRS 9 and
the updated IFRS 7 disclosure requirements from their effective date.

The impact assessment performed by the Group included a review of the classification and mecsurement of financial
instruments; the impairment of financial assets and the group hedging policy which resulted in the following conclusions:

> The group reviewed the classification and measurement of each of its financial instruments. Althcugh, the classification
of instruments is altered under IFRS 9, this does not result in any changes to the measurement approach apart from the
impairment of trade receivables which is oddressed below.

> The new impairment model for financial assets requires the recegnition of impairment provisions based on expected
credit losses (“ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39. The Group will apply the simplified
approachtoits frade receivables as per the scope exceptionin IFRS 9 inwhich ail loss allowances for trade receivables will
be measured at initial recognition and throughout its life at an omount equalte lifetime ECL. This is consistent with the
nature of the group's frade receivables as they do not include a significant financing component. Based on the assessments
undertaken 16 date, the group does not expect a material movement in the loss alfowance for trade debtors.

v

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for hedging instrurments more closely with the Group's risk
managemeni practices. The Group hos confirmed that its current net investment hedge relationship will qualify as a
continuing hedge upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

Based on our assessment of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group does not believe there will be a material impact onits Group
Financial Statements. Fram 1 January 2018 onwards, the Group will amend its financial instruments and hedging accounting
policies tareflect IFRS 9 terminology and prepare the appropriate disclosures regarding the classification and measurement
of financialinstruments; impairment of financial assets and hedging.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective after 1 January 2018, for the year ending 2018) establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, TAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.
The Group witl apply IFRS 15 from its effective date.

Theimpact assessment performed by the Group included a review of revenue streams and customer contracts to

idenviify distinct performance obligations and the eppropriate method for allocating the transaction price. Based on our
assessment of the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group does not believe there will be a materiatimpact on its Group Financial
Statements. During 2018, the Group will revise the revenue recognition policy ta reflect IFRS 15 terminology, prepare the
additional disclosures for the Group Financial Statemenss and continua to review contracts across all Segrments, The Group
will continue to disaggregaote revenue over Steel and Foundry in the Segmental Analysis note.
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iFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases (effective after 1 January 2019, for the year ending 2019) replaces the existing guidance in [AS 17 Leases. IFRS
16 provides a single lessee occounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease
termis 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value, The present value of the Group's operating lease payments
as defined under the new standard will be shown os lease ligbilities on the balance sheet and included in net debt. There are
anumber of differences between the two definitions; for example, where there is an option to extend the lease, payments for
the extension pericd will be included in the IFRS 16 liability if the Group is reasanably certain that itwill exercise the option,

but are not included as commitments under IAS 17,

The Groupis currently assessing the potenticl impact on its Group Financial Statements resultiing from the application of IFRS 16.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments {effective from 1 January 2019, for the year ending 2019, not yetendorsed)
darifies howto recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilites where there is uncertalnty aver
tax tfreatmentunder IAS 12. The Group is currently assessing the potentialimpact on its Group Financial Statements resulting
from the application of IFRIC 23.

IFRIC Interpretation - Interest and Penalties on Tax
The impact of the interpretation regarding the accounting freatment of interest and penalties on tax is set outin Note 10.1.

Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Determining the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities requires estimation of the effect of uncertain future events.
The major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in @ material adjustment tothe carrying
oemounts of assets or liabilities are noted below. All other accounting policies are included within the respective Notesto the
financial statements.

Provisions

Vesuvius has extensive international operations and is subject fo various legal and regulatory regimes, including those
covering taxation and environmental matters. Several of the Group's subsidiaries are parties to legal proceedings, certain of
which are insured claims arising in the ordinary course of the operations of the company involved, and are aware of a number
of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tax authorities. Provisions are made for the expected amounts
paycble in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other regulatory requirements, or from third-party
claims, as described in Note 32. As the settlement of many of the obligations for which provision is maode is subject to legal or
other regulatory process, the timing and amount of the associated cutflows are subject to some uncertainty. The Direciors
usetheir judgement and experience to make appropricte estimates of provisions in the financial statements for amounts
relating to such matters.

Taxation

(o} Currenttax

Tax benefits are nat recognised unless it is probable that they will result in future econornic benefits ta the Group. In assessing
the amount of the benefit to be recagnised inthe financial statements, the Directors exercise their judgement in considering
the effect of negotiations, jitigation and any other matters that they consider may impact upon the potential settlement.
The Group operates internationally and is subject to tax in many different jurisdictions. As a consequence, the Group is
routinely subject to tax audits and local enquiries which, by their very nature, can take a considerabie period of time to
conclude. Provisiens are made for known issues based on all substantively enacted legislation, the Directors' interpretation
of country-specific tax low and their assessment of the likely outcome, faking into consideration the Group's experience in
agreeing tax liabilities with tax authorifies and appropricte external advice. Asindicatedin Note 10.5, these provisions
amount 1o £23.2m (2016: £24.5m) at the end of 2017. Further discussion of these provisions is contained in that Note. All
incame tax lichilities, provisions and assets are treated as income tox payable and recoverable in accordance with IAS 12,

(b) Deferredtax

The Group hasrecognised deferred tax assefs in respect of unutilised tosses and other timing differences arising in a number
of the Group's businesses, further details of which are given in Note 10.4. Account has been taken of future forecasts of taxable
profitin orriving at the values at which these ossets are recognised. If these forecast profits do not materialise or change, or
there are changes intax rates or to the period over which the losses or timing differences might be recognised, then the value
of deferred tax assets wifl need to be revised in afuture period.
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4.5

4.6

Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

(&) Deferredtax (continued)

The Group also has losses and other timing differences, also analysed in Note 10.4, for which no deferred tax ossets have

been recognised in these financicl statements, relating eithertoloss-making subsidiaries whera the future economic benefit of
the timing difference is not probable or to where the timing difference is of such @ nature that its value is dependent on certain
types of profit being earned, such as capital profits. if trading or other appropriate profits are earned in the future in these
companies, these losses and cther timing differences may yield benefitto the Group inthe form of a reduced tox charge.

Asexplaoinedin Note 10.2, the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) enacted in late December 2017 had a material impact on
the Group's deferred tax position. TC JA wos introduced very rapidly, and consequently there is much uncertainty obout how
some of the provisions will operate. As explained in Note 10.6, Vesuvius currently understands that the Base Erosion and
Anti-Abuse Tax {BEAT Y willimpact its tax charge in the US in 2018 and beyond, in relation to certain payments made to
non-US related parties. Further clarification is awaited from US Treasury so the precise impact of BEAT cannot be
determinad with certainty at this point.

Other reasonable estimations have been made in determining how US taxreform willimpact on Vesuvius' US 2017 deferred
tox position in portficular in relation 1o earnings and profiss of Vesuvius' non-US investrents to be included in the deemed
repatriation tolling charge calculationsincluded in its 2017 taxable income.

Asguidanceis given by the US Treasury Department on how these, and other provisions of TCJA, are to operate, Vesuvius' tax
posftion may be impacted.

Alternative Performance Measures

The Compeny uses a number of alternative performance measures (APMs) in addition to those reported in accordance

with IFRS, The Directors believe that these APMSs, listed below, are important when assessing the underlying financial and
operating performance of the Group and its divisions, providing management with key insights and metrics in support of the
ongoing management of the Group's perfermance and cash flow. A number of these align with KPl's and other key metrics
used in the business and therefore are considered useful to also disclose 1o the users of the financial statements. The following
APMs do not have standardised meaning prescrited by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with similar
measures presented by other companies.

Headline
Headline perfarmance, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is from continuing operations and
before items reported separately on the face of the Graup Income Statement.

Underlying revenue, underlying trading profit and underlying return on sales

Underlying revenue, underlying troding profit ond underlying return on sales are the headline equivalents of these measures
after adjustments to exclude the affects of changes in exchange rates, business acquisitions and disposals. Reconciliations of
underlying revenue and underlying treding profit can be found in the Financial Review. Underlying revenue growth is cne of
the Group’s key performance indicators and provides an important measure of organic growth of Group businesses between
reporting perieds, by eliminoting the impact of exchange rates, acquisitions, disposals and significant business closures.

Return on sales (ROS)
ROS s caleulated as trading profit divided by revenue. It is one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess
the trading performance of Group businesses. A reconciliation of ROS isinciuded in Note 5.3,

Trading profit

Trading profit, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is defined as operating profit before
separately reported iterns. Itis one of the Group's key perfermance indicators and is used o assess the trading performance
of Group businesses. It is also used as one of the targets against which the annual bonuses of certain employees are measured.

Headline profit before tax

Headline profit before tax, reported separately on the foce of the Group Income Statement, is caleulated as the net total of
trading profit, plusthe Group's share of post-tax profit of joint ventures and total net finance costs associated with headline
performance. Itis one of the Group's key performance indicators andis used to assess the financial performance of the Group
as awhole.

Effective tax rate (ETR}
The Groug's ETR is caleulated onthe income tax costs associated with headline performance, divided by headline profit
before tax and before the Group's shara of posi-tax profit of joint ventures.
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Headline earnings per share

Headline earnings per share is calculated by dividing headline profit before tax less associated income tax costs, attributable
to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary sharesin issue during the year. It is one of the Group's key
performance indicators and is used to assess the underlying earnings performance of the Group os awhole. It is also used

as one of the targets against which the annual bonuses of certain employees are measured. Headline earnings per share is
disclosed in Note 11.

Operating cash flow

Operating cash flow is cash generated from continuing operations before restructuring and net retirement benefit
obligations but after deducting capitel expenditure net of asset disposals. Itis used in calculating the Group's cash conversian.
A reconciliation of cash generated fram operations to operating cash flow can be found in the Financial Review,

Cash conversion

Cash conversion is calculated as operating cash flow from continuing operations divided by trading profit. it is useful for
measuring the rate at which cash is generated from trading profit. Itis also used as one of the targets against which the annual
bonuses of certain employees are measured. The calculation of cash conversionis deteiled in the Financial Review.

Free cash flow

Free cash flowis defined as net cash flow from operating activities after net ouilays for the purchase and sale of property,
plant and equipment, dividends from joint ventures and dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders, but befere additional
funding contributions to Group pension plans. Itis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess the
underlying cash generation of the Group and is one of the measures used in monitoring the Group's capital. A reconciliation

of free cash flowis included underneath the Group Statement of Cash Flows.

Average trade working capital to sales ratio

The average trade working capital to sales ratio is calculated as the percentage of average trade working capital balances
tothetotal revenue for the year, af constant currency. Average trade working copital (comprising inventories, trade
receivables and trade payables) is calculated as the avercge of the 12 previous month-end balances. [tis cne of the Group's
key performance indicators and is useful for measuring the level of working capital usedin the business andisone of the
measures used in monitoring the Group's capital.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

EBITDA s calculated as the total of trading profit before depreciation and amortisation of non-acquired intangible assets.
It7s used in the calculation of the Group's interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios, A reconciliation of EBITDA s included
inNote 12.

Net interest
Nef inferest is calcufated as inferest payable on borrowings fess inferest receivable, excluding any ifem separately reported.
itis used in the calculation of the Group's interest caver rafic.

Interest cover

Interest cover is the ratio of EBITDA fo netinterest. Itis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used ta assess the
financial positicn of the Group and its ability ta fund future growth. This measure is also @ component of the Group's covenant
calculations.

Net debt

Net debt comprises the net total of current and non-current interest-bearing borrowings and cash and shaort-term depaosits.
Net debtis @ measure of the Group's net indebtedness to banks and other external financial instituticns. A reconciliation of
the movement in net debt is included in Note 14 of the Group Financial Statemenis.

Net debt to EBITDA

Net debtto EBITDA is the ratio of net debt at the year-end to EBITDA for that year. It is one of the Group's key performance
indicators andis used to assess the financial position of the Group and its ability to fund future growth andis one of the
measures used in monitoring the Groug's capital.

Return on net assets (RONA)

RONA s caleulated as trading profit plus share of post-tax prefit of jaint ventures, divided by average net opercting assets, at
constant currency {being the average over the previcus 12 menths of property, plant and equipment, trade working capital and
other operating receivables and payables). It is ane of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess the financiol

performance and asset manegerment of the Group and is one of the measures used in monitoring the Group's capiral.

Constant currency
Figures presented at constant currency represent 2016 amounts retranslated to average 2017 exchaonge rates.
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Segment Information

The segment information contained in this Note makes reference to several alternative performance mensures, definitions

of which can be found in Note 4.

Business segments

Operoting segments for continuing operations

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided fo the Executive Directors of
the Beard, who make the key operating decisions and are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the opercting segments. Reflecting the Group's management and internal reporting structure, segmental information is
presented in respect of the two main business segments: Steel and Foundry. The Steel segment aggregates the Flow Cantrol,
Advanced Refractories and Digital Services divisions which are subjectto a similar risk profile and return. The principal

activities of each of these segments are described in the Strategic Report on pages 32 1o 49.

Segment revenue represents revenue from external customers (inter-segment revenue is not material). Trading profitincludes

iterns directly atiributcble to o segment as well as those itemns that can be allocated on a reasonable bas's.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered to
customners affer deducting rebates, discounts and value-added taxes, and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when persuasive eviderice exists thet the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
beentransferred to the custemer, recovery of the consideration is probable, there is no centinuing management involvement
with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured refiably. A provision for anticipated returns is made based
primarily on historical return rates. Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or more separate elements that can

be provided to customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an extra, such asthe provision of supplementary materials with
equipment, revenue is recognised for each element as if it were an individual contractual arrangement.

Income statement

The operating segment results from continuing operations for 2017 and 2016 are presented below.

2017

Continuing

Steel Foundry  operations

£m m £m

Segment revenue 1,148.7 5352 1,683.9
Segment EBITDA 1289 BO.3 209.2
Segment depreciation {28.5) {15.2) (43.7)
Segment trading profit 100.4 65.1 165.5
Return on sales margin 8.7% 12.2% G.8%
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets {19.5)
Restructuring charges (36.3)
Operating profit 109.7
Net finance costs (13.9)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 1.3
Profit before tax 97.1
24,0 10.3 44.3

Capital expenditure additions
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2016

Continuing

Steel Foundry  operofions

£m £m £m

Segment revenue 942.0 4594  1,401.4
Segment EBITDA 107.0 68.6 175.6
Segment depreciation (27.8) (14,5) (42.3)
Segment trading profit 79.2 541 133.3
Return onsales margin 8.4% 11.8% 9.5%
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 71
Restructuring charges (28.5)
Gainonemployee benefit plan 52
Operating profit 929
Net finance costs (14.5}
Share of post-tax profit of jeint ventures 1.0
Profit before tax 79.4
Capital expenditure additions 237 11.5 35.2

Geogrophical analysis
Externol revenue Non-current assets

2017 2016 2077 2006

£m £m £m £m

us 279.4 2409 288.2 3185
Germany 2321 192.4 101.0 121.5
Indio 136.5 119.2 427 397
China 127.6 1131 86.9 3.2
Brazil 90.5 707 65.1 69.2
UK &64.0 5%.4 107.2 1185
France 55.4 48.0 261 201
Spain 49.4 42.5 31.9 277
Rest of the world 649.0 515.2 355.6 349.0
Continuing operations 1,683.9 1,401.4 1,104.7 1,158.4

* Restatad os aresult of the recording of o provision for which arelated asset exists (Note 32).

External revenue disclosed in the table above is based upon the geographical location of the operation. Non-current assets
exclude employee benefits net surpluses and deferred tax assets. Information relating to the Group's products and services
is given in the Strategic Report on pages 36 1o 49. The Group is not dependent upen any single customer for iis revenue and
no single customer, for either of the years presented in the fable above, accounts for marethan 10% of the Group's fotal

external revenye.
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Amounts Payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their Associates

2017 2016
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for the audit of the parent Company
and Consolidated Financial Stotements 0.4 0.4
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for other services:
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries 0.8 1.5
Audit-reloted assurance services 0.1 0.1
Tax compliance and advisory — —
Total auditors’ remuneration 1.3 2.0

PricewaterhouseCooners LLP was appointed asthe Group's external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2077, replacing
KPMG LLP.

Total auditors’ remuneration of £1.3m in 2017 all related to continuing operations, of which £1.2m related to audit fees
and £0.1m of non-audit fees, in respact of the interim review fee {2016: £2.0m, including £1.9m of audit fees and £0.1m of
non-audit fees, the latter comprising £0.1min respect of the interim review fee and £nil for taxation advice).

Muazars LLP wos oppoeinted external auditor of the non-material entities within the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017. Total remuneration for the audit of the non-material entities was £0.4min 2017, This amountis not included in the
table above.

It is the Group’s policy netto use the Group's auditors for non-audit services other than in very limited circumstances and when
they are best placed to do so.

Restructuring Charges

The 2017 restructuring charges were £36.3m (2016: £28.5m). The Group-wide restructuring programme initiated in 2015
continued, resulting in charges of £36.3m {(2016: £28.5m) reflecting redundancy costs of £22.8m (2016: £21.4m), plant closure
costs of £0.5m (2016: £4.2m), consultancy fees of £6.8m (2016: £2.0m), aninventory/asset write-off of £5.5m (2016: £0.9m)
and travel of £6.7m (2016: £nil). Further details of restructuring programmes are provided inthe Financial Review.

The net tax credit attribuiable fo the total restructuring charges was £4.3m (2016: £3.8m).

Cash costs of £27.3m (2016: £16.8m) (Note 12) were incurred in the year in respect of the restructuring programme, leaving
provisions made but unspent of £22.9m (Note 32) as at 31 December 2017 (2016: £18.5m), of which £2.7m (2016: £2.7m;}
relates to future costsin respect of leases expiring between one and six years.

Employees

Employee benefits expense
2017 2016
£m fm
Woaoges and solaries 344.0 301.6
Socialsecurity costs 52.2 46.7
Redundancy costs 22.8 21.4
Orther restructuring costs — 0.2
Share-based payments (Nate 29) 2.6 1.7
Pension costs —defined contribution pension plans (Note 28) 12.5 10.7
—defined benefit pansion plans {(Note 28) 7.0 2
Other post-retirement benefits (Note 28) 0.4 0.4
Total employee benefits expense 441.5 384.8

Ofthe total employee benefits expense of £441.5m (2016: £384.8m), £418.1m (2016: £367.1m) was chargedin arriving
attrading profit, £nil {2016: £5.2m) was credited from settlement gains relating to employee benefit plans, £0.6m

(2016: £1.3m) was charged within ordinary net finance costs, and £22 .8m (2016: £21.6m) was charged o restructuring costs.
Within redundancy costs reported in the table abave are £nil (2016: £0.3m) of defined benefit pension plan costs and £0,1m
(2016: £0.1m) of defined coniribution pension plan costs.

At constant rates, the total employes benefits expense for 2016 was £409.6m.
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Average number of employees

2017 2016

no no.

Steel 7,868 7,725
Foundry 3,106 3,101
Continuing operations 10,974 10,826
Discontinued operations — —
Total average number of employees 10,974 10,826

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group had 11,010 employees (2016: 10,840).

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who cre the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for
each of the categeries specified in |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Furtherinformation abeut the remuneration of individual
Directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 106 10 116.

2017 2016

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 1.9 1.5
Post-employment benefits 0.2 03
Share-based payments 0.7 0.5
Total remuneration of key management personnel 2.8 2.3

Net Finance Costs

Accounting policy

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of on asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Capitalised borrowing costs for 2017 were £nil (2016: £nil). All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense inthe
Group Income Starement using the effective interest rate method.

Total net finance costs

2017 2016
£m £m
Interest payable on borrowings
Loans, overdrafts and factoring arrangements 15.9 151
Cbligations under financeleases 0.2 0.2
Amortisation of capitalised arrangement fees 0.6 0.5
Totalinterest payable on borrowings 16.7 15.8
Interest on net retirement benefit obligations 0.6 1.3
Adjustmentto discounts on provisions and other liabilities 0.2 {0.2)
Adjustment to discounts on receivables (0.1) 0.3
Finance incoma (3.5) (2.7)
Totalnet finance costs 13.9 14.5
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10. Income Tax

10.1 Accounting policy
Tox expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit orloss
except to the extent that they relate fo items charged or credited in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income or Group
Statement of Changes in Equity, in which case the associated fax is also recognised in those statements.

In arriving arits current fax charge, the Group also makes careful assessment of the likely impact of tax law changes.
In particular, it has considered the impact of US tax reform enacted in December 2017 in the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
{TCJIA) and other recently announced tax reform, for example in Belgium.

Current tax

Current tax is based an taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Group
Incomne Staterment because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes itemsthat are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws
that hove been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

A provision is recognised when the Group considers it has a present tax obligation as the result of o past event and it is
probable that the Group will be required ta settle that obligation. Provisians established for such uncertain tax positions are
made using a best estimate of the tax expected to be paid, based on a qualitative and quantitative assessment of all relevant
information. Such a provisian is typically required where the underlying fax issue is subject to interpretation and remains to be
agreed, and therefore is uncertain as to outcome. Principally the uncertain tax positions for which a provision is made relate
tothe interpretation of tax legislation ond guidance regarding transfer pricing arrangements that have been entered into in
the normal course of business. In accardance with IAS 12, tax provisions are included as income tax payable on the face of
the Group Balance Sheet, and movements intax provisions are included within income tax charges or credits inthe Group
Income Statement.

In assessing ony appropriate provision requirements for uncertain tax items, the Group considers progressmade in
discussions with the tax autherities, expert advice on the likely outcome ond any recent developments in case law. Due fo the
uncertainty associated with such rax items, it is possible that ot a future date, on conclusion of the open matters, the final
outcome may vary significantly. Any such variations will affect the financial resultsin the year in which such a determination
is made.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recognised on diffarences between the carrying amounits of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of toxable profit ond is accounted for using the bolance sheet
liability method. Deferredtax liabifities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax

ossefs are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be availeble ogainst which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilitiesina
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, Deferred tax is caleulated at the tox rates that are
expectedto applyin the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tox rates and laws that have been
enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax ligbilities are recognised fortaxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests
injcint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
tempaorary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets isreviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assetto be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforcecble
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets ond lichilities on o net bosis.

Change in accounting policy

Previously, the common understanding and interpretotion of 1AS 12 allowed a companytoinclude in its tax charges, liabilities
and provisions any associated delayed settlement inferest and penalties. Vesuvius followed this approach. The recent
clarification by the IFRS Interpretotions Commitiee (previously the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee, IFRIC), however, is that a company should include in ts tax charges, liabilities and provisions only items meeting
the strict definition of taxes under IAS 12. It confirmed that items not meeting that definition should ke reported in accordance
with 1AS 37.



10.2

Vesuvius has accordingly changed its accounting policy to include interest and penclties on tox in trade and other payablesin
accordance with |AS 37. This has resulted in a change te its Group Bolance Sheet as at 31 December 2016 to reclassify £7.0m
fromits licbilities and provisions previously reported as tax to trade and other payables. The effect of this change onits 2016
performance statements is immaterial and no restatement is therefore required to be made.

Income tax charge
2017 2016
£m £rn
Current tax
Overseas taxation 371 383
Adjustments in respect of prior years (\¥))] (29
Total current tax, continuing operations 35.4 35.4
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of temporarytaxable differences 19.0 X0)
Adjustments in respect of prior years — —
Total deferred tax, continuing operations 19.0 (2.0)
Totalincome tax charge 54.4 26.4
Totalincome tax charge attributable to:
Continuing operations — headline performance 36.4 3.4
—separately reported 18.0 (5.0)
Totalincome tax charge 54.4 264

Included inthe Group's total income tax charge are charges and credits meeting the ¢riteria set outin Note 2.5, to be treated
as separately reported items, as analysed in the following table:

2017 2016
Separately reportad items £m £m
Impact ofUS taxreform 24.5 —
Other ytifisation of previously recognised US deferred tax asset 4.2 6.2
Additional recognition of US deferred tax asset (0.9 8.1)
Net movement in US deferred tax asset 28.3 21
Restructuring charges (4.3) (2.8)
Gainon employee benefit plan — 0.4
Amortisation and utilisation of ccquired intangibles (6.0 (3.7
Totaltax charge/(credit) separately reported 18.0 (5.0)

The US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act { TCJAT enacted in the US in December 2017 has had a material impact on the value of the
deferred tax asset the Group recognises inthe US. It has reduced the asset by $33.1m (£25.7m), of which $31.5m (£24.5m)

is chargedtothe Group Income Statement and $1.6m (£1.2m) is charged to the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income,
as it relates to the effect of the change in the US Federal rate of tax on the value of the deferred tax asset on pension deficits
recognised inthat statement.

The reduction was principally due to the change in Federal tax rate from 35% to 21%, the deemed repatriation tolling charge
and the impact of other changes when measuring the value of the asset which is recognised in the Group Balance Sheet.
However, no current tax liability has resulred from these provisionsin 2017, due to the availability of tax losses and foreign tax
credits to offsef the resultant additional taxable income. The impacr of US tax reform, together with normal changes fo the
US deferred tax asset, resulted in the asset reducing from $81.3m (£65.9m) at the end of 2016 to $44.0m {£32.6m) at the end
of 2017.

In 2017, Belgium reduced its tax rate to 29%in 2078 and 25%in 2020. This has had the impact of reducing the deferred tax
assetin Belgium by £1.4min 2017 (2016: £nil). Thisimpact is included in the tota! deferred tax charge on continuing operations.
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Income Tax (continued)

income tax charge {continued)

The nettax charge reflected in the Group Statement of Caomprehensive Income in the year amounted to £3.1m (2016: £0.7m),
£2.4m of which related ta tax on net actuorial goins and losses on the employee benefits plan, In addition, £0.7m (2076; £nil)
related to UK tax in respect of foreign exchange differences arising on hedged positions.

The Group operates in a number of countries that have differing tax rates, laws and practices, Changes in any of these

areas could, adversely or positively, impact the Group's tax charge in the future. Continuing losses, or insufficiency of faxable
profitto absorb all expenses, in any subsidiary, could have the effect of increasing tax charges in the future as effective tax
relief may not be availeble for those losses or expenses. Other significant factors offecting the tax charge are described in

Notes 3.2,10.1 and 10.6.

In 2016, profit from discontinued operations {Note 22) included ataxcredit of £5.0m relating to the release of a provision for
possible China taxes arising during the demerger of the Alent business in 2012. After further consukation with advisers, and in
light of the publication in 2015 by the Chinese fax authorities of additional guidance on the applicable taxes, It was decided
this provision was no longer required. No similar credit has arisenin 2017,

Reconciliation of income tax charge to profit before tax

2017 2016
£m £m
Profit before tax 971 79.4
Taxatthe UK corperationtax rate of 19.25% (2016: 20%) 18.7 159
Impact of tax rate change on deferred tax asset 19.5 —
Qverseas tax rate differences 9.8 2.7
Withholding taxes 4.4 3.6
Amortisation of intangibles 0.2 (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.2 1.6
Incometaxed in advance 3.6 4.6
Non-taxableincome — 1.2)
Deferred tax asset not previously recognised (1.4 (4.1
Deferred tax Gssets nof recognised 3.5 7.5
Ukilisartion of previously unrecognised tax losses (2.0 0.0
Adjustmentsin respect of prior years (1.7) 2.9
Totalincometax charge 54.4 264
Deferred tox
Other Other
eparating Pension Intangible  temporary
Interest losses costs assets  differences Total
£ £m £m fm £m £m
Asat 1 January 2016 241 23.8 13 (30.4) 7.3 26.1
Exchange adjustments/cther 45 25 19 4.2 4.4 9.1
Chargeto Group Statement of Comprehensive Income — — ©.7) — — {0.7)
Creditto Group Income Statement 0.2 38 — 5.3 1.8 11.1
Net {chorge)/credit to Group Income Statement US (2.7 0.2) — — 0.2 2.1
Asat1January 2017 26.7 299 2.5 (29.3) 13.7 43.5
Exchange adjustments/other (1.8) (1.8) — 0.2 ©.4) (3.8)
Impact of tax rate change:
—in Group income Statement (6.8) (8.6} (0.8) — (3.3) {19.5)
—in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income — — 1.2} — — {1.2)
Other charge to Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income — — {1.2) — — (1.2)
Other credit to Group Income Statement — 0.6 0.1 6.2 3.8 10.7
Other net (charge)/credit to Group Incorne Staternent US (8.2) (3.0) 0.6 (0.2) 0.6 (10.2)
Asat31 December 2017 9.9 171 — (23.1) 14.4 18.3




147

2017 2016
£m fm
Recognised inthe Group Balance Sheet as:
Non-current deferred tax assets 61.0 92.1
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (42.7) (48.6)
Net total deferred tax assets 18.3 435

Included inthese deferred tax assets and liabilities are ameunts to be expected to be utilised in 2018 as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 1.3 16.9
Deferred tax liabilities (7.6) (6.7)

As discussed in Note 10.2, US tax reform enactad in TCJA has had ¢ major impact on the Group's US deferred tax pesition.
Note 3.2 outlines the principal judgements and estimates taken in determining the impact of that reform on the valuation of
this asset.

Included in non-current deferred tax assets is £32.6m (2016: £65.9m) in respect of the partial recognition of tamporary
differences arising in the US computed in accordance with the policy set cut in Note 10.7 above. The Group remains confident
of the recovery of this asset. £69.2m {2016: £100.4m) remains unrecognised.

inview of its material size and nature, any tax credit reflected in the Group Income Statement arising from the recognition of
this asset is presented separcately from the tax charge on headline performance, in accordance with the principles cutlined in
Note 2.5. Subsequent increase, decrease and utilisation of the resultant deferred tax asset would similarly be expected to be
prasented in this manner, as the Directors consider that the separate identification of deferred tax for material temporary
differences would assist beth in a better understanding of the financial performance achieved, and in making projections
of future results of the Group.

Tax loss carry-forwards and other temporary differences with o tax value of £1m (2016: £1.4m) were recognised by subsidiaries
reporting a loss. On the basis of approved business plans of these subsidiaries, the Direciors consider it probable that the tax
loss carry-forwords and temporary differences can be offset against future taxable profits.

The total deferred tax assets not recognised as at 31 December 2017 were £219.9m (2016: £263.1m), as analysed below.

In accordance with the accounting policy in Note 10.1, these items have not been recognised as deferred tax assets on the
basis that their future economic benefit is not probable. In total, there was a decrease of £43.2m (2016: £6.4m incregse) in
net unrecognised deferred tax assets during the year, principally due fo the impact of the change in the US Federal tax rate
from 35%10 21%, enacted in TCJA.

2017 2016

£m £rn

Operafinglosses (further described below) 102.3 118.6
Unrelieved US interest (may be carried forward indefinitely) 43.2 66.6
Capitallosses availoble fo of fset future UK copital gains (may be corried forward indefinitely) 28.1 28.0
UK ACT credits {may be carried forward indefinitely) 13.1 131
US tox credits 16.7 91
QOthertemporary differences 16.5 27.7
Total deferred tax assets not recognised 219.9 2631

£5.5mrelating to US tax credits has been reclassified from other temporary differences to US tax credits in the 2016 comparative.

The Group has significant net cperating losses with a tax value of £119.4m {2016: £148.5m), enly £17.1m (2016: £29.9m) of
which meet the criteric sef outin Note 10.7 to berecognised on the Group Balance Sheet.
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10. Income Tax (continued)

10.4 Deferred tax (continued)

Operating  Operating Operating  Operating

losses lossesnot losses losses not
recognised  recognised Total recognised  recognised Total
2017 207 2017 2016 20156 056
£m £m £m £m £m £m
UK {may be carried forward indefinitely) — 73.5 73.5 — 78.6 78.6
USA{duetoexpire 2024 - 2031) 13.3 37 17.0 26.5 49 3.4
ROW {may be carried forward indefinitely) 3.5 21.5 250 34 23.0 26.4
ROW {due to expire within 5 years) 0.3 3.6 39 — 124 12.1
17.1 102.3 119.4 293 118.6 148.5

The £28.9m (2016: £38.5m) operating losses available to set against future income inthe rest of the world arise in a number of
countries, reflecting the spread of the Group's operations.

As af 31 Decembar 2017, tha Group had unrecognised US tax credits with avalue of £16.7m (2016: £9.1m} as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

US researchand experimentation credits (due to expire 2018-2033) 12.8 49
US foreigntax credits (due fo expire 2022-2024) 39 4.2
US tax credits 16.7 9.1

There are no temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interesss in joint ventures for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised. The nggregate temporary differences where the exernption net 1o provide
for the deferred taxation liability has been taken is £197.1m (2016: £175.9m).

UK corparation tax rate reductions to 17% from 1 April 2020 were enacted in 2016, Accordingly, the Group's dosing UK
deferred tax liability has been provided using a taxrate of 17% except where the raversals are expectad to arise prior to

1 April 2020,
10.5 Incometax payable and recoverable

2017 2016
im £m
Liabilities forincome tax payable 111 10.4
Provisions for uncertain tax provisions 23.2 24.5
34.3 349
Income tax recoverable within ocne year 5.2 39
Income tax recovarable after more than one year 0.4 1.0
Totalincome tax recoverable 5.6 49
Net liability 28.7 30.0

Provisions for uncertain tax provisions are calculated in accordance with the policy outlined in Note 101, and are treated as
income tax payable and recoverable in accordance with 1AS 12.

These provisions cover litigated tax matters as well as provisions for other risks where the Group believes it is more likely than
not that there would be @ successful challenge by atax autharity to positions it hasfaken in its tax filings. By its nature, fitigation
can result in sharp fluctuations in cash flow, both in and out, relating to taxes. Currently, management do notexpect any
material cdjustments to these provisions in 2018.
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10.6 Key factorsimpacting the sustainability of the effective fax rate are as foltows:

Material changesin the gecgraphic mix of profits

The Group's effective tox rote is sensitive fo changesin the geogrophic mix of profits and level of profits, and reflects o
combination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions such as India, Mexico, Germany and Belgium, nil effective tax rates in
the UK and the US due to the availability of unutilised tox losses, and rates that lie somewhere in between.

Changes intax rates, tax reform and itsinterpretation

Changesintax rates and laws in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates could have a material effect on the Groups
effective tax rate. As stated in Note 10.1, the Group has taken into account the iImpact of US and other tox reform enacted
in2017.

Cne of the new taxes intfroduced by the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act { TCJA) inthe US in December 2017 is the Base Erosion and
Anti-Abuse Tax (BEAT') {see also Note 3.2{b}). This is infended to counter what US tax autharities regard as eresion of the US
tax base of a US company caused by payments, other than for cost of goods scld, to its o non-US offiliates. In its broadest
sense, this would establish a base tax of 10% of o US company’s normal taxable income as grossed up by such payments.

The rate of tax applied is 5% in 2018, increasing to 10% from 2019. Whilst this does not impact Vesuvius in 2017, itis currently
estimated to resuitin a US cash tax cost from 2018 onwards and thus increase the Group's effective rate of tax on Headline
performance {before its share of joint venture income) geing forward by 0.7% in 2018, and 1.2% in 2019. The Group's effective
tax rate for 2018 onwards is expected to be between 27% and 28%, including the expected adverse impact of US tax reform,
reflecting the benefit of initiatives being taken.

TCJA is a major new piece of legislation, introduced very rapidly, consequently there is still much uncertainty abour how some
of the key provisions will operate. The infernational provisions in particular are extremely complex and, with fittle issued
guidance from the US Treasury, are not yet fully understood by the business or adviser community. Vesuvius has taken advice
on how TCJA s likely to impact onits tax position, but itis fo be expected that, as guidance and interpretation clarifies these
newlaws, then further changes toits tax charges and balances may need to be made.

Availability of tax advantaged rates

Vesuvius in China qualifies for a tax advantaged rate of 15% (rather than the headline rate of 25%), on part of its profits due
ta the high-technology nature of its business. Eligibility for this rate is reviewed on a regular basis by the Chinese tax authority,
and was worth approximetely £0.9min 2017 (2016: £1.0m). Without that benefit, the Group's effective tox rate on headline
performance would hove been 0.6% higher in 2017 (2016: 0.8%,).

Resolution of tax judgements

At any one time, the Group can be subject to a number of challenges by tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
The outcome of these challengesis inherently uncertain, potentially resulting in @ different tax charge from the amounts
initially provided.

Recognition of tax benefits arising from brought forward losses ond other temporary differences in the US

In accordance with the ¢riteria set outin Note 10.1, movements in Vesuvius' US deferred tax asset are recognised as separately
reported items. Consequently, such movements have noimpact on the Group's effective tax rate on headline performance.
Should, however, the 2017 profits earned inthe US have been fully subject to US Federal and State taxes, then the Group's
effactive tax rate on headline performance (excluding the Group's share of post-tax profit of jeint ventures) would hove been
approximately 4.2% higher (2016: 3.4% higher).

Impact of Brexit on Vesuvius'tax position

How Brexitimpacts on Vesuvius will depend cn the terms of Brexit, which are as yet unclear and therefore it is not possible at
this stage to provide precise guidance on how it will impact on the Group. Ifthe EU Parant Subsidiary and Interest and Royalty
directives were nolonger to apply to dividend, interest and other payments to Vesuvius in the UK, additional withholding taxes
would become payable subject to reliefs available under applicable tax treaties.
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1.
111

11.2

1.3

Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings for EPS

Basic and diluted EPS from continuing operations are based upon the profit attributable to owners of the parent, as reported
in the Group Income Statement, of £36.3m (2016; £46.7m), being the profit for the year of £42.7m (2016: £53.0m) less
non-controlling interests of £6.4m (2016: £6 .3m); basic and diluted EPS from total operations are bosed on the profit
attributable to owners of the parent of £38.0m (2016: £56.9m); headline and diluted headline EPS gre based upen headline
profit fram continuing operations attributable to owners of the parent of £110.1m {2076: £82.1m). The table below reconciles

these different prefit measures.

Continuving Discontinued 2017 Continuing Discontinued 26
operations  opergtions total cperations  operations total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 363 1.7 38.0 467 10.2 569
Adjustments for separately reported items:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 19.5 171
Resfructuring charges 36.3 28.5
Gain onemployee benefir plan . (5.2)
Income tax charge / {credit) 18.0 (5.0)
Headling profit attributable to owners
of the parent 110.1 82.1
Weighted average number of shares
2017 2016
millions millians
For caleulating basic and headline EPS 270.3 2698
Adjustment for potentially dilutive ordinary shares 1.3 0.8
For calculating dilvted and diluted headline EPS 271.6 270.7

For the purposes of calculating diluted and diluted headline EPS, the weighted average number of ordinary shares is adjusted
to include the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all potentially dilutive
ordinary shares expected to vest, relating to the Company's share-based payment plans. Potenticl ordinary shares are only
treated as dilutive when their conversion to ardinary shares would decrease EPS, or increase loss per share.

Pershare amounts
Centinuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing Discentinued 2016
operations  operations total operafions  operations total
pence pence pence pence pence pence
Earnings pershare  —basic 13.4 0.7 141 17.3 38 211
—hecdline 407 30.4
—diluted 13.4 0.6 14.0 17.3 37 21.0
—diluted headline 40.5 30.3




12.

13.

14,

15.
15.1

Cash Generated from Operations
Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing Discontinued 2016
operations  operations total operotions  operations total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 109.7 1.7 111.4 929 1.2 941
Adjustmenits for:
Amortisation of acquired infangible assets (Note 16) 19.5 — 19.5 171 — 171
Restructuring charges 36.3 — 36.3 28.5 — 28.5
Gainsrelating to employee benefit plans -— — — (5.2) — (5.2)
Depreciation 437 — 43.7 42.3 — 42.3
EBITDA (Note4.12) 209.2 1.7 210.9 175.6 1.2 176.8
Net increase ininventories (19.4) —_ (19.4) 8.9) — {8.9)
Netincrecseintradereceivables (36.9) — (36.9) (18.6) — (18.6)
Net increaseintrade payables 441 — 441 145 — 14.5
Netdecrease/{increase) in other working capital 11.7 (2.5) 9.2 (7.9) (1.2} (9.7}
Outflow related ta restructuring charges (27.3) — 27.3) (16.8) — {(16.8)
Net retirement benefit obligations 4.8) — (4.8) 2.7 — (7.7)
Cash generated from operations 176.6 (0.8) 175.8 130.2 — 130.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2015
£m £m
Cashatbark andin hand 161.9 144.4
Cash and short-term deposits 1619 144.4
Bank overdrafts (219 (43.4)
Cash and cash equivalents inthe Group Statement of Cash Flows 140.0 107.0
Bank overdrafts that are repayoble on demand and form anintegral part of the Group's cash mancgementare included asa
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Group Statement of Cash Flows.
Reconciliation of Movement in Net Debt
Foreign Borrowing
Balance as at exchange  facility costs Non-cash Balanceosat
1Jan2017  odjustments  copitalised  mevements Cashflaw  31Dec2017
Em £m £m £m £m £m
Coshand cashequivalents
Cash atbank andinhand 144.4 (4.5} — — 220 161.9
Bank overdrafts (43.4) 1.7 — — 19.8 (21.9)
101.0 (2.8 — — 41.8 140.0
Borrowings, excludingbank overdrafts
Current (91.1} 41 — — 82.7 (4.3)
Non-current (331.9) 12.8 e — {93.0) @121
{423.0} 16.2 —_ —_ {10.3) {416.4)
Capitalised arrangement fees 1.7 — 1.0 (0.6) — 2.1
Net debt (320.3) 14.1 1.0 (0.6) 31.5 (274.3)

Net debt is © measure of the Group's net indebtedness to bonks and other external finandial institutions and comprises the
total of cash and short-term deposits and current and non-current interest-bearing borrewings.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting policy

Freehold land and constructionin progress are carried ar cost less accumulated impairment losses. Other items of property,
plantand equipment are carried at cost less acccumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs are
capitalised only when itis probable that they will result in future economic benefits flowing to the Group and when they can be
measured reliably. Costs are capitalised 1o construction in progress where an asset is being developed. This is then fransferred
and depreciated when the assat is ready for use. All other repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to the Group
Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

151

15.2

Accounting policy {continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated, as it has an infinite life. Depreciation on ather items of property, plant and equipment begins
when the asset is available for use and is charged to the Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis so as fo write off the
cost less residual value of the asset over its estimated useful life as follows:

Asset cotegory

Estimoted useful life

Freehold property
Leasehold property

Plantand equipment -——metor vehicles and information technelogy equipment

— other

between tenand 50 years
theterm of the lease
between one and five years
between three and 15 years

The depreciation method used, residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed annually and changed, if appropriate.
As described in Note 17.1, an asset’s carrying amount is immediately written down 1o its recoverable amount if its carrying

ameunt is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses arising on disposals are determined by comparing
sales proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the Group Income Statermnent.

Movement in net book value

Freehold Leasehold Plantand  Censtruction
property property  eguipment  inprogress Total
£m £m £fm £m £m

Cost
Asat1 January 2016 169.7 23 4772 288 &678.0
Exchange adjustments 299 01 84.8 6.0 120.8
Capital expenditure additions 1.3 — 18.3 15.6 35.2
Acquisitions through business combinations — — 11 — 1.1
Disposals (1.6) — (41.9} (0.2 (42.7)
Reclassifications 4.0 — 10.5 (14.5) —_
Asat1January 2017 203.3 24 550.0 358.7 791.4
Exchonge adjustments {3.4) {0.1) (10.3) (2.1 {15.9)
Capttal expenditure additions 14 — 19.4 235 44.3
Disposals 6.1 — {13.5) — (18.6)
Reclassifications 5.5 — 9.8 {15.3) —
Asat31 December 2017 201.7 2.3 555.4 41.8 801.2
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Asat1 January 2016 64.7 1.4 326.6 — 3927
Exchange adjustrents 1.9 - 59.5 — 7.4
Depreciaticn charge 5.9 0.2 36.2 — 423
Impairment charge 0.4 — — — 04
Disposals (1.2) — (37.8) — {39.0)
Reclassifications 1.2 — (1.2} — —
Asat1Janvary 2017 82.9 1.6 383.3 — 467.8
Exchange adjustments (2.0) 0.1 7.7 — (9.8)
Depreciation charge 6.1 0.3 373 — 437
Disposals 1.8) — (10.0) — (11.8)
Reclassifications 0.3 — {0.3) — —
Asat 31 December 2017 85.5 1.8 402.6 — 489.9
Net bock value asat 31 December 2017 116.2 0.5 152.8 41.8 311.3
Netbook value asat 31 December 2016 120.4 0.8 166.7 357 323.6
Netbook vatue asat 1 January 2016 105.0 09 150.6 28.8 285.3




16.

16.1

16.2
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The net boak value of the Group's property, plant and equipment assets held under finance lease contracts was £4.6m
(2076: £4.7m). Capital expenditure on customer-installation assets was £10.7m (2016: £6.5m).

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets comprise goodwill and other intangible assets that hove been acquired through business combinations.

Accounting policy

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a businass combination is initially recognised as an asset at cost, measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred and the ameunt of any non~controlling interest acquired
over the net of the acquisition-date fair value amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liakilities assumed, When the
excess is negative, a bargain purchaose gain is recogrised immediately in profit or loss. Goodwill is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, with impairment testing carried out annually, or more frequently when thereis an
indication that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated may be impaired. On disposal of a business,
the atfributable amount of goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(b) Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recognised on business combinations if they are separable, or if they arise from
contractual or oiher legal righss, and their value con be measured reliably. They are initially measured at cost, whichis equal to
the acquisition-date fair value, and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated emeortisation cherges and accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets are subject to impairment testing when there is an indication that an impairment
loss may have been incurred and are armertised over their estimated useful lives.

(c) Research ond development costs

The Group's research activity involves long-range, ‘blue sky’ investigation, the findings froem which may be used inthe future
to develop new or substantially improved products. Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the Group Income
Statement as an expense in the yeor inwhich it is incurred.

Development is the application of research findings for the production of new or substantially improved products, processes
and services before the start of commercial production. Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can
be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commerciclly feasible, furure economic benefits are probable
and the Group intends to and has sufficient rescurces to complete development and to use or sell the asset, Otherwise, it
isrecognised in the Group Income Statement as an expense inthe year in which it is incurred. Capitalised developrment
expenditure, where there is any, is stated at cost less accumulated omortisation and impairment losses.

In determining whether development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset, management considers whether the
strictintangible asset recognition criteria set outin IAS 38, Intangible Assets, have been met at the time the expenditure is
incurred. In making this determination, management recognise that @ significant amount of the development expenditure
undertaken by the Group is focused on dedling with local customer technical support issues and incremental developments
to existing products as opposed to new or substantially improved products, and that ot the time the feasibility of the project
is determined a significant propertion of the development expenditure for that project has already been incurred. In 2017
no projects met the criteria for IAS 38 capitalisation.

Movement in net book value
Other Other
intangible 2017 intangible 2016
Goodwill assets total Goodwill assets total
£m £m £m £m £ £m
Cost
Asat1January 662.2 271.9 934.1 5621 2507 8128
Exchange adjustments (19.3) {0.7) (20.0) 97.0 17.4 114.4
Business combinations (Note 21) 0.3 — 0.3 31 38 69
Asat 31 December 643.2 271.2 914.4 6£62.2 271.9 3341
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Asat1January — 152.2 152.2 — 128.2 128.2
Exchange adjustments — {0.3) {0.3) — 69 69
Amortisation charge for the year — 19.5 19.5 — 17.3 171
Asai 31 December —_ 171.4 171.4 — 152.2 152.2

Netbook vaive as at 31 December 643.2 99.8 743.0 662.2 119.7 7819
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16.
16.3

16.4

17.
121

17.2

Intangible Assets (continued)

Analysis of goodwill by cash-generating unit (CGU)

Goodwiil acquired in a business combination is cllocated to each of the Group's CGUs expected ta benefit from the synergies
of the combination. For the purposes of impairment testing, the Directors consider that the Group has two CGUs: the Steel
division and the Foundry division. These CGUs represent the lowest level within the Group at which goedwill is menitored.

2017 2016

£m £m

Steel 426.3 438.7
Foundry 2169 2235
Total goodwill 643.2 662.2

Analysis of otherintangible assets
Other intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The assets acguired and their
remaining useful lives are shown below.

Net book
Remaining volue as at
usefullife 31 Dec 2017
years £m
Foseca

— customer relationships {usefuilife: 20 years) 10.3 58.9
— trade name (useful life: 20 years) 10.3 371
—intellectual property rights (useful life: ten years) 0.3 2.0

Mould end tundish business of Carboox
— customer relationships (useful life: 20 years) 182 17
—trade name {useful life: two years) 0.9 0.1
Total 29.8

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Accounting policy

The Directors regularly review the performance of the business and the external business environment 16 defermine whether
there is any indication that the Group's tangible and intangible ossets have suffered an impoirmentloss. If suchindication
exists, the higher of the value in use and the fair value less costs fo sell of the asset is estimated and compared with the carrying
value in order to determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss. Where it is not feasible fo estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual csset, the Directors estimate the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the osset belongs. in
addition, goodwill is tested for impairment on an annuai basis. Geedwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the Group's CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and the Directors carry out annual
impairment testing of the corrying value of each CGU, to assess the need for any impoirment of the carrying value of the
associated goodwill and other intangible end tangible assets.

For the purpose of impairment festing, the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of (i} its fair value less costs
to sell and (i) its value in use. if the recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the resulting impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the
CGU pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment lass recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent period. Animpairment toss recognised in a prior year for an asset other than goodwill may

be reversed where there has been a change in the estimates used 1o measure the asset's recoverable amount since the
impairmentloss was recognised.

Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in determining value in use are projected cash flows, growth rates and discount retes. Projected
cash flow ossumptions are based on historical financial information, adjusted to factor in the anticipated impact of
restructuring and rationalisation plans afready announced ot the balance sheet date.



17.3

18.
18.1

18.2

Thevalueinuse caleulations of the Group's CGUs are based on three-year business plans and a terminal growth rate of
2.5% (2016: 2.5%). The cash flows are discounted to their current value using pre-tax discount rates, which represent each
CGU's weighted average cost of capital (WACC). Growth rates are determined with reference to: current market conditions;
externalforecasts and historical trends for the Group's key end-markets of Steel and Foundry; and expected growthin
output within the industries in which each major Group business unit operates. A perpetuity growth rate of 2.5% (2016: 2.5%)
hos been applied. The pre-tax discount rate is the WACC calculated for each CGU as at 31 December 2017 based on
industry-specific beta coefficients for the industries in which the CGUs operate, risk-free rates, and equity risk premiums
related to the major countries in which the CGUs are located, selecting countries which contribute at least 80% of total

CGU revenue. The pre-tax discount rate used for the Steel CGU was 11.0% (2016: 10.9%) and for the Foundry CGU was
11.6% (2015: 13.2%). The decrease in Foundry's pre-tax discaunt rate is driven by improved global economic performance
which resulfs in reduced markef risk, and consequently, lower equity risk premiums; and the Foundry industry has performed
well with limited volatility resulting in a reduced beta. Inthe Steel CGU, the impact of this decrease in equity risk premiums
has been more than offset by increasing centributions from emerging markets, providing upward pressure on risk-free rates
and equity risk premiums.

A sensitivity analysis undertaken in respect of the 2017 impairment testing, assurming a 1.0% increase in each of the CGU
discount rates and a 1.0% perpetuity growth rate, sfill resulted in headrsom remaining in which the recoverable amount of
each CGU exceaded its carrying value. A pre-tax discount rate of 16.0% would result in animpairment of Steel intangible
assets and 22.7% for Foundry.

Goodwill impairment

The Directors use their judgement to determine the extent to which goodwill and other capitalised intangible assets have o
value that wilf benefit the performance of the Group over future periods. To assist in making this judgement, the Directors
undertake an assessment, at least annually, of the carrying value of the Group's capitalised goodwill and other intangible
assets. The projection peried is, inthe opinion of the Directors, an appropriate period over which fo view the future results of
the Group's businesses for this purpoese. Changesto the assumptions used in making these forecasts could significantly alter
the Directors’ assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

In assessing goodwill for impairment, management performed its annuaitest at 31 October 2017 which is consistent with
the prior year. The Directors made use of detailed colculations of the recoverable amount of the Groug's CGUs as at

31 October 2017 Those calculotions resulted in recoverable amounts significantly higher than the carrying volues of the
Group's CGUs and consequently no impairment charges were recognised. A further assessment for friggers of goodwill
impairment was made af the year end and the calculations were also checked against the carrying values of the Group's
CGUs as at 31 Dacember 2017, No impairmeant triggers were identified.

Trade and Other Receivables

Accounting policy
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised ot fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses.

Analysis of trade and other receivables

2017 2016*

Grogs Impairment Net Gross  Impgirment Net

£m £m £m £m fm £m

Tradereceivables —current 269.0 0.72) 268.3 236.7 [4N)] 2356
—1 to 20 days past due 59.0 (0.8) 58.2 51.3 (0.5} 50.8

-~ 31to 60 days pastdue 18.4 (0.3) 18.1 19.3 (0.2) 191

—&1t0 90 days pastdue 8.2 (0.5) 7.7 9.5 (0.2) 9.3

—over 90days pastdue 43.2 (29.4) 13.8 52.8 (311 217

Trade receivables 297.8 (31.7) 3661 269.6 (33.1) 336.5
Otherreceivables 40.8 42.8
Prepayments and accrued income 15.3 14.8
Totaltrade and otherreceivables 422.2 3941

*Restoted as a result of the recording of o provisionfor which a related asset exists (Note 32).
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18.
18.2

18.3

19.
191

19.2

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Andlysis of trade and other receivables (continued)

All the Group's operating companies have policies and procedures in place to assess the creditworthiness of the customers
with whom they do business. Where objective evidence exists that a frade receivable balance may be impaired, provision

is made for the difference between its carrying ameunt and the present value of the estimated cash that will be recovered.
Evidence ofimpairment may include such factors as the customer being in breach of contract, or entering bankruptcy or
financial recrganisation proceedings. Impairment provisions are assessed on an individual customer basis for all significant
outstanding balances and collectively for all remaining balances, based upon historical loss experience. Historical experience
has shown that the Group's trade receivable provisions are maintained at levels that are sufficient to absarb actuc] bad debt
write-offs, without being excessive. The Group considers the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired as good.

Movements on impoirment provisions
2017 2016
£m £m
Asat1January 331 271
Chargeforthe year 37 6.6
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (4.8) (4.4
Exchange adjustrents (0.3} 3.8
Asat 31 December 31.7 33.1

The charge forthe year shown in the table above is recorded within administration, selling and distribution costs in the Group
Income Statement.

Invenfories

Accounting policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (using the firstin, first cut method) and net realisable value. Cost comprises
expenditure incurred in purchasing or manufacturing inventories together with all other costs directly incurred in bringing the
inventory ta its present location and condition and, where appropriate, attributable production overheads based on normal
activity levels. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to
beincurred in marketing, selling and distribution. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net reclisable value is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the write-down occurs.

Andlysis of inventories
2017 2016
£m £m
Raw materials 80.2 75.1
Work-in-progress 20.2 8.7
Finished goods 122.4 113.9
Tetalinventeries 222.8 2077

The cost ofinventories recognised as an expense and included in manufacturing costs of continuing cperations in the Group
Income Statement during the vear was £609.6m (2016: £499,3m).

The net inventories of £222.8minclude a provision for cbsclete stock of £13.9m (2016: £14.4m) and inventory write-downs
from cost to net reglisable value of £1.7m (2016: £2.4m).



20.
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20.2

157

Derivative Financial Instruments

Accounting policy

The Group uses derivative financicl instruments { derivatives'), in the form of forward fareign currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to manage the effects of its exposure to foreign exchenge risk and interest rate risk. The way in which derivatives
are used fo manage the Group's finencial risk is detailed in Note 27.

Derivatives are measured ot fair value. The fair value of forward foreign currency contractsis calculated using market prices
at the balance sheet date. The fair value of an interest rate swap is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay
to terminate the swap at the balonce sheet date, teking into cecount current interest rotes and the creditworthiness of the

swap counterparty,

The method of recognising the gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument for hedge accounting purpases and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Strict conditions have
to be satisfied in order to qualify for hedge accounting, including a determination both at inception of the hedge and enan
engoing basis that the hedge is expected to be highly effectivein achieving offsetting changes in fairvalues or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in fair value of a derivative that is not designated as a hedging instrument for
hedge cccounting purposes is recognised immediately inthe Group Income Statement, No derivatives are held for speculative

purposes.

Net investment hedges

The effective part of any gain or loss on a derivative that is designated as a hedge of a net investment in a fereign operatianis
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve in equity, and is subseguently recognised
inthe Group Income Statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. The ineffective portion of the
gain or loss is recognised immediately within frading profitin the Group Income Statement.

Analysis of derivative financial instruments

2017 2016
Assets Liabilities Asseats Liabilities
£m £m £m £m
Derivatives not designated for hedge accounting purposes 0.3 — — (631
Total derivative financial instruments 0.3 — — (0.9)

All of the fair values shown in the table above are clossified under IFRS 13 as Level 2 measurements which have been
calculated using quated prices fram active markets, where similar contracts are traded and the quotes reflect actual
transactions in similar instruments. All of the derivative assets and liabilities reported in the table above will mature within
avyear of the balance sheet date.
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21.

22,

22.1

222

23.
231

23.2

Acquisition of Subsidiaries and Jeint Ventures, Net of Cash Acquired

The Group did not acquire any material interests in any companies during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Prior Year Acquisition

On1 December 2016, the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in Mastercodi Industrial Ltdag, the mould and tundish

flux business of Carboox, for total consideration of £8.0m, of which £0.7m was deferred. The fair value of the net assets

acquired was £4.9m and included identified intangible assets relating fo customer relationships and trade names of £3.8m.

The transaction resulted in the recognition of £3.1m of goedwill attributable to the synergies which are expected from

combining the business with the operations of the Group.

During 2017 the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities were finolised and resulted in a £0.3m adjustment totrade

and other receivables. The final fair value of net ossets acquired was £5.2m and the total goodwill recognised was £3.4m,

Discontinued Operaticns

Discontinued aperaticns income during 2017 of £1.7m related fo a relecse of provisions ne longer required.

Discontfinved aperations income during 2016 of £10.2m comprised a £9.0m tax credit relating to the release of a provision

for possible Chino taxes {Note 10.2) and a £1.2m release of provisions no longer required.

Results of discontinued operations

2017 2016
£m £m
OCtherincome 1.7 10.2
Profit before tax — attributable to owners of the parent 1.7 10.2
Earnings pershare —pence
Basic 0.7 3.8
Diluted 0.6 37
Cash flows from discentinued operations
2017 2016
£m £m
Net cash outflow from:
— pperating activities {0.7) —
Net cash outflow for the year (0.7) —
Issued Share Capital

Accounting policy
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Analysis of issued share capital

The issued and fully paid ordinary share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 278.5 million shares of 10 pence

each (2016: 278.5 millien shares of 10 pence each). Further information relating to the Company’s share capital is given in

Note 8 attached to the Company's financial statements.



24. Retained Earnings

25,

Reserve Share Other Total

forown option retained retained

shares reserve earnings earnings

£m £fm £fm £m

Asat] January 2016 (38.0) 36 23809 23465
Profit for the year — — 56.9 56.9
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 95 9.5
Recognition of share-based payments — 1.7 — 17
Release of share option reserve on exercised and lapsed options 29 (2.4) (0.5) —
Income tax on items recognised in other comprehensive income — — (0.7} 0.7
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — (43.9) (439)
Ascat1 January 2017 (35.1) 29 24022 2,3700
Profit for the yeor — — 38.0 380
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 8.4 8.4
Recognition of share-based payments — 2.6 — 2.6
Release of share option reserve on exercised and lapsed options 09 [0 5°)] — —
Income tax onitems recognised in other comprehensive income — — (3.1) 3.1)
Dividends paid (Ncte 26) — — {45.6) (45.6)
Asat31 December 2017 (34.2) 4.6 2,3999 2,370.3

Other Reserves

QOther  Translation Total other

resgeryes reserve reserves

£m £m £m
Asatl January 2016 (1,499.3) (2.6) (1,501.9)

Exchange differences on translation of the net assets of foreign operations — 2021 2021
Exchange translation differences arising on net investment hedges — {41.6) (41.6)
Asat 1 January 2017 {1,499.3) 1578  (1,341.4)
Exchange differences on translation of the net assets of foreign operations — (37.8) (37.8)
Exchange translarion differences arising on netinvestment hedges — 9.8 9.8
Asat31 December 2017 {1,499.3) 1299  (1,369.4)

Within ather reserves asat 31 December 2017 is £1,499.0m (2016: £1,499.0m) arising from the demerger of Cookson Graup
plc, being the excess of the Viesuvius plc share capital of £1,777.9m over the total share capital and share premium of Cockson

Group plcas at 14 December 2012 of £278.9m.

The translation reserve in the table above comprises all foreign exchange differences attributable to the owners of the parent.

These exchange differences arise from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations and fram the
translation of financial instruments that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign operations. In addition to foreign

exchange differences attributable te the owners of the parent, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income includes

foreign exchange differences attributable to non-controlling interests,
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26.

27.
27.1

27.2

Dividends

Afinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £30.8m (2015: £30.0m}, equivalent to 11.40 pence (2015:11.125
pence} per ordinary share, was paid in May 2017 (May 2016) and an interim dividend fer the year ended 31 December 2017
of £14.8m (2016; £13.9m), equivalent o 5.50 pence (2016: 5.15 pence) per ordinory share, was paid in September 2017
{Septermnber 2016,

A proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of £33.8m, equivalentto 12.5 pence per ordinary share,

is subject to approval by shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting and has not been included as g liability in
these financial statements. If approved by shareholders, the dividend will be paid on 25 May 2018 to ordinary shareholders
anthe register at 13 April 2018.

Financial Risk Management

Accounting policy

{a) Non-derivative financial instruments

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus directly atiributable tronsaction costs. After initial recognition
they are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest methed.

(b} Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of ench Group entity are prepared in their functional currency, which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. For the purpose of the Consclidated Financial Statements,
the results and financial position of each entity are franslated into pound steriing, which is the presentational currency of
the Group.

Reporting foreign currency transactions in functional currency
Transactionsin currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing onthe dates of the transactions. At each subsequent balance sheet date:

{i) Foreign currency manetary items are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising on the seftlement or retranslation of monetary items are recognised in the Group Income Statement

(i) Non-monetary items measured athistorical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Translation from functional currency to presentational currency
When the functional currency of a Group entity is different frorm the Group's presentational currency (pound sterling), its results
and financial position are translated into the presentationat currency as follows:

() Assetsandliabilities are translated using exchange rates prevailing ot the balance sheet date

(i) Income and expense items are translated at average exchange rotas for the year, except where the use of such average
rates does not approximate the exchonge rate at the date of a specific transaction, in which case the fransaction rate
is used

(iii) Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve
in equity and are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operaticn is disposed of

Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reperting entity's netinvestment in a fereign operation
areiniticlly recognised in other comprehensive income ond presented inthe tronslation reserve in equity and reclossified to
profit or loss on disposal of the netinvestment,

Finoncial risk factors

The Group's Treasury department, acting in accordance with pelicies approved by the Beard, is principally responsible for
rmanaging the financical risks faced by the Group. The Group's activities expose it ta a variety of financial risks, the most
significant of which are market risk and liquidity risk.

{a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that either the fair values or the cash flows of the Group's financial instruments may fluctuate becouse
of changes in market prices. The Group is principally exposed to market risk through fluctuations in exchange rates (‘currency
risk"y and interest rates {'interest rate risk').
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Currency risk

The Groupis exposed to currency risk on its borrowings and financial assets {being cash and short-term deposits) that are
denominated in currencies other than pound sterling. The Group’s general policy is propartionally to match the currency
prafile of its care borrowings with the currency profile of its earnings and net assefs. This is achieved, where necessary, by the
use of forward fareign exchange cantracts {FX swaps). The currency profile of the Group's borrowings and financicl assets,
reflecting the effect of the FX swaps, is shown in the table betow.

2017 2018
Borrowings Borrawings Borrowings Borrowings

before FX ofter  Financial Net before FX after  Financial Net

FXswaps swaps FXswaps assets™® debf FXswops SWOps FXswaps assets debt

£m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m £m £m

Sterling 39.7 88.7 128.4 4.5 132.9 32.5 116.8 1453 (3.2} 1431
United States dollar 159.9 (88.7) 71.2 14.7) 56.5 301.6 (1M6.8) 184.8 (40.7) 144.2
Euro 235.6 —_ 235.6 (45.2) 190.4 1277 —_ 1271 (22.6) 104.5
Chinese renminbi — — — {34.5) (34.5) — — — 221) (221)
Other 31 -— 31 (7200 (689 5.2 ~ 5.2 (499)  (447)

Capitclised

arrangement fees 2.1} — (2.1) — (2.1) (1.7) — (1.7) — (1.7)
Asat31 December 436.2 — 436.2 {161.9) 274.3 4647 —— 464.7 (144 .4) 320.3

* The overdrawn sterling bolence of £4. 5m abowve is included in the cash poaling arrangements and offset by ether currency bolonces in the pool.

Based upon the currency profile shown in the table above, while not impacting reperted profit, the change in net debt arising
from a 10% strengthening of sterling would increase reparted equity by £13.0m (2016: £16.5m) and @ correspanding 10%
weakening of sterling would reduce equity by £15.9m {2016: £20.2m).

The tables below show the net unhedged monetary assets and liabilities of Group companies that are not denominatad in
their functional currency and which could give rise to exchange gains and losses in the Group income Statement.

Netunhedged monetary assets/(liabilities}

Sterling USdollar Euro Renminbi Cther Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Functional currency
Sterling — (2.5) (5.3) 01 6.1 (1.6)
United States dollar — — 0.5 — (2.6) 2.1
Euro (0.5) 7.3 — —_ — 6.8
Chinese renminbi {0.7) 15.0 0.4 — (1)) 14.6
Other (0.7} 14.6 0.7) {0.2) 11.7 24.7
Asat31 December 2017 {1.9) 34.4 (5.1) 0.1 15.1 42.4
Net unhedged monetary assets/{fiabilities)
Stedling US dallar Euro Renminbi Cther Toral
£m £m fm fm £m £m
Functional currency
Sterling — 0.9 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.2
United States dellar — — 135 — (3.8) 98
Euro {0.2) (3.2) — — — (3.4)
Chinese renminbi (0.7) 5.4 {0.5) — (0.1) 41
Other (0.5) 13.4 2.2 13 18.0 344

Asat 31 December 2016 1.4) 14.7 16.2 14 15.3 46.2
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27. Financial Risk Management {(continued)

27.2 Financial riskfactors (continued)

(@) Marketrisk (continved)

Interest rate risk

The Group'sinterest rate risk principally arises in relation to its borrowings. Where borrowings are held at floating rates of
inferest, fluctuations in inferest rates expose the Group to variability in the cash flows asseciated with its inferest payments,
and where borrowings are held at fixed rates of interest, fluctuations in interest rates expose the Group to changesin the
fairvalue of its borrowings. The Group's palicy is ta maintain @ mix of fixed and floating rote borrowings, within certain
parameters agreed frem fime to fime by the Board, in order to optimise interest cost and reduce volatility in reported earnings.

As at 31 Decembaer 2017, the Group had $200.0m and €130.0m (£261.3m in tofal) of US Private Placement Loan Notes
(USPP) outstanding, which carry a fixed rote of interest, representing two-thirds of the Group's total borrowings outstanding
atthat date. The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings and net debt is detailed in the tables below.

Financialtiabilities
{gross borrowings)

Fixed Flaating Financial Net

rate rote Total assets debt

£m £m £m £m £m

STerMng — 397 35.7 4.5 44.2
United States dollar 148.0 19 159.9 (14.7) 145.2
Euro 115.4 120.2 235.6 (45.2) 190.4
Chinese renminbi — — — (34.5) {34.5)
Other — 31 31 (72.0) (68.9)
Capitalised arrangement fees 21) — (2.1) — 1)
Asat 31 December 2017 261.3 174.9 436.2 {161.9) 274.3

Financial liabilities
{gross borrowings)

Fixed Flooting Financial Net

rate rate Total assets debt

£m £ £m £m £m

Sterling — 325 325 (8.2 234
United States dollar 2513 503 301.6 (40.7) 2608
Furo 256 101.5 1271 (22.6) 104.5
Chinese renminbi — — — (22.7) (22.7)
Crher — 5.2 5.2 (49.9) 44.7)
Capitalised arrangement fees (1.7) -— a7 - (1.7)
Asat 31 December 2016 2752 189.5 4647 (144.4) 3203

The floating rate financial liabilities shown in the tables above bearinterest at the inter-bank offered rate of the appropriate
currency, plus a margin. The fixed rate financial liabilities of £261.3m (2016: £275.2m) have a weighted average inferest rate
of 3.8% (2016: 4.6%) and o waighted average period forwhich the rate is fixed of 6.9 years (2016: 4.2 years). The financial
assets attract floating rate interest arthe inter-bank offered rate of the appropriate currency, lass a margin.

Based upon the interest rate profile of the Group's financicl assets and liabilities shown in the tables above, a 1% increasein
market interest rates would increase both the net finance costs charged in the Group Income Statement and the net interest
paidin the Group Statement of Cash Flows by £0.1m (2016: £0.5m), and a 1% reduction in market interest rates would
decreose both the net finance costs charged in the Group Income Statement and the net interest paid in the Group Statement
of Cash Flows by £0.1m (2016: £0.5m). Similarly, @ 1% increase in market interest rates would resuli in o decrease of £15.9m
(2016: £10.7m) in the fair value of the Group's net debt and a 1% decrease in market interest rates would result in anincrease
of £17.2m (2016: £11.4m) in the fair value of the Group's net debt.



(b) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group might have difficulties in meeting its financial obligations. The Group manages this risk
by ensuring that it maintains sufficient levels of committed borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents to ensure thet it
can meet its operational cosh flow requirements and any maturing financial liabilities, whilst ot all times operating within its
financial covenants. The level of operational headroom provided by the Group's committed borrowing facilities is reviewed at
least annuclly as part of the Group's three-year planning process. Where this process indicates a need for additional finance,
thisis normally addressed 12 to 18 manths in advance by means of either additional committed bank facilities or raising
finance in the capital morkets,

In December 2017 the US dollar pertion of the US Private Placement (USPP') debt of $110m matured. This debt was replaced
with a Euro-denominated USPP comprising two £50m tranches. Thase were issued with maturity dates of 2027 and 2029
respectively.

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group had committed borrowing facilities of £563.4m (2016: £576.9m), of which £153.7m
(2076: £158.3m) were undrawn. These undrawn facifities are due to expire in June 2022. The Group's borrowing requirements
are met by USPP and a multi-currency cormmitted syndicated bank focility of £300.0m (2016: £300.0m). The USPP facility
was fully drawn as ot 31 Decernber 2017 and amcunted to £263.4m ($200.0m and £130.0m), of which $140.0m is repayable
in 2020, €15.0m in 2021, $30.0m in 2023, £15.0rm in 2025, £50.0m in 2027, $30.0m in 2028 and £€50.0m in 2029. During 2017,
an opticn was exercised fo extend the maturity date of £300m syndicated bank facility from June 2020 to June 2022.

The maturity analysis of the Group's gross borrowings is shown in the tables below,

Non-current Current Totel
2017 2076 2017 2076 2017 20186
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and overdrafts 409.7 329.4 24.6 1327 4343 462.1
Obligatiens under finance leases 24 2.6 1.6 17 4.0 43
Capitalised arrangement fees (1.6) 1.2) 0.5) {0.5) 21 .7
Totalinterest-bearing borrowings 410.5 330.8 25.7 133.9 436.2 464.7
2017 2016
£m £m
Interest-bearing borrowings repayable
Ondemand orwithinone year 22.4 134.4
Inthe second year 1.4 1.2
Inthethirdyeor 252.8 09
Inthefourth year 13.4 2557
Inthe fifthyear 1.8 12.8
Afterfive years 146.5 &61.4
Capitalised arrangement fees 2.1 an
Total interest-bearing borrowings 436.2 464.7

Copitalised orrongement fees shown in the tables obove, which have been recognised as a reduction in berrowings in the
financial statements, amounted to £2.1m as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: £1.7m), of which £1.0m (2016: £0.7m)
related to the USPP and £1.1m {2016: £1.0rm) related to the syndicated bank facility.
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27. Financial Risk Management {continued)

27.3 Capital management

27.4

The Company cansiders its capital to be equal to the sum of its fotal equity and net debt. It manitors its capital using a number
of KPlIs, including free cash flow, average working capital to scles rotios, net debt to EBITDA ratios and RONA (Note 4).
The Group's objectives when managing its capital are:

> To ensure that the Group and oll of its businesses are able to operate as going concerns and ensure that the Group operates
within the financial covenants contained within its debt facilities

> To have available the necessary financial resources to cllow the Group to invest in areas that may deliver acceptable future
refurnstoinvestors

> To maintain sufficient financial resources to mitigate against risks and unforeseen events
> Ta maximise sharehalder value through maintaining an appropriate balance between the Group's equity and net debr

The Group operated within the requirements of its debt covenants throughout the year and has sufficient liquidity headroom
within its committed debt facilities. Details of the Group's covenant compliance and committed debt facilities can be found

in the Strategic Reporton page 29.

Cash pooling arrangements

The Group enters into notional cash pacling arrangements as part of its angoing Treasury management activities. Certain
cash pooling arrangements meet the criteria for offsetting as clarified in amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments, as
regards a legally enforceable right of set-off both in the ordinary course of business and in the event of default. The following
tables set out the amounts of recognised financial assets and liabilities shown as cash and cash borrowings and those
amounts which are subjecttothese agreements.

Grossamounts of Related amounts
recognised  Netamountsof of financial
finonciclassets/ financialassets/ assets/liabilities
Grossamounts of liabilities liabilities notoffset
recognised offsetinthe presentedinthe inthestatements
financial assets/ statement of statement of of financial Net
liabilities financial position  financiat position position omount
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets/liabilities
Cash deposits 1729 (11.0) 161.9 {9.5) 152.4
Cash borrowings (32.9) 1.0 (21.9) 9.5 (12.4)
Asat31 December 2017 140.0 — 140.0 — 140.0
Financial assets/liabilities
Cash deposits 160.8 (16.4) 144.4 (30.9) 113.5
Caosh borrowings {(59.8) 16.4 (43.4) 309 {12.5)
Asat 31 December 2016 101.0 — 101.0 — 101.0
28. Employee Benefits
28.1 Accounting policy

The net surplus or net liability recognised in the Group Balance Sheet for the Group's defined benefit plons is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of the plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method and by discounting the estimated
future cash flows using interest rates on high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms
of the relared pension liability. Any asset recognised in respect of a surplus rising from this calculation is limited to the asset
ceiling, where this is the present value of any economic benefits available inthe form of refunds or reductions in future
contributions in respect of the plans.

The expense for the Group's defined benefit plansis recognised in the Group Income Statement as shown in Note 28.8.
Actuarial gains and losses arising on the assets and liabilities of the plans are reported within the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income; and gains and losses arising on seftlements and curtailments are recognised in the Group income
Statement in the same line as the item that gave rise to the seftlement or curtailment or, if material, separately reperted as
a component of operating profit.



28.2 Group post-retirement plans

The Group operates a number of pension plans around the world, both of the defined benefit and defined contribution type,
and accounts forthem in accerdance with IAS 16,

The Group's principal defined benefit pension plans are in the UK and the US, the benefits of which are based upon the final
pensionable salaries of plan members. The assets of these plans are held seperately from the Group in frustee-administered
funds. Thetrustees arerequired to act in the best interasts of the plans' beneficiaries. The principal risks faced by these plans
comprise: (i) the risk that the value of the plan assets is not sufficient to meet oll plan liabilities as they fall due; (i) the risk that
plon beneficiaries live langer than envisaged, causing liobilities to exceed the available plan assets; and {iii} the risk that the
market-based factors used to value plan lighilities and assets change materially adversely to increase plan abilities over the
value of evailable plan assets. The Group also has defined benefit pensien plans in other ferritories but, with the exception of
those in Germany, these are not individually materiol in relation to the Group as a whole.

{a) Defined benefit pension plans—~UK

The Group's main defined benefit pension plenin the UK ('the UK Plan”) is closed to new members and to future benefit
accrual. The existing plan was established under a trust deed and is subject to the Pensions Act 2004 and guidance issued
by the UK Pensions Regulator.

Afullactuarialvaluation of the UK Plan is carried out every three veors by an independent actuary for the UK Plan Trustee in
line with the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004, and the last full valuatien was carried cut as at 31 December 2015, At that
date, the market value of plan assets was £536.7m and this represented a funding fevel of 102% of the accrued plan benefits
atthetime of £526.4m. Caleulated on a’buy-out' basis {using an astimation of the cost of buying out the UK Plan benefits with
an insurance company), the liabilities at thet date were £687.5m, representing a funding level of 78%.

Thereis a "long-term scheme-specific funding standard” in Part 3 of the Pensions Act 2004. In terms of Part 3, the UK plan s
subject to a requirement {"the statutory funding objective”) that it must have sufficient and cppropriate assets to cover its
technical provisions. Such technical provisions are determined as part of the triennial valuation. Under the rules of the UK
Plan, the Trustees, after consultation with the company, have the power to set the funding coniributions taking inte account
the results of the triennial veluation, and the Pension Act 2004 legislation. Notwithstanding the latest funding valuation
surplus, the Company agreed to make voluntary contributions of £2.0m in 2017. Thereafter, the Company wilt fund the
administration cost relating to the management of the UK Plan.

The value of the UK Plan liabilities as at 31 December 20717 decreased to £490.8m (2016: £527.4m). The decrease in the
liabilities was driven mainly by benefits paid from the scheme of £46.8m (2016: £28.1m) in line with the trust deed and relevant
legislation requirements. Correspondingly, the UK Plan assets decreased to £580.3m (2016: £601.4m) s assets were
liguidated to fund the benefits poid resulfing in decreases in the volues of the annuity insuronce controct of £13.5m ond the
fixed income holdings of £33.1m.

Proposed amendmentsto IFRIC 14, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
interaction, address how the powers of other parties, such as the frustees of the plan, affect an entity's right of refund of @
surplus from the plan. The Group has assessed the likely impact of the application of the interaction and concluded that it
would not impact its ability to continue to recognise a pension surplus.

(b} Definedbenefit pension plans-US

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension plans in the US, providing retirement benefits based on final salary ora
fixed benefit. The Group's principal US defined benefit pension plans are closed to new members and also to future benefit
accrual for existing members. Actuarial valuations of the US defined benefit pension plans are carried out every vear and
the last full valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2016. At that date the market value of the plan assets was £49.2m,
representing a funding level of 66.0% of funded accrued plan benefits at that date {using the projected unit methed of
valuation) of £74.3m. Funding levels for the Group's US defined benefit pensien plans are bosed upon annual valuations
carried out by independent qualified actuaries and are governed by US Government regulations. The value of US plan
liobilities decrecsed fo £82.0m (2016: £86.8m) in 2017, which was mainly attributable 1o benefits paid of £4.0m inline with
scheme rules and exchange gains of £7.6m due to US dollar weakness. This significant decrease was partially offset by an
interest accrual of £3.1m and aloss of £3.8m due to the lower discount rate. The loss arising from changes infinancial
assumptions is sclely ottributable to the decrease inthe discount rates to 3.4% (2016: 3.8%).

The Group's US defined benefit pansion plans are subject to the minimum contribution requirements of Infernal Revenue
Code Sections 412 and 430. Cantributions are determined by trustees, in consultation with the Company, based onthe annual
valuations which are submitted to the Internal Revenue Service. Forthe plan year beginning 1 January 2017, the minimum
required contribution was £nil s significant company contributions of $6m were made in 2016. However, under these funding
lows and based on the plan deficit, minimum contributions in the period 2018-2020 are likely to be required and are expected
to beinthe $3mto $4mrange. Voluntary contributions of $4m were made during 2017,
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28,
28.2

28.3

Employee Benefits (continued)

Group post-retirement plans (continued)

() Defined benefit pansion plans—Germany

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension arrangements in Germany which are unfunded, as is commen practica
inthat country. The main plan was closed to new entrants on 31 December 2016 and replaced by a defined contribution plan
for new joiners. Tha net liability of the German plans ot 31 December 2017 was £49.4m (2016: £45.3m). The increase was
driven by the decrease in discount rate which resulted in an increase in the licbility of £1.6m (2016: £5.8m); increased current
service costs of £1.5m (20716: £1.2m); and exchange losses incurred of £1.9m (2016: £5.8m) due to the strengthening of the
euro againstthe pound.

{d) Defined benefit pension plans—ROW

The Group has ¢ number of defined benefit pension arrangements across the rest of the world, the majerity of which are
located in Belgium. The net liability of the ROW plans at 31 December 2017 was £17.9m (2016: £16.2m). The increase was
mainly aftributable to exchange losses of £0.5m {2016: £2.1m) due to the weakening of the pound post-Brexit and significant
services costs of £2.0m (2016: £2.3m) recognised in respect of the Belgian plans. These losses are offset by the contribution of
£1.5m that was paid out during 2017, thereby decreasing the liability.

(e} Defined contribution pension plans
The total expense for the Group's defined contribution plans inthe Group Income Statement amounted to £12.6m (2016: £10.8m
continuing operations) and represents the contributions payable for the year by the Group to the plons.

f) Multi-employer plans

Due to collective agreements, Vesuvius in the US participates together with other enterprises in union-run multi-employer
pension plans for temporary workers hired on sites. Some of these plans are underfunded and all participating employers are
ulimately liable for any deficit. If a participating employer stops contributing to a plan, it is required to make a withdrawal
payment to the plan ta cover its share of the total deficit in the plan. Ne refiable bosis exists for allocation of the plans’
obligations and plan ossets to individual employer participants. Deficits in the plans may necessitate increased contributions
in the future but the expectation is that this will remain relatively consistent based upon historical trends. These are currently
accounted for as defined confribution plars. In 2017 Vesuvius contributed £1.4m (2016: £1.2m) to these plans.

Post-retirement liability valuation

The main assumptions used in caleulating the costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension plans, as detailed
below, are set by the Directors after consultation with independent professionally qualified actuaries and include those used
to determine regular service costs and the financing elements reloted to the plans’ assets and liabilities. Itisthe Directors’
respansibility to set the assumptions used in determining the key elements of the costs of meeting such future obligations.
Whilst the Directors believe that the assumptions used are appropriate, a change in the assumptions used could affect the
Group's profit and finencial position.

(a) Mortality assumptions

Tha mortality assumptions used in the actuarial valuations of the Group's UK, US and German defined benefit pension
liabilities are summarised in the table below and have been selected to reflect the characteristics and experience of the
membership of thase plans.

For the UK Plan, the assumptions used have been derived from the Self-Administered Pension Schemes (SAPS) All table,
with future longevity improvements in line with the 'core’ mortality imprevement tables published in 2016 by the Continuous
Mortality investigation (CMI), with a fong-ferm rate of improvement of 1.25% per annum. For the Group's US plans, the
assumptions used have been based on the standard RP-2016 fully generational tables with projection scale BB, and the
MP-2017 mortality improvemnent scale. The Group's maijor plans in Germany have been valued using the medified Heubeck
Richttafeln 2005G mortality tables. Inrespect of the life expectancy tables befow, current pensicners are assumedta be

65 years old, while future pensioners are ossumed to be 45 yeors old.

2417 2016
UK Us Germany UK Us Germany
Life expectancy of pension planmembers years years years years years years
Age to which current pensioners are expectedtolive — Men 86.3 857 843 86.5 858 84.1
—Women 88.9 877 88.3 892 87.8 88.2
Age to which future pensioners are expectedtolive —Men 87.7 873 86.9 878 874 86.8

—Women 20.4 89.2 90.8 907 89.4 90.7




(b} Othermainactuarial valuation assumptions

2017 2016
UK Us Germany UK US  Germany
% p.a. % p.a. % p.a. %p.o. % p.qa. % p.a.
Discountrate 2.50 3.40 1.60 2.70 3.80 1.75
Price inflation —using RPI for UK 3.25 2.25 1.80 3.30 2.25 1.70
—using CPHfor UK 2715 n/fa n/fa 2,20 n/fo n/a
Rate of increase in pensionable salaries n/a n/fa 2,55 n/a n/a 2.45
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 310 nfa 1.65 335 n/o 1.55

The discount rate used to defermine the liabilities of the UK Plan for [AS 19 accounting purposes is required fo be determined
by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds. The UK discount rate in the above tobleis based enthe Aon
Hewitt AA-rated corporate bond yield in conjunction with the most recent projected cash flow data relating to the UK Plan
liabilities; the US discount rate is hased an the Citigroup pension discount curve; and the Germany discount rate is based on
the yield on the iBoxx over ten-year euro corporates AAindex.

The assumptions for UK price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yields on longer-term conventional
government bonds and index-linked bends, except for CPI, for which no appropriate bonds exist, which is assumed to be
1.1 points lower (2016: 1.1 points lower) than RPI-based inflation.

{c) Sensitivity analysis of the impact of changesin significant 1AS 19 actuarial assumptions

The following table analyses, for the Group’s main UK, US and Gaermany pension plans, the theoretical estimated impact
on plan liabiiities and assets resufting from changes ta the most significant actuarial assumptions used for [AS 19 valuation
purposes, whilst holding all other assumptions constan,

Following the arrangement of buy-in agreements for the UK Plan pensioner liabilities in 2012,and the fact that US pensions
are notinflation linked, the rate of increase in pensionable salaries and of pensions in payment is not significant to
the valuation of the Group's overal] pension liabilities.

As stated above, during 2012 the UK Plan entered into pension insurance buy-in agreements which eliminate the inflafion,
interest rate, investment ond longevity risk in respect of the pensioner licbilities covered by the ogreements. The policy and
the associated valuation are updated annually. Please refer to Note 28.7 (o) for further detail. In respect of the liabilities so

covered, which currently represent same 56.5% of the total liobilities of the UK Plan, any changes in the valuation assumptions
Y rep Y g 18

whichimpact on the value of those liabilities, also impact on the associated annuity assets in an equol and opposite way,

thereby fully mitigating the valuation risk. This is also reflected in the following table which includes the sensitivity of the group’s

material defined benefit obligations and plan assets, where applicable, to changes in the weighted principal assumptions
as follows:
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Assumption Changeinassumption UK us Germany

Discount Increase/decreaseby(.1%

rate —impact on plan liabllities Decrease/increase by £8.2m Decrease/increase by £1.0m Decrease/increase by £1.0m
—impactonplanassets  Decrease/increase by £3.0mn/a n/a

Price Increase/decrecse by 0.1%

inflation —impact on plan liabilities Increase/decrease by £5.6m n/a Increase/decrease by £0.3m
—impactonplanassets  Increase/decrease by £2.1m n/a n/a

Mortality Increase by oneyear
—impacton planliabilities Increase by £21.4m Increase by £2.9m Increase by £1.8m
—impactonplanassets  Increase by £14.6m n/a n/a
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28. Employee Benefits (continued)

28.4 Defined benefit obligation
The overage duration of the obligations to which the liabilities of the Group's principal pension plans relate is 18 years for the
UK, 19 years for Germany and 11.6 years for the US,

Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

Defined benefit pension plans Other post-
retirement
benefit
UK us Germany ROW Total plans Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Presentvalue asat 1 January 2017 527.4 86.8 45.3 41.0 700.5 69 707.4
Exchange differences — (7.6} 19 1.3 4.4) 0.1 4.3)
Current service cost —_ 0.5 1.5 3.2 5.2 0.2 5.4
Past service cost — — — 0.1 0.1 — 0.1
Interest cost 14.0 31 0.8 0.7 18.6 0.2 18.8
Settlements —_ — — — — — —
Remeosurement of liabilities:
—demographic changes (5.4) {0.7) — 0.1 {6.0) — ©.0)
—financial assumptions 11.3 3.8 1.6 0.5 17.2 0.3 17.5
—experience losses/(gains) {9.7) 0.1 0.1 0.1 (9.6) {0.1) 9.7)
Benefits paid (46.8) {4.0) (1.6) {(2.4) (54.8) (1.1) {55.9)
Prasentvalue asat 31 December 2017 490.8 82.0 49.4 44.6 666.8 6.5 673.3
Definedbenefit pensienplans — Other post-
retirement
benefit
UK us Germany ROW Total plans Total
f£m £m £m £m £m £m £rn
Presentvalue as at 1 January 2076 4643 1121 36.3 361 £48.8 57 £54.5
Exchange differences — 17.6 5.8 6.0 264 046 30.0
Current service cost — 0.5 1.2 31 4.8 0.1 49
Past service cost — — — 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3
Interest cost 17.6 4.6 03 0.8 239 0.2 241
Settlerments — (45.1) (3.5) (1.5) (50.1) — (50.1
Remeasurement of liabilities:
—demographicchanges {12.3) (1.2) - — (13.5) — (13.5)
—financial assumptions 76.2 44 5.8 0.6 87.0 Q.4 874
—experiencelosses/(gains) 97 0.4 07 —_ 94 0.5 99
Benefits paid {28.1) {5.7) (1.3) (4.3) (39.4) 0.7 {40.1)
Presentvalue asar 31 December 2016 527.4 86.8 453 410 700.5 6.9 707.4




28.5 Fairvalue of plan assets

2017 2016

UK us ROW Total UK us ROW Total

£m £m £m £m £ £m £ fm
Asat1January 604.1 491 24.8 678.0 522.0 74.4 22.8 619.2
Exchange differences — (4.5) 0.5 {4.0) — 10.8 4.0 14.8
[nterestincome 16.1 1.7 0.4 18.2 19.3 31 04 72.8
Settlements — — — — — (41.6) (1.0) {42.6)
Acquisitions — — - — — - — —
Remeasurement of assets 5.7 3.8 0.7 10.2 897 3.4 0.2 933
Contributions fromemployer 2.0 3.1 2.3 7.4 20 4.4 24 8.8
Contributions frommembers — — — — — — -— —
Administration expenses paid (0.8) (0.5) _— 1.3) {03) ©.6) — (1.5)
Benefits paid {46.8) (2.9) (2.0) (51.7) (28.0) (4.8) (4.0) (34.8)
Asat 31 December 580.3 49.8 26.7 656.8 6041 491 24.8 678.0

The Group's pension plans in Germany are unfunded, as is common practice in that country, and accordingly there are no

assets associated with these plans.

28.6 Remeasurement of dafined benefit liabilities/assets

2017 2018
total total
£m £m
Remeasurement of liahbilities:
—demagraphic changes 6.0 135
—financial assumptions (17.5) (87.4)
—experience (losses)/gains 9.7 6.9
Remeasurement of assets 10.2 393.3
Total movement 8.4 9.5

The remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities and assets of £8.4m (2016: £9.5m) is recognised inthe Group Statement of

Comprehensive Income,

28.7 Balance sheet recognition

The amount recognised in the Group Balance Sheet in respect of the Group's defined benefit pension plans and other

post-retirement benefit plans is analysed in the following fables, which all relate to continuing eperations. Al equity securities

and bonds have quoted prices in active markets,

Defined benefit pensionplans  qihar post-
retirement
banafit 2017
UK us Germany ROW Total plans total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 68.9 9.7 — 29 81.5 — 81.5
Bonds 191.8 38.5 — 2.0 2323 — 232.3
Annuity insurance confracts 276.1 — — 17.8 293.9 — 2939
Other assets 435 1.6 — 4.0 491 — 491
Fairvalue of plan assefs 580.3 49.8 — 26.7 656.8 — 656.8
Presentvalue of funded obligations (488.9) (70.4) —— {40.0) (599.3) — {599.3)
91.4 (20.6) — (13.3) 57.5 — 57.5
Present value ef unfunded obligations {1.9) (11.8) {49.4) (4.6) (67.5) {6.5) (74.0)
Total net surpluses/(liabilities) 89.5 (32.2) {49.4) (17.9) (10.0) {6.5) (16.5)
Recognisedinthe Group Balance Sheet as:
Netsurpluses 91.4 — — 1.0 92,4 — 92.4
Net liabilities 19  (32.2) (49.4) (189)  (102.8) (6.5) (10B.9)
Total net surpluses/(fiabilities) 89.5 (32.2) (49.4) {17.9) {10.0) (6.5) (16.5)
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28. Employee Benefits (continued)

28.7 Balancesheet recognition (continued)

Based on © detoiled assessment performed, none of the IFRIC 14 restrictions are applicable and, therefore, the surplusis
recognised.

Defined benefit pensionplans  Other post-
retirement

benefit 2016

UK s Germany ROW Total plons totol

£m £m £m £m £m £fm £m

Equities 73.8 10.0 —_ 2.6 86.4 — 86.4

Bonds 216.3 359 — 2.0 25472 — 2542

Annuityinsurance contracts 289.6 — — 16.3 3059 — 305.9

Other assets 24.4 32 — 39 215 — 31.5

Fairvalue of plan assets 6041 491 — 248 678.0 — &678.0

Present value of funded obligations (525.5) (74.3) — (37.3) (637.1) -— (637.1)

78.6 {25.2) — (12.5) 409 — 409

Prasentvalue of unfunded obligations (1.9) {12.5) (45.3) (3.7) {63.4) (6.9) {70.3)

Total net surpluses/{liabilities) 76.7 (37.7) (45.3) {16.2) (22.5) (6.9) (29.4)
Retognisedinthe Group Balance Sheet as:

Net surpluses 78.6 — — 0.2 78.8 — 78.8

Net Hakilities (1.9) (377 (45.3) (16.4) {101.3) {6.9) {108.2)

Total net surpluses/(liabilities) 767 (277 (45.3) (16.2) (22.5) (6.9) (29.4)

{a) UKPlan asset cllocation

As ot 31 December 2017, of the UK Plan's fotal assets, 47.6% were represented by the annuity insurance contracts covering
the UK Plan's pension tiabTiities; 11.9% were allocated to equities; 33.0% to fixed income securities; 5.1% to cosh; and 2.4% to
other assets. The fixed income asset class of the UK Plan includes a liability-driven investment portfolio of financial derivative
contracts which reduces the risk that the LUK Plan's assets would fall materially, relative to the value of its economic liabilities.

The UK Plan Trustee has entered into a pension insurance buy-in agreement with the Pension Insurance Corporation (PIC),
whereby the UK Plon Trustee has paid insurance premiums to PIC to insure a significant portion of the UK Plan's liabilities.
Under this arrangement, the value of the PIC insurance contract matches the value of the liabilities because the inflation,
interest rate, investment and longevity risk for Vesuvius in respect of these liakilities are eliminated. As at 31 December 2017,
the 1AS 19 valuation of the PIC insurance contract value associated with the bought-in liebilities was £276.1m (2016: £289.6m).
The buy-in agreement ensures that the UK pension plan obligations in respect of all its retired members and their approved
dependants areinsured, The policy and the associated valuation are updated annually to reflect retirements and mortality.
In the current year, the agreement based on specific membership data covers 56.5% of UK pension plan obligations,
removing all financial risks associated with this tranche of the liability.

{b) Defined benefit contributionsin 2018

In 2018, the Group is expected to make contributionsinto its defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefits
plans of around £5.3m with specific contributions of approximately £3.0m and £0.8m anticipated for the US Plan and
UK Plan respectively.



28.8 Income statement recognition
The expense recognised in the Group Income Statement in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement plans and other

29.
29.1

29.2

post-retirement benafit plans is shown below.
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2017 2016

Qther Other

Defined post- Defined post-

benefit retirement benefit retirament

pension benefit pension benefit
plans plans Total plens plans Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 5.2 0.2 5.4 4.8 a1 49
Past service cost 0.1 — 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.3
Settlements — — — (5.2) — {5.2)
Administration expenses 1.3 — 1.3 1.5 — 1.5
Netinterest cost 0.4 0.2 0.6 7.1 0.2 13
TJotalnet charge 2.0 0.4 7.4 2.4 0.4 2.8

No settlement goin arose in 2017 in contrast to the £5.2m recognised in 2016 in relation to the buy-out of members of the

US Plan and Germon members maoving their existing plans into a new defined confribution plan. These settlements reduced
the Group's defined benefit obligations by £50.1m, effected by urilising £42.6m of pension assets and additionally, in respect

of the unfunded German plan, £2.3m of the Group's cash.

Thetotal net charge of £7.4m (2016: £2.8m) recognised in the Group Income Statement in respect of the Group's detined

benefit pension plans and other post-ratirement benefits plans is recognised in the following table:

2017 2016

£m £rn

Inarriving attrading prefit —within other manufacturing costs 24 20

—~within administration, selling and distribution costs 4.4 4.4

Inarriving at profit beforetax —within restructuring charges — 03
—gainan employee benefit plan — (5.2

—within netfinance costs 0.6 13

Totalnet charge 7.4 2.8

Share-based Payments

Accounting policy

The Group operates equity-seftled share-based payment arrangementfor its employees. Equity-settled share-based
poyments are measured ot fair value ot the date of grant. The fair value determined ot the gront date takes account of the

effect of market-based conditions, such astotal sharehaolder return target upon which vesting for some awards is conditional,
andisexpensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The cumulotive expense
recognised is adjusted for the best estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and for the effect of other non-market-based

conditions, such os growth in headline earnings per share, which are notincluded in the foir velue determined ot the date of
grant. For grants with market-bosed conditions attached to them, fair value is measured using a form of stochastic option

pricing madel. For all other grants, fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Income statement recognition
The total expense recognised in the Group Income Statement is shown below.

2017 2006

£m £m

Long Term Incentive Plan 1.8 1.0
Other plans 0.8 0.7
2.6 1.7

Total expense

The Group operotes o number of different share-based payment plons, the most significont of whichis the Long Term

Incentive Plan {LTIF), details of which can be found on pages 111 to 113 of the Directors’ Remuneration Repaort. The Group's

other share-based payment plans are not considered significant in the context of the Group's results or financial position.
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Share-based Payments (continued)

Details of outstanding options
Qutstanding awards

Asat Forfeited/ Asat
1Jan 2017 Granted Exercised lapsed 31 Dec201?
no. na. no. no. no.
LTIP 2,398,185 825,653 -— {943,745) 2,280,093
Weighted average exercise price nil nit nil nil nil
Otherplans 219,479 118,722 (180,704)  (5,660) 152,437
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nil

For the options exercised during 2017, the share price atthe date of exercise ranged fram 402 pence to 592 pence.
Cutstonding owards

Asat Forfeited/ Asat
1Jan2016 Granted Exercised lopsed 31 Dec2{1&
no, naQ. no. nao. no.
LTiP 1,585,838 1,211,828 -— ({399,581) 2,398,185
Weighted average exercise price il nil nil nil il
Other plans 743,666 86,867 (6071329) (3,915) 219,479
Weighted average exercise price niil nil nil nil nil
For the options exercised during 2016, the share price at the date of exercise ranged fram 287 pence to 347 pence.
Details of market performance conditiens are included in the Diractors’ Remuneration Reporr.
2017 2016
Weighted Weighted
Awards avaerage Awards average
exercisable outstanding Range of exercisable  outstanding Rangeof
asat contractual exercise asat  contractucl exercise
31 Dec 2017 lifeof awards prices 31 Dec 2016 life of awards prices
ne. years pence no, years pence
LTIP o 4.8 e 5.2
Weighted average exercise price — n/fa — n/a
Otherplans — 1.0 — 0.4
Weighted averoge exercise price -— n/a ~— n/a
Options granted underthe LTIP duringthe year
2017 {March Grant) 2017 (Sept Grant) 2016
EPS TSR EPS TSR EPS TSR
element element alement element elernent elernent
Fair value of options granted (per share) 524.5p  401.0p 578.0p  467.0p 292.0p 12.0p
Share price on date of grant {per share} 524.5p 524.5p 578.0p 578.0p 292.0p 292.0p
Expected volafility n/a 30.9% nfa  33.00% n/a 26.0%
Risk-freeinterest rate n/a 0.17% n/a 0.16% n/a 0.4%
Exercise price (pershare) nil nil nil nil il il
Expectedterm (years) 3 3 3 3 4 4
Expected dividend yield nil nil nil nil nik nil

The foir value of share options with non-morket performance conditions has been colculated using the Black-5choles option
pricing model. The fair value of options with market-related performonce conditions has been measured using the Monte
Carlo model. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price aver the

2 8years (2016: 2.75 years) prior to the granf date. The risk-free rate of return was assumed to be the yield fo meturity ona UK
fixed gilt with the term 1o maturity equal to the expected life of the option. At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee,
award halders receive tha value of dividends that would have been paid on their vested shares inthe period between grant
and vesting. Accordingly, there is no discount to the valuation for dividends foregone during the vesting period.
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Trade and Other Payables

Accounting policy
Trode and ather poyables areinitially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortisad cost, using the
effective interest method.

Analysis of trade and ather payables

2017 20787
£m £fm
Non-current
Accruals and other payables 14.4 12.6
Deferred purchase and contingent consideration 2.9 39
Total non-current other payables 17.3 16.5
Current
Trade payables 185.9 1391
Other toxes and social sacurity 32.6 323
Deferred purchase and contingent consideration 0.8 0.8
Accruals and other payables 733 67.5
Total current trade and other payables 292.6 2397

* Restoted as aresult of o changein occounting policy (Note 10.1).

There is no significant difference between the fair value of the Group's trade and other payables balances and the amount ot

which they are reparted in the Group Balance Sheet.

Included within trade payables in the table above is £1.8m (2016: £nil) subject to a supplier financing agreement. Under the

terms of this agreement, which the Group entered into as one of o series of measures aimed af improving control over its

working capital, invoices received by the Group from approved suppliers are assigned to athird-party finance company,
which assurmes legal responsibility for setiling the omount owing directly with the supplier. The Group subsequently settles

the amount owing to the finance company. There is no costto the Group from this arrangement.

Leases

Accounting policy
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership tothe lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are

charged tothe Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis over theterm of the lease. Benefits received and receivable

as an incentive to enter info an operating lease are alse spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating lease commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellakle operating leases are payable as follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Not laterthan oneyear 8.3 2.0
Laterthan one year and notlater than five years 13.4 15.8
Laterthan five years 19 7.0
Total operating lease commitments 29.6 31.8

The Group's property, plant and equipment assets are either purchased cutright or held under lease contracts. Where the
terms of the lease transfer substantially oll the risks and rewords of ownership of the asset to the Group, the assetis copitalised
inthe Group Balance Sheet and the corresponding liability to the lessor is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Where all
the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group, the lease is classified as an operating lease ond neither

the osset nor the corresponding liability to the lessar is recognised in the Group Balance Sheet. The netbook value of the

Group's property, plont and equipment assets held under finance lease confracts at 37 December 2017 was £4.6m
(2016: £4.7m).

The costincurred by the Groupin the year in respect of assets held under operating leases, all of which was charged within

trading profit, amounted to £18.6m {2016: £17.3m}.
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32.2

Provisions

Acceunting pelicy

Provisions are recognised when the Group hos a present ebligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligotion. Provisions are measured ot the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required

ta settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects bath the current market assessment of the time value of money and the
specific risks associated with the obligation. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
isrecognised as afinance cost.

Analysis of provisions

Disposaland  Restructuring

closuracosts chorges Other Totral

£m £m £m

Asat1Janvary 2017* 411 18.5 6.9 66.5
Exchange adjustments (2.6) 0.3 0.4) 27
Chargeto Group Income Statement — 26.3 1.7 48.0
Unused amounts released to Group Income Statement a7 — — (1.7}
Adjustment to discount 0.1 0.1 — 0.2
Cashspend 0. (27.3) (11.9) 41.1)
Transferred to other balance sheet accounts — (5.0) — {5.0)
Asat31 December 2017 35.0 229 6.3 64.2

*Restated to more approprictely reflect o provision for which an associoted insurance asset exists.

Of the total provision balanece os ot 31 December 2017 of £64.2m (2016: £66.5m), £34.4m (2016: £39.9m} is recognised inthe
Group Balanca Sheat within nen-current liabilities and £29.8rm (2016: £26.6m) within current liabilities.

The provision for disposal and closure costs includes the Directors' current best estimate of the costs to be incurred both in

the fulfilment of obligations incurred in connection with former Group businesses, resulting from either disposal or closure,
together with those related to the demolition and dean-up of closed sites. The provision comprises amounts payable in
respect of known or probable costs resulfing both from legal or other regulatory requirements, ar from third-party claims,
including claims relating to product liability. As the settlement of many of the obligations for which provision is mada is subject
to legal or other regulatory process, the fiming of the associated cash outflows is subject to some uncertainty, but the majority
of the amounts provided are expected to be utilised over the next ten years and the underlying estimates of costs are regularly
updatedto reflect changed circumnstances with regard to individual matters. The opening balance has been restated by
£7.9m to present a provision for which an associated insurance asset exists. There was no material impact onthe 2076
performance statements and no restatement is required.

Where insurance cover exists for any of these known or probable costs, a related asset is recognised in the Group Balance
Sheet only whenits value can be reliably measured by management. As at 37 December 2017, £21.6m (2016: £22.8m) was
reccrded in receivables in respect of associated insurance reimbursements, of which £20.7m {2016: £27.9m) is nen-current.

In assessing the probable costs and realisation certainty of provisions, or related assets, reasonable assumptions are made.
Changes fo the ossumptions used could significantly alter the Directar's assessment of the value, timing or certainty of the
costs or related amounts.

The provision for restructuring charges includes the costs of all of the Group's recognised initiatives to rationalise its operating
activities. The balance of £22.9m as at 31 December 2017 comprises £2.7m in relation to onerous lease provisions in respect
of leases terminating between one and six years, and £20.2m in relation 1o expenditure on restructuring initiatives that have
been announced which is expected to be paid out over the next year.

Other provisions comprise amounts payable in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other
regulatory requirements, workers' compensation and medical claims, and from third-party claims. As the settlement of many
of the obligations far which provision is made is subject to reasonable assumptions, legal or other regulatory process, the
timing of the associated outflows is subject fo same uncertainty, but the mojority of amounts provided are expectedto be
utilised over the next five years and the underlying estimates of costs are regularly updated to reflect changed circumstances
with regard to individual matters. During 2017 the Group recegnised net charges of £11.7m (2016: £10.2m) in the Group
Income Statemeni to pravide for various litigation settlements and other claims.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In compliance with current reporting requirements, certain arrangements entered into by the Group in its normal course of
business are not reported in the Group Balance Sheet. Of such arrangements, those considered material by the Directors are
future leose payments in relation o assets used by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases (Note 31).

Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees given by the Group under property leases of operations disposed of amounted to £1.1m {2016: £1.6m). Details
of guarantees given by the Company, on behalf of the Group, are given in Note 10 to the Company Financial Statements,

Vesuvius has extensive international operations and is subject to various legal and regulatery regimes, including those
covering toxotion ond environmento) maotters. Severol of Vesuvius' subsidiaries are parties to legal proceedings, certain of
which are insured claims arising inthe ordinary course of the cperations of the company involved, and the Directors are aware
of anumber of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tax authorities. Provisions are made for the expected
amounts payable in respect of known er probable costs resulting both from legal or other regulatory requirements, and

from third-party claims.

Certain of Vesuvius' subsidiaries are subject to lawsuits, predominantly inthe US, relating to a small number of preducts
containing usbestos manufactured prior to the acquisition of those subsidiaries by Vesuvius. These suits usually also name
many other product manufacturers, To date, Vesuvius is not aware of there being any liability verdicts against any of these
subsidiaries. A number of lowsuits have been withdrawn, dismissed or settled and the amount paid, including costs, in relation
tothis litigation has not had a material adverse effect on Vesuvius' financial position or results of operations,

Asthe settlerment of many of the obligations for which reserve is maode is subject to legal or other regulatory process, the
timing and amount of the associaied outflows is subject to some uncertainty (see Note 32 for further information).

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures ond Associates

Investmentin subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group contrels an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and can affect these returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which control is fransferred to the Group.

The subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of Vesuvius plc and the countries in which they are incorporated are set out
below. With the exception of Vesuvius Holdings Limited, whose ordinary share capital was directly held by Vesuvius ple, the
ordinary capital of the companies listed below was wholly owned by a Vesuvius plc subsidiary as at 31 December 2017.

Cempony Company
legol name Registered office address Jurisdiction legolname Registered office address Jurisdiction
Advent Process 333 Prince Charles Drive, Wellend, Canada Fle-Con CT Corparation, 1209 Orange US (Delaware)
Engineering Inc. Ontario, L3B 5P4, Canada {Ontario) Halding, Inc. Street, The Corporation Trust
Avernis SAS Saint Symphorien Sur Coise France Company, Wilmington, DE 198071,
(69550) qu 2, Hotel d'Entreprises, United States
ZI Grange Eglise, France Flo-Con CT Corporaticn, 208 South LaSalle US (lllinois)
BM|Refractory 600N Znd Street, Suite 401, us Systems, LLC Sf.reelfj Chicage, Coc}k County,
Services Inc. Harrisburg, PA 17101-1071, (Pennsylvania) Winois, IL 60604, United States
United States Fosaco (F5) 1 Midiand Way, Central Park, England
Brazil 1 Limited 165 Fleet Street, London, England Limited Burlbcrough Links, Derbyshire‘
EC4A 2AE, England 543 4XA, Englond
Cookson Km71/2, Autopista San Isidro, Dorminican F'os_eco (GB) 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Dominicana,SRL  Edificio Modelo A, Zona Franca Republic Limited EC4A ZAE, England
Sanlsidro, Santo Deminge Qeste, Foseco (Jersey) 44 Esplanade, 5t Helier, Jersey
Dominican Republic Limited JE49WG, Jersey
Coakson 13 Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey Foseco {MRL} 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Investments JEASUT, Jersey Limited EC4A 2AE, England
Uersey) Limited Foseco (RUL) 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Cookson Jersey 12 Castle Street, 5t Helier, lersey Lirnited ECAA 2AE, England
Limited JE4 SUT, Jersey Foseca (UK) 165 Fleet Street, London, Engiand
East Moon 36/F Tower Two Times Square, Hong Kong Limnited ECAAZAE, England
inves1me|:1f 1 Matheson Street, Fosece Canada 181 Boy Street, Suite 1800, Toronto, Canada
é_H KHold '19) " EUUSEEVDV Bay, Limired Chiaric, M5J 2T9, Canada {Ontari)
ompany Limite
Pety ONG ~ong Foseco 5, Barric Efizolde, lzurza, Bizkaia,  Spain

Espanola SA 48213, Spain
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35. Investmentsin Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

35.1 lnvestmentinsubsidiaries (continuved)

Company Compoany
legalname Registered office address Jurisdictian legal name Registered of fice address Jurisdiction
Foseco Foundry Room 819, Shekou Zhaoshong China Foseca Steel 165 Fleet Sireet, England
(China} Limited Building, Nanshan District, (Holdings) London, EC4A 2AE,
Shanzhen, China Ching Limited England
Foseco 5. Barrio Elizalde, lzurzo, Spoin Foseco Steel 1 Midland Way, Centrol Park, England
FundiciénHeolding  Bizkaio, 48213, Spain (UK) Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
{Espanola), S.L. 543 4XA, Fngland
Foseco MHolding 165 Fleet Street, London, England Foseco Technology 165 Fleet Street, Londen, England
{Europe) Limited ECAA2AE, England Limited EC4A 2AE, England
FosecoHolding 12, Bosworth Street, South Africa Foseco 165 Fleet Street, England
{South Africa) Alrode, Aberton, 1445, Transnational Landon, EC4A 2AE,
[Pry) Limited South Africa Limited Englond
Feseco 165 Fleet Street, London, Netherlands Foseco R717.1, Me Linh Point Tower, Vietnam
Holding BV EC4A 2AE, Engiond Vietnom Limnited no 2 Ngo Duc Ke, Ben Nghe Ward,
Foseco Holding 165 Fleet Street, England Dist1, Ho Chi Minh, Vietnam
International London, EC4A ZAE, HGAC Streef Duque de Coxias, Brazil
Limited England Participogbes 563 Room 2, Centro, Barueri,
Foseco Holding 165 Fleet Street, London, England Limitada SP, 06401-019, Brozil
Limited EC4A 2AE, England ISID Limited Beaver House, 23-38 Hythe Bridge England
Fosecolndustrial  Km 15, Rodovia Raposo Tovares,  Brozil Street, Oxford, OX1 2EP, Englond
eComercial Ltdo Butanta Cep, Sac Poulo, J.H.France CT Corporation, 1209 Gronge US (Delaware)
05577-100, Brozil Refractories Street, The Corporetion Trust
Foseco International 170/69, 22ndFloor Qcean Tower 1, Thailand Company Compony,Wﬂmmgton,
Helding (Thailand)  Rotchadapisek Read, Klongtoey, DE 19801, United States
Lirnited Bangkek, 10110, Thailand John G.Stein 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Foseco 1 Midland Way, Central Pork, England & Company Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
International Barlborough Links, Derbyshire, Limited 543 4XA, England
Limited 543 4XA, England Mainsail Insurance  Canen's Court, 22 VictoriaStreet,  Bermuda
FosecoJaopanltd  9thFloor, Crix Kobe Sannomiya Japan Companylimited Hamilton, MM 12, Bermuda
Building, 6-1-10, Geke dori, Mascinco Awvenida Brasil, 49550 - parte, Brazil
Chuo-ku, Kobe Hyogo, Empreendimentos  Distrita Industrial de Palmares -
651-0087, Japan eParticipagbes Campe, Grande-Cep: 23065-480,
FosecoKorea 74 Jeongju-ro, Wonmi-gu, South Korea Ltda Riode Janeiro, RJ, Brozil
Limited Bucheon-si, Gyeonggi-do, Mastercodi Avenida Giovanni Gronehi, 5174, Brazil
14523, South Korea Industrial Ltda suife 11, Vila Andrade, 05724-002,
Foseco Limited 165 Fleet Street, London, England S&c Pavlo, State of SGo Paule, Brazil
ECA4A 2AE, England Mercajoyg, S.A. Capitén Hoya, 56 - 12H, Spain
Foseco CT Corporation, 1209 Cronge US (Delaware} 28020 Madrid, Spain
Metallurgical inc Street, The Corporoation Trust MetalWoy Estrado Santa Isabel, 7655 KM37,  Braozil
Company, Wilmington, Equipamentos Bairro Do Una, ltfaquaquecetuba,
DE 19807, United States MetalurgicesLtda  Sdo Paule—SP, CEP: 08580 000,
Foseco Binnenbavenstroot 20, Netherlonds Brozi
Nederland BV 7553 GJ Hengelo {OV), Micro Jewels 10Frere Felix DeVoloTs Street, Mauritivs
Netherlands Limited Port Louis, Mauritius
Foseco Overseas 165 Fleet Street, London, England Minerals 165 Fleet Street, Londen, England
Limited ECAA2AF, England Separation Limited EC4A2AF, England
Foseco Pension 165 Fieet Street, London, Englond NewFoseco 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Fund Trustee EC4A 2AE, England (UK Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
Limited 5454XA, England
Foseco Unit 401, 4th Floor 8 Antonio Philippines Premier Refractories 17 Rue de Douvrain, Ghlin, Belgium
Philippines Inc Centre, Prime St. Madrigal (Belgium} 5.A. 7017, Belgium
Bus‘\n.ess Pork.Z, AY?’_G Aﬁﬂbcng Process Metrix, 6622 Owens Drive, Pleasantan, us
Muntinlupa City, Philippinas LLC CA 94588, United States {California)
Foseco Portugal Rua 25 deAbril, Lote 3, Portugal PT Foseco 2/5, Jalan Rawagelarm, indonesia
Pmd‘_’ms para A_\‘E‘Edc“4485-o‘|OVCDF Indonesia Kawasan Industry, 2/No.5
FundigéoLda Vilado Cende, Portugal Pulagadung, Jakarta Timur,
Foseco Pty 7,Stuart Street, Padstow, Australia 13930, Indonesia
Limited NSW 22711, Australia PT Foseco 2/5, Jalan Rawagelam, Indonesia
Foseco SAS Le Newton C,7 MallBarthélémy  France Trading Indonesia  Kowasan Industry, 2/No.5

Thimonnier, 77185 Lognes, France

Pulogadung, Jokarte Timur,
13530, Indonesia
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Company Compony
lagal name Registered office address Jurisdiction legal name Reqisterad office address Jurisdiction
Realisations CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Delaware) Vesuvius Ching Office 813, 8/F, Paul Y centre, Hong Kong
789, LLC Sireet, The Corporaticn Trust Heoldings Co. 51 Hung Te Read, Kwun Tong,
Company, Wilmington, DE 19801, Lirnited Kowloon, Hong Kong
United Stofes Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England
S5GBlair & 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England China Limnited EC4A 2AE, England
C_on.'spcmy Barlborough Links, Derbyshire, Vesuvius Street 20, number13A-37, Colombia
Limited 545 4XA, England Colombia SAS floor 6, Bogota, Colombia
SERT-Metal SAS 3 Avenue dre |'Eur.ope, Parc, ) France Vesuvius Salita delle Ginestre 10, Lugano Switzerland
6Les nglles, Decines-Charpisu Corporation$S.A.  Cassarare, CH 6900, Switzerland
9150, Fronce " - VesuviusCrucible  CT Corporation, 1209 Crange U5 {Delaware)
SIDERMES Inc. 175, Calixo-Lavallée Verchéres, Canado Company Street, The Corporation Trust
Québec JOLIRO, Canada Company, Wilmingten, DE 19801,
SIDERMES Zonalndustrial, San Vicente Av., Venezuela United States
Latincomericene  Anton Phillips Grupe Industrial, Vesuvius ul Pradnicks, nr 4, Krokow, 30-002, Poland
CA San Vicente Locol 4, Maracoy, CSDSpzoo. Paoland
Vi
ene.zue|0 - - - Vesuvius Warehouse Ne:1J-09/3,POBox  United Arab
SIDERMES Urgquizo 919 P'SO? Rosario Argenting Emirates FZE 43261, Hamriyoh Free Zone, Emirates
S.A. Santa Fe, Argenting, CP 2000 Sharjah, United Arab Emirates
SIDERMES Via MG”TOVQ_-IO: iraly Vesuvius Financial 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond
5.p.A. 20835 Muggio (MB), Italy 1 Limited EC4A 2AE, England
SIDERMES EstradaMunicipal PDD 436, 5/N,  Brazil Vesuvius Pajamaentie 10,00360 Helsinki,  Finland
SENSORES Prédio'C, Bairro da Boa Visto, Finland QY Finland
TERMICOS DO Municipio de Piedade, 3 " " - -
BRASILLTDA EsTcdopdeSéo Poulo, Brazil Vesuvius Foundry 12 WeiWen Road, Chlnc-Sllngopore China
- Products (Suzhou)  Suzhouind Park, Suzhou, Jiengsu
SiR Siegener Strasse 152, Germany Co., Lid. Province, 215122, China
Feverfestprodukte  Kreuztal, D-37223, VesuviusFoundry 2 Changchun Road, Ecenomic China
GmbH Germany :
Technologies Development Area, Changshu,
SOLEDSAS Parc d'Activités, BellaFontaine, France { Jiangsu) Co. Ltd Jiongsu, China
57780Rosselange, France Vesuvius France Rue Paul Deudon 68, Boite Postale  France
Tamworth 165 Fleet Street, London, England S.A 15, Feignies 59750, France
UK Limited EC4A2AE, England Vesuvius GmbH Gelsenkirchener Strasse 10, Germany
Thomas Marshall  Beaver House, 23-38 Hythe Bridge  England Borken, D-46325, Germany
(LO_X]QY) Limired Street, Oxford, OX1 2P, Englond Vesuvius Group 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Unicorn 165 Fleet Street, London, England Lirmited EC4A JAE, England
ies Limi E,E
Industries Limited  ECAA2AE, England VesuviusGroup 5.A. 17 Rue de Douvrain, Ghlin, Belgium
Veservice Ltda AvBraslil, 49550, Distrito Industrial - Brozil 7011, Belgium
g;?;T:;EFsr;‘cg?aiosi;ggd;ﬁzﬂ VesuvivsHolding  Gelsenkirchener Strasse 10, Germany
v - T70/65,22 dF'I ) _‘r P — Deutschland GmbH Borken, D-46325, Germany
asuvius ,22nd Floor Ocean Tower 1, ailan - "
(Thailand) Co., Ltd  Rotchadopisek Road, Kiongtaey, ;\!ESUV'USS %;osldmg gB.RU.E P(;;ljlggu;]on, BP9, France
Bangkek, 10110, Thailand [ONee 22 eignies - Trance
Vesuvius Street Urquiza, 919,Floor 2, Rosario, Argentina [\:efu‘ifgs H‘oic‘:‘mg grozza Bg;}ﬂr]go Pila 40, taly
(VEAR)SA. Provinciade SantaFé, Argenting aia-soaetaa enos, Tay
Responsabilitd
Vesuvius Advanced 227 Xing Ming Street, China- Ching Limitata
Ceramics{Ching)  Singapore SuzhouInd Park, Suzhou -
. - i ! Vesuvius 165 Flaet Street, London, England
. J : '
Co. L1d angsu Prevince, 215027, Ching Holdings Limited  EC4A 2AF, England
Vesuvius 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington,  US (Delaware) Vesuvius Ibérica Capitén Haya, 561204 Spain
Cme”_‘“';c : 2519501., U:fed SC"”“‘S e — Refractorios5.A. 28020 Madrid, Spain
25UVILUS AMEriLos crporohon Trust Center, 2loware, " -
Holdings, Inc 1209 Orange Stree?, Wilmington, Vesuwus CT Corporation, 120? Orange US {Deloware)
International Street, The Corporation Trust
New Castle County, DE 19801, . e
. Corporation Company, Wilmington, DE 19801,
United States i
Vasuvivs Australic 4D 46 Bovlevard ] Unied States
esuvius Australio - loucester Bovlevarde, Aystralio -
(Holding) Pty Port Kamila, NSW, 2505, Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England
L . Investments EC4A 2AE, England
Limited Australia L
Vi i 40-46 Gl Boul d A li Limited
esuvius - oucester Boulevorde, ustralia -
AustraliaPrylid  PortKembla, NSW, 2505, Austratia Vesuvissistonbul - Gebze 0582 Mh. 1700, Turkey
: Sanayive Ticoret  Scok No1704/1, Cayirova,
Vesuvius Zandvoordastroat 366, Oostende, Belgium AS Kocaoei], 41420, Turkey
. v N .
Belglu.m N B-8400, Belgivm Vesuvius ltalia SPA_ Pigzza Borgo Pilc 40, Genoag, italy  Italy
Vesuviusg 181 Bay Street, Suite 1800, Canada Vesivivs Daini-N Arihobara Bld 3
Canadalne Toronto, Ontario, M5 2T9, Canada esuvr i varuse Akinaoara Slag. apan
Jopaninc, 3F, 27-10, 1-cheme, Taite,
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond Taito-ku, Tokyo, 110-0016, Japan

Cercmics Limited

EC4A2AF, Englond
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35. Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

35,1 Investmentin subsidiaries {continued)

35.2

Company Company
legal name Registered office uaddress Jurisdietion legol name Registered office address Jurisdiction
Vesuvius 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England Vesuvius Galati, Marea Unire avenue 107, Roemania
K.S.R. Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire RefractoriesS.rl.  Galaticounty, Romenia
543 4XA, United Kingdom Vesuvius Av Brasil, 49550, Distrito Industrial - Brazil
Vesuvius Life Plan 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond Refratérios Ltdo de Palmares, Compo Gronde,
Trustee Limited ECAA 2AE, Englond Rio de Janeirg, 23065-480, Brazil
Vesuvius LLC 10, Ui Kooperativnayg, Russia Vesuvius Refractory RoomNe. 3, 3rd Floor, 7 Ganesh India
Zhukovsky, Moscow, 140780, Indio Privote Chondra Avenue, Kolkoto,
Russian Federation Limited WRB 700013, Indic
Vesuvius Level 18, The Gardens North Malaysio Vesuvius 4, Forradsgetan, Amal, Sweden
Molaysio Sdn Tower, Mid Volley City, Lingkoron Scandinavia AB 5-662 34, Sweden
Bhd Syed Putra, KUQIQ Lumpur, Vesuvius Solar 58, Kualhun Road, China
59200, Malaysia Crucible (Suzhou)  KuaTang, China-Singapore
Vesuvius 165 Fleat Street, London, England Co., Ltd. Swzou Ind Park, Suzhou,
Managernent EC4A2AE, England Jiangsu Province,
Lirnited 215122, China
Vesuvius Mexico Aw. Ruiz Cortinez, Num. 140, Mexico Vesuvius Pabble Lane, Private Bag X2, South Africo
5.A.deCV. Colonia Jardines de San Rafael, South Africa Qlifantsfontein, Gauteng Province,
Guedalupe, Nuevo Leén, CP 67119, (Pry)Limired 1665, South Africa
Mexico Vesuvius S5C Sp ul Pradnickg, ar 4, Krakow, 30-002,
WVesuviug 56, rd 15, Apt 103, Maadi, Egypt 2.0.0, Poland
Mid-East Limited  Cairo, Egypt Vesuvius UK 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, Landon, England Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
Minerals Limited EC4A2AE, England $434XA, United Kingdom
Vesuvius Moravio,  Konskac.p. 740, Trinec, 739 61, Czech Vesuvius Ukraine 27, Udarnykiv Street, City of Ukraine
s.rl CzechRepublic Republic LLC Dripropetrovsk, Ukraine
Vesuvius New 18 Cryers Road, East Tamaki, New Zecland Vesuvius USA CT Corporation, 208 SouthLaSalle US (Illinois)
Zealand Limited Auckland, New Zealand Corporation Street, Chicagoe, Caok County,
Vesuvius Afanosyevsky, Pereulok 41 A, Russia IL 60604, United Stotes
jole]e} Moscow, Russia, 119019, Vesuvius VA Limited 165 Fleet Street, Landon, England
Russian Federation EC4A 2AE, England
VesuviusOverseas 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond VesuviusZyalons  Brown Street, Newmins, Seotland
Investrnants Limited ECAA ZAE, England HoldingsLimited  Ayrshire, KA16 9AG, Scotland
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England Vesuvius Zyarock 58, KuaChun Read, Kua Tang, China
OverseasLimited  EC4A2AE, Englond Ceramnies China-Singopore Suzoulnd Park,
Vesuvius Pension 165 Fleet Street, London, England (5uzhou} Co., Ltd Suzhou, .ch.ngsu Frovince,
Plans Trustees EC4A 2AE, England 215122, Ching
Limited Vesuvius-Premier 1 Midlond Way, Central Park, England
Vesuvius Pigments 165 Fleet Street, London, England Refro_cforfes\ ) Barlboraugh Links, Derbyshire,
{Holdings) Limited EC4A 2AE, England (Hoidings) Limited  5434XA, England
Vesuvius Poland Ul Tyniecka 12, Skawina, Bolond VSV Advanced Xiaotaizi Vitloge, Ningyvan Town,  China
Spélkaz.o.0 32-050 Poland Ceramics (Anshan)  Qianshan Disfrict, Anshan,
Vasuvius Street No. F14, RAK Investment United Arab Ccf" Lrd Ligoning Province, China
Ras Al Khaimah Authority Free Zone, Al Hamra, Emirates Vy'ﬁlfes-Lucos 165 Fleet Street, London, England
FZLLC Ras AlKhaimch, PO Box 86408, Limited EC4A 2AE, England
United Arab Emirates Yingkow Bayuquan  Qing Long Shan Street, Bayuguan  China
Vesuvius Street San Martin 870, Chile Refractories Co., Ltd Districi, Liconing Pravince, YingKou
Refractarios Room 308, Tower B, Concepcion,
deChile SA Chile
Vesuvius 56, 13th Avenue, TEDA, Tianjin, China
Refractories 300457, China

{Tianjin) Co., Ltd

Investment in joint ventures and associates

Ajointventure is a type of joint arrangerment whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the jcint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of the arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing confrol. An associate is an entity
over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the pawer to participate in the financial and operating

palicy decisions of an entity, butis not control or joint control over those policies.



The Group's investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method from the date
significant influence/joint controlis deermed to arise until the date on which significantinfluence/joint control ceases to exist or
when the interest becomes classified as an asset held for sale. The Consolidated Income Statement reflecis the Group's share
of profit after tax of the related associates and joint ventures. Investments in associates and joint ventures are carried in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet ot cost adjusted in respect of post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets, less any

impairmentin value.

179

2017 2016
£m £m

A1 Janvary 18.0 161
Additions 04 —
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 1.3 1.0
Dividends received from joint ventures (1.7} (.0}
Foreign exchange 0.5) 19
At 31 December 17.5 18.0
Jointventures
Set out below is the summarised financial information in respect of jeint ventures. Amounts relate to the Group's share.

2017 2016

Em £m

Revenue 53.9 44.6
Trading profit 2.1 1.6
Netfinance costs 0.1 0.1
Profitbeforetax 2.2 1.6
Income tax expense {0.9) {0.6)
Profit aftertax 1.3 1.0
Non-current assets 5.9 7.6
Current assets 41.7 420
Non-current ligbilities — —
Current liabilities {30.8) (32.0)
Net assets 16.8 17.6

The purpose of the Chinese [oint veniure companies is to research, develop, manufacture and seli refractory products.
The role of Vesuvius is to provide technical persennel, training and access to the Group's international sales network.

Nameof entity Registered address Jurisdiction % ownership

Angang Vesuvius Refractory Company Ltd Taxi District, Anshan City, Ligoning Province, China China 50

Wuhan Wugang-Vesuvius Advanced CCRCo,,  Goengnong Village Qingshan District, Wuhan, China 50

Lid Hubei Province, 430082, China

Wuhon Wugang-Vesuwvius Advenced Ceramics  Gongnong Villoege Qingshan District, Wuhan, China 50

Co., L1d Hubei Province, 430082, China

Beaouvac Participagdes 5/A Street Libero Badaroe, 293, ¢j. 20D, S&c Paulo, Brazil 50
Ceniro, 01009-000, Brazil

INTAHSASA Street Dugue de Caxias 563, house 04, Room 07, Brazil 25
Barueri, S0 Paule, Centro, 06401-010, Brazil

Newshelf 480 (Proprietary) Limited 44 Main Street, Johannesburg, 2001, South 45
South Africa Africa
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35.
35.2

35.3

36.

36.2

36.3

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)
Investment in joint ventures and associatas (continued)

Associotes
During 2017, the Group acquired a 14.9% interest in Sapotech Oy, a Finnishtechnelogy company, for total consideration
of £0.4m.

Name of entity Registered address Jurisdiction % ownership
Sapotech Qy Paavo Havaksentie 5 D, $0570 Ouly, Finland Finland 14.90
Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the equity of a subsidiary not attributable either directly or indirectly to the
parent ccmpany and dre presented separately in the Consolidated Income Statement and within equity in the Consclidared
Balance Sheet, distinguished from parent company shareholders’ equity.

The total non-controlling interest at 31 December 2017 is £6.4m (2016: £6.3m) of which £4.6m relates to Vesuvius India Ld
(2C16: £4.3m). The non-contrelling inferests in respect of the Group's other subsidiaries are not considered to be material.

Name of entity Registered address Jurisdiction % ownership

Vesuvius India Limited P-104 Taratala Road, Kolkata, 700088, India India 55.57

Foseco India Limited 922/923, Gat, Sanaswadi, Taluka, Shirur, Pune, India 74,98
412208, India

Fosecc Golden Gofte Company Limited 6 Kung Yeh Znd Road, Ping Tung Dist, Ping Tung, Taiwan 51
90049, Taiwan

Foseco (Thailand) Limited 170/69, 22nd Flocr Ocean Tower 1, Thalland 74

Rotchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok,
10110, Thailand

VESUVIUS CESKA REPUBLIKA, a.s. Prumyslové 726, Konskg, Trinec, 739 61, Czech 60
Czech Repubilic Republic

Details of subsidiaries exempt from audit of their individual financial statements by virtue of Section 479A of the Companies
Act 2006 are disclosed in Note 6 1o the Compony Financial Staternents.

Aswith Vesuvius ple, oll of the above companies have a 31 December year-end.

Related Parties
Alltronscctions with refated parties are conducted on an arm’s-length basis and in accordance with normal business terms.
Transactions between related parties that cre Group subsidiaries are eliminated en consolidation.

The related parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, assaciotes, and key management persannel. Toenable
users of aur financial staternents to form a view on the effects of related party relationships on the Group, we disclose the
related party relationship when control exists, irrespective of whether there have been transactions between the related
parties.

Transactions with joint ventures and asscciates
All transactions with joint ventures and associates are inthe normal course of business. Further detuils of joint ventures and
associates are included in Note 35,

Transactions with key management personnel
There have been nofransactions with key management personnel of the Group other than the Directors’ remuneration,

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 8 of the Group Financial Statements ond inthe Directers’ Remuneration Report.

Transactions with other related parties
There are na controlling shareholders of the Group as defined by IFRS. There have been no material fransactions with the

sharehofders of the Group.
Pension confributions to Group schemes are disclosed in Note 28 of the Group Financial Statements.

Gther than the parties disclosed above, the Group has no other material related parties.
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2017 2016
total total
Notes £m fm
Fixed assets
Investment 2] 1,778.0 1,778.0
Totalfixed assets 1,778.0 1,778.0
Currentassets
Debters—amounts falling due within one year 5.1 1.8
Total current assets 5.1 1.8
Creditors—amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft (0.4) _—
Other creditors 7 (1,124.7) (1,074.5)
Net current liabilities {1,120.0) (1,072.7)
Total assets less current liabilities 658.0 705.3
Netassets 658.0 705.3
Equity capital and reserves
Issued share capital 8 278 27.8
Retained earnings 630.2 677.5
Total shareholders'funds 658.0 705.3

Company number 8217766

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement fo present an income statement.

During 2017 the Company incurred & loss of £4.3m (2016: £3.0m loss).

The financiol statements were cpproved and autherised for issue by the Directors on 28 February 2018 and signed on their

behaif by:

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Asat 31 December 2017

Share Retained

capital earnings Total

£m £m £m

Asat1January 2016 278 7227 750.5
Loss recognised far the year — (3.0) (3.0
Recognition of share-based payments — 1.7 1.7
Dividend peid — (43.9) (43.9)
Asat1 January 2017 278 677.5 705.3
Loss recognised for the year — {4.3) (4.3)
Recogniticn of share-based payments — 2.6 2.6
Dividend poid — (45.6) (45.6)
Asat31 December 2017 27.8 630.2 658.0

The Company had distributable reserves of £630.2m as ot 31 December 2017 (2016: £677.5m).
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

2.
2.1

22

23

General Information

Vesuvius ple (' Vesuvius' or 'the Company') is a public compaony limited by shares. Itis incorporated and domiclled in England
and Wales and listed onthe London Stock Exchange. The nature of the company is a holding company. The address ofits

registered officais 165 Fleet Street, London EC4A 2AE.

Basis of Preparation

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,
Reduced Disclosure Framewark (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historiccl cost convention.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 107 in respect of the
following disclosures:

> A cashflow statement and related notes

> Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries

> Disclosures in respect of capital management

> The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs

> Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its awn profit
and loss account.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented

inthese financial statements. There were noidentified critical accounting estimates or judgemenits,

Going concern

The Directors have ¢ reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have odequate resources to continue in
operational existence for period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of these accounts. Accordingly, they continue
o adopt a going concern basis in preparing the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

Accountfing policy

Taxation

Both current and deferred tax are calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted,

by the balance sheet dote.

Current tax payable is based on the taxabie result for the year. Deferred taxation is recognised, without discounting, in raspect
of alltiming differences that have originated, but not reversed, at the balance sheet date, with the exception that deferred
taxation assets are only recognised if it is considered more likely thon not that there will be suitable future profits from which
the reversal of the underlying fiming differences can be deducted. Provision is made for the tax that would arise on remittance
of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been
accrued as receivable.

All other accounting policies are set out within the respective notes.

Employee Benefits Expense

2017 2016

£m £m

Wages & Salaries 37 2.4
Social security costs 0.6 0.4
Share-based payments 07 0.6
Pension costs —definad contribution pension plans — C1
Total employee benefits expense 5.0 3.5

The totcl average number of employees for 2017 was 3 (2016: 3). As at 31 December, the Company hod 4 employees.

Details of the Directors' remuneration are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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4. Audit and Non-Audif Fees

Amounts payabile to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in relation to audit and non-audit fees are disclosed within Note 6to the
Consolidated Financial Stotements.

5. Dividends

Afinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £30.8m (2015: £30.0m), equivalent to 11.40 pence {2015: 11125
pence) per ordinary share, was paid in May 2017 (May 2016) and aninferim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
of £14.8m (2016: £13.9m), equivalent to 5.50 pence {2016: 5.15 pence) per ordinary share, was paid in September 2017
(September 2076).

A proposed final dividend for the year ended 371 December 2017 of £33.8m (2016: £30.8m), equivalent o 12.5 pence per
ardinary share (2016: 11.40 pence), is subject to approval by shareholders at the Company's Annual General Maeting and
has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. If approved by shareholders, the dividend will be paid on
25 May 20718 to ordinary shareholders on the register a1 13 April 2018.

6. Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

6.1 Accounting policy
Shares in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less any impairment in value.

6.2 Analysis of investment in subsidiaries, associates and [oint ventures

Sharesin
subsidiaries
£m

Asat1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 1,778.0

The subsidiories, joint ventures and associates of Vesuvius ple, their country of incorporation and % awnership is set out in
Note 35 of the Notes to the Group Financial Staternents. With the exception of Vesuvius Holdings Ltd, whose erdinary share
capital was directly held by Vesuvius ple, the ordinary share capital of the other companies was owned by a Vesuvius ple
subsidiary as at 31 December 2017.

6.3 Audit-exempt subsidiaries
Tha following UK subsidiaries are exempt from audit of their individual financial statements by virtue of Section 479A of the

Companies Act 2006.

Brozil 1 Limited John G. Stein & Company Limited

Foseco Limited S G Blair & Company Limited

Foseco Technology Limited Vesuwvius China Limited

Foseco Transnatienal Limited Vesuvius Group Limited

Foseca{FS) Limited Vesuvius Minerals Limited

Foseco {GB) Limited Vesuvius Pigments (Heldings) Limited

Foseco Steel {Holdings} China Limited Vesuvius-Premier Refractories (Holdings) Limited
Foseco (LK) Limited Vesuvius VA Limited

7. Other Creditors

2017 2016

£m £m

Amounts owned to subsidiory undertakings 1,122.4 1,073.2
Accruals and other creditors 2.3 13
Total amounts falling due within one year 1124.7 1,074.5

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.
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Issued Share Capital

Accounting policy
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Analysis of issued share capital

The issued and fully paid ordinary share capitai of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 278.5 million shares of
£0.10 each (2016: 278.5 million shares of £0.10 each). Of this, 7.3 million {2016: 7.3 million) shares were held in Treasury
and 0.9 miffion (2016: 1.1 million) shares were held by the Vesuvius Group employee share ownership plan trust (ESOP).
The Company only has one class of sharesinissue, ordinary shares. All shareholders enjoy the same rights in relation to
these shares, including rightsin relation to voting at General Meetings of the Company, distribution of dividends and
repayment of capital.

Share-based Payments

Accounting policy

The Company oparates aquity-seftled share-based poyment arrangements for its employees. Equity-settled share-based
paymenits are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined ot the grant date takes account of the
effect of market-based conditions, such as the total shareholder return target upon which vesting for some of the awards

is conditional, and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with o corresponding increase in equity.

The curnulative expense recognised is adjusted for the best estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and for the effect
of other non-market-based vesting conditions, such as growth in headline earnings per share, which are notincluded inthe
fair value determined at the date of grant. For grants with market-based conditions attaching to them, {air value is measured
using a form of stochastic option pricing model. For all other grants, fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model.

Profit and loss account recognition

The Company operates a number of different share-based poyment schemes, the main features of which are detailed
between pages 95 to 105 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Atotal of £0.7m was charged to the profit and loss account
inthe year with regard to share-based payments (2016 £0.5m).

Details of outstanding options

Outstonding awards

Weighted
Awards average
exercisable outstanding
Asat Asat asat  contractual Rangeof
1Jan Forfeited/ 31 Dec 31Dec lifeof exercise
2017 Granted Exercised lapsed 2017 2017 awards prices
no. no. no. ne. na. ne. years pence
LTIP 1,156,560 409,453 —  (631,095) 934,918 — 4.8 nfa
Weighted average
exercise price nil nil nil nil nil — nfa
Other plans 8,557 — (8,557) — — — — nfa
Weighted average
exercise price nil nil nil nil nil — nfa

For options exercised during 2017 included in‘Other plans), the share price atthe dete of exercise was 592 pence.

Qutstanding awards

Weighted
Awords average
exercisable  oulstonding
Asat As at asat  contractual Range of
1Jan Forfeited/ 31 Dec 31 Dec lifeof exercise
2016 Granted Exercised lopsed 20é 2015 owards prices
no. no. no. no. ne. no, years pence
LTIP 916,163 581,901 —  (341,504) 1,156,560 — 8.5 n/a
Weighted average
exercise price nil nil nil nil nil — n/a
Other plans 82,261 — (51,859) (21,845) 8,557 — 0.8 n/a
Weighted average
exarcise price nil nil nil nil nil — nfa

For aptions exercised during 2016 included in'Other plans, the share price at the date of exercise was 333 pence.
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10.

Share-based Payments (continued)

Details of outstanding options {continued)
Details of morket performance conditions are included in the Directors' Remuneration Report.

Asat 31 December 2017, the fotal options exercisable by all Group employees over the £0.10 ardinary shares and capable of
being satisfied through new allotments of shares or through shares held by the Companry’s ESOP were as follows;

Number

Latestyear of options/

Years of Option of exercise/ allocations

oword/grant prices (£) vesting outstanding

Long Term Incentive Plan 2015-2017 nil 2017/2027 2,280,093

Medium Term Incentive Plan 20162017 nil 2019 141,302

Restricted rights 20162017 nil 2018/2020 11,135
Fairvalue of options granted under the LTIP during the year:

2017 {March Grant) 2017 (Sept Grant) 2016

EPS TSR EPS TSR EPS TSR

element element slement element element element

Fairvalue of options granted (per share) 524.5p 401.0p 578.0p 467.0p 292.0p 1M2.0p

Share price on date of grant (per share} 524.5p 524.5p 578.0p 578.0p 2920p 292.0p

Expected volatility nfa 32090% nfa  33.00% n/a 26.00%

Risk-freeinterest rate n/a 0.17% n/fa 0.16% n/a 0.40%

Exercise price (per share) nil nil nil nil nil nil

Expectedterm (yeors) 3z 3 3 3 4 4

Expected dividend yield nil nil nil nil n/a n/a

The fair value of share options with non-market performance conditions has been calculated using the Block-Scholes

option pricing model. The fair value of options with market-related performance conditions has been measured using the
Monte Carlo model. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over
the 2.8 years {2016: 2.75 years) priorto the grant date. The risk-free rate of return was assumed to be the yield to maturity

on a UK fixed gilt with the termto maturity equal to the expected life of the aption. At the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee, oward holders receive the velue of dividends that would have been poid on their vested shares in the period
between grant and vesting. Accordingly, there is no discount to the valuation for dividends foregone during the vesting period.

Contingent Liabilities

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee confracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within

its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the
Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent ability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company
will be required 1o make a payment under the guarantee. Guarantees provided by the Company as at 31 Decernber 2017
in respect of the liabilities of its subsidiary companies amounted to £563.4m (2016: £569.4rmy), which includes guarantees of
$200.0m and €130.0m (2076: $310.0m and €30.0m) in respect of US Private Placement Loan Notes and £146.3m (2016:
£141.7m} in respect of drawings under the syndicated bank facility; together with £150.8m (2016: £150.8m) inrelationto a
guarantee provided to the Company’s UK subsidiory which acts as Trustee for the Group's UK pension plan. The guarantee
is over all present and future pension licbilities of the plan and the contingent liability amount represents the net deficiton a
buy-out basis as shown in the most recent triennict valuation.

Vesuvius has extensive international operations and is subject fo various legal and regulatory regimes, including thase
covering taxaticn and ervironmental matters. Several of the Company's subsidiaries are parties to legal proceedings, certain
of which are insured claims arising in the ordinary course of the operations of the company involved, and are aware of @
number of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with fax authorities. Whilst the outcome of litigation and other
disputes can never be predicted with certainty, having regard o legal advice received and the insurance arrangements of
the Company andits subsidiaries, the Directors believe that none of these matters will, either individually or inthe aggregate,
have o materially adverse effect on the Compeny's financial condition or results of operations.
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11. Related Parties

All transactions with related parties are conducted on an arm’s-length basis ond in accordence with normal business terms.
Transacticns between related parties that are wholly owned Compuany subsidiaries are not disclosed in this Note,

The related parties identified by the Directorsinclude joint ventures, associates and key management personnel. To enable
users of cur financial statements to form a view on the effects of related porty relationships on the Company, we disclose
the related party relationship when control exists, irrespective of whether there have been transactions between the

related parties.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates
Alltransactions with joint ventures and associates are in the normal course of business. Further details of joint ventures and
associates isincluded in Note 35 of the Notes to the Group Financial Statements,

Transactions with key management personnel
There have been no transactions with key management persennel of the Company other than the Directors’ remuneration.

Directors remuneration is disclosed in the Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration.

Transactions with other related parties
There cre ne controlling shareholders of the Campany as defined by IFRS. There have been no material transactions with the
shareholders of the Company.

Pension contributions are disclosed in Note 28 of the Group Financial Statements.

Other thanthe parties disclosed above, the Company has no other material related parties.
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Five-Year Summary: Divisional Results from
Continuing Operations

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Steel Division
Revenue fm 1,148.7 9420 8976 987.4 1,017.5
Trading profit fm 100.4 79.2 79.5 96.4 88.7
Returnonsoles % 8.7 8.4 8.5 9.8 87
Employees: year-end no. 7,930 7,782 7,783 8,349 7.524
Foundry Division
Revenue fm 535.2 4554 424 4 4630 493.0
Trading profit frn 65.1 541 44,5 46.4 51.3
Return onsales % 12.2 11.8 10.5 10.0 10.4

Employees: year-end no. 3,080 3,058 3,129 3,443 3,330




Shareholder Information

Enquiries

The share register is managed by Equiniti, who can be
contacted regarding shareholding queries.

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House, Spencer Road

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 604

Tel (UK only) 0371 384 2335

Tel (non-UK) +44 121 415 7047

For the hard of hearing, Equiniti offers a Texte] service which
can be accessed by dialling 0371 384 2255 (or +44 121 415 7028
if calling from outside the UK.

Any shareholder enguiries not related to the

share register should be sent by emailto
sharehelder.information@vesuvius.com or by letter to
the Company Secretary at the registered office.

Registered Office and Group Head Office

Vesuvius plc

165 Fleet Street

London EC4A 2AE

Tel +44 (0)20 7822 0000

Fox +44{(0)207822 0100

Registered in England and Wales No. B217766

LEL 2138000RZ521W5855Y02
Vesuvius Website

Shareholder and other information about the Company,
including details of the current and historica! share price,
can be occessed onthe Vesuvius website www.vesuvius.com.

Shareview and Electronic Communication

Equiniti's website www.shareview.co.uk enables shareholders
to access details of their shareholdings online. The website
provides answers to frequently asked questions and information
useful for the management of investments. To access online
information on your sharehalding, you will require your
shareholder reference number, which can be found ot the

top of your share certificate.

Shareholders can register to receive shareholder
communications electronically, including the Company's
Annual Report and Accounts, rather than in paper form, using
Shareview. The registration process reguires shareholders to
input their shareholder reference number (which can be found
atthetop of Vesuvius' share certificates). In order to receive
shareholder communications in electronic form, shareholders
sheould select 'email’ as their mailing preference. Cnce
registered, shareholders will receive an email notifying them
each time a shareholder communication has been published
onthe Vesuvius website.

189

Shadre Degling Service

The Company's shares can be traded through most banks,
building societies or stockbrokers. UK resident shareholders
can also buy and sell shares online or by telephone using
Equiniti’s Shareview dealing service by either logging on to
www.shareview.co.uk/dealing or by colling 0345 603 7037
between 8.00 am and 4.30 prm on any business day (excluding
bank hotidays). The shareholder reference number (found at
the top of Vesuvius' shore certificates) is required to use the
dealing facility.

ShareGift

ShareGift, the charity share donation scheme, is a free service
for shareholders wishing to give shares te charitable causes.
Itis particularly useful for those shareholders who may wishto
dispose of a small quantity of shares where the market value
makes it uneconomic to sell on a commission basis. Further
information can be obtained from ShareGift's website at
www.sharegift.org; telephone +44 (0}20 79303737 or by
emailing help@sharegift.org.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Equiniti offers a dividend reinvestment pian, through which
shareholders can use any cash dividends declared to buy
additional shares in Vesuvius, Further details, including how
to sign up, and the terms and conditions of the plan, are
available from Equiniti by calling the Share Dividend
Helpline on 03771 384 2268 (or +44 121 415 7173 if calling
from outside the UK).

Overseas Payment Service

Equiniti provides o dividend payment service in over

90 countries that automatically converts paymentsinte local
currency and pays the funds into a shareholder's bank account.
Further details, including an application form and the terms and
conditions of the service, are available at www.shareview.co.uk
or from Equiniti by calling +44 (0)121 415 7047 or writing to
Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex
BNS9 60A, United Kingdom (piease quote Overseas Payment
Service, the Company’s name and your shareholder reference

nurnber).

Financial Calendar

2018 Annual General Meeting 10 May 2018
Announcement of 2018 half-year results 26 July 2018
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Shareholder Information continued

Analysis of ordinary shareholders

Investortype Shareholdings
Institutional
Asat31December 2017 Private and other Total 11,000 1,001-50,000 50,601-500,000 500,001+
Number of helders 2,566 600 3,166 2,468 498 132 68
Percentage of holders 81.05% 18.95% 100% 77.95% 15.73% 4.17% 2.15%
Percentage of shares held 0.92% 99.08% 100% 0.13% 1.61% 8.26% 20.00%
Share Fraud — Spot the Warning Signs Reportinga Scam

Investment scams are designedto look like genuine investments.  If you suspect that you have been approached by fravdsters
Have vou been please tell the FCA by contacting them on 0800 111 6768 (or

¥ +44 20 7066 1000 from outside the UK) or by using the share
> Contacted out of the blue fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk/scams, where you

. . . ; can find out more aboutinvestment scams.
> Promised fempting returns and told the investment is safe

If you have lost meney to investment froud, you should

> Colled repeatedly report it to Action Fraud en 0300123 2040 or online at
> TJold the effer is only available for alimited time? www.actionfraud. pelice.uk.

If 50, you might have been contacted by fraudsters, Find out more at www.fca.org.uk/scamsmart.

How to Avoid Share Fraud

1. Reject cold calls

if you have been contacted by telephone, email or post, or via
athird party or at a seminar or exhibition, with an offer 1o buy
or sell shares, the chances are thet it's a high-risk invesiment
or a scam. You should treat any offer with extreme caution,
The safest thing to deis to ignore the approach and if you
were contacted by phone to hang up enthe call.

2. Check if the firm is autherised by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) and recorded onthe Financial Services register
atwww.fca.org.uk/register

The Financial Services Register is a public record of all the firms
and individuals inthe financial services industry that are, or
have been, regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority
and/or the FCA.

3. Getimpartial advice

Think about getting impartial financial advice before you hand
over any money. Seek advice from somecne unconnected to the
firm that has approached you.



Glossary

55 Five Steps to improve housekeeping and therefore  GHG Greenhcuse gos
workplace safety and efficiency: separate, sort, Group Vesuvius plc and its subsidiary companies
shine, standardise and sustain - -
D Ere—— — ——— IAS International Accounting Standard
: - 1 N N
ight Lisciplines: an eight-step methodo/ogy IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
to resolve customer, supplier andinternal
quality issues KPI Key Performance Indicator
AGM Annual General Meeting LTl Losttime injury
cls Commonweaith of Independent States LTIFR Lost time injury frequency rate, a KPlwhich
(Russian Commonwealth) calculates the number of LTIs per million
co, Carbon dioxide hours \'.vorked -
CO,e Carbon dioxide equivalent Median The middle numberin a sorted list of numbers
- NAFTA The area to which the North American Frae
Company  Vesuviusplc .
- - F Trade Agreement applies
DSB8 Deferred Share Bonus Plan OEMs Original Equipment Manufacturers
DTR The Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the - : ; :
: - A Ordinary  Anordinary share of 10 pence inthe capital of
UK Financial Conduct Authority
5 - . — share the Company
EBITDA Tra ing profit before epreciation ar.1d R&D Researchand development
amertisation of non-acquired intangible charges
EMEA Europe, Middle East and Africa TSR Joral shor?ho1der rerur.n _
EPS Farnings per share TurboS The Vesuvius safety fraining prog.;rcmr'.ne .
EU European Union UKGAAP UK Ge.neroifyAccep‘redAccounhng Principles
FRC Financial Reperting Council vsp Vesuvius Share Flan
FRS Financial Reporting Standards
FTSE250  Equity index whose constifuents arethe
107st1o0 350th largest companies listed onthe
London Stock Exchange in terms of their
market capitalisatian
FX Foreign exchange
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